
Tuesday, May 27, 2025, 6:00 PM
Council Chambers
One DesCombes Drive
Broomfield, CO 80020

View Correspondence
View Presentations

1. Meeting Commencement

1.A. Pledge of Allegiance

1.B. Review and Approval of Agenda

2. Petitions and Communications

3. Councilmember Reports

4. Public Comment

5. Reports

5.A. Waste Connections Monthly Update

5.B. Housing Forum Presentation Regarding Housing Survey Results

5.C. Council Meeting Call In Service

6. Consent Items

6.A. Minutes for Approval

6.B. Proposed Resolutions 2025 Playground Replacements

— Resolution 2025-89 A resolution approving the Construction Agreement with Star
Playgrounds, Inc. for the 2025 Playground Replacement Project

— Resolution 2025-90 A resolution approving the Construction Agreement with The Play Well
Group, Inc. for the 2025 Playground Replacement Project

6.C. Proposed Resolution Flatiron Improvement District (FID) Board Appointments 2025

— Resolution 2025-84 Appointing Members to the Flatiron Improvement District (FID) Board

6.D. Proposed Resolution Agreements with Jefferson Academy Regarding Use of Service Expansion
Fee (SEF) Funds

— Resolution 2025-97 Approving an IGA with Jefferson Academy and JeffCo Public Schools
Regarding Service Expansion Fee (SEF) for Track Improvements

6.E. Proposed Resolution State Highway 7 Interim Widening Improvements

— Resolution 2025-94 Delegating Signature Authority for Construction Agreements for the
State Highway 7 Interim Widening from I-25 to Sheridan Parkway Project

7. Action Items

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82


7.A. Public Hearing Ordinance Amending the Code Regarding Land Use Approvals by Resolution -
Second Reading

— Ordinance 2252 amending the Broomfield Municipal Code, Titles 16 and 17, to address a
voter-approved Charter amendments relating to Broomfield’s land use processes

7.B. Proposed Resolution Broomfield Housing Alliance Intergovernmental Agreement

— Resolution No. 2025-87 approving an Amended and Restated Intergovernmental Agreement
between the City and County of Broomfield and the Broomfield Housing Authority

7.C. Proposed Resolution for Funding from Flatiron Habitat for Humanity

— Resolution No. 2025-81 approve an agreement between the City and County of Broomfield
and the Flatirons Habitat for Humanity to provide a one time funding grant of $37,298.56

7.D. Proposed Resolution HOME Consortium and Broomfield Consolidated Plan and 2025 Annual
Action Plan

— Resolution 2025-67 authorizing the submittal of the 2025-2029 Broomfield Consolidated
Plan and the 2025 Action Plan for HOME Investment Partnership Program (HOME) and
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funds

8. Mayor and Councilmember Requests for Future Action

9. Adjournment

The City and County of Broomfield operates without regard to race, color, national origin, ethnicity, citizenship,
immigration status, gender, age, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, gender expression, marital status, source
of income, military status, or disability in all programs and activities. 
Individuals with disabilities requiring accommodation or persons needing a language interpreter must submit such
a request to the City Clerk no later than noon on Thursday prior to the scheduled Council meeting to allow adequate
time to make arrangements.  Please call 303.438.6332 or TDD 303.465.5411 or write cityclerk@broomfield.org to
make your request.
During the meeting, individuals can click the “CC” button on Live Council meeting video feeds to view closed
captioning. Auxiliary hearing aid equipment can be requested on the night of the meeting with our AV team located
at the back of the Council Chambers.

Date Posted: May 21, 2025

mailto:cityclerk@broomfield.org


City and County of Broomfield

City Council Regular Meeting

A. Minutes for Approval

Meeting

Tuesday, May 27, 2025, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Consent Items Item: 6A.

Presented By

Crystal Clemens, City Clerk

Community Goals

Overview

View Presentation

Approval of Minutes for the Regular City Council Meeting of May 13, 2025.

 

Attachments

Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting of May 13, 2025.pdf

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F6778526e5294e0005442830e%2FMinutes%20of%20May%2013%2C%202025.pdf?alt=media&token=170838ea-c65b-4a89-987a-938be0f92fe8
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F6778526e5294e0005442830e%2FMinutes%20of%20May%2013%2C%202025.pdf?alt=media&token=170838ea-c65b-4a89-987a-938be0f92fe8
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F6778526e5294e0005442830e%2FMinutes%20of%20May%2013%2C%202025.pdf?alt=media&token=170838ea-c65b-4a89-987a-938be0f92fe8


Minutes for the City Council Regular Meeting

One DesCombes Drive, Broomfield, CO 80020

May 13, 2025, 6:01 PM - May 13, 2025, 9:15 PM

 

Roll Call: (The following members were in attendance)

Guyleen Castriotta, Mayor
James Marsh-Holschen, Ward 1 (remote)
Kenny Van Nguyen, Ward 1
Paloma Delgadillo, Ward 2
Austin Ward, Ward 2
Jean Lim, Ward 3
Deven Shaff, Mayor Pro Tem, Ward 3
Laurie Anderson, Ward 4
Bruce Leslie, Ward 4
Heidi Henkel, Ward 5
Todd Cohen, Ward 5

Also Present:

Jennifer Hoffman, City and County Manager
Anna Bertenzetti, Deputy City and County Manager
Dan Casey, Deputy City and County Manager
Nancy Rodgers, City and County Attorney
Michelle Parker, Deputy City and County Clerk
And various staff members

The Mayor called a recess at 8:17 p.m. The meeting reconvened at 8:27 p.m.

1. Meeting Commencement

1A. Pledge of Allegiance- 6:01 PM

1B. Review and Approval of Agenda- 6:02 PM

2. Petitions and Communications

2A. Presentation on the 2025 Broomfield Trail Adventure and Kickoff for the Broomfield 100- 6:03
PM

2B. Proclamation Public Works Week May 18-24, 2025- 6:10 PM

5/14/25, 1:56 PM AgendaLink

https://horizon.agendalink.app/broomfield/print/draft/66b0e7c9976260004a9a830b 1/4



2C. Proclamation Elder Abuse Awareness Day and Aging Well Month- 6:19 PM

2D. Proclamation Mental Health Awareness Month- 6:24 PM

3. Councilmember Reports

4. Public Comment

5. Reports

5A. Colorado General Assembly Legislative Update May 13- 6:58 PM

6. Consent Items

6A. Minutes for Approval- 7:34 PM

Councilmember Nguyen moved to approve the Consent Agenda, Items 6A and 6C - 6J, seconded
by Councilmember Ward. The motion passed 10-0.

6B. Proposed Resolution Auditorium Lighting Technology Upgrade Construction Agreement- 7:41
PM
** Item was Removed from Consent

Item 6B was heard as the first item under Action Items.

Mayor Pro Tem Shaff moved to approve Resolution No. 2025-73 approving the Construction
Agreement with Lux AVL Inc. for the Auditorium Lighting and Technical Production Upgrades
Project. Councilmember Henkel seconded the motion, which passed 10-0.

6C. Proposed Resolution Multi-Year Support Agreement Renewal with Tyler Technologies, Inc.-
7:34 PM

6D. Proposed Resolution Intergovernmental Agreement for Peace Officer Behavioral Health
Support Grant- 7:34 PM

6E. Proposed Ordinance Amending the Code Regarding Land Use Approvals by Resolution - First
Reading- 7:34 PM

6F. Proposed Resolution 2025 Broomfield FlexRide Zero Fare Summer Intergovernmental
Agreement (IGA) with Regional Transportation District (RTD)- 7:34 PM

6G. Proposed Resolution I-25 and CO-7 Interim Mobility Hub Pedestrian Railing
Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA)- 7:34 PM

5/14/25, 1:56 PM AgendaLink

https://horizon.agendalink.app/broomfield/print/draft/66b0e7c9976260004a9a830b 2/4



6H. Proposed Resolution Approving a Trash, Rubbish, and Garbage Hauling License for Prime Roll
Off Systems- 7:34 PM

6I. Resolution Supporting Denver Regional Council of Governments (DRCOG) in achieving
designation as an Economic Development District (EDD) and Recommending the Appointment of
Robert Smith to the Advisory Committee- 7:34 PM

6J. Proposed Resolution 2025 Fireworks Display Permit- 7:34 PM

7. Action Items

7A. Public Hearing Ordinance Amending Parking/Bicycle Code Update Second Reading- 8:31 PM
Public Hearing was opened at 8:31 PM and closed at 8:35 PM

Councilmember Ward moved to approve Ordinance No. 2268 to amend the Broomfield Municipal
Code, Title 17-32. Seconded by Councilmember Leslie, the motion passed 10-0.

7B. Public Hearing Ordinance Amending Chapter 2-60 of the Broomfield Municipal Code to
Change Administrative Organization - Second Reading- 8:36 PM
Public Hearing was opened at 8:36 PM and closed at 8:38 PM

Councilmember Henkel moved to approve Ordinance No. 2269 to amend Chapter 2-60 to the
Broomfield Municipal Code, seconded by Councilmember Leslie. The motion passed 10-0.

7C. Proposed Resolution for Creation of the Fiscal Leadership on Water Advisory Committee- 8:39
PM

Councilmember Leslie moved to approve Resolution No. 2025-85 Establishing the City and County
of Broomfield Fiscal Leadership on Water Advisory Committee. Seconded by Councilmember
Henkel, the motion passed 10-0.

8. Mayor and Councilmember Requests for Future Action

8A. Councilmember Ward's Request for Future Action Regarding Removing Drive-thrus as a
Permitted Use Within the City and County of Broomfield- 8:47 PM

8B. Councilmember Ward's Request for Future Action Regarding Requiring Set-backs for Gas
Stations from Residential and Sensitive Businesses (Day-Cares, Hospitals, Medical Offices, etc.)-
9:01 PM

8C. Councilmember Ward’s Request for Future Action Regarding a Resolution Relating to Front
Range Passenger Rail District and Regional Transportation District Joint Services- 9:06 PM

5/14/25, 1:56 PM AgendaLink

https://horizon.agendalink.app/broomfield/print/draft/66b0e7c9976260004a9a830b 3/4



9. Adjournment

 

APPROVED:

 

_____________________________________________
Mayor Castriotta

_____________________________________________
Office of the City and County Clerk

5/14/25, 1:56 PM AgendaLink

https://horizon.agendalink.app/broomfield/print/draft/66b0e7c9976260004a9a830b 4/4



City and County of Broomfield

City Council Regular Meeting

B. Proposed Resolutions 2025 Playground Replacements

Meeting

Tuesday, May 27, 2025, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Consent Items Item: 6B.

Presented By

Katie Allen

Community Goals

☑ Thriving, Diverse, Safe and Welcoming Community

Overview

View Correspondence 

View Presentation

 

The 2025 Playground Replacement Program will replace aging playground equipment at four neighborhood parks:
Broomfield County Commons Yellow Pod, Broomfield Town Center, Columbine West, and Greenway Park. These
playgrounds were selected for replacement in 2025 based on equipment age, condition, community equity, and
proximity to other playgrounds, ensuring safe and accessible play spaces across Broomfield. Each replacement will
focus on improving safety, accessibility, and user experience by installing new, developmentally appropriate, and
inclusive playground equipment.

 

 

 

Attachments

Memo for 2025 Playground Replacement Program.pdf
Resolution 2025-89 (Star).pdf
Resolution 2025-90 (Play Well) (1).pdf

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67ad2394cffa5300542ae36a%2FMemo%20for%202025%20Playground%20Replacement%20Program.pdf?alt=media&token=7a4d2496-d8b5-494e-bd15-bd46941a07de
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67ad2394cffa5300542ae36a%2FMemo%20for%202025%20Playground%20Replacement%20Program.pdf?alt=media&token=7a4d2496-d8b5-494e-bd15-bd46941a07de
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67ad2394cffa5300542ae36a%2FMemo%20for%202025%20Playground%20Replacement%20Program.pdf?alt=media&token=7a4d2496-d8b5-494e-bd15-bd46941a07de
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67ad2394cffa5300542ae36a%2FResolution%202025-89%20(Star).pdf?alt=media&token=7e5bfbf2-8941-49f1-b580-8a8df561529c
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67ad2394cffa5300542ae36a%2FResolution%202025-89%20(Star).pdf?alt=media&token=7e5bfbf2-8941-49f1-b580-8a8df561529c
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67ad2394cffa5300542ae36a%2FResolution%202025-89%20(Star).pdf?alt=media&token=7e5bfbf2-8941-49f1-b580-8a8df561529c
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67ad2394cffa5300542ae36a%2FResolution%202025-90%20(Play%20Well)%20(1).pdf?alt=media&token=8405e5b8-7183-4bee-bc34-a9f44670eff9
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67ad2394cffa5300542ae36a%2FResolution%202025-90%20(Play%20Well)%20(1).pdf?alt=media&token=8405e5b8-7183-4bee-bc34-a9f44670eff9
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67ad2394cffa5300542ae36a%2FResolution%202025-90%20(Play%20Well)%20(1).pdf?alt=media&token=8405e5b8-7183-4bee-bc34-a9f44670eff9


Memo for 2025 Playground Replacements - Design-Build Agreement
Prepared By: Kelly Behling

Summary
View Correspondence
View Presentation

Proposed Resolution Nos. 2025-89 and 2025-90 will authorize construction agreements with Star Playgrounds 
and The Play Well Group for the design, fabrication, and installation of playground equipment as part of the 
2025 Playground Replacement Program.

The 2025 Playground Replacement Program will replace aging playground equipment at four neighborhood 
parks: Broomfield County Commons Yellow Pod, Broomfield Town Center, Columbine West, and Greenway 
Park. These playgrounds were selected for replacement in 2025 based on equipment age, condition, 
community equity, and proximity to other playgrounds, ensuring safe and accessible play spaces across 
Broomfield. Each replacement will focus on improving safety, accessibility, and user experience by installing 
new, developmentally appropriate, and inclusive playground equipment.

Here is a vicinity map showing the   project locations.  

Star Playgrounds will complete the replacement of the Broomfield County Commons Yellow Pod playground. 
The Play Well Group will complete the replacement of both the Columbine West and Greenway Park 
Playgrounds.  Additionally, A to Z Recreation will complete the replacement of the Broomfield Town Center 
Playground, however, this agreement is under $200,000 and is thus included in this memo for informational 
purposes only.

Here are pictures of the existing playgrounds and renderings showing the proposed playground designs. 
Please note that in coordination with Broomfield staff, minor adjustments may be made to the final design 
at each location.

A Request for Proposals (RFP) was issued in early February 2025 through Rocky Mountain BidNet. Ten 
proposals were received by the deadline. Proposals were evaluated based on design quality, functionality, 
accessibility, durability, and overall value. The above-named vendors were selected based on the strength 
of their designs, their demonstrated ability to deliver safe and inclusive play environments, and their value 
within the approved project budget.

If proposed Resolution Nos. 2025-89 and 2025-90 are approved, design finalization and fabrication will begin 
in June 2025. Construction and installation are anticipated to begin in late summer 2025 and be completed 
by the end of the year.

Financial Considerations

As shown in the sources and uses of funds summary below, the project can be completed within the 
budgeted amount.

Sources and Uses of Funds Amount

2025 Playground Replacement Program (0AZ0038) (Account No. 22-
70080-55200)

$983,692

Broomfield County Commons Yellow Pod Playground Design, 
Fabrication, and Installation - Star Playgrounds

-$441,280

 Page 1

https://drive.google.com/file/d/13QSk0zIVZ1QuissVRxiNGtGMBsNTIQB7/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1rJrffiavcE8fOw6zD0QMMEa5U29ODSU7/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/13QSk0zIVZ1QuissVRxiNGtGMBsNTIQB7/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82


Memo for 2025 Playground Replacements - Design-Build Agreement
Prepared By: Kelly Behling

Sources and Uses of Funds Amount

Columbine West Playground and Greenway Park Playground Design, 
Fabrication, and Installation - The Play Well Group

-$354,669

Broomfield Town Center Playground Design, Fabrication, and 
Installation - A to Z Recreation

-$111,670

7.2% Construction Contingency -$71,073

Geotechnical Testing -$5,000

Projected Balance $0

Prior Council or Other Entity Actions

On October 22, 2024 Council authorized funds in the 2025 Budget.

Boards and Commissions Prior Actions and Recommendations

N/A

Proposed Actions / Recommendations

If Council desires to proceed with the projects, the appropriate motion is...
That Resolution 2025-89 and Resolution 2025-90 be adopted.

Alternatives

Decide not to proceed with the projects.

 Page 2

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1BSnWMtJNlCtbCYzKAB7N55sBwloK3QWX/view


���������	
	��
�������
����������
���������
� �
!������"����
�����#���
$��%���
� �
!��&
��'
!����&
�(
)���#(���'
��'
*���
+��&�����'�,
-�".
(��
� �
/0/1
+��&�����'
2����"�#���
+��3�"�)�
��
�������'
$&
� �
!��&
!���"��
�(
� �
!��&
��'
!����&
�(
)���#(���',
!�����'�4�56789:
;�
< �
=�����>)���'
�����#���
$&
��'
$��%���
� �
!��&
��'
!����&
�(
*���
+��&�����'�,
-�".
(��
� �
/0/1
+��&�����'
2����"�#���
+��3�"�
��
� �
�#����
���
��
�?"��'
@AA0,/B0
��
 ���$&
�������'.
�56789:
��< �
C�&��
��
C�&��
+��
<�#
��
��� ���D�'
��
����
��'
� �
E((�"�
�(
� �
!��&
��'
!����&
!���F
��
������
� �
�����#���,
��
(��#
�������'
$&
� �
!��&
��'
!����&
�������&.�56789:
G�< �
!��&
��'
!����&
C������
��
�
'�������
� ����(
��
��� ���D�'
��
�������
" ����
��'���
��
��
���������
�#����
���
��
�?"��'
���
���"���.�56789:
H�< ��
����������
��
�((�"����
����
���
��������
$&
� �
!��&
!���"��.�������'
��
C�&
/I,
/0/1. < �
!��&
��'
!����&
�(
)���#(���',
!�����'�C�&��������4E((�"�
�(
� �
!��&
��'
!����&
!���F �������'
��
��
(��#4 JKL!��&
��'
!����&
�������&+���
M 2�����'
NO/0/A



���������	
	��
������
����������
���������
���
 ������!����
�����"���
#��$���
���
 ��%
��&
 ����%
�'
(���"'���&
��&
)��
*��%
+���
,����-
.�!/
'��
���
0102
*��%�����&
3����!�"���
*��4�!�(�
��
�������&
#%
���
 ��%
 ���!��
�'
���
 ��%
��&
 ����%
�'
(���"'���&-
 �����&�5�6789:;
<�
)��
=�����>(���&
�����"���
#%
��&
#��$���
���
 ��%
��&
 ����%
�'
)��
*��%
+���
,����-
.�!/
'��
���
0102
*��%�����&
3����!�"���
*��4�!�
��
���
�"����
���
��
�?!��&
@ABC-D1C
��
����#%
�������&/
�6789:;
��)��
E�%��
��
E�%��
*��
)�"
��
�������F�&
��
����
��&
���
G''�!�
�'
���
 ��%
��&
 ����%
 ���H
��
������
���
�����"���-
��
'��"
�������&
#%
���
 ��%
��&
 ����%
�������%/�6789:;
I�)��
 ��%
��&
 ����%
E������
��
�
&�������
������'
��
�������F�&
��
�������
!�����
��&���
��
��
���������
�"����
���
��
�?!��&
���
���!���/�6789:;
J�)���
����������
��
�''�!����
����
���
��������
#%
���
 ��%
 ���!��/�������&
��
E�%
0B-
0102/ )��
 ��%
��&
 ����%
�'
(���"'���&-
 �����&�E�%��������5G''�!�
�'
���
 ��%
��&
 ����%
 ���H �������&
��
��
'��"5 KLM ��%
��&
 ����%
�������%*���
D 3�����&
AN010O



City and County of Broomfield

City Council Regular Meeting

C. Proposed Resolution Flatiron Improvement District (FID) Board Appointments 2025

Meeting

Tuesday, May 27, 2025, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Consent Items Item: 6C.

Presented By

Jeff Romine, Economist - CMO

Community Goals

☑ Financial Sustainability and Resilience ☑ Mobility

Overview

View Correspondence

View Presentation

Proposed Resolution No. 2025-84 would approve the appointments of Heather Drake, Kate Taggart, and Rick
Merkel to the Flatiron Improvement District (FID) Board of Directors.

 

 

 

Attachments

Memo- FID Board Appointments 2025.pdf
Resolution 2025-84 Approving the Appointment of Board Members to the FID Board of Directors .pdf

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67f7eb82fda1b9004651d7b5%2FMemo-%20FID%20Board%20Appointments%202025.pdf?alt=media&token=374cdf42-a625-4958-a133-151aebea632d
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67f7eb82fda1b9004651d7b5%2FMemo-%20FID%20Board%20Appointments%202025.pdf?alt=media&token=374cdf42-a625-4958-a133-151aebea632d
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67f7eb82fda1b9004651d7b5%2FMemo-%20FID%20Board%20Appointments%202025.pdf?alt=media&token=374cdf42-a625-4958-a133-151aebea632d
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67f7eb82fda1b9004651d7b5%2FResolution%202025-84%20%20Approving%20the%20Appointment%20of%20Board%20Members%20to%20the%20FID%20Board%20of%20Directors%20.pdf?alt=media&token=c364d30e-ea91-4fbf-b730-73f7d5f748ba
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67f7eb82fda1b9004651d7b5%2FResolution%202025-84%20%20Approving%20the%20Appointment%20of%20Board%20Members%20to%20the%20FID%20Board%20of%20Directors%20.pdf?alt=media&token=c364d30e-ea91-4fbf-b730-73f7d5f748ba
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67f7eb82fda1b9004651d7b5%2FResolution%202025-84%20%20Approving%20the%20Appointment%20of%20Board%20Members%20to%20the%20FID%20Board%20of%20Directors%20.pdf?alt=media&token=c364d30e-ea91-4fbf-b730-73f7d5f748ba


Memo for FID Board Appointments 2025 
Prepared By: Jeff Romine/Jeff Schreier 

Summary 

View Correspondence 

View Presentation 

 

The FlatIron Improvement District (FID) was organized as a political subdivision of the State of Colorado and, 

as such, is governed by an independent board of directors composed of five members. The five-member FID 

Board consists of two representatives from FlatIron Crossing, one each from FlatIron Marketplace and 

MainStreet at FlatIron and one from the City and County of Broomfield.  Currently, David Frieder is serving 

as a representative of MainStreet at Flatiron and the fifth board member is Broomfield City Councilmember 

Austin Ward. 

 

Pursuant to section 14-08-040 of the Broomfield Municipal Code, creating the Flatiron Improvement District 

and setting forth the procedures for appointment of an independent board, any nomination to fill a vacancy 

must be made by an affirmative vote of its directors and then submitted to Council for appointment. The 

FID Board positions do not have specific term periods, nor are they term limited. The FID Board has 

nominated, and is submitting to the City Council for appointment: 

 

● Heather Drake, Sr. Marketing Flatiron Crossing-  to be the representative of Flatiron Crossing 

● Kate Taggart, General Manager of Flatiron Crossing- to be the representative of Flatiron 

Crossing 

● Rick Merkel, Property Manager of TKG Management, Inc. to represent Flatiron Marketplace 

 

Proposed Resolution No.2025-84 would approve the appointments of Heather Drake, Kate Taggart, and Rick 

Merkel to the FID Board of Directors. 

 

Financial Considerations 

N/A 

 

Prior Council or Other Entity Actions 

● On November 13, 2018, Council approved Resolution No. 2018-240, appointing Kate Honea to the FID 

Board of Directors. 

● On May 23, 2023, Council approved Resolution No. 2023-73, appointing David Frieder to the Fid Board 

of Directors. 

 

Boards and Commissions Prior Actions and Recommendations 

● November 13, 2018, Heather Drake, Kate Honea, and Rick Merkel were nominated to serve on the FID 

Board of Directors as representatives of Flatiron Crossing and the Flatiron Marketplace area.  

● January 23, 2025, Heather Drake, Kate Honea, and Rick Merkel were nominated to serve on the FID 

Board of Directors as Representatives of Flatiron Crossing and the Flatiron Marketplace. 

 

Proposed Actions / Recommendations 

Based on the above, it is recommended… 

 

That Resolution 2025-84, Approving the appointment of Heather Drake, Kate Honea, and Rick 

Merkel to the Flatiron Improvement District Board of Directors, be adopted. 

                 

1 

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82
https://drive.google.com/file/d/15uWjSwmDFufnxPyPWnTZSK8Aeibd1qL0/view
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1vZj1uWh2J0kLM_rQAIN64-YcAUkkvocC/view?usp=drivesdk


 

 

Alternatives 

Council may choose not to make this appointment and ask the FID board to submit alternative nominations. 

2 



 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-84 

 

A Resolution approving the appointment of Heather Drake, Kate Taggart, and Rick Merkel to 

the Flatiron Improvement District’s independent Board of Directors. 

  

Be It Resolved by the City Council of the City and County of Broomfield, Colorado: 

  

Section 1.    Pursuant to section 14-08-040 of the Broomfield Municipal Code, creating the 

FlatIron Improvement District and setting forth procedures for appointment of an independent 

board, Heather Drake, Kate Taggart, and Rick Merkel are hereby hereby appointed as 

members of the FlatIron Improvement District’s independent Board of Directors. 

  

Section 2.  This resolution is effective upon its approval by the City Council. 

   

Approved on May 27, 2025 

 

 

 

The City and County of Broomfield, Colorado 

 

 

 

        

Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

 

 

       

Office of the City and County Clerk 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

 

        

City and County Attorney 

Page 1 

 



City and County of Broomfield

City Council Regular Meeting

D. Proposed Resolution Agreements with Jefferson Academy Regarding Use of Service Expansion Fee (SEF)
Funds

Meeting

Tuesday, May 27, 2025, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Consent Items Item: 6D.

Presented By

Anna Bertanzetti

Community Goals

Overview

View Correspondence 

View Presentation

 

Jefferson Academy recently indicated an interest to improve their track.  To fund these improvements, which are
currently budgeted at $1,625,000, the school has requested $315,000 in Service Expansion Fee (SEF) funds.
Resolution No. 2025-97 authorizes and approves an agreement authorizing the use of SEF funds to fund
improvements to the track/field.  Resolution No. 2025-97 would also approve an amendment to the joint use
agreement to ensure the track is included as a joint use facility.

 

 

 

Attachments

Agreement for Jefferson Academy Regarding SEF - Track Expansion (1).pdf
Resolution 2025-97 Approving Agreements with Jefferson Academy for the use of SEF Funds for TrackImprovements 5-27-2025 (1).pdf
Jefferson Academy - First Amendment to 2022 Joint Use Agreement 5-27-2025.pdf
Agreement w Jefferson Academy SEF Funding for Track 5-27-2025.pdf

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67f82b9afda1b9004652f532%2FAgreement%20for%20Jefferson%20Academy%20Regarding%20SEF%20-%20Track%20Expansion%20(1).pdf?alt=media&token=5081f274-273d-4a02-a757-4121c28deb5a
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67f82b9afda1b9004652f532%2FAgreement%20for%20Jefferson%20Academy%20Regarding%20SEF%20-%20Track%20Expansion%20(1).pdf?alt=media&token=5081f274-273d-4a02-a757-4121c28deb5a
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67f82b9afda1b9004652f532%2FAgreement%20for%20Jefferson%20Academy%20Regarding%20SEF%20-%20Track%20Expansion%20(1).pdf?alt=media&token=5081f274-273d-4a02-a757-4121c28deb5a
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67f82b9afda1b9004652f532%2FResolution%202025-97%20Approving%20Agreements%20with%20Jefferson%20Academy%20for%20the%20use%20of%20SEF%20Funds%20for%20Track%20Improvements%205-27-2025%20(1).pdf?alt=media&token=39968b46-8709-4fcc-833c-a2d132ff6492
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67f82b9afda1b9004652f532%2FResolution%202025-97%20Approving%20Agreements%20with%20Jefferson%20Academy%20for%20the%20use%20of%20SEF%20Funds%20for%20Track%20Improvements%205-27-2025%20(1).pdf?alt=media&token=39968b46-8709-4fcc-833c-a2d132ff6492
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67f82b9afda1b9004652f532%2FResolution%202025-97%20Approving%20Agreements%20with%20Jefferson%20Academy%20for%20the%20use%20of%20SEF%20Funds%20for%20Track%20Improvements%205-27-2025%20(1).pdf?alt=media&token=39968b46-8709-4fcc-833c-a2d132ff6492
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67f82b9afda1b9004652f532%2FResolution%202025-97%20Approving%20Agreements%20with%20Jefferson%20Academy%20for%20the%20use%20of%20SEF%20Funds%20for%20Track%20Improvements%205-27-2025%20(1).pdf?alt=media&token=39968b46-8709-4fcc-833c-a2d132ff6492
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67f82b9afda1b9004652f532%2FJefferson%20Academy%20-%20First%20Amendment%20to%202022%20Joint%20Use%20Agreement%205-27-2025.pdf?alt=media&token=f15fac11-2fd8-4db1-8126-f96866bf2304
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67f82b9afda1b9004652f532%2FJefferson%20Academy%20-%20First%20Amendment%20to%202022%20Joint%20Use%20Agreement%205-27-2025.pdf?alt=media&token=f15fac11-2fd8-4db1-8126-f96866bf2304
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67f82b9afda1b9004652f532%2FJefferson%20Academy%20-%20First%20Amendment%20to%202022%20Joint%20Use%20Agreement%205-27-2025.pdf?alt=media&token=f15fac11-2fd8-4db1-8126-f96866bf2304
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67f82b9afda1b9004652f532%2FAgreement%20w%20Jefferson%20Academy%20SEF%20Funding%20for%20Track%205-27-2025.pdf?alt=media&token=9553bc20-4d25-4bd2-ba9d-ea6c2b649cb0
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67f82b9afda1b9004652f532%2FAgreement%20w%20Jefferson%20Academy%20SEF%20Funding%20for%20Track%205-27-2025.pdf?alt=media&token=9553bc20-4d25-4bd2-ba9d-ea6c2b649cb0
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67f82b9afda1b9004652f532%2FAgreement%20w%20Jefferson%20Academy%20SEF%20Funding%20for%20Track%205-27-2025.pdf?alt=media&token=9553bc20-4d25-4bd2-ba9d-ea6c2b649cb0


Resolution No. 2025-97 Agreements with Jefferson Academy Regarding SEF - Track Improvements
Prepared By: Anna Bertanzetti, Deputy City & County Manager

Summary
View Correspondence
View Presentation

Jefferson Academy (JA) Secondary School is an existing 7-12th grade public charter school located within 
the Jefferson County School District boundaries. The school is located at 11251 Reed Way on property within 
the Interpark subdivision. 

JA and Jefferson County School District R-1 entered into a prior intergovernmental agreement with 
Broomfield in 2014 and 2018 regarding the use of service expansion fee (SEF) to add eligible joint use 
recreation and education facilities at JA.  Broomfield and JA have also entered into a Joint Use Agreement 
regarding use of the facilities.  The Joint Use Agreement allows for the shared use of city owned and school 
owned facilities for programming which benefits either the school or the greater Broomfield community. 
Broomfield’s partnership with JA has been strong since the school opened and staff has been working 
through the existing Joint Use Agreement for athletic programming since 2014.

JA recently indicated an interest to improve the track located adjacent to JA as shown on the school’s 
Athletic Facilities Master Plan.  To fund these improvements, which are currently budgeted at $1,625,000, 
the school has requested $315,000 in SEF funds.  The improvements include installing a new post-tension 
concrete track with a new rubber surface and building bleacher seating for the outdoor events in the 
existing track.  The intent is to move forward with reconstruction of the track this summer to minimize 
disturbance during the school year. 

JA is a charter school and is not under the direction of the Jefferson County School District. The District has 
been supportive of JA. The District has consented to the use of the joint use SEF funds for this purpose and 
has requested the SEF funds be paid directly to JA. A new agreement outlining the SEF financing has been 
negotiated with the JA to cover the use of these funds.  An amendment to the Joint Use Agreement is 
proposed to ensure the track is included as an eligible joint use facility in the agreement.

If approved, proposed Resolution No. 2025-97 approves the agreement authorizing the use of SEF funds to 
fund improvements to the track/field.  Resolution No. 2025-97 would also approve an amendment to the 
joint use agreement to ensure the track is included as a joint use facility.

Financial Considerations

SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

Source of Funds

SEF Funds - Jefferson County Joint Use $677,352

Total Funds Available $677,352

Use of Funds

Jefferson Academy Joint Use Expansion (Track Improvements) $315,000

Total Use of Funds $315,000

1

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1V5uoNmeC71oJtnsBclGvDf2qh_MnEgFp/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1ZjUzn9tsSomAQmfiu4-twzyMABp_wFdx/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82


Resolution No. 2025-97 Agreements with Jefferson Academy Regarding SEF - Track Improvements
Prepared By: Anna Bertanzetti, Deputy City & County Manager

Projected Balance $362,352

   

Prior Council or Other Entity Actions

● June 10, 2014   - Council approved a Joint Use Agreement with Jefferson Academy for Use of 
Recreational Facilities.

● September 11, 2018   - Council approved an IGA with Jefferson Academy Secondary School and the 
Jefferson County School District No. R-1 for the use of Service Expansion Fee Funds for the expansion 
of Jefferson Academy Secondary School.

● April 12, 2022   - Council approved a Joint Use  Agreement with Jefferson Academy for the Use of 
Recreation Facilities

Boards and Commissions Prior Actions and Recommendations

N/A

Proposed Actions / Recommendations

If Council desires to approve the agreement approving the use of SEF funds and the amendment to the Joint 
Use Agreement, the appropriate motion is….

That Resolution 2025-97 be adopted 

Alternatives

Do not approve the agreement for SEF and the amendment to the Joint Use Agreement. 

2

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1oIU_kk-_-YpY7gA6J7-fls-fjHn0XbqR/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/15RXWIJdbuq81EMqcaImdxYrLE_EXR8wK/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1o1kexqQSOJSUBhSW3yY6J9L1cskY3eBm/view?usp=sharing


���������	
	��
�������
����������
���������
����� ����
!��"
#�$$�����
�%�&� '
$��
�"�
���
�$
(����%��
)*�������
+��
,()+-
$��&�
$��
���%.
� ����� ����/�
��
�������&
0'
�"�
1��'
1���%��
�$
�"�
1��'
��&
1����'
�$
/��� $���&2
1�����&�3�456789
:�
;"�
����� ���
0'
��&
0��!���
�"�
1��'
��&
1����'
�$
/��� $���&
��&
#�$$�����
�%�&� '
�����&���
�����%��
�*�������
$��
$��&���
,()+-
$��
�"�
�����%� ���
�$
�"�
��%���������
���%.
��
"���0'
�������&<�456789
��;"�
+����
� ��& ���
��
�"�
=>==
����� ���
$��
#����
?��
�$
@�%�������
+�%�������
0'
��&
0��!���
�"�
1��'
��&
1����'
�$
/��� $���&
��&
#�$$�����
�%�&� '
��
"���0'
�������&<
�456789
A�;"�
B�'��
��
B�'��
C��
;� 
��
���"���D�&
��
����
��&
�"�
E$$�%�
�$
�"�
1��'
��&
1����'
1���.
��
������
�"�
����� ����2
��
$�� 
�������&
0'
�"�
1��'
��&
1����'
�������'<�456789
F�;"�
1��'
��&
1����'
B������
��
�
&�������
��
���"���D�&
��
��'
��
#�$$�����
�%�&� '
�"�
�� 
�$
GHIJ2>>>
��
()+
$��&�
����
�"�
1��'K�
��%����
�$
�
%��'
�$
�"�
�����&
%������%����
%�����%�
$�� 
#�$$�����
�%�&� '
���"���D���
�"�
�����%� ���
�$
�"�
���%.<�456789
��;"��
����������
��
�$$�%����
����
���
��������
0'
�"�
1��'
1���%��<�������&
��
#���
I>2
=>=J ;"�
1��'
��&
1����'
�$
/��� $���&2
1�����&�B�'��������3E$$�%�
�$
�"�
1��'
��&
1����'
1���. �������&
��
��
$�� 3 LMNC���
I @�����&
HO=>=J1��'
��&
1����'
�������'



FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE 2022 AGREEMENT FOR JOINT USE OF RECREATION FACILITIES 
BETWEEN THE CITY AND COUNTY OF BROOMFIELD AND JEFFERSON ACADEMY

1. PARTIES. The Parties to this First Amendment (this “Amendment”) are the City 
and County of Broomfield (the “City”) and Jefferson Academy, a Colorado non-profit 
corporation and a charter school, collectively, the “Parties”, or individually, a “Party.”

2. RECITALS. The Recitals to this First Amendment are incorporated herein by this 
reference as though fully set forth in the body of this Fist Amendment.

2.1 The Parties entered into an Agreement for Joint USe of Recreation Facilities 
dated June 10, 2022 (the “Joint Use Agreement”).

2.2 Section 21 of the Joint Use Agreement permits the Parties to amend the 
agreement by written instrument signed by the Parties.

2.3 Pursuant to the Joint Use Agreement, Jefferson Academy agrees to allow the 
CCOB to open for community use designated Jefferson Academy Secondary recreation 
facilities, such as the gymnasium and playing fields and performing arts and gallery facilities 
when Jefferson Academy is not using the facilities during non-school hours, and times, such as 
evenings, weekends, holidays, and school breaks.

2.4 In turn, pursuant to the Joint Use Agreement, the City will also open 
designated City facilities for Jefferson Academy use when Broomfield is not using the 
facilities.

2.5 The Parties to this First Amendment desire to amend the Joint Use Agreement 
to add the “Track” to the Site List of eligible Jefferson Academy facilities that are subject to 
the Joint Use Agreement.

3. THE AMENDMENT. In consideration of the mutual covenants and promises of the 
Parties contained herein, and other valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of 
which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows:

3.1 Exhibit A to the Joint Use Agreement is hereby amended as attached hereto to 
add the Track to the Site List of eligible Jefferson Academy facilities that are subject to the 
Joint Use Agreement. 

4. AGREEMENT IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT. Except as amended herein, all other terms, 
conditions, and provisions of the Joint Use Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and 
are hereby ratified and reaffirmed by the Parties in their entirety.



This First Amendment is executed by the Parties hereto as of May 27, 2025.

THE CITY AND COUNTY OF BROOMFIELD,
a Colorado Municipal Corporation and County

__________________________________ 
Mayor

ATTEST:

___________________________
City & County Clerk’s Office

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

___________________________________
City & County Attorney



JEFFERSON ACADEMY,
a Colorado nonprofit corporation and Charter School

___________________________________
President

ATTEST:

___________________________
Secretary



ATTACHMENT A
(Amended 2025)

JA Facilities

Jefferson Academy Secondary School: 
Site List consists of: 

● Soccer field (“Field”): the "Field" is available at no charge to the CCOB for public 

recreational purposes. 

● Track: the Track is available at no charge to the CCOB for public recreational purposes. 

● Third party usage for youth and/or adult programs is authorized.

● Lights at the Track and Field for practice or games are provided at no charge. 

● Restrooms at the Track and Field are available at no charge to the CCOB for public 

recreational purposes.  This would include the CCOB recreation programs and the 
recognized youth sports organizations.

● The gymnasium is available at no charge to the CCOB for public recreational purposes. 

▪Monitor/Custodial provided at a rate of $35/hour for weekend use and other times 

when school is not in session (e.g., holidays and vacation periods). 
Monitor/Custodian will be provided at no charge during after school and evening 
use Monday thru Friday when school is in session.

▪ JA will provide two nights per week from 6:00 pm to 10:00 pm and Saturday use 

when available, during the school year for CCOB. 

● Performing arts auditorium, backstage, classrooms/dressing rooms, scene 

shop/makerspace and support spaces and gallery space is available at no charge to CCOB 
on agreed upon dates 

● Monitor/Custodial provided at a rate of $35/hour for weekend use and other times 
when school is not in session (e.g., holidays and vacation periods). 
Monitor/Custodian will be provided at no charge during after school and evening 
use Monday thru Friday when school is in session.

● CCOB staff will run the equipment for third party renters or under direct 
supervision of CCOB staff

Use of other spaces: 

● Other Jefferson Academy Secondary spaces including classrooms, commons and other 

multi-purpose spaces are available for use at no charge. 

▪Monitor/Custodial provided at a rate of $35/hour for weekend use and other times 

when school is not in session (e.g., holidays and vacation periods).



▪Monitor/Custodian will be provided at no charge during after school and evening 

use Monday thru Friday when school is in session.



AN AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 
THE CITY AND COUNTY OF BROOMFIELD AND THE JEFFERSON ACADEMY, 

REGARDING SERVICES EXPANSION FEE FUNDING FOR THE REPLACEMENT OF THE 
RECREATIONAL TRACK AND ASSOCIATED COSTS

1.0 PARTIES. This Agreement is entered into this 27th day of May, 2025, by and between The 
City and County of Broomfield, a Colorado municipal corporation and county, (the "City") and 
Jefferson Academy, a Colorado non-profit corporation and a charter school, collectively, the 
“Parties”, or individually, a “Party.”

2.0 RECITALS.

2.1  Jefferson Academy is the owner of real property within the City’s boundaries, including 
facilities and active use areas that are capable of being used by the City for community 
recreational and community purposes.

2.2   The Jefferson County School District No. R-1 is the governmental entity and authorizer of 
Jefferson Academy and has confirmed the authority for and participation by Jefferson Academy 
in this Agreement.

2.3  Section 3-28-040 of the Broomfield Municipal Code (BMC), imposes an excise tax referred 
to as a services expansion fee ("SEF"), which may be used for "joint-use educational/municipal 
facilities."

2.4 Jefferson Academy will be replacing the existing recreational track located at 11251 Reed 
Way in the City and County of Broomfield with one that is rubber surface and concrete underlay 
(the "Track Improvements"). 

2.5 An agreement for the use of recreational facilities at Jefferson Academy was approved by 
the City Council of the City on June 10, 2022 ("Joint Use Agreement"). A First Amendment to 
the Joint Use Agreement to add the “Track” to the Site List of eligible Jefferson Academy 
facilities that are subject to the Joint Use Agreement is also proposed for approval by the 
Parties by separate document. 

2.6 Jefferson Academy desires to receive SEF funds for the Improvements. Preliminary cost 
estimates for the Track Improvements are attached hereto as Exhibit A.

2.7 The Improvements will serve Broomfield students and will be made available for use by 
Broomfield residents as part of the City's recreational and cultural affairs programming.

2.8 The City supports the proposed Improvements for the benefit of its residents and students.

2.9 The availability of the Improvements for public use is sufficient to meet the requirement as 

1



prescribed by Section 3-28-060 of the BMC for the use of SEF funds as a joint-use of 
educational/municipal facilities.

3.0 TERMS AND CONDITIONS. ln consideration of the mutual covenants and promises of the 
Parties contained herein, and other valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which 
are hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows:

3.1 The Parties hereby acknowledge the accuracy of the Recitals in Section 2.0, which are 
incorporated herein by this reference.

3.2 Jefferson Academy agrees to construct the Improvements and estimates a start date of no 
later than August 1, 2025, with an estimated substantial completion date for the Improvements 
occurring prior to October 1, 2025. Jefferson Academy has entered into a contract for the 
construction of the Improvements and agrees to provide a copy of said construction contract to 
the City.

3.3 The City agrees to pay to Jefferson Academy the sum of $315,000 in SEF funds upon the 
City's receipt of the construction contract from Jefferson Academy. Jefferson Academy agrees 
to use said SEF funds only for the completion of the Track Improvements. ln the event the 
Improvements are not completed by Jefferson Academy within a reasonable period of time, 
Jefferson Academy will refund to the City its SEF contribution.

3.4 ln consideration of the above payment by the City, and in accordance with section 3-28-
060(8) of the Broomfield Municipal Code regarding purposes for which monies from the services 
expansion fund may be expended, the Parties agree to add the Improvements to Attachment A 
of the Joint Use Agreement and that the Improvements shall be made available to the City and 
members of the public for use during non-school hours and as provided for by Jefferson 
Academy policies. The City's use of the Improvements shall be at no charge to either the City or 
the general public.

4.0 ASSIGNMENT. This Agreement shall not be assigned by either Party without the prior 
written consent of the other Party. ln the event of an approved assignment, the terms and 
provisions of this Agreement shall be binding upon the party to whom it has been assigned.

5.0 NOTICES. Any notice required or permitted by this Agreement shall be in writing and shall 
be deemed to have been sufficiently given for all purposes if personally served or if sent by 
certified and registered mail postage and fees prepaid, addressed to the Party to whom such 
notice is to be given at the address set forth on the signature page below, or at such other 
address as has been previously furnished in writing to the other Party or Parties. Such notice 
shall be deemed to have been given when deposited in the mail of the United States Postal 
Service.

6.0 EXHIBITS. All exhibits referred to in this Agreement are by reference incorporated herein for 
all purposes.

2



7.0 DELAYS. Any delays in or failure of performance by any party of its obligations under this 
Agreement shall be excused if such delays or failure are a result of acts of God, fires, strikes, 
labor disputes, accidents, drought, regulations or orders of civil or military authorities, shortages 
of labor or materials, or other causes, similar or dissimilar, which are beyond the control of such 
party.

8.0 PARAGRAPH CAPTIONS. The captions of the paragraphs are set forth only for the 
convenience and reference of the Parties and are not intended in any way to define, limit, or 
describe the scope or intent of this Agreement.

9.0 ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTS OR ACTION. The Parties agree to execute any additional
documents or take any additional action that is necessary to carry out this Agreement.

10.0 INTEGRATION AND AMENDMENT. This Agreement and the Joint Use Agreement
represent the entire agreement between the Parties and there are no oral or collateral
agreements or understandings. This Agreement may be amended only by an instrument in
writing signed by the Parties.

11.0 DEFAULT. Time is of the essence. If any payment or any other condition, obligation,
or duty is not timely made, tendered, or performed by either Party, then this Agreement, at the
option of the Party who is not in default, may be terminated by the non-defaulting party, in which
case, the non-defaulting Party may recover such damages as may be proper. If the
non-defaulting Party elects to treat this Agreement as being in full force and effect, the
on-defaulting Party shall have the right to an action for specific performance or damages or
both.

12.0 WAIVER OF BREACH. A waiver by any Party to this Agreement of the breach of
any term or provision of this Agreement shall not operate or be construed as a waiver of any
subsequent breach by either Party.

13.0 GOVERNING LAW. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of
Colorado.

14.0 BINDING EFFECT. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon
the Parties and their respective legal representatives, successors, heirs, and assigns, provided
that nothing in this paragraph shall be construed to permit the assignment of this Agreement
except as otherwise expressly authorized herein.

15.0 EXECUTION IN COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed in several
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which shall constitute but one
and the same instrument.

16.0 NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES. This Agreement is intended to describe the
rights and responsibilities only as to the Parties hereto. This Agreement is not intended and
shall not be deemed to confer any rights on any person or entity not named as a Party hereto.

3



17.0 FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS. All financial obligations of the City or Jefferson Academy, as 
applicable, under this Agreement are subject to collection of SEF funds, annual appropriation, 
budgeting, and availability of funds to discharge such obligations. Nothing in this Agreement
shall be deemed to pledge the City's or Jefferson Academy's credit or faith, directly or indirectly, 
to the other Party.

18.0 NO PRESUMPTION. The Parties to this Agreement and their attorneys have had a full 
opportunity to review and participate in the drafting of the final form of this Agreement. 
Accordingly, this Agreement shall be construed without regard to any presumption or other rule 
of construction against the Party causing the Agreement to be drafted.

19.0 SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this Agreement as applied to either Party or to any 
circumstance shall be adjudged by a court to be void or unenforceable, the same shall in no 
way affect any other provision of this Agreement, the application of any such provision in any 
other circumstances or the validity or enforceability of the Agreement as a whole.

20.0 EXECUTION REQUIRED. This Agreement shall not be binding upon any Party hereto 
unless and until the Parties have executed this Agreement.

21.0 TERM. This Agreement shall become effective upon its execution by both Parties and shall 
remain in effect until mutually terminated in writing by both Parties.

22.0 DAYS. If the day for any performance hereunder or event provided for herein is a 
Saturday, a Sunday, a day on which national banks are not open for the regular transaction of 
business, or a legal holiday pursuant to section 24-11-100(1) C.R.S., such day shall be 
extended until the next day on which such banks and state offices are open for the transaction 
of business.

23.0 GOOD FAITH OF PARTIES. ln the performance of this Agreement or in considering
any requested approval, acceptance, or extension of time, the Parties agree that each will act in
good faith and will not act unreasonably, arbitrarily, capriciously, or unreasonably withhold,
condition, or delay any approval, acceptance, or extension of time required or requested
pursuant to this Agreement.

24.0 PARTIES NOT PARTNERS. Notwithstanding any language in this Agreement or any other 
agreement, representation, or warranty to the contrary, the Parties shall not be deemed to be 
partners or joint venturers, and neither Party shall be responsible for any debt or liability of the 
other Party.

25.0 SURVIVAL OF OBLIGATIONS. The obligations contained in this Agreement that are not 
fully performed as of termination shall survive termination and shall continue to bind the Parties 
until fully performed.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement is executed by the Parties hereto in their respective 

4



names as of May 27, 2025

THE CITY AND COUNTY OF BROOMFIELD,
a Colorado municipal corporation and county

_______________________________________
Mayor

ATTEST:

_______________________________________
City & County Clerk’s Office

APPROVED AS TO FORM

_______________________________________
City & County Attorney

5



JEFFERSON ACADEMY,
a Colorado nonprofit corporation and Charter School

___________________________________
President

ATTEST:

___________________________
Secretary

6



EXHIBIT A
(Preliminary Estimated Costs)

7



 
 

 (720) 887-1992         www.jajags.com 

Educating with Excellence 

 
 
Jefferson Academy Secondary 
11251 Reed Way 
Broomfield, CO 80020 

 
To Whom it May Concern, 

 

 For the last year and a half Jefferson Academy Secondary has been working on 

a proposal to install a new post-tension concrete track with a new rubber surface and 

building bleacher seating for our outdoor events on the existing field.  The track will 

surround the turf multi-sport field that the CCOB supported in the original IGA of 2014 

and the bleachers will be added to the east side of the track/field. This will help improve 

training conditions and safety for our 7-12 grade track programs and provide a safer and 

more enjoyable viewing experience for our nine athletic teams that host home games 

here at Jefferson Academy Secondary.  No additional work is planned on the actual field 

supported by the original IGA. 

 

We have received final bids and full support from the Jefferson Academy Charter 

School’s Board of Directors for this project.  We hope to move forward with these 

projects over the summer of 2025 and have them completed for the start of the 2025-26 

school year.  

 

 The bleachers were approved as a not-to-exceed contract at $305,000.  Track 

costs came in at $1,280,000 and there is also a $40,000 contingency for a total project 

cost of $1,625,000.  At their March 11, 2025 meeting, the JA Board of Directors 

approved moving forward with these projects and also approved a requisition of 

$315,000 in SEF funds.  In addition, Jefferson County Public Schools has let us know 

that they are also in support of this project and have given us preliminary approval to 

request the SEF funds needed.  

 

 The majority of this project will be covered by Jefferson Academy’s Unrestricted 

Reserves.  The $315,000 from the Jefferson Academy Secondary’s available SEF funds, 

roughly one half of the total funds available, is to cover the additional material costs for 

the track to complete the project as shown below. 



 
 

 (720) 887-1992         www.jajags.com 

Educating with Excellence 

 
 
Jefferson Academy Secondary 
11251 Reed Way 
Broomfield, CO 80020 

 
 

 

Thank you for your consideration and please feel free to reach out with any questions. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

_____________________________   ________________ 

Mr. Flavio Quintana     Date 

President, Board of Directors 

Jefferson Academy Schools 

 

Flavio Quintana (Mar 14, 2025 11:38 MDT)



City and County of Broomfield

City Council Regular Meeting

E. Proposed Resolution State Highway 7 Interim Widening Improvements

Meeting

Tuesday, May 27, 2025, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Consent Items Item: 6E.

Presented By

Katie Allen

Community Goals

Overview

View Correspondence 

View Presentation

State Highway 7 (CO 7) is being planned as a comprehensive multimodal corridor with additional general traffic
lanes, Bus Rapid Transit (BRT), and a bicycle path serving the 29-mile corridor from Brighton to Boulder.  The
ultimate roadway configuration from I-25 to Sheridan is planned for six (6) general purpose lanes, double left turn
lanes, lanes with a center median and a shoulder to facilitate bus operations. Off-street facilities include
landscaping and separated multi-use paths. Private developers are required to build the portion of this ultimate
road section (excluding the median) that borders their property. Proposed Resolution No. 2025-94 will help
expedite the project once the Broomfield and Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT) procurement
processes are complete.  It will delegate signature authority to the City and County Manager to execute a
construction agreement for the project and an amendment to the existing agreement with Kimley Horn &
Associates for construction administration services. 

 

Attachments

Memo for CO 7 Widening Construction Conditional Approval.pdf
Resolution 2025-94.pdf

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F6813dfdf51904f0047a870b1%2FMemo%20for%20CO%207%20Widening%20Construction%20Conditional%20Approval.pdf?alt=media&token=8e1685a2-70c2-4ffc-9542-885144e8647e
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F6813dfdf51904f0047a870b1%2FMemo%20for%20CO%207%20Widening%20Construction%20Conditional%20Approval.pdf?alt=media&token=8e1685a2-70c2-4ffc-9542-885144e8647e
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F6813dfdf51904f0047a870b1%2FMemo%20for%20CO%207%20Widening%20Construction%20Conditional%20Approval.pdf?alt=media&token=8e1685a2-70c2-4ffc-9542-885144e8647e
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F6813dfdf51904f0047a870b1%2FResolution%202025-94.pdf?alt=media&token=12165935-fa71-485c-a14b-1ab644a406f3
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F6813dfdf51904f0047a870b1%2FResolution%202025-94.pdf?alt=media&token=12165935-fa71-485c-a14b-1ab644a406f3
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F6813dfdf51904f0047a870b1%2FResolution%202025-94.pdf?alt=media&token=12165935-fa71-485c-a14b-1ab644a406f3


Memo for CO 7 Widening Construction Conditional Approval
Prepared by: Joliette Woodson, Transportation Engineer

Summary
View Correspondence
View Presentation

Proposed Resolution No. 2025-94 will help expedite the State Highway 7 Interim Widening from I-25 to 
Sheridan Parkway project once the Broomfield and Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT) 
procurement processes are complete.  It will delegate signature authority to the City and County Manager to 
execute construction agreements for the project and an amendment to the existing agreement with Kimley 
Horn & Associates for construction administration services.

State Highway 7 (CO 7) is being planned as a comprehensive multimodal corridor with additional general 
traffic lanes, Bus Rapid Transit (BRT), and a bicycle path serving the 29-mile corridor from Brighton to 
Boulder. The ultimate roadway configuration from I-25 to Sheridan is planned for six (6) general purpose  
lanes, double left turn lanes, lanes with a center median and a shoulder to facilitate bus operations. Off-
street facilities include landscaping and separated multi-use paths. Private developers are required to build  
the portion of this ultimate road section (excluding the median) that borders their property.

Building the ultimate roadway section through Broomfield is still many years away. Currently, Broomfield is  
collaborating on preliminary engineering for CO 7 with several partners: CDOT, the Regional Transportation  
District  (RTD),  Boulder  and Adams Counties,  and the  cities  of  Boulder,  Lafayette,  Erie,  Thornton,  and 
Brighton. This work is funded by a $10 million Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) grant.

Currently, CO 7 between Sheridan Parkway and I-25 experiences significant congestion during peak hours, 
with traffic sometimes backing up for a mile. This congestion contributes to a high number of rear-end and 
turning-related crashes at several intersections in this section.

Broomfield and CDOT plan to make interim improvements– constructing four (4) continuous through lanes 
from I-25 to just west of Sheridan Parkway to improve traffic operations. Resolution No. 2021-6 approved an  
IGA with CDOT in which CDOT committed $1 million to match $1 million from Broomfield ($2 million project 
total). Resolution No. 2021-122 approved a design agreement with Kimley-Horn & Associates Inc. and work 
began immediately in September 2021.

The project’s scope of work includes modifying drainage, modifying traffic signals and utilities, and striping 
removal and replacement. During design, the team determined repaving was needed to remove 'pavement 
scars' left by the old striping. These marks can confuse drivers and are considered a safety concern. Adding 
repaving increased the estimated total project cost to $2.5 million.

Striping plans can be viewed at the provided link. 

Resolution No. 2023-46, authorized a new IGA with CDOT, replacing the 2021 IGA, and added $500,000 from 
CDOT for the additional repaving. The new 2023 IGA secured $1 million in federal Regional Priority Program 
(RPP) funds and $500,000 in state funds. To reach the $2.5 million total, Broomfield agreed to  contribute 
$250,000 local match and $750,000 in overmatch, keeping Broomfield’s total contribution at the $1 million 
agreed upon in 2021.
 

In 2024, as design neared completion, the project experienced delays extending through February 2025. 
CDOT raised concerns about the timing for removing the traffic signal at CO 7 and Huron Street. This signal 
removal is  tied to the realignment of Huron Street and is  the responsibility of the Baseline developer, 
McWhinney. Broomfield staff worked with CDOT to address these concerns and reached an understanding 
  

1

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1OEJmPl0KnoVZxC2WqXhJWpvQetE4kqRG/view
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1wGhIaPI30Q-0Dqu2Ygtd1SNfNmSjcNrl/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1bb_IcD8JXlPQsUXhQYvI0xxdx3Jj3lY1/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1bb_IcD8JXlPQsUXhQYvI0xxdx3Jj3lY1/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82


that allowed the project to move forward.

Immediately upon receipt of final CDOT approvals, staff advertised the project for construction, with bids 
due at the end of May.

The project objective is to complete construction as soon as possible to relieve the congestion and safety 
concerns. However, due to previous delays, which are common on federally funded projects, combined with 
the construction schedule and paving restrictions in the fall (colder temperatures), the project is at risk of  
being unable to be completed in 2025.  

Resolution No. 2025-94 will delegate signing authority for the needed agreements (a construction agreement 
and a construction management agreement) to the City and County Manager so that they can be signed as 
soon as the procurement processes are complete. Staff expects that the procurement processes will be 
complete by late May 2025, and that the agreements will be ready for signature in early to mid June 2025.  
With strict deadlines to put items on Council’s calendar and no Council meeting between June 10 and July 
8, staff proposes delegating authority to the City and County Manager will be the most efficient way to  
ensure  construction  starts  as  soon  as  possible.  If  Resolution  No.  2025-94 is  approved,  construction  is 
anticipated to begin in Summer 2025.

Financial Considerations

As shown in the sources and uses of funds summary below, the project can be completed within the 
budgeted amount.

Sources and Uses of Funds Amount

CIP-2020 Transportation Project (20P0061) State Highway 7 Interim 
Widening from I-25 to Sheridan Parkway- Federal Funds

$1,000,000

CIP-2020 Transportation Project (20P0061) State Highway 7 Interim 
Widening from I-25 to Sheridan Parkway- State Funds

$500,000

CIP-2020 Transportation Project (20P0061) State Highway 7 Interim 
Widening from I-25 to Sheridan Parkway- (BURA) Local Match & 
Overmatch (60-81090-55200) 

$1,000,000

Total Budget $2,500,000

Design (Kimley Horn (KH)) -$289,780

Design Amendment No. 1 (KH) -$28,978

Design Amendment No. 2 (KH) -$79,995

Proposed Amendment No. 3 (KH) - Construction Administration -$50,000

Proposed Construction, Construction Management and Contingency -$2,051,247

Total Use of Funds $2,500,000

Projected Balance $0

2



Prior Council or Other Entity Actions

On October 13, 2020, BURA approved the project funding from BURA when it adopted Resolution 2020-217-
UR.

On January 12, 2021, Council approved Resolution No. 2021-6, authorizing and approving an 
Intergovernmental with CDOT regarding funding contributions.

On January 12, 2021, Council approved Resolution No. 2021-19, authorizing and approving a cooperation 
agreement concerning State Highway 7 Improvements

On January 12, 2021, BURA approved Resolution No. 2021-20-UR, authorizing and approving a cooperation 
agreement concerning State Highway 7 Improvements.

On July 13, 2021, Council approved Resolution No. 2021-122, approving an agreement with Kimley-Horn & 
Associates Inc. to design the improvements.

On April 11, 2023, Council approved Resolution No. 2023-46, approving an Intergovernmental Agreement 
with CDOT regarding funding contributions. 

On April 9, 2024, Council approved Resolution No. 2024-43, approving an amendment to the agreement with 
Kimley-Horn & Associates Inc. to design the improvements.

On October 22, 2024, Council approved Resolution No. 2024-149, City and County of Broomfield 2025 Budget 
Adoption.

Boards and Commissions Prior Actions and Recommendations

N/A

Proposed Actions / Recommendations

If Council desires to proceed with the project, the appropriate motion is...
That Resolution No. 2025-94 be adopted. 

Alternatives

Do not delegate signature authority, and direct staff to return to Council for contract approval in July. This 
would result in the construction beginning in Spring 2026 instead of Summer 2025. 

3

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1BSnWMtJNlCtbCYzKAB7N55sBwloK3QWX/view?usp=drivesdk
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1AKI6m6nqOjv8hmG6GqxA-FbPAOCU8JQO/view?usp=drivesdk
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1k_oibiR9UC3_Q_Y9z-UlSxb9EhX7VNDe/view
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1yOZzllk_ttJGmh4SAwP-Ln4a8A0funo_/view
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1OEJmPl0KnoVZxC2WqXhJWpvQetE4kqRG/view
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1OEJmPl0KnoVZxC2WqXhJWpvQetE4kqRG/view
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1OEJmPl0KnoVZxC2WqXhJWpvQetE4kqRG/view
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1n0H893lw3Fj-Grv8LroaXXmL516LGsJs/view
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1n0H893lw3Fj-Grv8LroaXXmL516LGsJs/view


RESOLUTION NO. 2025-94
A Resolution Delegating of Signature Authority to the City and County Manager to Execute 
Construction Agreements for the State Highway 7 Interim Widening from I-25 to Sheridan 

Parkway Project

Section 1.
The City and County Manager is delegated authority to sign and the office of the City and 
County Clerk to attest constructions agreements (a construction agreement and a 
construction management agreement) with the selected bidders at an amount not to exceed 
$2,051,247, in a form approved by the City and County Attorney for the State Highway 7 
Interim Widening from I-25 to Sheridan Parkway Project.

Section 2.
The City and County Manager is delegated authority to sign, and the office of the City and 
County Clerk to attest, an amendment to the existing agreement with Kimley Horn & 
Associates for Construction Administration Services for the State Highway 7 Interim Widening 
from I-25 to Sheridan Parkway Project in an amount not to exceed $50,000, in form approved 
by the City and County Attorney. 

Section 3.
The City and County Manager or a designee thereof is authorized to approve change orders to 
the construction agreements in an aggregate amount not to exceed ten percent. 

Section 4.
This resolution is effective upon its approval by the City Council.

Approved on May 27, 2025. 

The City and County of Broomfield, Colorado

                                                                        
          
Mayor

Attest:

                                                                        
Office of the City and County Clerk

Page 1
Revised 3/2024



Approved as to form:
 NCR

                                                                        
          
City and County Attorney

Page 2
Revised 3/2024



City and County of Broomfield

City Council Regular Meeting

A. Public Hearing Ordinance Amending the Code Regarding Land Use Approvals by Resolution - Second Reading

Meeting

Tuesday, May 27, 2025, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Action Items Item: 7A.

Presented By

Nancy Rodgers, City and County Attorney

Community Goals

Overview

View Correspondence 

View Presentation

At the November 2024 coordinated election, registered voters of the City and County of Broomfield voted in favor of
a ballot question amending Chapter VI, Section 6.4 of the Broomfield Charter to permit City Council to approve
rezonings and other land use cases relating to a specific property by resolution at a public hearing. Proposed
ordinance 2252 makes changes to the Broomfield Municipal Code in line with this voter-approved Charter change. 
Specifically, proposed ordinance 2252 permits rezoning for a specific property and vacation of a preliminary plat or
a final plat to be done by resolution.

 

 

 

Attachments

Proposed Ordinance 2252 Amending the Code Regarding Land Use Approvals by Resolution - Second Reading.pdf
Ordinance No. 2252.pdf

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67eac13e6d2a54006c15320e%2FProposed%20Ordinance%202252%20Amending%20the%20Code%20Regarding%20Land%20Use%20Approvals%20by%20Resolution%20-%20Second%20Reading.pdf?alt=media&token=d53222f6-4839-409a-908b-dfb969d40b86
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67eac13e6d2a54006c15320e%2FProposed%20Ordinance%202252%20Amending%20the%20Code%20Regarding%20Land%20Use%20Approvals%20by%20Resolution%20-%20Second%20Reading.pdf?alt=media&token=d53222f6-4839-409a-908b-dfb969d40b86
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67eac13e6d2a54006c15320e%2FProposed%20Ordinance%202252%20Amending%20the%20Code%20Regarding%20Land%20Use%20Approvals%20by%20Resolution%20-%20Second%20Reading.pdf?alt=media&token=d53222f6-4839-409a-908b-dfb969d40b86
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67eac13e6d2a54006c15320e%2FOrdinance%20No.%202252.pdf?alt=media&token=0f621621-3a31-48dd-96cc-dcab97773467
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67eac13e6d2a54006c15320e%2FOrdinance%20No.%202252.pdf?alt=media&token=0f621621-3a31-48dd-96cc-dcab97773467
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67eac13e6d2a54006c15320e%2FOrdinance%20No.%202252.pdf?alt=media&token=0f621621-3a31-48dd-96cc-dcab97773467


Memo for Ordinance No. 2252 Changing the Code Regarding Land Use Approvals by Resolution - Second Reading 

Prepared By: Nancy C. Rodgers, City and County Attorney; Lynn Mervin, Planning Director 

 

Summary 

View Correspondence 

View Presentation 

 

At the November 2024 coordinated election, registered voters of the City and County of Broomfield voted in 

favor of a ballot question amending Chapter VI, Section 6.4 of the Broomfield Charter. The ballot question 

was: 

 

Shall Section 6.4 of the Broomfield Home Rule Charter be amended to permit City Council to approve 

rezonings and other land use cases relating to a specific property by resolution at a public hearing? 

 

The specific amendment to the Charter was as follows:  

 

Chapter VI Legislation - Section 6.4 Action by Ordinance Required. 

 

In addition to such acts of the Council as are required by other provisions of this charter to be by 

ordinance, every act making an appropriation, creating an indebtedness, authorizing borrowing of 

money, levying a tax, establishing any rule or regulation for the violation of which a penalty is 

imposed, or placing any burden upon or limiting the use of private property, shall be by ordinance; 

provided, however, that this section shall not apply to rezonings and other land use cases relating 

to a specific property, which may be approved by resolution at a public hearing or the adoption of 

the budget and levying of an ad valorem tax, as provided in this Charter. 

 

Proposed ordinance 2252 makes changes to the Broomfield Municipal Code in line with this voter-approved 

Charter change.  Specifically, proposed ordinance 2252 permits rezoning for a specific property and vacation 

of a preliminary plat or a final plat as well as vacations of right of way included with land use approvals to 

be done by resolution. 

 

Proposed ordinance 2252 also clarifies that references to the “zoning ordinance” or “zoning ordinances,”  

refers to the zoning code as contained in Title 17, and all the regulations contained in that title.  Current 

references in the Broomfield Municipal Code to the “zoning ordinance” means the zoning regulations and 

districts contained in Title 17 of the Broomfield Municipal Code. This revised definition proposed in 

ordinance 2252 clarifies and supports the existing language in the code.  

 

These proposed changes to the code do not remove any notification requirements for any rezone, vacation 

of plat, or other land use application, nor does it eliminate the public hearing requirement that must occur 

under the zoning code.   

 

Financial Considerations 

There are no financial impacts with this ordinance. There will be increased efficiencies for staff, and 

individual property owners with this change given that approval by resolution required one reading at a 

public hearing and not approval by ordinance requiring two readings.  

 

Prior Council or Other Entity Actions 

August 13, 2024 - City Council approved Ordinance 2244, submitting to voters a proposed amendment to 

Chapter VI, Section 6.4 of Broomfield Charter. 

                 

1 

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82
https://library.municode.com/co/broomfield/codes/municipal_code?nodeId=HORUCHBRCO_CHVILE_S6.4ACORRE
https://library.municode.com/co/broomfield/codes/municipal_code?nodeId=TIT17ZO_CH17-02GEPR
https://drive.google.com/file/d/177k2O2KsdCp7wQSk-cOyA3mHes7HwvSM/view?usp=drive_link


 

 

Nov. 5, 2024 - Voters approved the changes to Chapter VI, Section 6.4 of the Charter to permit re-zonings 

and other land use cases relating to a specific property by resolution at a public hearing. 

 

May 13, 2025 - Council approved first reading of Ordinance 2252  

 

Boards and Commissions Prior Actions and Recommendations 

N/A 

 

Proposed Actions / Recommendations 

If Council desires to adopt the proposed ordinance, the appropriate motion is... 

 

That Ordinance No. 2252 be adopted on second and final reading and ordered published. 

 

Alternatives 

Do not approve the ordinance. Because the Broomfield Municipal Code requires a zoning ordinance and 

vacation of plat by ordinances, re-zones and plat vacations impacting only one property would continue to 

be done by ordinance and not resolution. 

2 

https://results.enr.clarityelections.com/CO/Broomfield/122607/web.345435/#/detail/40
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1kf4yhNgcUw58pQKmi1VDUlO1W8gtmCLr/view?usp=sharing


 

Bold type indicates new material to be added to the Broomfield Municipal Code 

Strikethrough type indicates deletions from the Broomfield Municipal Code 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2252 

An ordinance to amend the Broomfield Municipal Code, Titles 16 and 17 to address charter 

amendment changes relating to Broomfield’s land use processes. 

Be it ordained by the City Council of the City and County of Broomfield, Colorado: 

Section 1. 

Chapter 17-48 - Amendments, of the Broomfield Municipal Code is amended as follows: 

17-48-020 - Procedure for rezoning. 

. . .  

(D) The city council shall hold a public hearing on the application. Notice shall be 

given in accordance with the provisions of chapter 17-52. Following the 

hearing, the city council shall either deny the application or shall approve it by 

ordinance resolution. An ordinance resolution may impose conditions on 

rezoning. 

Section 2. 

Chapter 16-24 - Vacation of Plats, of the Broomfield Municipal Code is amended as follows: 

16-24-020 - Vacation by ordinance or resolution. 

A vacation of a preliminary plat or a final plat shall be done by resolution after a public 

hearing. Notice shall be given in accordance with the provisions of chapter 17-52, B.M.C. 

which includes no dedication of streets, easements, rights-of-way, or other interests in real 

property may be by resolution or ordinance. A vacation of a plat which includes the 

dedication of any streets, easements, rights-of-way, or other interests in real property shall 

be by ordinance. 

. . . .  

Section 3.   

Chapter 17-04, Definitions, of the Broomfield Municipal Code in amended as follows: 

17-04-520 - Zoning Ordinance.  

Page 1 

Revised 2/2025 

https://library.municode.com/co/broomfield/codes/municipal_code?nodeId=TIT17ZO_CH17-52PUNORE


 

Zoning ordinance or zoning ordinances means the city Broomfield zoning ordinance code 

contained in Title 17, together with all amendments thereto. 

Section 4. 

This ordinance is effective seven days after publication following final passage. 

 

Introduced and approved after first reading on May 13, 2025, and ordered published in full. 

 

Introduced a second time and approved on May 27, 2025, and ordered published. 

 

The City and County of Broomfield, Colorado 

 

 

 

        

Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

 

 

       

Office of the City and County Clerk 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

NCR 
        

City and County Attorney 

Page 2 

Revised 2/2025 



City and County of Broomfield

City Council Regular Meeting

B. Proposed Resolution Broomfield Housing Alliance Intergovernmental Agreement

Meeting

Tuesday, May 27, 2025, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Action Items Item: 7B.

Presented By

Sharon Tessier, Housing Policy and Development Manager

Community Goals

☑ Thriving, Diverse, Safe and Welcoming Community

Overview

View Correspondence 

View Presentation

 

Proposed Resolution No. 2025-87, if approved by Council, would authorize the Amended and Restated
Intergovernmental Agreement between the City and County of Broomfield and the Broomfield Housing Authority to
include updates to the Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) and the 2026 and 2027 funding request of an amount
up to $500,000 per year, depending on how much City Council chooses to allocate each of those years.

 

Attachments

Memo - City and County of Broomfield and Broomfield Housing Alliance Intergovernmental Agreement
Resolution No. 2025-87
Amended and Restated IGA (w/ BHA signatures)

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67d87521f5b121006b102e02%2FCouncil%20Memo_%20for_Resolution%202025-87_%20CCOB_IGA%20with%20BHA_5.27.25.pdf?alt=media&token=bd0c3532-801a-4c92-b395-851ce091a017
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67d87521f5b121006b102e02%2FCouncil%20Memo_%20for_Resolution%202025-87_%20CCOB_IGA%20with%20BHA_5.27.25.pdf?alt=media&token=bd0c3532-801a-4c92-b395-851ce091a017
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67d87521f5b121006b102e02%2FCouncil%20Memo_%20for_Resolution%202025-87_%20CCOB_IGA%20with%20BHA_5.27.25.pdf?alt=media&token=bd0c3532-801a-4c92-b395-851ce091a017
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67d87521f5b121006b102e02%2FResolution%202025-87%20A%20Resolution%20Approving%20an%20Amended%20and%20Restated%20IGA%20between%20the%20Broomfield%20Housing%20Alliance%20and%20the%20City%20and%20County%20of%20Broomfield.pdf?alt=media&token=63476abb-1a7f-46f8-8206-85294e0f22b8
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67d87521f5b121006b102e02%2FResolution%202025-87%20A%20Resolution%20Approving%20an%20Amended%20and%20Restated%20IGA%20between%20the%20Broomfield%20Housing%20Alliance%20and%20the%20City%20and%20County%20of%20Broomfield.pdf?alt=media&token=63476abb-1a7f-46f8-8206-85294e0f22b8
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67d87521f5b121006b102e02%2FResolution%202025-87%20A%20Resolution%20Approving%20an%20Amended%20and%20Restated%20IGA%20between%20the%20Broomfield%20Housing%20Alliance%20and%20the%20City%20and%20County%20of%20Broomfield.pdf?alt=media&token=63476abb-1a7f-46f8-8206-85294e0f22b8
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67d87521f5b121006b102e02%2FAmended_and_Restated_IGA%20signed%20by%20BHA.pdf?alt=media&token=141e4be9-fb95-4184-b601-833a52e93a81
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67d87521f5b121006b102e02%2FAmended_and_Restated_IGA%20signed%20by%20BHA.pdf?alt=media&token=141e4be9-fb95-4184-b601-833a52e93a81
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67d87521f5b121006b102e02%2FAmended_and_Restated_IGA%20signed%20by%20BHA.pdf?alt=media&token=141e4be9-fb95-4184-b601-833a52e93a81


Memo for Resolution 2025-162 Approving an Amended and Restated Intergovernmental Agreement with Broomfield 

Housing Alliance  

Prepared By: Sharon Tessier, Housing Policy Manager 

Summary 

View Correspondence 

View Presentation 

   

The City and County of Broomfield (CCOB) entered into an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with the 

Broomfield Housing Alliance (BHA) in October of 2021. A Second Amendment to the IGA with additional 

funding was approved in December 2024 for fiscal year 2025 in the amount of $400,000 to assist with 

operational expenses. CCOB and BHA staff have been working to update and make needed changes to the 

IGA recognizing certain operational changes and also addressing a funding proposal for 2026 and 2027.  

 

The proposed Amended and Restated IGA provides for the option upon request and further approval by 

Council for two Annual Support Grants (para. 4.2) to BHA totaling up to $1,000,000 combined for fiscal years 

2026 and 2027 (up to $500,000 each year). Funds to pay for the grants would come from the Housing 

Division’s Housing Development Fund. 

 

This proposed Amended and Restated IGA is the first update with significant changes shifting from 

exclusively operational support for the BHA, to a more comprehensive approach including preapplication & 

programmatic support based on available funding from the Housing Development Fund (HDF) and as outlined 

in BHA’s four year Strategic Plan.  

 

The significant changes to this agreement include: 

● BHA staff salary and benefits are the sole responsibility of BHA.  

○ An additional $50,000 may be provided to BHA to support the voluntary transition of 

the Voucher Programs Manager to BHA from CCOB on or by July 1, 2025. This will be 

handled through a budget amendment.   

● BHA’s continued efforts to become financially independent, which will now incorporate BHA’s 

work plan that details revenues generated and anticipated by BHA, and may include: 

○ Fees for services provided by rental income 

○ Payment of fees from a developer to BHA 

○ Contributions from entities that benefit BHA 

○ Cash and In-kind donations 

○ Grants and opportunities specifically to support BHA activities 

○ State, Federal and other local funding  

● CCOB’s Financial support to BHA will be generated based on the availability of funds 

● CCOB’s Financial support will be provided to include 

○ Upfront costs for feasibility and due diligence of development or purchase 

○ Down payment, purchase or land acquisition 

○ Financing costs 

○ Construction (new or rehabilitation) for affordable housing units 

○ Planning and building submittal, review and inspection fees 

○ Other direct expenses related to the development, preservation or rehabilitation of 

affordable housing 

● BHA will independently obtain and maintain insurance coverages to meet statutory and legal 

obligations  

 

What does not change is that BHA will be operating as the independent housing authority for the City and 

County of Broomfield in accordance with Housing Authority Law. They will continue to be the grantee of the 

                 

1 

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82
https://drive.google.com/file/d/15la7pQ9ylOVuhXSaQTTLFU4YrbqUkRJE/view?usp=drivesdk
https://drive.google.com/file/d/15la7pQ9ylOVuhXSaQTTLFU4YrbqUkRJE/view?usp=drivesdk
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1eRQoBdlclCzFF_xkFWBegzUpYCaoe0Sh/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1K5VHASTHrVxgv4-3J9X0Bq4nAFcAkn_8/view?usp=sharing


 

Colorado Department of Local Affairs (DOLA), more specifically The Division of Housing, and administer the 

Housing Voucher Programs in Broomfield.  

 

The proposed Amended and Restated Agreement (para 4.3) requires that BHA can come before CCOB and 

request additional funding that will support specific development projects or programs, including being 

utilized for the development, redevelopment, and preservation of affordable housing. 

 

The partnership between BHA and CCOB Housing Division will continue to move the needle on strategic 

housing goals set forth by each entity, which consists of the development of units, acquisition of land and 

naturally occurring affordable housing, and programmatic outcomes that target 30-80% AMI for BHA and 

30-120% AMI for CCOB. 

 

Proposed Resolution No. 2025-87, if approved by Council, would authorize the Amended and Restated 

Intergovernmental Agreement between the City and County of Broomfield and the Broomfield Housing 

Authority to include the updates to the IGA and the 2026 and 2027 funding request of an amount up to 

$500,000 per year, depending on how much City Council chooses to allocate each of those years. 

 

Housing Development Fund 

Broomfield’s Inclusionary Housing Ordinance requires developers to either include income-aligned units or 

pay cash-in-lieu fees into the Housing Development Fund, which supports affordable housing between 60 and 

100% AMI. This fund provided BHA with $3 million initial financing as well as provided gap financing for other 

developments like Crosswinds at Arista, Northwest Apartments. The HDF also supported some of the Housing 

Division’s programs that focus on preservation of housing as well as aging in place (see chart below). 

Most upcoming developments continue to include income-aligned units rather than paying cash-in-lieu fees, 

resulting in no projected new Housing Fund revenue. While this funding request from BHA will significantly 

reduce available funds, the Housing Fund won't be a viable ongoing funding source for BHA. Staff will 

continue monitoring the fund balance and will evaluate the Inclusionary Housing Ordinance to determine if 

the cash-in-lieu is at the optimal price per unit. 

Financial Considerations 

The Amended and Restated IGA provides for an annual support grant of up to $500,000 in each 2026 and 

2027.   An additional $50,000 may be provided to BHA to support the voluntary transition of the Voucher 

Programs Manager to BHA from CCOB on or by July 1, 2025.  This position is currently budgeted as a position 

in the City Manager’s Office. 

   

 

Housing Development Fund (01-83200-53164) estimated end of 2024 $6,000,0000  

Program Budget $6,000,000 

 

Projected Program Costs 2025   

2025 Programs funded by HDF-  

Partial property tax, Down Payment Assistance, Strategic, Consulting, and 

Emergency funds, Mobile Home Initiative, and Senior Sunshine Home Share 

$584,000 

2 



 

Proposed Senior Rental Assistance Program for seniors coming off 

temporary rental assistance  

$200,000 

Gap Financing to Ulysses Harvest Hill Loan $2,000,000 

Broomfield Housing Alliance 2025 Support Grant Request  $450,000 

Flatirons Habitat for Humanity Grant Request - Property Tax upon sale  $37,299 

Subtotal 2025 expenditures $3,271,299 

Broomfield Housing Alliance 2026 Support Grant Request 

(01-83200-53164) 

$500,000 

Broomfield Housing Alliance 2027 Support Grant Request 

(01-83200-53164) 

$500,000 

Flatiron Habitat for Humanity One-Time Funding Grant - separate agenda 

item 

$37,298.56 

Total $4,308,597.56 

HDF Balance after BHA funding request $1,691,402.44 

 

 

Prior Council or Other Entity Actions 

See also History of Broomfield Housing Authority 

 

On October 12, 2021, City Council approved Resolution 2021-182, an intergovernmental agreement 

(IGA) setting up the independent BHA Board and outlining the staffing and organizational support 

for the Housing Authority of the City and County of Broomfield. 

 

January 11, 2022 - Resolution No. 2022-19 Authorizing and Approving the Initial Vesting Grant for the 

Housing Authority of the City and County of Broomfield 

 

December 3, 2024 - City Council passed Resolution No. 2024-162 Approving Amendment to the BHA IGA for 

2025 Operational Support 

 

Boards and Commissions Prior Actions and Recommendations 

N/A 

 

Proposed Actions / Recommendations 

If Council desires to approve the Amended and Restated IGA, the appropriate motion is…. 

 

That Resolution 2025-87 be adopted  

 

3 

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1VzL1ihLvFmrbRSZgNcyhn40eQhv3SCfdnhNOGx5UJL4/edit?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1a-NDVUAErR8y7f14WSui8fWBgWKfx8_6/view?usp=drivesdk
https://drive.google.com/file/d/15inabXwfjgz0CYGofPE0UdRzy_s0vT7N/view?usp=drivesdk
https://drive.google.com/file/d/15la7pQ9ylOVuhXSaQTTLFU4YrbqUkRJE/view?usp=drivesdk


 

Alternatives 

Do not amend the IGA.  The current IGA as previously amended will stay in effect.  The current IGA permits 

a funding request by the BHA and permits the City to provide future annual support.  

 

4 



RESOLUTION NO. 2025-87 

 

A Resolution Approving an Amended and Restated Intergovernmental Agreement between 

Broomfield Housing Alliance and The City and County of Broomfield 

Recitals. 

Whereas, on October 12, 2021, the City and County of Broomfield (CCOB) created the 

independent housing authority with a board of five commissioners appointed by the City 

Council; and   

Whereas, at that same meeting, CCOB and the Broomfield Housing Alliance (BHA) 

entered into an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA), which provided an initial grant fund of 

$3,000,000 to support the housing authority and its activities. 

Whereas, per the IGA, CCOB acknowledged an intent to provide funding to the Housing 

Authority in order to support the Housing Authority’s organizational and programmatic needs 

and to assist the Housing Authority in the accomplishment of its vision and goals through three 

approaches: (1) an initial vesting grant; (2) future annual funding awards; and (3) occasional 

or one-time funding awards to support specific development projects or housing programs. 

Whereas on December 3, 2024 a resolution approving the Second Amendment to the 

Intergovernmental Agreement with the Broomfield Housing alliance for 2025 Operational 

Support Funding of $400,000. 

Whereas, BHA currently does not have a source of revenue to support its operations 

and has requested a support grant in the amount of $500,000 for fiscal years 2026 and 2027. 

Whereas, as stated in the IGA, CCOB seeks to continue to invest in Broomfield’s local 

housing authority and support the BHA. 

Whereas, the Broomfield Housing Alliance and the City and County of Broomfield agree 

to enter into an Amended and Restated IGA which updates operational requirements for BHA 

and provides for continued operational support for the year 2026 and 2027 in the amount of 

up to $500,000 for each of the next two years. 

Now, therefore, be it resolved by the City Council of the City and County of Broomfield, 

Colorado: 

Section 1.   

The Amended and Restated Intergovernmental Agreement (Agreement) between CCOB and 

BHA to include the provision for Annual Support Grants of up to $500,000 per year on 

conditions that are set forth in the Agreement, is hereby approved. 

Page 1 

Revised 3/2024 



Section 2. 

The Mayor or Mayor Pro Tem is authorized to sign the Agreement, with such technical 

additions, deletions, and variations as the City and County Attorney may deem necessary and 

appropriate and not inconsistent with this resolution. The Office of the City and County Clerk 

is authorized to attest the Agreement if needed 

Section 3. 

This resolution is effective upon its approval by the City Council. 

 

 Approved on May 27, 2025 

 

The City and County of Broomfield, Colorado 

 

 

 

        

Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

 

 

       

Office of the City and County Clerk 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

NCR 
        

City and County Attorney 

Page 2 

Revised 3/2024 



 

 
AMENDED AND RESTATED INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT  

BETWEEN  
CITY AND COUNTY OF BROOMFIELD 

 AND  
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY AND COUNTY OF BROOMFIELD, COLORADO 

THIS INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (“Agreement”), made this 27 day of May 
2025, is by and between the CITY AND COUNTY OF BROOMFIELD, a municipal corporation 
chartered pursuant to the laws of the State of Colorado (“CCOB” or “Broomfield”) and the 
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY AND COUNTY OF BROOMFIELD, COLORADO, a 
public body corporate and politic doing business as the BROOMFIELD HOUSING ALLIANCE 
(“BHA” or the “Housing Authority”), collectively, the “Parties,” or individually, a “Party.” 

RECITALS 

A. After public hearing on October 23, 2001, the Broomfield City Council (“City Council”) 
adopted Resolution No. 2001-274 creating a housing authority under the Housing 
Authorities Law of the State of Colorado (Colorado Revised Statutes, Section 29-4-201, 
et seq.). 

B. At the time of creation, members of City Council were appointed ex officio to serve as 
Commissioners of the Housing Authority Board, vesting the governing power and 
authority of the housing authority in a Board of Commissioners comprised of the 
members of City Council as may be seated from time to time. 

C. On November 15, 2001, Broomfield officially became the City and County of Broomfield, 
becoming Colorado’s 64th county. 

D. In 2016, with input from community leaders, faith-based organizations, and local 
nonprofits, City Council established and appointed the first members of the Broomfield 
Housing Advisory Committee (“HAC”). The primary roles of the committee were to 
examine housing issues in Broomfield, including the costs of rental and homeownership; 
the affordability hardships for different populations in Broomfield, including seniors and 
the workforce; review potential housing developments, and offer recommendations to the 
City Council on a variety of housing issues and opportunities.  

E. In 2017, on the recommendation of the HAC, City Council authorized the procurement of 
an in-depth Housing Needs Assessment for Broomfield, to further understand the status 
of housing options and gaps in the housing needs of Broomfield residents. That study 
was conducted by BBC Consulting and presented to the City Council in 2018. One of the 
recommendations by the consultant team was that Broomfield consider establishing an 
independent Housing Authority Board;  

F. On October 12, 2021, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2021-182 approving the 
change in appointment of Housing Authority Board of Commissioners and authorizing 
the transfer of governing authority to an independent Housing Authority Board to 
effectuate a more distinct Housing Authority Board of Commissioners appointed by the 

Page 1 

Docusign Envelope ID: D18E9D58-F21E-4F4E-8B31-A09029C0EA17



 

City, responsible for meeting, operating and carrying out all functions of the Housing 
Authority separate and apart from City Council. 

G. Since October 12, 2021, CCOB and the Housing Authority/BHA have operated as 
separate governmental entities under separate governing boards; however, pursuant to 
Housing Authority Law, either under city or county powers, the Housing Authority Board 
of Commissioners are appointed by City Council.  

H. Intergovernmental agreements to provide functions or services, including the purposes, 
powers, rights, and responsibilities, financial and otherwise, by political subdivisions of 
the State of Colorado are specifically authorized by, Colorado Revised Statutes, 
Section-29-1-203, as amended.  

I. CCOB and BHA entered into an Intergovernmental Agreement dated October 12, 2021, 
(the “2021 Intergovernmental Agreement”) wherein CCOB committed financial and 
administrative support to BHA in its effort to maintain a high level of competence and 
deliver quality professional administration, including initial funding of $3,000,000 for 
program and development costs and investments to cover two years of operational costs 
to assist BHA’s establishment as an independent Housing Authority. 

J. CCOB and BHA entered into a second amendment to the 2021 Intergovernmental 
Agreement on or about December 3, 2024, to add additional funding to BHA for the 2025 
calendar year. While a first amendment to the 2021 Intergovernmental Agreement was 
contemplated by the Parties in 2023, the first amendment was never fully approved or 
executed by CCOB.    

K. CCOB and BHA have worked together to implement the housing goals of City Council 
and the Broomfield community.  

L. BHA is now able to operate more independently without significant staffing support from 
Broomfield.  

M. CCOB desires to continue to support BHA financially for an additional two year 
timeframe to allow BHA to continue to transition to complete financial independence from 
Broomfield.  

N. CCOB and BHA desire to amend and restate the 2021 Intergovernmental Agreement to 
reflect BHA’s increasing financial and operational independence and to reach certain 
other understandings with respect to the matters addressed herein. 

AGREEMENT 

In consideration of the above and foregoing and the promises, covenants, and terms and 
conditions hereinafter set forth, CCOB and BHA agree as follows: 

Section 1. Independent Governance.  BHA shall be governed by a Board of 
Commissioners appointed by City Council in accordance with Housing Authority 
Law. 

1.1. Board of Commissioners; Term of Office. The Housing Authority’s Board of 
Commissioners shall be composed of five (5) individual Commissioners, who 

Page 2 

Docusign Envelope ID: D18E9D58-F21E-4F4E-8B31-A09029C0EA17



 

shall not be members of the City Council, but who shall be appointed by City 
Council (the “BHA Board”). The Commissioners shall be appointed to staggered 
four-year terms. Commissioners may serve any number of successive terms and 
shall otherwise be appointed and serve as set forth in Broomfield Municipal Code 
2-61 - Board and Commission General Rules as amended, except that the term 
limits B.M.C. 2-61-020(B) shall not apply to the BHA Board and regular members 
may serve any number of successive terms. 

1.2. Qualifications of Commissioners. It is preferred that all Commissioners will have 
a range of the requisite knowledge and experience, relevant and specific, to 
developing and supporting affordable and market-rate housing. Additionally, it is 
preferred that at least one Commissioner has life experience related to these 
efforts. The Commissioners shall not be selected based on ward residence, as it 
is desired that the Commissioners represent the geographical diversity of the 
City. To ensure this diversity, no more than three (3) Commissioners may reside 
in a single ward. 

1.3. Commissioner Vacancies. Except in situations of resignation or removal, 
Commissioners shall serve until the end of their term or until their replacement is 
appointed, confirmed and seated. All vacancies will be filled by City Council 
appointment after consultation with or review of recommendations by Housing 
Authority staff. 

1.4. Removal of Commissioners. Commissioners shall be subject to removal by the 
City Council for inefficiency or neglect of duty or misconduct in office, as provided 
by Colorado Revised Statutes, Section 29-4-208.  

1.5. Housing Authority Law Applicability. To the extent not explicitly listed in this 
section, governance of the Housing Authority Board of Commissioners shall be 
consistent with State law relating to both city and county housing authorities, 
although with respect to appointment of the Board of Commissioners the Parties 
shall follow the city provisions under State Law (the “Housing Authority Law”).  

1.6. Rules and Regulations. The BHA Board of Commissioners shall function in 
accordance with Housing Authority Law and BHA’s Bylaws as adopted by the 
BHA Board.  

Section 2. BHA Responsibilities. BHA shall operate as the independent housing authority 
for the City and County of Broomfield in accordance with Housing Authority Law.  
In addition to the statutory duties and powers provided to the housing authority 
pursuant to Housing Authority Law, BHA shall:  

2.1. Housing Voucher Programs. BHA shall act as a grantee of the Colorado 
Department of Local Affairs Division of Housing, and administer the State of 
Colorado Housing Voucher programs for Broomfield. If BHA fails to act in this 
capacity, BHA shall notify CCOB immediately.   

2.2. BHA Work Plan. BHA will annually produce a work plan (“BHA Work Plan”), 
including deliverables, outcome metrics, and timelines, to identify the priorities 

Page 3 

Docusign Envelope ID: D18E9D58-F21E-4F4E-8B31-A09029C0EA17



 

and work to further the strategic plan as adopted by the BHA Board. By October 
1 each year, BHA will submit the BHA Work Plan to CCOB for the next calendar 
year. The BHA Work Plan shall also include a section detailing revenues 
generated and anticipated by the Housing Authority and efforts to become 
financially independent from CCOB’s continued financial support including, but 
not limited to: 

2.2.1. Fees for services provided and rental income; for example, payment 
of fees from a developer to the Housing Authority for administrative 
costs to ensure compliance with affordability requirements and rental 
income derived from properties owned by the Housing Authority;  

2.2.2. Contributions from other entities that benefit from the work of the 
Housing Authority; 

2.2.3. Cash and in-kind donations;  

2.2.4. Grants and opportunities specifically set aside to support activities 
administered by the Housing Authority; and  

2.2.5. Other sources as permitted by state and federal law.  

2.3. Annual Presentation to City Council. BHA will annually provide an update to the 
City Council via a presentation with an opportunity for questions/answers at a 
public meeting in the third quarter of each year. The purpose of the presentation 
is to review accomplishments, update Council regarding ongoing work efforts, 
and consider funding requests. 

Section 3. Staffing and Contractual Services; Access to Facilities.  

3.1. BHA Staff. BHA shall employ, appoint, or retain individuals and/or contract to 
provide professional and technical support to accomplish the mission and goals 
of BHA (“BHA Staff”). BHA Staff will be employees or contractors of BHA. The 
BHA Board will provide direct guidance and direction to the BHA Staff, including 
but not limited to work priorities and assignments. All costs, including salary and 
benefits, for BHA Staff shall be the sole expense and responsibility of BHA. 
Professional services that BHA may contract for include, but are not limited to, 
financial services, legal services, grant administration and fundraising. CCOB 
shall be under no obligation to provide any financial, legal, grant administration or 
fundraising services to BHA except as otherwise agreed to herein or as agreed to 
pursuant to a separate agreement between the Parties.     

3.2. City Housing Staff. CCOB will retain its own staff to perform duties and 
assignments related to the support of CCOB’s housing goals and work (“City 
Housing Staff”). The City Housing Staff will be employees of the CCOB. City 
Housing Staff will work solely under the direction of their assigned departments 
and supervisors. CCOB which will make personnel decisions related to the City 
Housing Staff’s employment, such as hiring, supervision, discipline, and retention 
or separation.  

Page 4 

Docusign Envelope ID: D18E9D58-F21E-4F4E-8B31-A09029C0EA17



 

3.3. Housing Choice Voucher Program Staff Transition. As of the effective date of this 
Agreement, CCOB employs a Case Manager within the City Manager’s Office 
who is responsible for administering the Housing Choice Voucher Program (the 
“HCV Program”). It is the intent of the Parties that the HCV Program Case 
Manager position transition from a position within CCOB to a position with BHA 
no later than December 31, 2025. If the HCV Program Case Manager voluntarily 
separates employment from CCOB on or before July 1, 2025, then CCOB will 
increase the funding to BHA by $50,000 to support the transition of the HCV 
Program to BHA for calendar year 2025 promptly after receipt of an invoice 
requesting the additional funding.      

3.4. Staff Collaboration. Both CCOB and BHA desire for BHA Staff and City Housing 
Staff to work in collaboration with each other to further both entities’ housing 
goals.  

3.5. Access to CCOB Facilities. The BHA Board will have access to CCOB meeting 
facilities to hold public meetings on a monthly basis. Due to the public 
engagement and public administration of certain housing programs, CCOB will 
also provide access to BHA Staff to CCOB facilities including meeting rooms. 
This access is for the benefit of the public and will be provided at no cost to BHA 
provided that the use of facilities occurs Monday through Friday during regular 
CCOB business hours or, as may be needed for occasional public meetings, 
Monday through Thursday evening between 5PM and 9PM. CCOB agrees to 
provide this access to BHA at a reasonable level, which may include issuance of 
a contractor badge to authorized BHA staff to provide access to meeting rooms 
within CCOB facilities. BHA recognizes that the services may be limited in degree 
and duration, and that the provision of such services shall be at the discretion of 
the City and County Manager. BHA shall coordinate all requests for meeting 
spaces or use of Broomfield facilities with City Housing Staff. 

3.5.1. Information Technology Services to Support Public Meetings. The 
BHA Board has the additional need for limited Information Technology 
Services to support BHA’s public meetings which are held on CCOB 
property monthly (approximately). CCOB agrees to provide these 
services to the BHA at a reasonable level consistent with the provision 
for access to CCOB facilities as provided above.  

Section 4. Financial Support.  CCOB and BHA anticipate that BHA will continue to become 
more financially independent as it builds its own financial resources and revenue 
streams over the next two years. CCOB desires to continue to provide financial 
support to BHA over the next two year timeframe to ensure BHA’s successful 
growth and operation, as described herein. 

4.1. CCOB Continued Financial Support. CCOB intends to provide funding to BHA to 
support BHA’s organizational and programmatic needs and to assist the BHA in 
the accomplishment of its vision and goals. The funding support from CCOB may 
include two approaches: (1) annual funding support grants; and (2) project 

Page 5 

Docusign Envelope ID: D18E9D58-F21E-4F4E-8B31-A09029C0EA17



 

specific funding awards to support specific development projects or housing 
programs. 

4.2. Annual Support Grant. CCOB agrees to provide annual financial support to the 
BHA based on BHA’s budget and financial need, subject to available funding that 
is approved within CCOB’s annual budget process (“Annual Support Grant”).  
CCOB agrees to provide an Annual Support Grant of up to $500,000 each fiscal 
year for the Term of this Agreement, based upon the need demonstrated in the 
BHA Work Plan and review of BHA’s budget. The total Annual Support Grant 
provided to BHA under this Agreement shall not exceed $500,000 in any one 
fiscal year. The request for Annual Support Grant shall be submitted to City 
Housing Staff by March 1st of each year for consideration by the City Council as 
part of Broomfield’s standard budget process, except for the Annual Support 
Grant for 2025, which was approved on December 3, 2024. Annual Support 
Grants may be used for personnel expenses, administrative expenses and the 
following program costs: 

4.2.1. Upfront costs for feasibility and due diligence of development or 
purchase, (e.g. property options, feasibility analysis, engineer or 
design studies); 

4.2.2. Down payment, purchase of land and/or building(s);  

4.2.3. Financing costs; 

4.2.4. Construction (new or rehabilitation) for affordable housing units; 

4.2.5. Planning and building submittal, review or inspection fees; and 

4.2.6. Other direct expenses related to the development, preservation or 
rehabilitation of affordable housing. 

Annual Support Grants do not require an additional amendment to this 
Agreement for subsequent funding years. To the extent the amount has been 
budgeted and appropriated by City Council, CCOB will provide such funding to 
BHA in the following calendar year no later than February 1st of such year.   

4.3. Project Specific Funding. CCOB may provide additional and occasional or 
one-time funding to BHA for specific development projects or programs. Such 
funds can be utilized to develop, acquire or preserve affordable housing in 
Broomfield. Any such funding may occur through CCOB’s competitive Housing 
Development Fund process. These funds would be specifically requested by 
BHA for funding approval by City Council. Funds, if available, may be requested 
by BHA, but any and all funding decisions shall be determined by City Council 
and shall be subject to a separate agreement. 

4.4. Availability of CCOB Funds. All financial obligations of CCOB under this 
Agreement are subject to appropriation, budgeting, and availability of funds to 
discharge such obligations. Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to pledge 

Page 6 

Docusign Envelope ID: D18E9D58-F21E-4F4E-8B31-A09029C0EA17



 

the CCOB’s credit or faith, directly or indirectly, to the BHA. CCOB’s fiscal year is 
currently the calendar year. 

Section 5. Insurance for the Housing Authority.  

5.1. BHA Coverage Obligations. BHA shall obtain and maintain the types, forms, and 
coverage(s) of insurance as BHA deems necessary to meet its obligations as 
deemed by BHA to be sufficient to meet or exceed BHA’s statutory and legal 
obligations. 

Section 6. Term and Termination of Agreement. This Agreement shall commence on the 
Effective Date and continue for one year (“Initial Term”). This Agreement shall 
automatically renew for one additional term, for a total of two years. The Initial 
Term and subsequent renewal are referred to herein as the “Term” and remain in 
effect until terminated either by mutual agreement of the Parties or upon ninety 
(90) days written notice to the other Party. 

Section 7. Miscellaneous 

7.1. City and Housing Authority are Separate Legal Entities. Notwithstanding any 
language in this Agreement or any representation or warranty to the contrary, 
neither CCOB nor the BHA shall be deemed or constitute a partner, joint venture 
or agent of the other. Any action taken by the parties pursuant to this Agreement 
shall be deemed actions as an independent entity of the other. 

7.2. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of 
Colorado.  Venue for any legal action related to this Agreement shall lie in the 
District Court, Broomfield County, Colorado. 

7.3. Entire Agreement; Amendments. The 2021 Agreement as previously amended is 
hereby terminated in its entirety and replaced by this Agreement; provided, that, 
CCOB’s commitment to provide $400,000 in Annual Support Grant funding to 
BHA for calendar year 2025 remains and BHA acknowledges receipt of those 
funds. This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the Parties on 
the subject matter stated herein. This Agreement may not be modified or 
amended except by written agreement of the Parties, with the exception of any 
commitment of funds which shall be made through CCOB’s regular or 
supplemental budgeting process. 

7.4. Savings Clause. In the event a court of competent jurisdiction holds any provision 
of this Agreement invalid or unenforceable, such holding shall not invalidate or 
render unenforceable any other provision of this Agreement. 

7.5. No Third-Party Beneficiaries. It is expressly understood and agreed that 
enforcement of the terms and conditions of this Agreement and all rights of action 
relating to such enforcement shall be strictly reserved to the Parties to this 
Agreement. It is the express intention of the parties that any person other than 
CCOB and BHA shall not be deemed to be an intended beneficiary of any kind or 
nature under this Agreement. 

Page 7 

Docusign Envelope ID: D18E9D58-F21E-4F4E-8B31-A09029C0EA17



 

7.6. Execution; Electronic Signatures. This Agreement may be executed in 
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which shall 
constitute but one and the same instrument. This Agreement shall not be binding 
upon any party hereto unless and until the parties have executed this Agreement. 
The Parties approve the use of electronic signatures for execution of this 
Agreement. 

 

The Parties execute this Amended and Restated Intergovernmental Agreement the date 
first written above. 

 BHA: 

 The Housing Authority of the City and County  
 of Broomfield, Colorado, a body corporate and  

 politic, doing business as the Broomfield Housing   
 Alliance  

 
 By: ____________________________________, 

      Executive Director 
 

 

CCOB: 

The City and County of Broomfield,  
a Colorado municipal corporation and county 

 

      By: ____________________________________ 
Mayor 

Attest:  

 

_____________________ 
City Clerk 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

____________________________________ 
City and County Attorney 

 

Page 8 

Docusign Envelope ID: D18E9D58-F21E-4F4E-8B31-A09029C0EA17



Certificate Of Completion
Envelope Id: D18E9D58-F21E-4F4E-8B31-A09029C0EA17 Status: Completed

Subject: Complete with Docusign: Amended and Restated IGA regarding Resolution 2025-87_ 3.27.2025.docx (...

Source Envelope: 

Document Pages: 8 Signatures: 1 Envelope Originator: 

Certificate Pages: 4 Initials: 0 Sharon Tessier

AutoNav: Enabled

EnvelopeId Stamping: Enabled

Time Zone: (UTC-07:00) Mountain Time (US & Canada)

1 DesCombes Dr

Broomfield, CO  80020

stessier@broomfield.org

IP Address: 10.103.81.137  

Record Tracking
Status: Original

             5/6/2025 4:37:17 PM

Holder: Sharon Tessier

             stessier@broomfield.org

Location: DocuSign

Signer Events Signature Timestamp
Krisitn Hyser

khyser@broomfieldhousingalliance.org

Executive Director

Housing Authority of the City and County of 

Broomfield DBA Broomfield Housing Alliance

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Signature Adoption: Pre-selected Style

Using IP Address: 10.103.81.9

Sent: 5/6/2025 4:38:24 PM

Viewed: 5/7/2025 9:19:58 AM 

Signed: 5/7/2025 9:20:38 AM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Accepted: 9/1/2023 10:21:13 AM
      ID: f253a992-1282-48a0-8af8-73f872b6034b

In Person Signer Events Signature Timestamp

Editor Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Agent Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Intermediary Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Certified Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Carbon Copy Events Status Timestamp

Witness Events Signature Timestamp

Notary Events Signature Timestamp

Envelope Summary Events Status Timestamps
Envelope Sent Hashed/Encrypted 5/6/2025 4:38:24 PM

Certified Delivered Security Checked 5/7/2025 9:19:58 AM

Signing Complete Security Checked 5/7/2025 9:20:38 AM

Completed Security Checked 5/7/2025 9:20:38 AM

Payment Events Status Timestamps

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure



ELECTRONIC RECORD AND SIGNATURE DISCLOSURE  

From time to time, City and County of Broomfield (we, us or Company) may be required by law 

to provide to you certain written notices or disclosures. Described below are the terms and 

conditions for providing to you such notices and disclosures electronically through the DocuSign 

system. Please read the information below carefully and thoroughly, and if you can access this 

information electronically to your satisfaction and agree to this Electronic Record and Signature 

Disclosure (ERSD), please confirm your agreement by selecting the check-box next to ‘I agree to 

use electronic records and signatures’ before clicking ‘CONTINUE’ within the DocuSign 

system. 

 

Getting paper copies  

At any time, you may request from us a paper copy of any record provided or made available 

electronically to you by us. You will have the ability to download and print documents we send 

to you through the DocuSign system during and immediately after the signing session and, if you 

elect to create a DocuSign account, you may access the documents for a limited period of time 

(usually 30 days) after such documents are first sent to you. After such time, if you wish for us to 

send you paper copies of any such documents from our office to you, you will be charged a 

$0.00 per-page fee. You may request delivery of such paper copies from us by following the 

procedure described below. 

 

Withdrawing your consent  

If you decide to receive notices and disclosures from us electronically, you may at any time 

change your mind and tell us that thereafter you want to receive required notices and disclosures 

only in paper format. How you must inform us of your decision to receive future notices and 

disclosure in paper format and withdraw your consent to receive notices and disclosures 

electronically is described below. 

 

Consequences of changing your mind  

If you elect to receive required notices and disclosures only in paper format, it will slow the 

speed at which we can complete certain steps in transactions with you and delivering services to 

you because we will need first to send the required notices or disclosures to you in paper format, 

and then wait until we receive back from you your acknowledgment of your receipt of such 

paper notices or disclosures. Further, you will no longer be able to use the DocuSign system to 

receive required notices and consents electronically from us or to sign electronically documents 

from us. 

 

All notices and disclosures will be sent to you electronically  

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure created on: 2/16/2021 10:43:58 AM
Parties agreed to: Krisitn Hyser



Unless you tell us otherwise in accordance with the procedures described herein, we will provide 

electronically to you through the DocuSign system all required notices, disclosures, 

authorizations, acknowledgements, and other documents that are required to be provided or made 

available to you during the course of our relationship with you. To reduce the chance of you 

inadvertently not receiving any notice or disclosure, we prefer to provide all of the required 

notices and disclosures to you by the same method and to the same address that you have given 

us. Thus, you can receive all the disclosures and notices electronically or in paper format through 

the paper mail delivery system. If you do not agree with this process, please let us know as 

described below. Please also see the paragraph immediately above that describes the 

consequences of your electing not to receive delivery of the notices and disclosures 

electronically from us. 

 

How to contact City and County of Broomfield:  

You may contact us to let us know of your changes as to how we may contact you electronically, 

to request paper copies of certain information from us, and to withdraw your prior consent to 

receive notices and disclosures electronically as follows: 

 

To advise City and County of Broomfield of your new email address  

To let us know of a change in your email address where we should send notices and disclosures 

electronically to you, you must send an email message to us at info@broomfield.org and in the 

body of such request you must state: your previous email address, your new email address.  We 

do not require any other information from you to change your email address.  

If you created a DocuSign account, you may update it with your new email address through your 

account preferences.  

 

To request paper copies from City and County of Broomfield  

To request delivery from us of paper copies of the notices and disclosures previously provided 

by us to you electronically, you must send us an email to info@broomfield.org and in the body 

of such request you must state your email address, full name, mailing address, and telephone 

number. We will bill you for any fees at that time, if any. 

 

To withdraw your consent with City and County of Broomfield  

To inform us that you no longer wish to receive future notices and disclosures in electronic 

format you may: 

i. decline to sign a document from within your signing session, and on the subsequent page, 

select the check-box indicating you wish to withdraw your consent, or you may; 



ii. send us an email to it-devops@broomfield.org and in the body of such request you must state 

your email, full name, mailing address, and telephone number. We do not need any other 

information from you to withdraw consent..  The consequences of your withdrawing consent for 

online documents will be that transactions may take a longer time to process.. 

 

Required hardware and software  

The minimum system requirements for using the DocuSign system may change over time. The 

current system requirements are found here: https://support.docusign.com/guides/signer-guide-

signing-system-requirements.  

 

Acknowledging your access and consent to receive and sign documents electronically  

To confirm to us that you can access this information electronically, which will be similar to 

other electronic notices and disclosures that we will provide to you, please confirm that you have 

read this ERSD, and (i) that you are able to print on paper or electronically save this ERSD for 

your future reference and access; or (ii) that you are able to email this ERSD to an email address 

where you will be able to print on paper or save it for your future reference and access. Further, 

if you consent to receiving notices and disclosures exclusively in electronic format as described 

herein, then select the check-box next to ‘I agree to use electronic records and signatures’ before 

clicking ‘CONTINUE’ within the DocuSign system. 

By selecting the check-box next to ‘I agree to use electronic records and signatures’, you confirm 

that: 

 You can access and read this Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure; and 

 You can print on paper this Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure, or save or send 

this Electronic Record and Disclosure to a location where you can print it, for future 

reference and access; and 

 Until or unless you notify City and County of Broomfield as described above, you 

consent to receive exclusively through electronic means all notices, disclosures, 

authorizations, acknowledgements, and other documents that are required to be provided 

or made available to you by City and County of Broomfield during the course of your 

relationship with City and County of Broomfield. 

https://support.docusign.com/guides/signer-guide-signing-system-requirements
https://support.docusign.com/guides/signer-guide-signing-system-requirements


City and County of Broomfield

City Council Regular Meeting

C. Proposed Resolution for Funding from Flatiron Habitat for Humanity

Meeting

Tuesday, May 27, 2025, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Action Items Item: 7C.

Presented By

Anna Bertanzetti

Community Goals

Overview

View Correspondence 

View Presentation

Proposed Resolution No. 2025-81, if approved by Council, would approve an agreement between the City and
County of Broomfield and the Flatirons Habitat for Humanity to provide a one time funding grant of $37,298.56.  If
Council approves this request, staff is proposing that the funding for the annual support grant be taken from the
Housing Development Fund (HDF).  

 

 

 

Attachments

Grant request from Flatirons HFH.pdf
Resolution No. 2025-81.pdf
Partially Signed Grant Agreement for Property Taxes at Groove at Cottonwood for Flatirons Habitat for Humanity2025.pdf

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67f69d45fda1b900464eba8c%2FGrant%20request%20from%20Flatirons%20HFH.pdf?alt=media&token=49a01a52-8e82-4258-89d5-7edb6e4bdeee
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67f69d45fda1b900464eba8c%2FGrant%20request%20from%20Flatirons%20HFH.pdf?alt=media&token=49a01a52-8e82-4258-89d5-7edb6e4bdeee
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67f69d45fda1b900464eba8c%2FGrant%20request%20from%20Flatirons%20HFH.pdf?alt=media&token=49a01a52-8e82-4258-89d5-7edb6e4bdeee
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67f69d45fda1b900464eba8c%2FResolution%20No.%202025-81.pdf?alt=media&token=74d66827-9715-44a7-852a-1008933bf830
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67f69d45fda1b900464eba8c%2FResolution%20No.%202025-81.pdf?alt=media&token=74d66827-9715-44a7-852a-1008933bf830
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67f69d45fda1b900464eba8c%2FResolution%20No.%202025-81.pdf?alt=media&token=74d66827-9715-44a7-852a-1008933bf830
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67f69d45fda1b900464eba8c%2FPartially%20Signed%20Grant%20Agreement%20for%20Property%20Taxes%20at%20Groove%20at%20Cottonwood%20for%20Flatirons%20Habitat%20for%20Humanity%202025.pdf?alt=media&token=d1032890-b9bc-4d54-bae7-b61e1536cf04
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67f69d45fda1b900464eba8c%2FPartially%20Signed%20Grant%20Agreement%20for%20Property%20Taxes%20at%20Groove%20at%20Cottonwood%20for%20Flatirons%20Habitat%20for%20Humanity%202025.pdf?alt=media&token=d1032890-b9bc-4d54-bae7-b61e1536cf04
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67f69d45fda1b900464eba8c%2FPartially%20Signed%20Grant%20Agreement%20for%20Property%20Taxes%20at%20Groove%20at%20Cottonwood%20for%20Flatirons%20Habitat%20for%20Humanity%202025.pdf?alt=media&token=d1032890-b9bc-4d54-bae7-b61e1536cf04
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67f69d45fda1b900464eba8c%2FPartially%20Signed%20Grant%20Agreement%20for%20Property%20Taxes%20at%20Groove%20at%20Cottonwood%20for%20Flatirons%20Habitat%20for%20Humanity%202025.pdf?alt=media&token=d1032890-b9bc-4d54-bae7-b61e1536cf04


Memo for Resolution 2025-81 A Request for Funding from Flatiron Habitat for Humanity 

Prepared By: Anna Bertanzetti, Deputy City and County Manager 

Summary 

View Correspondence 

View Presentation 

 

Flatiron Habitat for Humanity has requested a grant in the amount of $37,298.56.  The letter of request was 

submitted by Habitat for Humanity of Boulder Valley d/b/a/ Flatiron Habitat for Humanity, a Colorado 

non-profit corporation (FHFH) states the purpose for this grant is to assist the organization with payment of 

a property tax bill related to the sale of their property located on Cottonwood Street within The Grove at 

Cottonwood subdivision (Account Numbers R8868908 1575-251-38-007, R8868909 1575-251-38-008, R8868911 

1575-251-38-009, and R8868912 1575-251-38-010). The sale occurred in 2022 and the property was 

purchased by Broomfield Housing Alliance (BHA).  If approved, the funding will be included in the second 

budget amendment in 2025.   

 

As of April 9, 2025, the tax bill has been paid by FHFH to facilitate the closing for BHA. FHFH is requesting 

the grant to reimburse them for the tax bill. 

 

At the time of the sale, FHFH unintentionally violated the conditions of their property tax exemption 

provided under C.R.S. 39-3-113.5. Specifically, the exemption required that the property be sold to 

individuals who would contribute sweat equity—a requirement that was not met in this transaction. As a 

result, the exemption was revoked. The law as currently written does not contemplate selling the property 

to another non-profit or tax exempt entity and maintaining the tax exemption. FHFH was officially notified 

at the end of September 2023 of the tax liability. Per the letter of request, FHFH did not respond to this 

notification, “due to delays in internal communication and other operational challenges.”   

 

FHFH’s mission centers on increasing access to affordable housing. The sale of the property to BHA was 

intended to align with that mission and the intent was to ensure the land remained used for affordable 

housing. FHFH has indicated that the $37,298.56 tax liability poses a financial burden for Flatirons Habitat.  

Since the tax liability had to be paid to allow BHA to close on the property, FHFH paid the balance and is 

requesting reimbursement equal to the amount paid.  They have indicated to staff that, “As an affordable 

housing nonprofit, every dollar we spend on unplanned expenses like this is a dollar not going toward 

building safe, affordable homes for families in our community.  We’re hopeful the City can still support us in 

recouping these funds through a grant or other mechanism.”   

 

Broomfield is not able to administratively waive or refund or reduce the tax from the sale. To provide relief 

to FHFH, Council can consider a grant to FHFH equal to the total tax from the sale. It is important to note 

this tax liability includes revenues for North Metro Fire District and Boulder Valley RE-2 School District.    

 

If Council decides to support the FHFH request, then a grant from Broomfield’s Housing Development Fund 

could be considered. Per the Broomfield Municipal Code, Housing Development Funds need to be used 

exclusively to support the preservation or development of affordable housing that is at or below 100% of AMI 

and for the administration and compliance of housing programs. Utilizing the Housing Development Fund as 

the source of funds for this grant is consistent with the intended purpose for the funds. 

 

Proposed Resolution No. 2025-81, if approved by Council, would approve an agreement between the City and 

County of Broomfield and the Flatirons Habitat for Humanity to provide a one time funding grant of 

$37,298.56.  If Council approves this request, staff is proposing that the funding for the annual support grant 

be taken from the Housing Development Fund (HDF).   

                 

1 

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1_WprZrix3YwRnFd2quZKqQlh1Q8O2ZVs/view?usp=sharing


 

 

Financial Considerations 

For this specific request from FHFH, staff is proposing that the source for this support grant be allocated 

from the Housing Development Fund.  As shown in the sources and uses of funds summary below, the project 

can be completed within the budgeted amount. 

 

 

 

Housing Development Fund (01-83200-53164) estimated end of 2024 $6,000,0000  

Program Budget $6,000,000 

 

Projected Program Costs 2025   

2025 Programs funded by HDF-  

Partial property tax, Down Payment Assistance, Strategic, Consulting, and 

Emergency funds, Mobile Home Initiative, and Senior Sunshine Home Share 

$584,000 

Proposed Senior Rental Assistance Program for seniors coming off 

temporary rental assistance  

$200,000 

Gap Financing to Ulysses Harvest Hill Loan $2,000,000 

Broomfield Housing Alliance 2025 Support Grant Request  $450,000 

Flatirons Habitat for Humanity Grant Request - Property Tax upon sale  $37,299 

Subtotal 2025 expenditures $3,271,299 

Broomfield Housing Alliance 2026 Support Grant Request 

(01-83200-53164) - separate agenda item 

$500,000 

Broomfield Housing Alliance 2027 Support Grant Request 

(01-83200-53164) - separate agenda item 

$500,000 

Flatiron Habitat for Humanity One-Time Funding Grant $37,298.56 

Total $4,308,597.56 

HDF Balance after BHA funding request $1,691,402.44 

 

Prior Council or Other Entity Actions 

See also History of Broomfield Housing Authority 

 

January 11, 2022 - Resolution No. 2022-19 Authorizing and Approving the Initial Vesting Grant for the 

Housing Authority of the City and County of Broomfield 

 

2 

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1VzL1ihLvFmrbRSZgNcyhn40eQhv3SCfdnhNOGx5UJL4/edit?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/15inabXwfjgz0CYGofPE0UdRzy_s0vT7N/view?usp=sharing


 

Boards and Commissions Prior Actions and Recommendations 

N/A 

 

Proposed Actions / Recommendations 

If Council desires to support Flatiron Habitat for Humanity request of funding in the amount of $37,298.56 

from the Housing Development Fund, the appropriate motion is…. 

 

That Resolution 2025-81 be adopted  

 

Alternatives 

City Council can choose not to approve the funding grant request of $37,298.56.  

3 



RESOLUTION NO. 2025-81 

A resolution authorizing and approving a Grant Agreement with Flatirons Habitat for Humanity  

Be it resolved by the City Council of the City and County of Broomfield, Colorado: 

Section 1.   

The Grant Agreement attached hereto by and between the City and County of Broomfield and 

Flatirons Habitat for Humanity for the provision of a grant of $37,298.56, is hereby approved. 

Section 2. 

The Mayor or Mayor Pro tem is authorized to sign and the Office of the City and County Clerk 

to attest the Grant Agreement, in form approved by the City and County Attorney. 

Section 3. 

This resolution is effective upon its approval by the City Council. 

 

 

 Approved on May 27, 2025 

 

The City and County of Broomfield, Colorado 

 

 

        

Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

 

       

Office of the City and County Clerk 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

NCR 
        

City and County Attorney 

Page 1 

 



GRANT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY AND COUNTY OF BROOMFIELD AND 

FLATIRON HABITAT FOR HUMANITY 

(Housing Fund Project Specific Support for Property Taxes Associated with the Grove at 

Cottonwood Property) 

 THIS GRANT AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”), dated as of the date set forth below, is 

made by and between the CITY AND COUNTY OF BROOMFIELD, a municipal corporation and 

county (the “City”), and HABITAT FOR HUMANITY OF BOULDER VALLEY d/b/a/ Flatiron Habitat 

for Humanity, a Colorado non-profit corporation (“FHFH”). Each of the entities shall be 

referred to herein, individually by name or as a “Party” and, collectively, as the “Parties.”  

RECITALS  

A. On May 10, 2022, as recorded at Reception No. 2022005853, FHFH sold four lots in the 

Northmoor Estates 3rd Filing Replat C subdivision to the Housing Authority for the City and 

County of Broomfield, known as the Broomfield Housing Alliance for an income-aligned 

residential housing development.   

B. The Broomfield Housing Alliance then proceeded to plat the property as the Grove at 

Cottonwood Subdivision which will provide for an income-aligned residential development 

featuring 40 units, including thirty one-bedroom units and ten two-bedroom units in 2024.  

C. Prior to the sale to the housing authority, FHFH was not required to pay taxes on the 

property through a tax exemption for nonprofit housing providers for low-income housing 

pursuant to C.R.S. 39-3-113.5.  

D. C.R.S. 39-3-113.5 specifically requires that the property only remains tax exempt if the 

property is sold to low-income applicants or community land trusts. The statute does not 

allow the tax exempt status to remain if the property is sold to a housing authority.     

E. Since the property was sold to a housing authority, property taxes on the property became 

due and payable by FHFH in accordance with the provisions of C.R.S. 39-3-113.5.   

F. FHFH has paid the $37,298.56 in outstanding property taxes that were due and payable on 

the property to facilitate the sales transaction to Broomfield Housing Alliance.        

G. Flatiron Habitat for Humanity has requested a grant in the amount of $37,298.56 to 

reimburse FHFH for payment of a property tax bill related to the sale of their property 

located on Cottonwood Street within The Grove at Cottonwood Subdivision (the 

“Project”). 

H. The City desires to support FHFH by providing financial support pursuant to the terms and 

conditions as provided below.   

AGREEMENT 

In consideration of the foregoing recitals and the mutual covenants and promises 

herein contained, the Parties agree as follows: 

Page 1 



1. TERM.  The term of this Agreement shall commence upon execution of by all of the 

Parties and shall be effective through June 30, 2025.  

2. CITY AND COUNTY OF BROOMFIELD SUPPORT.  

2.1. City Financial Support. The City shall provide a one-time payment to FHFH in 

the amount of $37,298.56 from the Housing Funding to be used solely for 

reimbursement of property taxes relating to the sale of the property for the 

Project. The City shall provide a check to FHFH within 30 days of approval of 

this Agreement.   

3. FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS.  All financial obligations of the Parties under this Agreement 

are subject to appropriation, budgeting, and availability of funds to discharge such 

obligations.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to pledge any Parties credit or 

faith, directly or indirectly.   

4. NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES. This Agreement is intended to describe the rights and 

responsibilities only as to the Parties hereto. This Agreement is not intended and shall 

not be deemed to confer any rights on any person or entity not named as a party 

hereto. 

5. INTEGRATION AND AMENDMENT.  This Agreement represents the entire agreement 

between the Parties and there are no oral or collateral agreements or understandings.  

This Agreement may be amended only by an instrument in writing signed by the 

Parties. 

6. SEVERABILITY.  If any provision of this Agreement as applied to any Party or to any 

circumstance shall be adjudged by a court to be void or unenforceable, the same shall 

in no way affect any other provision of this Agreement, the application of any such 

provision in any other circumstances, or the validity or enforceability of the 

Agreement as a whole. 

7. ASSIGNMENT.  This Agreement shall not be assigned by any Party without the prior 

written consent of the other Parties. 

8. GOVERNING LAW. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of 

Colorado.  Venue for any legal action related to this Agreement shall lie in the District 

Court, Broomfield County, Colorado. 

9. EXECUTION; ELECTRONIC SIGNATURES. This Agreement may be executed in 

counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which shall 

constitute but one and the same instrument. This Agreement shall not be binding upon 

any Party hereto unless and until the Parties have executed this Agreement. The 

Parties approve the use of electronic signatures for execution of this Agreement. All 

documents must be properly notarized, if applicable.  

Page 2 



 This Grant Agreement is executed by the Parties hereto in their respective names as of 

May 27, 2025. 

 

CITY AND COUNTY OF BROOMFIELD, 

a Colorado municipal corporation and county 

 

 

__________________________________  

Guyleen Castriotta, Mayor     

 

 

ATTEST: 

______________________________      

City and County Clerk  
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

NCR 
 ___________________________________ 

    City and County Attorney 

      

 

 

HABITAT FOR HUMANITY OF BOULDER VALLEY 

d/b/a/ Flatiron Habitat for Humanity, a Colorado 

non-profit corporation  

 

 

 

 By:____________________________ 
 Name:  

 Its:  

 

 

Page 3 





City and County of Broomfield

City Council Regular Meeting

D. Proposed Resolution HOME Consortium and Broomfield Consolidated Plan and 2025 Annual Action Plan

Meeting

Tuesday, May 27, 2025, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Action Items Item: 7D.

Presented By

Sharon Tessier, Housing Policy and Development Manager

Community Goals

☑ Financial Sustainability and Resilience

Overview

View Correspondence 

View Presentation

Memo and Resolution 2025-67 for Authorizing the Submittal of the 2025-2029 Broomfield Consolidated Plan and
the 2025 Action Plan for HOME Investment Partnership Program (HOME) and Community Development Block
Grant (CDBG) Funds

 

 

 

Attachments

HOME Consortium_CDBG and HOME Funds_Broomfield Consolidated Plan and 2025 Action plan .pdf
Resolution 2025-67.pdf
2025 Annual Action Plan - Draft.pdf
2025-2029 Consolidated Plan - Draft.pdf

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67c08fad23108a005402fd9b%2FHOME%20Consortium_CDBG%20and%20HOME%20Funds_Broomfield%20Consolidated%20Plan%20and%202025%20Action%20plan%20.pdf?alt=media&token=606f5ebe-f60d-4b2e-bb5e-edfe58a68feb
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67c08fad23108a005402fd9b%2FHOME%20Consortium_CDBG%20and%20HOME%20Funds_Broomfield%20Consolidated%20Plan%20and%202025%20Action%20plan%20.pdf?alt=media&token=606f5ebe-f60d-4b2e-bb5e-edfe58a68feb
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67c08fad23108a005402fd9b%2FHOME%20Consortium_CDBG%20and%20HOME%20Funds_Broomfield%20Consolidated%20Plan%20and%202025%20Action%20plan%20.pdf?alt=media&token=606f5ebe-f60d-4b2e-bb5e-edfe58a68feb
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67c08fad23108a005402fd9b%2FResolution%202025-67.pdf?alt=media&token=e5227ce6-19ec-4c24-b9ad-1e676104bf9f
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67c08fad23108a005402fd9b%2FResolution%202025-67.pdf?alt=media&token=e5227ce6-19ec-4c24-b9ad-1e676104bf9f
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67c08fad23108a005402fd9b%2FResolution%202025-67.pdf?alt=media&token=e5227ce6-19ec-4c24-b9ad-1e676104bf9f
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67c08fad23108a005402fd9b%2F2025%20Annual%20Action%20Plan%20-%20Draft.pdf?alt=media&token=a0accae9-7045-4cb6-8937-0cac95389ad3
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67c08fad23108a005402fd9b%2F2025%20Annual%20Action%20Plan%20-%20Draft.pdf?alt=media&token=a0accae9-7045-4cb6-8937-0cac95389ad3
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67c08fad23108a005402fd9b%2F2025%20Annual%20Action%20Plan%20-%20Draft.pdf?alt=media&token=a0accae9-7045-4cb6-8937-0cac95389ad3
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67c08fad23108a005402fd9b%2F2025-2029%20Consolidated%20Plan%20for%20Housing%20and%20Community%20Development%20-%20Draft.pdf?alt=media&token=e88959cb-fd89-4058-abbb-67072c9c4a6e
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67c08fad23108a005402fd9b%2F2025-2029%20Consolidated%20Plan%20for%20Housing%20and%20Community%20Development%20-%20Draft.pdf?alt=media&token=e88959cb-fd89-4058-abbb-67072c9c4a6e
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67c08fad23108a005402fd9b%2F2025-2029%20Consolidated%20Plan%20for%20Housing%20and%20Community%20Development%20-%20Draft.pdf?alt=media&token=e88959cb-fd89-4058-abbb-67072c9c4a6e


Memo for Resolution 2025-67 Authorizing the Submittal of the 2025-2029 Broomfield Consolidated Plan and the 2025 

Action Plan for HOME and CDBG Funds 
Prepared By: Sharon Tessier, Housing Policy Manager 

Summary 

View Correspondence 

View Presentation 

 

The 2025 HOME allocation is approximately $109,656  

The 2025 CDBG allocation is approximately $284,341  

 

For the purposes of the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program, Broomfield is designated an 

“entitlement community” by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD).  This status 

allows Broomfield to receive an annual allocation of funding for housing and community development 

programs that benefit people with incomes that range between low and moderate incomes, generally 

between 30% and 80% Area Median Income (AMI). 

 

Broomfield also receives federal HOME Investment Partnership Program (HOME) funds through its 

participation in the Boulder Broomfield Regional Consortium (Consortium).  The City of Boulder acts as the 

lead agency for the Consortium and is responsible for the allocation of the HOME funds to the members.  

HOME funds may be used for construction or rehabilitation of long-term affordable units, or direct assistance 

to low-income families. 

 

To receive HOME funds, each entitlement community must prepare a five-year Consolidated Plan consisting 

of market analysis, a needs assessment, a strategic plan for addressing needs, and an annual action plan for 

the use of the funds. The last consolidated Plan covered 2020-2024.  

 

The City of Boulder is the lead agency for the Consortium and receives and disperses the allocation of the 

HOME funds to the members who include the City of Boulder, County of Boulder, City of Longmont and City 

and County Broomfield. The City of Boulder, on behalf of the consortium, submits the approved 2025-2029 

Consolidation plan and its Annual Action Plan to HUD.  

 

The Consortium contracted with the Root Policy Research team who facilitated and collaborated with each 

of the staff members of the Consortium to create the Consolidated Plan  which consists of research, surveys 

and public meetings. 

 

The current draft of the 2025-2029 Consolidated Plan for the Boulder Broomfield Regional HOME Consortium 

is available for public review and comment between May 18 and June 18. In addition to the overall 

Consolidated Plan, each municipality has its own section (Broomfield Consolidated Plan) .  

 

HOME funds can be used for construction or rehabilitation of long-term affordable units or direct assistance 

to low-income families. Broomfield proposes to continue to use the HOME allocation to fund the Tenant 

Based Rental Assistance (TBRA) Program that is administered by the Broomfield Human Services Department 

under Self Sufficiency. The TBRA program recently expanded to include seniors since they are one of the 

fastest growing populations experiencing housing insecurity.  

 

Proposed eligible uses of the 2025 CDBG funds are consistent with previous years and may be used by both 

divisions within the Economic Vitality Department. The Housing Division proposes to continue to use the 

funds for the Home Rehabilitation  and the Paint-A-Thon programs administered by Brother’s Redevelopment 

Inc., and the Economic Development Division has seen success in using the funds for their Small Business 

Grants to help business owners expand their services or their staff.  

 

                 

1 

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82
https://www.hud.gov/hud-partners/community-budget-25
https://www.rootpolicy.com/
https://cityofboulder.sharepoint.com/:w:/s/ExternalEmbedding/EYfkhkm8GE1AmJ4yuHfm1HQBXGDtokLKd3V3nV62JJjg6g?e=cutJH6
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1_RB4_eL8beYbzyN37k7yDZKkpDO6iANU/view?usp=sharing
https://www.broomfield.org/2967/92248/Rental-Assistance
https://www.broomfield.org/2967/92248/Rental-Assistance
https://www.broomfield.org/3787/Self-Sufficiency-Public-Benefits
https://broomfield.org/1445/Housing-Programs#homerehabprogram
https://broomfield.org/1445/Housing-Programs#paint-a-thon
https://www.broomfield.org/4265/Small-Business-Support
https://www.broomfield.org/4265/Small-Business-Support


 

Resolution 2025-67 would authorize the submittal of the 2025-2029 Consolidated Plan and 2025 Action Plan 

for HOME and CDBG Funds. 

 

Financial Considerations 

As shown in the sources and uses of funds summary below, the project can be completed within the 

budgeted amount. 

 

Sources and Uses of Funds Amount 

Community Development Block Grant Fund Allocation (G25HA05) $284,341 

HOME (01-83100-43100 G23HA05)  $109,656 

 

CDBG-Home Rehabilitation, Paint a thon, and small business grants -$284,341 

HOME- TBRA  -$109,656 

Projected Balance 0 

 

Prior Council or Other Entity Actions 

January 28, 2025 - Resolution 2025-42 - Approving the 2025 Subrecipient Agreement and ensuring the 

continuation of the TBRA program into 2025. 

 

May 26, 2020 - Resolution 2020-137 A resolution authorizing the submittal of the 2020-2024 Broomfield 

Consolidated Plan and the 2020 Action Plan for the HOME and CDBG Funds 

Boards and Commissions Prior Actions and Recommendations 

N/A 

 

Proposed Actions / Recommendations 

If Council desires to approve the resolution the appropriate motion is... 

That Resolution 2025-67 be adopted. 

 

Alternatives 

Do not accept the Plan as written or modify it as desired based on comments at the City Council meeting.  

Rejecting submittal of the plan will impact Broomfield’s HOME and CDBG allocations thereby risking the end 

of the TBRA, Home Rehabilitation, Paint-A-Thon, and Small Business Loan programs. 

 

Details 

Background of CDBG Funding for 2020-2024 

Background of CDBG Funding for 2025-2029 Consolidated Plan 

 

2 

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1DXpHBhImpIK1tdYrXBZp__Etz_SmL8AN/view
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1D3bU9m01ui08w6Req6JgEQcXTwUBTzJv/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1tvH2fYbRaxzPFg0Hb6jDEUXZAsYLxnhT/view?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1G1xM_ioSoiYhFcOQKsnW5L2GLtsCCqywzxu7vt2yMPc/edit?usp=sharing


 

Since becoming an entitlement community in 2008, Broomfield committed the entire allocation of CDBG  

and HOME funding to successfully initiate and operate various housing programs. Specific activities  include 

the home repair and weatherization programs, the housing counseling and eviction prevention  programs, 

various assistance to senior programs, and the establishment of the Broomfield Housing Alliance.  

 

Broomfield’s Inclusionary Housing Ordinance established in 2021 has added for-sale affordable homes for 

residents with 80% AMI or below,  increasing middle income earner homeownership. Similarly, 20% of all 

multi-family developments must rent for 60% AMI, assisting moderate income earner households.  

 

The Consolidated Plan focuses on the main areas that HUD requires which include: 

 

1. Addressing homelessness and housing instability 

2. A Housing Needs Assessment  

3. A Housing Market Analysis  

4. Non-Housing Development (e.g. capital improvements or small business assistance) 

5. Broadband needs of low and moderate income households 

6. Hazard mitigation regarding lead, radon, drought, flooding, and severe weather. 

The plan identifies Housing Stabilization Programs and Homeownership Programs as the highest priority for 

Broomfield. Lower income families experience high rates of cost burden and cost burden has increasingly 

impacted middle income earners in Broomfield and the region. The intent is to reduce the number of people 

at-risk of homelessness and experiencing homelessness through supportive services, case management, and 

rental assistance.  Additionally, preserving existing affordable owner-occupied housing stock can be done 

through rehabilitation assistance to keep existing stock safe and habitable, help owners to age in place, and 

supporting low-to-moderate income home buyers access quality, affordable homeownership opportunities. 

While still important, lower priority needs relate to Community Development and Economic Development 

Programs.  Revitalizing and investing in communities ensures that all neighborhoods, especially those of 

low/moderate income, enjoy a high quality of life for all residents.  Further, increasing the economic 

stability of businesses is important to provide and maintain employment opportunities primarily for 

low/moderate income residents.  This can be addressed through expanded workforce training opportunities 

and continued access to capital to start new and expand existing businesses. 

Homelessness Strategy 

Section SP-60, Homelessness Strategy, is included to describe how each jurisdiction’s plan goals will 

contribute to reaching out to homeless persons and assessing their individual needs, address the emergency 

and transitional housing needs of homeless persons, help homeless persons to make transitions to permanent 

housing, and help low-income individuals/families to avoid becoming homeless. These plan goals are met for 

the consortium, through various programs and services offered by the local governments and through 

community partnerships, emergency hotel and motel vouchers, and public benefits screening, eligibility and 

enrollment.   

 

The Broomfield Human Services Department collaborates with the Metro Denver Homelessness Initiative 

(MDHI), a coalition working with homeless assistance agencies in the seven- county Denver metropolitan 

area to coordinate the delivery of housing and services to homeless families, individuals, youth, and persons 

with disabilities. In addition, Broomfield collaborates with the Fellowship in Service to Humanity (FISH) 

organization that provides direct rental assistance. Since 2020, Broomfield has created and continues to 

partner with Almost Home, a nonprofit organization, for use of their non congregate shelter program for the 

Severe Weather Activation Program (SWAP) to shelter Broomfield residents who are experiencing 

homelessness. Other community partners include Clinica Family Health and The Refuge.   

3 

https://cityofboulder.sharepoint.com/:w:/s/ExternalEmbedding/EYfkhkm8GE1AmJ4yuHfm1HQBXGDtokLKd3V3nV62JJjg6g?e=cutJH6


 

 

Broomfield also participates in case conferencing, which consists of multiple agencies in Broomfield who 

work together to get people experiencing homelessness the services they need to collaborate to get the 

people who are ready to leave the streets into safe, quality housing. In 2024, approximately 25 people from 

the SWAP program were moved into housing. 

 

Needs Assessment 

The Consolidated Plan is required to have a Needs Assessment to describe the primary housing challenges in 

Broomfield  The information for this Needs Assessment drew on market data, 2023 5-year American 

Community Survey data, disproportionate needs data from HUD, stakeholder input, and resident input.   

 

The priority needs identified through this effort include: 

● Affordable rental housing for extremely low and very low-income households—an outcome priority 

identified by participants in a community meeting, stakeholders in Broomfield, and evidenced by the 

housing gaps analysis, and a top need identified in the city’s 2023 Housing Needs Assessment Data 

Update. Stakeholders specified rental housing for households with income 60% AMI or less and 

homeownership options less than $500,000; 

● Stable, local funding source for affordable housing and more funding for Broomfield Housing 

Authority for vouchers and properties; 

● Accessibility improvements to existing homes and expansion of accessible housing inventory for 

Broomfield’s aging population; 

● Improved property conditions, particularly in complexes with out-of-state owners who were viewed 

as less responsive property managers; 

● More emergency financial resources to prevent homelessness. Current funding has strings attached 

and cannot be used quickly enough by families in crisis; 

● Housing with supportive services for very vulnerable populations, including survivors of domestic 

violence; 

● More robust services for those experiencing homelessness in Broomfield, including a homeless 

shelter; 

● More funding for behavioral health services, especially for chronically homeless individuals; and 

● More efficient and reliable transportation between work and home and for seniors or people with 

disabilities that connect neighborhoods with healthcare and resources. 

 

The resident survey asked questions about public service needs in the region. In Broomfield, residents rated 

resources for mental healthcare, less expensive housing, programs and activities for positive youth 

development, job training opportunities to build skills, resources to learn to be more financially stable, and 

resources to help older family members or persons with a disability as services that would be most helpful. 

 

At community meetings, Broomfield residents also reported a gap in resources for survivors of domestic 

violence. The closest shelters and resources for this group were in Boulder and Longmont. These shelters 

were almost always full. 

 

Stakeholders interviewed in focus groups noted that staffing remains a critical issue and emphasized the 

need for additional services for unhoused individuals, especially for those requiring street outreach, mental 

health care, and addiction recovery support. Current recovery services, such as sober living, are often 

cost-prohibitive and lack funding. There is also a need for services that extend beyond housing, such as 

long-term mental health support to support individuals in maintaining stability. To make the most efficient 

use of available funding, the region has adopted a strong regional approach. 

 

4 



 

2025 Annual Action Plan  

In 2025, Broomfield plans to continue focusing the majority of its CDBG funding on the Home Rehabilitation 

program to maintain the limited affordable housing stock and prevent displacement of lower income 

residents while also expanding activities that support small businesses and neighborhood support 

organizations.   The annual goals and objectives for 2025 in relation to CDBG funds are provided in the table 

below. 

 

 

Broomfield may adjust the amount spent between the Action Plan activities if deemed appropriate. If a new 

activity is proposed, it must be submitted to HUD as an amendment to the Plan, a public hearing must be 

held, and it must meet the goals and priorities established in the Consolidated Plan. 

 

The HOME funds are proposed to be used to continue the Tenant Based Rental Assistance Program (TBRA).  

Broomfield assists approximately 15 households annually through TBRA.  This program is administered 

through the Health and Human Services Department. 

 

Community Participation Process and Consultation Process 

Community and stakeholder engagement included four community meetings in the region. One of which was 

held in Broomfield. Additionally, the Broomfield Housing Solutions Forum, a group of 29 individuals who 

represent service providers and housing and human services staff, participated in a discussion about housing 

needs and service gaps in the region. 261 Broomfield residents responded to the resident survey available in 

English and Spanish.The Citizen Engagement Appendix to the Action Plan contains detailed results from the 

stakeholder consultation, community meetings, and resident survey. 

 

5 



 

Broomfield’s Obligations 

Broomfield (as a recipient of CDBG funds and as a member of the HOME Consortium) will submit the 

approved 2025 Annual Action Plan to HUD, in a document that presents one consolidated Annual Action Plan 

covering all the communities in the Boulder Broomfield Regional Consortium.  Along with the submittal will 

be a summary of any public comments received during any of the public hearings held by the Consortium 

members. The Consortium members are holding public hearings at their Council meetings, and Broomfield 

will also collect public comments at the May 27, 2025, City Council meeting. 

 

Broomfield will be required to submit a Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER) to 

HUD 90 days after the end of the program year (calendar year) that describes the resources that were 

received and how the resources were allocated, both geographically and by family status (income, race, 

ethnicity). The CAPER will also include information on the progress towards addressing the priorities 

established in the Consolidated Plan. 

 

Process Of Approval 

Following the publication of the draft Consortium document, a minimum 5-day public comment period is 

required. Following the comment period, minor amendments and clarifications may be made to the Plan. 

HUD will then review the plan over a 45-day period and inform the Consortium if there are additions or 

corrections needed.  

 

6 



RESOLUTION NO. 2025-67 

A Resolution Authorizing the Submittal of the 2025-2029 Broomfield Consolidated Plan and the 

2025 Action Plan for the HOME and CDBG Funds 

Be it resolved by the City Council of the City and County of Broomfield, Colorado 

Section 1.   

The 2025-2029 Broomfield Consolidated Plan for HOME investment Partnerships Program 

(HOME) and Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funds and 2025 Action Plan to be 

submitted as part of the Boulder-Broomfield Regional Consortium Plan with any amendments 

required by the US Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and any citizen 

comments received, is hereby authorized for submittal to HUD. 

Section 2. 

The 2025 Action Plan Chart of Activities for HOME and CDBG Funds is hereby approved. 

Section 3. 

This resolution is effective upon its approval by the City Council. 

 

 Approved on May 27, 2025 

 

The City and County of Broomfield, Colorado 

 

 

        

Mayor 

Attest: 

 

 

       

Office of the City and County Clerk 

 

Approved as to form: 

NCR 
 

        

City and County Attorney 

Page 1 

Revised 3/2024 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER  158 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Expected Resources 

AP-15 Expected Resources - 91.420(b), 91.220(c)(1,2) 
Introduction 

Anticipated Resources 

Program Source 
of Funds 

Uses of Funds Expected Amount Available Year 1 Expected 
Amount 

Available 
Remainder of 

ConPlan 
$ 

Narrative Description 
Annual 

Allocation: $ 
Program 
Income: 

$ 

Prior Year 
Resources: $ 

Total: 
$ 

CDBG public - 
federal 

Acquisition 
Admin and 
Planning 
Economic 
Development 
Housing 
Public 
Improvements 
Public Services 824,425.00 0.00 89,446.00 913,871.00 3,300,000.00 

Expected amount available 
accounts for annual 
allocation at volumes similar 
to year 1 for remaining years 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     159 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Program Source 
of Funds 

Uses of Funds Expected Amount Available Year 1 Expected 
Amount 

Available 
Remainder of 

ConPlan  
$ 

Narrative Description 
Annual 

Allocation: $ 
Program 
Income: 

$ 

Prior Year 
Resources: $ 

Total: 
$ 

HOME public - 
federal 

Acquisition 
Homebuyer 
assistance 
Homeowner 
rehab 
Multifamily 
rental new 
construction 
Multifamily 
rental rehab 
New 
construction for 
ownership 
TBRA 1,186,380.00 0.00 1,417,796.16 2,604,176.16 4,748,000.00 

Federal funds used to create 
and preserve affordable 
housing. The expected 
HOME available remaining 
funds are equal to 
$1,187,000 x 4 years. 

Table 69 - Expected Resources – Priority Table 
 
Explain how federal funds will leverage those additional resources (private, state and local funds), including a description of how 
matching requirements will be satisfied 

In addition to the receipt of federal CDBG and HOME funds, the City of Boulder has two funding sources generated locally. The Affordable 
Housing Fund has generated an average of approximately $4 million annually between 2019 and 2024 through Inclusionary Housing cash-in-lieu 
contributions and linkage fees. The Community Housing Assistance Program is funded primarily through property tax and a Housing Excise Tax 
and generates approximately $3 million annually. The City will continue to leverage resources available including the state, local and private 
dollars. 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     160 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Through its competitive fund rounds, the City encourages applicants to seek other funding and in-kind contributions from private and public 
sources to match city funding. Each jurisdiction allocates local funds to projects which are an eligible match contribution to satisfy HOME match 
requirements, and members of the consortium prefer to not have local funding be the sole source of funding for a project or program. Eligible 
match sources include, but are not limited to, non-federal funds, tax credit proceeds, Private Activity Bonds, municipal General Fund monies, 
lending institutions, foundations, government entities (county or state), earned revenue, volunteer time, and in-kind donations. Other things 
being equal, applications with greater matching sources will receive favorable consideration. The Consortium works with Public Housing 
Authorities and HOME subrecipients to ensure the HOME match requirement is satisfied. 

In addition to the aforementioned housing sources, the City of Boulder’s Human Services Fund (HSF) provides roughly $2.1 million annually in 
support for services to community members at-risk or experiencing socio-economic disparities, in alignment with the city’s Human Services 
Strategy. Services provided through HSF investments include childcare and early education; physical, dental, mental and behavioral health 
services; financial assistance for rent, food and housing; legal services for underrepresented community members; child and family safety; and 
other basic needs services for community members of all ages. The city’s Health Equity Fund (HEF) provides roughly $5 million annually for a 
wide range of programs aimed at reducing health disparities. Programs include services for direct physical, dental, mental and behavioral health 
care, health systems access and navigation, food security, nutrition, physical fitness and wellness education, and other special projects impacting 
social determinants of health. 

The City of Boulder Substance Education and Awareness (SEA) Fund invests in programs to prevent youth and family substance use and abuse. 
The Fund supports adult influencer trainings, youth pro-social events, youth peer education programs, business retail staff training and 
education, and collaborative substance abuse program planning and advocacy. SEA funding comes from a portion of annual revenue from the 
city’s Recreational Marijuana and Electronic Smoking Device taxes.  

   



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     161 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

If appropriate, describe publicly owned land or property located within the jurisdiction that 
may be used to address the needs identified in the plan 

During the five years of the Consolidated Plan, the City of Boulder is working with partners on the 
following redevelopment opportunities that will address the needs of the plan including: 

• Ponderosa Mobile Home Park. The City of Boulder purchased this 68-lot community in 2017 
with CDBG-DR (Disaster Recovery) funds. The park’s nearly 200 residents are primarily families 
of Latin descent and people with special needs. Section 108 funds are being used to develop a 
modular housing factory, the first project of which will be to provide housing for Ponderosa 
development. City of Boulder entitlement CDBG Funds will be used to repay the Section 108 
loan funds. 

• Alpine-Balsam. The Alpine-Balsam property, formerly the Boulder Community Health (BCH) 
hospital, was purchased by the City of Boulder in 2015. The City of Boulder is embarking on the 
multi-year process to redevelop Alpine-Balsam motivated by the desire to shape the 
redevelopment of an area that has been focused around a major healthcare facility for decades, 
to address the city’s decentralized service challenges by creating a City Service Center, and to 
address critical affordable housing needs. BHP is developing two parcels with senior and family 
affordable rental housing totaling 144 units. 

• 2961 30th Street. The City of Boulder has land banked 2961 30th Street for future development 
of affordable housing. The site may have capacity for development of 30-40 units. 

In Longmont, the City currently has 15 approximately acres banked. This is a strategy also captured in 
the Regional Housing Plan, with the goal to secure land between now and 2026. The City recently 
inventoried its properties, and found 6 parcels with homes that were purchased for open space or for 
water retention by the Public Works and Natural Resources (PWNR) Dept. These homes are rented on 
the open market by PWNR. Longmont City Council approved converting these homes to affordable 
rentals and as the leases expire for each, they will become rental homes affordable to households at or 
below 50% AMI. The homes will be rehabilitated if necessary and re-leased to low-income or moderate-
income households as the opportunity for lease conversion arises over the next two years. The first 
home has been successfully rehabilitated for occupancy and now has a low-income tenant as of Summer 
2024. Longmont also supports affordable housing through fee waivers, fee offsets, and other 
housing/building incentives.  

Discussion 

Please see above. 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     162 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Annual Goals and Objectives 
AP-20 Annual Goals and Objectives - 91.420, 91.220(c)(3)&(e) 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     163 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Goals Summary Information  



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     164 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Sort Order Goal Name Start 
Year 

End 
Year 

Category Geographic Area Needs Addressed Funding Goal Outcome Indicator 

1 Rental Housing 
Programs 

2025 2029 Affordable 
Housing 

Boulder/Broomfield 
HOME Consortium 

Region 

Rental Housing 
Programs 

CDBG: $164,977 
HOME: $TBD 

 

 Household Housing 
Unit 

Rental units 
rehabilitated: 5 

Household Housing Unit 
Tenant-based rental 

assistance : 15 
Rapid Rehousing: 95 
Households Assisted 

Housing for Homeless 
added: 63 Household 

Housing Unit 
Other: 0 Other 

2 Homeownership 
Programs 

2025 2029 Affordable 
Housing 

Boulder/Broomfield 
HOME Consortium 

Region 

Homeownership 
Programs 

Existing Housing 
Homebuyer 

Programs 

CDBG: $453,686 
HOME: $TBD 

Homeowner Housing 
Added: 11 

 Household Housing 
Unit 

Homeowner Housing 
Rehabilitated: 5 

Household Housing 
Units 

3 Community 
Vitality 

Programs 

2025 2029 Non-housing 
community 

development 
Homeless 
Economic 

development 

Boulder/Broomfield 
HOME Consortium 

Region 

Housing 
Stabilization 

Program 
Community 
Investment 
Economic 

Development 

CDBG: $82,000 
HOME: TBD 

Public service activities 
for Low/Moderate 

Income Housing Benefit: 
200 Households 

Assisted 
 
 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     165 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

4 Administration 2025 2029 Administration Boulder/Broomfield 
HOME Consortium 

Region 

Community 
Investment 
Economic 

Development 
Homeownership 

Programs 
Existing Housing 

Homebuyer 
Programs 
Housing 

Stabilization 
Program 

Rental Housing 
Programs 

CDBG: $123,732 
HOME: $TBD 

 

Other: 0 Other 

Table 70 – Goals Summary 
Goal Descriptions 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     166 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

1 Goal Name Rental Housing Programs 

 Goal 
Description 

The goal of Rental Housing Programs is to preserve and increase the amount, quality, affordability and accessibility 
of rental housing for the lowest income renters. 

2 Goal Name Homeownership Programs 

 Goal 
Description 

The goal of Homeownership Programs is to preserve and increase the amount, quality, affordability, and accessibility of 
owner-occupied units for existing owners and potential buyers with low- to moderate-income 

3 Goal Name Community Vitality Programs 

 Goal 
Description 

The goal of Community Vitality Programs is to revitalize and invest in the community to ensure that all residents enjoy a 
high quality life. This includes the provision of public services and economic development programs. 

4 Goal Name Administration 

 Goal 
Description 

Costs incurred to administer the grant funds 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     167 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

AP-35 Projects - 91.420, 91.220(d) 
Introduction  

# Project Name 
1 Rental Housing Programs 
2 Homeownership Programs 
3 Community Vitality Programs 
4 Administration 

Table 71 – Project Information 
 
Describe the reasons for allocation priorities and any obstacles to addressing underserved 
needs 

 

Residents and stakeholders consulted through community engagement efforts consistently highlighted 
need for more affordable housing across the spectrum, from affordable rental units for single older 
adults exiting homelessness to affordable homeownership options for families. The limited supply of 
affordable housing in the Boulder area continues to challenge families, older adults, and people with 
disabilities. In terms of economic activity and community vitality, workers have difficulty securing 
affordable housing, posing a challenge for employers looking to retain and recruit employees in the 
region. Therefore, CDBG and HOME funds will be primarily to increase and maintain affordable housing 
options in the region. Boulder is largely allocating CDBG funds to pay off a Section 108 loan for its 
innovative modular housing factory, Boulder Mod. The factory will produce 12 to 15 permanently 
affordable units for homeownership each year, as well as providing workforce training opportunities for 
Boulder Valley School District Students. 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     168 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

AP-38 Project Summary 
Project Summary Information 

1 Project Name Rental Housing Programs 

Target Area Boulder/Broomfield HOME Consortium Region 

Goals Supported Rental Housing Programs 

Needs Addressed Rental Housing Programs 

Funding CDBG: $164,977.00 
HOME: $TBD.00 

Description Rental Housing Programs 

Target Date 12/31/2028 

Estimate the number and type 
of families that will benefit 
from the proposed activities 

Rental units constructed: 45 household housing units 

Rental units rehabilitated: 5 household housing units 

Location Description Boulder, Longmont, and Broomfield 

Planned Activities The Grove at Cottonwood- new construction of rental units, Broomfield tenant based rental assistance 
(TBRA), Longmont Inn Between Wesley Homes new construction of rental housing for homeless, 
unallocated HOME CHDO, unallocated HOME entitlement for rental, Boulder Shelter for the Homeless 
rehab, Thistle Parkside Village rehab, unallocated CDBG and unallocated HOME. 

2 Project Name Homeownership Programs 

Target Area Boulder/Broomfield HOME Consortium Region 

Goals Supported Homeownership Programs 

Needs Addressed Homeownership Programs Existing Housing 
Homebuyer Programs 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     169 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Funding CDBG: $453,686.00 
HOME: $TBD 

Section 108: $4,000,000 

Description Homeownership Programs 

Target Date 12/31/2028 

Estimate the number and type 
of families that will benefit 
from the proposed activities 

Homeowner housing added: 29 household housing units 

Homeowner housing rehabilitated: 5 household housing units 

Location Description Boulder and Longmont 

Planned Activities St Vrain Habitat Rogers Rd, and St Vrain Habitat Duplexes homeownership new construction, housing 
rehab, unallocated CHDO (set-aside $151,893) homeownership. Section 108 Loan Repayments including 
principal interest and financing fees for Boulder Modular Housing Factory. 

3 Project Name Community Vitality Programs 

Target Area Boulder/Broomfield HOME Consortium Region 

Goals Supported Homeownership Programs 

Needs Addressed Non-Housing Community Development 

Homelessness 

Funding CDBG: $82,000.00 

HOME: TBD 

Description Community Vitality Programs 

Target Date 12/31/2026 

Estimate the number and type 
of families that will benefit 
from the proposed activities 

Public Service activities other than low/ moderate housing benefit: 200 households assisted 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     170 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Location Description Boulder and Longmont 

Planned Activities Public service dollars for the Family Resource Schools (FRS) program, CHDO Operating, unallocated 
Community Vitality Program funds 

4 Project Name Administration 

Target Area Boulder/Broomfield HOME Consortium Region 

Goals Supported Administration 

Needs Addressed Rental Housing Programs 
Homeownership Programs Existing Housing 
Homebuyer Programs 
Housing Stabilization Program 
Community Investment 

Funding CDBG: $123,732.00 
HOME: $TBD 

Description Administration and planning costs for CDBG and HOME 

Target Date 12/31/2026 

Estimate the number and type 
of families that will benefit 
from the proposed activities 

n/a 

Location Description n/a 

Planned Activities Administration and planning 
 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     171 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

AP-50 Geographic Distribution - 91.420, 91.220(f) 
Description of the geographic areas of the entitlement (including areas of low-income and 
minority concentration) where assistance will be directed 

 Boulder Broomfield HOME Consortium Region 

Geographic Distribution 

Target Area Percentage of Funds 
Boulder/ Broomfield HOME 
Consortium Region 

100 

Table 72 - Geographic Distribution  
 
Rationale for the priorities for allocating investments geographically 

Please see the Discussion section below for complete details of geographic areas of entitlement.  

Discussion 

HOME funds received by the Consortium have historically been distributed to the Consortium 
jurisdiction members based on a set percentage (City of Boulder – 44%, City of Longmont – 23%, 
Boulder County – 20%, City and County of Broomfield – 13%). Longmont oversees its own distribution of 
HOME funds. Broomfield has used its funds to support a Tenant Based Rental Program. Boulder 
oversees distribution of its HOME funds as well as the funds designated for Boulder County. 

The HOME Consortium members employ a rotational distribution of funding through which HOME 
awards funds are rotated throughout the region with each jurisdiction receiving the majority of the 
funds to pursue a project of magnitude. Each year, the actual awarding of funds will be evaluated by the 
HOME Consortium members to ensure funds ultimately support an eligible project that best meets the 
housing needs of the Consortium area. 

The Consortium utilizes a mixed approach which includes a limited application process, solicitation of 
applications from qualified organizations and an open-door unsolicited application process.  

 

  



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     172 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Affordable Housing 

AP-55 Affordable Housing - 91.420, 91.220(g) 
Introduction 

One Year Goals for the Number of Households to be Supported 
Homeless 0 
Non-Homeless 200 
Special-Needs 0 
Total 200 

Table 73 - One Year Goals for Affordable Housing by Support Requirement 
 

One Year Goals for the Number of Households Supported Through 
Rental Assistance 15 
The Production of New Units 11 
Rehab of Existing Units 5 
Acquisition of Existing Units 7 
Total 38 

Table 74 - One Year Goals for Affordable Housing by Support Type 
 

Discussion 

The above numbers only reflect HOME defined units and do not include units supported through CDBG 
funding. 

 

 

 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     173 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

AP-60 Public Housing - 91.420, 91.220(h) 
Introduction 

Publicly supported housing plays a critical role in the provision of affordable housing, especially in high-
cost housing markets. This includes provision of rental housing for residents with lower income as well 
as ownership housing for residents with moderate income created through public incentives or 
requirements. The Consortium is fortunate to have three public housing entities that own and operate 
affordable rental and deed-restricted for sale housing and administer housing choice voucher programs. 
Broomfield’s Housing Authority administers a small number of vouchers allocated by the Colorado 
Department of Housing and does not own or manage affordable rentals. 

Actions planned during the next year to address the needs to public housing 

As laid out in AP-38, the Consortium plans to undertake the following to address needs relating to public 
and affordable housing: 

• Rental Housing and Homeownership Programs: Allocation of funds to support construction 
process of affordable renter-occupied and owner-occupied units for homeless and low- to 
moderate-income families/ individuals, assist TBRA households, rehabilitation for renter and 
owner-occupied units. 

• Community Investment Programs: Funds CHDO operating, Section 108 loan repayments, and 
Boulder shelter rehabilitation 

Actions to encourage public housing residents to become more involved in management and 
participate in homeownership 

The Family Self-Sufficiency Program is operated within Boulder Housing Partners and Boulder County 
Housing Authority. This program provides education and employment services with the goal of helping 
public housing residents raise their income. Coordinated services include childcare, transportation, job 
training, employment counseling, financial literacy, and homeownership counseling. Increases in rent as 
a result of earned income during participating family’s time in the program is put into an escrow account 
for the family to access following program participation. This money can be used for any purpose, 
including down payments. There were 129 FSS participants within Boulder County Housing Authority 
and 27 in Boulder Housing Partners in 2023. 

If the PHA is designated as troubled, describe the manner in which financial assistance will be 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     174 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

provided or other assistance  

N/A 

Discussion 

Please see above.  

AP-65 Homeless and Other Special Needs Activities - 91.420, 91.220(i) 
Introduction 

Exiting people from homelessness is a critical activity of Boulder and Broomfield counties. The 
Consortium has developed a wide-ranging response to homelessness, including coordinated outreach, 
case management, sheltering, housing, and retention services. Funding is leveraged by Federal, state, 
and local resources, and the Consortium approaches homelessness response with a housing focus. In 
Boulder County alone, over 2,300 people experiencing homelessness have been exited from 
homelessness since late 2017. Current initiatives are centered on housing retention, peer support, day 
services, focusing on chronically homeless high utilizers of the criminal justice and healthcare systems, 
recovery housing and permanent supportive housing unit development. Over 180 units of permanent 
supportive housing have been developed in the last year or are being developed over the next 18-24 
months. 

Describe the jurisdictions one-year goals and actions for reducing and ending homelessness 
including 

Reaching out to homeless persons (especially unsheltered persons) and assessing their 
individual needs 

Boulder County governmental and nonprofit organizations coordinate single adult homelessness 
through Homeless Solutions for Boulder County (HSBC). All jurisdictions take part in the Point-in-Time 
count, and multiple, coordinated outreach teams connect homeless individuals with resources.    

One-year goals for outreach and assessment include:  

• Coordinated outreach provider meetings, including individual client staffing between outreach 
entities within the City of Boulder and across Boulder County; 

• Increased capacity of the Boulder Targeted Homeless Engagement & Referral Effort (BTHERE), 
Longmont Targeted Homeless Engagement & Referral Effort (LTHERE) and Broomfield Cares 
outreach teams, including the provision of Coordinated Entry, case management and 
reunification services in the field. These are targeted outreach teams which include members 
with lived experience, mental health experience, and homeless service experience; 

• Expansion of the City of Boulder Safe and Managed Spaces program to compassionately address 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     175 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

camping in public spaces; 
• Participation of all entities in the Point in Time Survey, including conducting an additional 

summer Point in Time Survey; and 
• Development of a day services center to centralize resources and provide 

engagement/navigation opportunities for individuals experiencing unsheltered homelessness 
and not already engaged in services. 

Addressing the emergency shelter and transitional housing needs of homeless persons 

Emergency sheltering for single adults is coordinated across Boulder County leveraging local coordinated 
entry (CE) which is a standardized assessment that matches sheltering services aligned with the 
particular needs of individuals to expedite housing connection. Family homelessness is assessed using a 
coordinated entry form. One-year goals in sheltering and transitional housing include: 

• Financial support of consolidated adult homelessness services at All Roads Shelter for persons 
experiencing homelessness in the city of Boulder and for people who are in need of intensive 
sheltering services in Longmont through HOPE; 

• Continued provision of day services in Boulder that includes respite services, behavioral health 
services (including medically assisted treatment), physical health services, housing case 
management, housing retention services, peer support services, basic needs provision, meals, 
storage, programming, and service/housing navigation.  

• Maintaining nighttime sheltering in Boulder including All Roads general, housing-focused 
sheltering, The Source at TGTHR youth sheltering, and Haven’s Ridge The Lodge 
(sheltering/transitional space for women, transgender, and non-binary individuals) 

• Support of local domestic violence shelters and transitional housing programming 
• Support of HOPE for Longmont to provide intake, assessment and sheltering along with housing 

focused outreach for individuals experiencing homeless; and 
• Continued funding of OUR Center in Longmont to provide basic needs for families and 

individuals experiencing and those at risk of homelessness. 

Helping homeless persons (especially chronically homeless individuals and families, families 
with children, veterans and their families, and unaccompanied youth) make the transition to 
permanent housing and independent living, including shortening the period of time that 
individuals and families experience homelessness, facilitating access for homeless individuals 
and families to affordable housing units, and preventing individuals and families who were 
recently homeless from becoming homeless again 

Homeless Action Plan initiatives being explored and implemented include:  

• Strengthening landlord relationships to increase options for individuals/families experiencing 
homelessness to gain housing or access other safe diversionary exits from homelessness, and for 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     176 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

at-risk or formerly homeless people to retain housing; 
• Continue BCHA’s setting aside of up to 50 vouchers to be utilized for households that might at 

initial screening met the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act definition and/or revised 
definition of homeless the Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing Act 
of 2009 (HEARTH Act). This local preference will be limited to applicants referred in through 
Boulder County’s Community Housing Resource Panel and may include families transitioning 
from a Rapid Rehousing Program; 

• Continuation of locally funded housing voucher programs through the cities of Boulder and 
Longmont. Within the City of Boulder, local vouchers are targeted to people who cannot be 
housed through traditional, HUD-funded vouchers; 

• Establishing a residential site for people experiencing homelessness who also are recovering 
from significant substance use disorder; and 

• Continuing Boulder’s Building Home program – peer support, daytime programming, and a 
dedicated housing retention team aimed at building community and supporting housing 
retention for participants in permanent supportive housing. 

• Incorporating 30 Supportive Housing Vouchers and associated tenant supportive services into 
the operation of the Day Service Center. 

• Supporting All Roads unit acquisition program for people who cannot qualify for leases through 
traditional means due to significant criminal records. 

The Consortium, primarily through Boulder County, will continue the following programs to help 
formerly homeless individuals and families transition from homelessness into permanent housing: 

• Access to personal finance coaching; 
• Public benefits screening, eligibility and enrollment – Families and individuals are screened for 

eligibility and enrolled in public benefits via PEAK (online benefits enrollment); 
• Follow-up is provided by case worker to ensure families receive benefits (i.e., food assistance, 

Medicaid, Child Health Plus, cash assistance, etc.); 
• Childcare Assistance Program enrollment; 
• Access to domestic violence advocacy, counseling and support; and 
• Access to Family Resource Centers (FRC), substance abuse and mental health services. 

The community confers regarding individuals experiencing homelessness who are being discharged from 
institutions and is currently working to formalize a system-wide discharge plan. Designated partners 
address specific needs of people exiting emergency healthcare, the criminal justice system, or mental 
health in-patient care. These include Clinica Family Health, Focus Reentry, and All Roads Shelter.  

Helping low-income individuals and families avoid becoming homeless, especially extremely 
low-income individuals and families and those who are: being discharged from publicly 
funded institutions and systems of care (such as health care facilities, mental health facilities, 
foster care and other youth facilities, and corrections programs and institutions); or, receiving 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     177 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

assistance from public or private agencies that address housing, health, social services, 
employment, education, or youth needs. 

Ensuring that individuals transitioning from mental and physical health institutions receive appropriate 
supportive housing in Boulder and Broomfield counties involves accessing various local programs and 
services designed to facilitate stable housing and comprehensive support. Service providers pointed to 
the “no wrong door” collaborative approach to best serve resident needs, including those returning 
from mental and physical health institutions.  

In Boulder County, the Housing Stabilization Program (HSP) works with local partners like Family 
Resource Centers, domestic violence agencies, the St. Vrain and Boulder Valley School Districts, Boulder 
County Family and Children Services, and Colorado Works. In 2024, the program offered 475 households 
case management and distributed $2.8 million in rental assistance through its partners. Additionally, the 
Boulder County Housing Helpline provides housing navigation supports, assistance with landlord/tenant 
issues, eviction prevention, and referrals to rental assistance programs. In 2024, this helpline answered 
over 2,600 questions. All Roads, a shelter and support network for people experiencing homelessness in 
Boulder County also offers respite services and helps individuals with serious medical conditions with 
discharge plans following a stay at mental and physical health institutions with the ultimate goal of 
ensuring long-term supportive housing options for these homeless individuals. 

The City of Boulder, City of Longmont, and Boulder County are part of Homeless Solutions for Boulder 
County—a group that works to implement homeless strategy goals for single adults. These goals include 
pathways to permanent housing and expanding access and services to reduce homelessness. Although 
data is not available regarding persons returning from mental and physical health institutions, the 
priority of locating permanent housing fits the needs of this group.  

There are several organizations and systems that aim to prevent homelessness for people receiving 
public or private services. These include: 

• Childcare subsidies for families who have low-income families 
• School-based wrap-around support for families 
• Community resource referrals and case management for older adults 
• Resources, including mediation, for landlords, tenants, and roommates 
• Enforcement of “Failure to Pay Wages” ordinance 
• Eviction prevention services including legal resources, rental assistance and mediation 
• Building Home program in Boulder to ensure stability once recently homeless individuals are 

admitted to PSH programs  
• TGTHR in Boulder is a shelter and resource hub for youth ages 12 to 24 years old. Offers 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     178 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

programs for youth transitioning from foster care and supportive housing options for youth. 
• Focus Reentry assists people coming out of criminal institutions reintegrate into the community. 

Discussion 

Please see above. 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     179 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

AP-75 Barriers to affordable housing - 91.420, 91.220(j) 
Introduction 

As part of the engagement conducted for the Consolidated Plan, developers provided feedback on 
public policy barriers on affordable housing. The barriers identified below are in addition to market 
barriers, such as price increases, rising construction costs, and low vacancy rates. Developers highlighted 
regulatory and zoning constraints, administrative delays, and lack of funding and incentives as key 
barriers to affordable development. See MA-40 and Engagement Appendix for additional details. 

Actions it planned to remove or ameliorate the negative effects of public policies that serve 
as barriers to affordable housing such as land use controls, tax policies affecting land, zoning 
ordinances, building codes, fees and charges, growth limitations, and policies affecting the 
return on residential investment 

Jurisdictions have local trust funds, regulatory requirements benefiting affordable housing efforts 
(inclusionary housing, commercial linkage fees, annexation requirements, etc.), and, more recently, 
accommodated innovative housing products (e.g., tiny home village for veterans in Longmont and the 
modular home factory in Boulder) to facilitate the construction of more affordable housing. To 
overcome impediments identified by developers, cities across the jurisdiction have incentivized 
affordable development as part of inclusionary zoning policies. Longmont has included density bonuses, 
reduced parking requirements, and subsidies for water or sewer system development fees. Broomfield’s 
incentives for affordable development include a reduction of permit fees, use taxes, and service 
expansion fees. In the City of Boulder in 2024, the City Council adopted an ordinance that changes the 
Land Use Code to allow more housing units in some areas, enable smaller homes, and allowing more 
housing units in growth areas like Boulder Valley Regional Housing. Zoning changes now allow low 
density residential zones to have duplexes and triplexes to encourage a more diverse housing stock. 
Additionally, as part of Boulder’s Inclusionary Zoning ordinance, cash-in-lieu contributions are based on 
residential square footage to incentivize smaller and more affordable market-rate housing. 

Without this level of commitment, affordable housing would be much harder to find in the area, given 
the high demand for living in the communities. 

Developers praised affordable housing funds that incentivized development, specifically in Longmont, 
and would like to see more regional alignment that results in broader impact and deconcentrating of 
low-income housing. 

In addition, each member of the consortium has a Comprehensive Plan that contains a wide range of 
housing policies, including guidance on its underlying values, priorities, and collaborative efforts: 

• Boulder County - https://www.bouldercounty.org/property-and-land/land-
use/planning/boulder-county-comprehensive-plan/ 

• City of Boulder - https://bouldercolorado.gov/projects/boulder-valley-comprehensive-plan 
• City of Longmont - https://www.longmontcolorado.gov/departments/departments-n-



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     180 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

z/planning-and-development-services/plans-and-reports/comprehensive-plan 
• City/County of Broomfield - https://broomfield.org/2273/Comprehensive-Plan 

Discussion 

Please see above. 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     181 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

AP-85 Other Actions - 91.420, 91.220(k) 
Introduction 

Other actions that the Consortium will undertake to address housing and community development 
needs are summarized in this section.  

Actions planned to address obstacles to meeting underserved needs 

Despite the Consortium’s targeted use of federal and local resources to meet the underserved needs of 
the community, obstacles to meeting these needs will continue and require focus. The goals set forth in 
this plan position the Consortium to continue its focus on meeting needs in the areas of rental housing, 
owner-occupied housing, homeownership opportunities, homelessness assistance, and investing in 
target communities. The Consortium will continue to focus federal and local resources to meet these 
needs and work with partners to devise and support creative solutions—and additional federal 
resources associated with the Section 108 Loan will be instrumental in meeting new and increasing 
needs. 

Since the last Consolidated Plan, covering years 2020 to 2024, Boulder County has begun 
implementation of the Regional Fair Housing Plan. Partner jurisdictions have already seen progress. 
Longmont developed 73 new permanently affordable units, and the town of Superior in Boulder County 
passed a new Inclusionary Housing Ordinance. Additionally, Boulder Mod, a modular factory producing 
permanently affordable homeownership opportunities in a 31,375 square foot metal building opened in 
2024 in partnership with the City of Boulder, Flatirons Habitat for Humanity, and Boulder Valley School 
District. It is expected to produce 12 to 15 homes per year. The factory also provides workforce training 
for BVSD students. The City and County of Broomfield updated their Housing Needs Assessment and 
continues to provide TBRA, home rehab, and home maintenance for older adults in the community. 
These projects contain several elements intended to address underserved needs by removing obstacles 
and leveraging opportunities in the built environment. 

Actions planned to foster and maintain affordable housing 

The Consortium will continue to leverage federal resources with local funds by enforcing local affordable 
housing ordinances. In addition, it will explore other tools and opportunities to preserve and create 
affordable housing options as discussed in the above section. Consortium members will continue to 
nurture relationships with for-profit developers able to help meet the affordable housing needs of low- 
and moderate-income households.  

Actions planned to reduce lead-based paint hazards 

The Consortium will continue to support efforts that reduce the hazards of lead-based paint utilizing 
HUD funds in conjunction with other available resources. Activities will include testing and evaluation, 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     182 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

community education, and abatement of hazards.  

Actions planned to reduce the number of poverty-level families 

The Consortium members will continue to focus their efforts and resources to reduce the number of 
families with income at or below the poverty-level through the preservation and creation of safe and 
affordable housing. The foundational importance of meeting the housing needs of these families will 
support their moves toward self-sufficiency. Coordination with available local funding and organizations 
has been successful in the region and will be continued and expanded. Boulder County’s Housing 
Stabilization Program, Longmont’s Health and Human Services Review Board, and Broomfield’s Housing 
Solutions Forum are all current examples of inter-organizational and inter-jurisdictional collaboration 
between funding sources and agencies. Expanded coordination with the economic vitality programs will 
provide opportunities for these families to gain training and skill-building, resources and supports that 
can lead them to achieving self-sufficiency. 

Actions planned to develop institutional structure  

The City of Boulder Department of Housing & Human Services, Longmont Community Services 
Department, and Broomfield Economic Vitality and Development Department will continue to 
administer their respective CDBG programs. Activity selection and funding decisions will continue to be 
made in close coordination with local funding programs. These decisions will continue to be influenced 
by the expertise of advisory boards and committees, appointed by city and county management. The 
Consortium will also continue its regular coordination meetings with housing and service providers.  

Actions planned to enhance coordination between public and private housing and social 
service agencies 

Already working closely and effectively with the local housing authorities and nonprofit housing 
providers, the Consortium will continue its close coordination while nurturing relationships with for-
profit developers able to help meet the affordable housing needs of residents. The Consortium will 
continue to focus HUD Block Grant dollars on affordable housing opportunities and capital improvement 
needs of service providers, as well as continue to partner with community-based agencies to devise and 
support creative solutions to meet their capital improvements needs. 

Discussion 

Please see above. 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     183 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Program Specific Requirements 
AP-90 Program Specific Requirements - 91.420, 91.220(l)(1,2,4) 

Introduction 

Community Development Block Grant Program (CDBG)  
Reference 24 CFR 91.220(l)(1)  

Projects planned with all CDBG funds expected to be available during the year are identified in the 
Projects Table. The following identifies program income that is available for use that is included in 
projects to be carried out.  
 

 
1. The total amount of program income that will have been received before  
the start of the next program year and that has not yet been reprogrammed 

 

2. The amount of proceeds from section 108 loan guarantees that will be  
used during the year to address the priority needs and specific objectives  
identified in the grantee's strategic plan 

 

3. The amount of surplus funds from urban renewal settlements  
4. The amount of any grant funds returned to the line of credit for which the  
planned use has not been included in a prior statement or plan. 

 

5. The amount of income from float-funded activities  
Total Program Income  

 
Other CDBG Requirements  

 
1. The amount of urgent need activities  

 
 
 
 

HOME Investment Partnership Program (HOME)  
Reference 24 CFR 91.220(l)(2)  

1. A description of other forms of investment being used beyond those identified in Section 92.205 is 
as follows:  
 

The Consortium leverages its HOME funds with other forms of investment including Low Income 
Housing Tax Credits, private interest-bearing debt for rental housing development, grants of State of 
Colorado HOME funds, Federal Home Loan Bank Board grant funds, other private grant funds, and 
fundraising proceeds. Homeowners assisted by the HOME program use private interest-bearing debt to 
purchase homes. 
 
2. A description of the guidelines that will be used for resale or recapture of HOME funds when used 

for homebuyer activities as required in 92.254, is as follows: 

The Consortium members who fund homeownership programs through HOME or CDBG use the resale 
provision when HOME funds are used for homebuyer activities as required in 92.254. When the first 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     184 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

owner sells the home, it will be sold following the guidelines of the PJs Permanently Affordable 
Homeownership program. The new owner will be vetted by the PJ to confirm they meet the income and 
other requirements to qualify for the home. This process will be followed in perpetuity for each sale. 

The City applies resale provisions in all homeownership programs where HOME funds are used. Resale 
of a property is required if the property is in the HOME period of affordability only to a buyer whose 
household qualifies as a low-income household and will use the home as the family's principal 
residence. Home buyers receiving HOME funds for down payment assistance will be subject to the 
requirements at 24 C.F.R. Part 92.254(a)(4) which include resale provisions for a period of years 
consistent with the program regulations. The resale provisions will provide owners with fair returns on 
their investments, including any improvements. Loans will be secured by a signed mortgage, promissory 
note, and lien filed against the property. The City of Boulder will place an index-based resale restriction 
on each unit assisted. In addition to the HOME affordability requirements, in accordance with the City of 
Boulder’s funding policies, a covenant will be placed on the unit that will maintain its affordability in 
perpetuity. 

The resale calculation formula is noted in each covenant. It starts with the original purchase price, 
reduced by excessive damage, increased by appreciation and increased by approved capital 
improvement credits, to arrive at the Maximum Sales Price. 

The appreciation for most cases ranges from 1 to 3.5% per year. It is based on two indices: the change in 
the Consumer Price Index-Urban (CPI-U) or the change in the Area Median Income (AMI) whichever is 
less, with a guaranteed 1% increase and a max of 3.5% increase per year. Some older covenants had a 
negative appreciation or could go up to 4.5%. 

Our resale formula is in place in order to keep the homes permanently affordable. Each household 
agrees to these price restrictions upon purchase of their home. 

The original purchase prices of each home are targeted at specific AMI levels. Fair Return on Investment 
is calculated annually and can be between 1 and 3.5 percent. 

The City of Boulder reserves the right to allow lease-purchase options in conjunction with our 
homebuyer program on an as-needed basis for Habitat for Humanity clients. In such cases, ownership 
will be conveyed to an eligible homebuyer within 36 months of signing the lease-purchase agreement, 
or within 42 months of project completion. The affordability period of the unit will commence when the 
ownership of the unit is conveyed to the homebuyer. 

At the end of the 36-month period, if the household occupying the lease-purchase unit is not eligible or 
able to purchase the unit, the PJ has an additional six months to identify a different eligible homebuyer 
to purchase the unit. In all cases, if a homebuyer does not purchase the unit by the end of the 42-month 
period, it must be converted to a HOME rental unit. In all cases, lease-purchase participants will receive 
housing counseling, in accordance with the HOME requirement that homebuyers receiving HOME 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     185 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

assistance or living in HOME-assisted units must receive housing counseling. 
 
3. A description of the guidelines for resale or recapture that ensures the affordability of units acquired 

with HOME funds? See 24 CFR 92.254(a)(4) are as follows: 

Although no 2025 HOME funds will be used to acquire owner-occupied units, it is the Consortium’s 
policy to use the resale provision that ensures the affordability of units acquired with HOME funds as 
required in 24 CFR 92.254(a)(4). 

As stated above, the City of Boulder applies resale provisions when HOME funds are used including 
application of the prescribed affordability period and requirements stating that the buyer must qualify 
as a low-income household and will use the home as the family's principal residence. HOME funds are 
secured by an executed and recorded promissory note and lien filed against the property. In addition to 
the HOME affordability requirements, in accordance with the City of Boulder’s funding policies, a 
covenant will be placed on the unit that will maintain its affordability in perpetuity. The amount subject 
to recapture is the direct subsidy received by the homebuyer. 

4. Plans for using HOME funds to refinance existing debt secured by multifamily housing that is 
rehabilitated with HOME funds along with a description of the refinancing guidelines required that 
will be used under 24 CFR 92.206(b), are as follows: 

No 2025 HOME funds will be used to refinance existing debt secured by multifamily housing. 

Per the HOME rules, existing debt on a multifamily property may be refinanced when HOME funds will 
be used for rehabilitation to permit or continue affordability. To be considered for HOME funds, the 
application for rehabilitation and refinance must, at a minimum: Demonstrate that rehabilitation is the 
primary eligible activity and ensure that this requirement is met by establishing a minimum level of 
rehabilitation per unit or a required ratio between rehabilitation and refinancing; require a review of 
management practices to demonstrate that disinvestment in the property has not occurred, that the 
long term needs of the project can be met and that the feasibility of serving the targeted population 
over an extended affordability period can be demonstrated; state whether the new investment is being 
made to maintain current affordable units, create additional affordable units, or both; specify the 
required period of affordability, whether it is the minimum 15 years or longer; specify whether the 
investment of HOME funds may be jurisdiction-wide or limited to a specific geographic area, such as a 
neighborhood identified in a neighborhood revitalization strategy under 24 CFR 91.215(e)(2) or a 
federally designated Empowerment Zone or Enterprise Community; and state that HOME funds cannot 
be used to refinance multifamily loans made or insured by any federal program, including CDBG. 

The PJ does not intend to use HOME funds at this time to provide homebuyer assistance or for 
rehabilitation of owner-occupied housing. 

 
5. If applicable to a planned HOME TBRA activity, a description of the preference for persons with 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     186 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

special needs or disabilities. (See 24 CFR 92.209(c)(2)(i) and CFR 91.220(l)(2)(vii)). 
 
The Consortium does not currently have an established preference for HOME TBRA and does not plan to 
create one during the period covered by this Consolidated Plan 

 
6. If applicable to a planned HOME TBRA activity, a description of how the preference for a specific 

category of individuals with disabilities (e.g. persons with HIV/AIDS or chronic mental illness) will 
narrow the gap in benefits and the preference is needed to narrow the gap in benefits and services 
received by such persons. (See 24 CFR 92.209(c)(2)(ii) and 91.220(l)(2)(vii)). 

 
N/A 

 
7. If applicable, a description of any preference or limitation for rental housing projects. (See 24 CFR 

92.253(d)(3) and CFR 91.220(l)(2)(vii)). Note: Preferences cannot be administered in a manner that 
limits the opportunities of persons on any basis prohibited by the laws listed under 24 CFR 5.105(a). 

 
N/A 
 
Eligible applicants for HOME Investment Partnership Program funding include those certified as 
Community Housing Development Organizations (CHDOs), Housing Authorities, non-profit affordable 
housing developers, for-profit affordable housing developers. Generally funding applications are 
reviewed by the Consortium members on an ad-hoc basis and are evaluated against funding policies and 
procedures. Additionally, competitive fund rounds may be conducted to address specific goals. Detailed 
application package information can be found on the jurisdiction’s website during an open funding 
process. 

 
 

 

 

  



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     187 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Appendix - Alternate/Local Data Sources  

 

1 Data Source Name 

FMR and HOME Rents 

List the name of the organization or individual who originated the data set. 

Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) 

Provide a brief summary of the data set. 

2025 FMR and HOME rents for Boulder County 

What was the purpose for developing this data set? 

To provide the government and the public information on housing affordability. 

Provide the year (and optionally month, or month and day) for when the data was collected. 

2025 

Briefly describe the methodology for the data collection. 

U.S. Census survey 

Describe the total population from which the sample was taken. 

U.S. Census Bureau defined areas. 

Describe the demographics of the respondents or characteristics of the unit of measure, and the 
number of respondents or units surveyed. 

All U.S. Census Bureau survey respondents. 
2 Data Source Name 

PHA Data 

List the name of the organization or individual who originated the data set. 

Boulder County Housing Authority, Longmont Housing Authority, Boulder Housing Partners, and 
Broomfield Housing Alliance. 

Provide a brief summary of the data set. 

 Describes demographics of voucher users and those on the waitlist 

What was the purpose for developing this data set? 

 To inform NA-35, MA-25 and to better understand affordable inventory 

How comprehensive is the coverage of this administrative data? Is data collection concentrated 
in one geographic area or among a certain population? 

 Comprehensive of Consortium Area 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     188 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

What time period (provide the year, and optionally month, or month and day) is covered by this 
data set? 

 2025 

What is the status of the data set (complete, in progress, or planned)? 

 Complete 
3 Data Source Name 

2010 Census 

List the name of the organization or individual who originated the data set. 

U.S. Census Bureau 

Provide a brief summary of the data set. 

Federal funds, grants and support to states, counties and communities are based on population 
totals and breakdowns by sex, age, race and other factors.  

What was the purpose for developing this data set? 

Businesses use census data to decide where to build factories, offices and stores, and this creates 
jobs. Developers use the census to build new homes and revitalize old neighborhoods. Local 
governments use the census for public safety and emergency preparedness. Residents use the 
census to support community initiatives involving legislation, quality-of-life and consumer 
advocacy. 

Provide the year (and optionally month, or month and day) for when the data was collected. 

2010 

Briefly describe the methodology for the data collection. 

Paper census form, online form, telephone interview, administrative records, and in-person 
interviews. 

Describe the total population from which the sample was taken. 

United States population. 

Describe the demographics of the respondents or characteristics of the unit of measure, and the 
number of respondents or units surveyed. 

Data is presented at household and individual levels. 
4 Data Source Name 

PIC (PIH Information Center) 

List the name of the organization or individual who originated the data set. 

Office of Public and Indian Housing (PIH)  



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     189 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Provide a brief summary of the data set. 

Why do we have IMS/PIC? 

The Office of Public and Indian Housing (PIH) developed a state of the art system to improve the 
submission of information to the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). The 
IMS/PIC facilitates more timely and accurate exchanges of data between Housing Authorities 
(HAs) and Local HUD Offices. 

What is IMS/PIC? 

Due to the success of this application, the IMS/PIC technical architecture will continue to be used 
as the foundation for future PIH systems. 

What was the purpose for developing this data set? 

Please see above. 

Provide the year (and optionally month, or month and day) for when the data was collected. 

2018 

Briefly describe the methodology for the data collection. 

Please see above. 

Describe the total population from which the sample was taken. 

Please see above. 

Describe the demographics of the respondents or characteristics of the unit of measure, and the 
number of respondents or units surveyed. 

Please see above. 
5 Data Source Name 

2023 American Community Survey 
 List the name of the organization or individual who originated the data set. 

U.S. Census Bureau 
 Provide a brief summary of the data set. 

The United States Census Bureau facilitates an annual survey, the American Community Survey 
(ACS), that collects detailed demographic information pertaining to social, economic, and housing 
characteristics of the U.S. population. 

 What was the purpose for developing this data set? 

The ACS is an ongoing survey that provides vital information on a yearly basis about the nation 
and its people. Information from the survey generates data that help inform how trillions of 
dollars in federal funds are distributed each year. 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     190 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

 Provide the year (and optionally month, or month and day) for when the data was collected. 

2023 
 Briefly describe the methodology for the data collection. 

The Census Bureau mails letters to inform people living at an address that they have been 
selected to participate in the ACS and to provide instructions for completing the survey online. 
Households are asked to complete the survey online or to mail the completed paper 
questionnaire back to the Census Bureau’s National Processing Center. If the Census Bureau does 
not receive a completed survey within a few weeks, it will mail an additional paper survey 
questionnaire. Following all mail contacts, a sample is taken from the addresses that have not 
responded online, by mail, or for those addresses with post office box mail delivery. These 
addresses are visited by Census Bureau field representatives, who will conduct the interview in 
person. A sample of people living in group quarters facilities, such as college dormitories, nursing 
homes, and prisons, are also interviewed in person to ensure coverage of everyone in the country. 

 Describe the total population from which the sample was taken. 

The Census Bureau selects a random sample of addresses to be included in the ACS. Each address 
has about a 1-in-480 chance of being selected in a month, and no address should be selected 
more than once every 5 years. The Census Bureau mails questionnaires to approximately 295,000 
addresses a month across the United States. 

 Describe the demographics of the respondents or characteristics of the unit of measure, and the 
number of respondents or units surveyed. 

The sample is designed to ensure good geographic coverage and does not target individuals. By 
focusing on quality geographic coverage, the ACS can produce a good picture of the community’s 
people and housing by surveying a representative sample of the population. 

6 Data Source Name 

Longitudinal Employer-Household Dynamics 2022 
 List the name of the organization or individual who originated the data set. 

U.S. Census Bureau 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     191 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

 Provide a brief summary of the data set. 

LEHD makes available several data products that may be used to research and characterize 
workforce dynamics for specific groups. These data products include online applications, public-
use data, and restricted-use microdata. The Quarterly Workforce Indicators (QWI), LEHD Origin-
Destination Employment Statistics (LODES), Job-to-Job Flows (J2J), and Post-Secondary 
Employment Outcomes (PSEO) are available online for public use. Confidential microdata are 
available to qualified researchers with approved projects through restricted access use in Federal 
Statistical Research Data Centers (FSRDCs). 
 
Note: The data released by LEHD are based on tabulated and modeled administrative data, which 
are subject to error. Because the estimates are not derived from a probability-based sample, no 
sampling error measures are applicable. However, the data are subject to nonsampling errors, 
which can be attributed to many sources: misreported data, late reporters whose records are 
missing and imputed, and geographic/industry edits and imputations. The accuracy of the data is 
impacted by the joint effects of these nonsampling errors. While no direct measurement of these 
joint effects has been obtained, precautionary steps are taken in all phases of collection and 
processing to minimize the impact of nonsampling errors. 

 What was the purpose for developing this data set? 

Please see above. 
 Provide the year (and optionally month, or month and day) for when the data was collected. 

2022 
 Briefly describe the methodology for the data collection. 

Please see above. 
 Describe the total population from which the sample was taken. 

Please see above. 
 Describe the demographics of the respondents or characteristics of the unit of measure, and the 

number of respondents or units surveyed. 

Please see above. 
7 Point in Time (PIT) Count 

 List the name of the organization or individual who originated the data set. 

Metro Denver Housing Initiative 
 Provide a brief summary of the data set. 

The Point-in-Time (PIT) Count is an annual count of sheltered and unsheltered people 
experiencing homelessness on a single night in January. 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     192 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

 What was the purpose for developing this data set? 

The Point-in-Time (PIT) Count is meant to serve as a snapshot of homelessness in a community. 
These data help to establish the dimensions of the problem of homelessness and help 
policymakers and program administrators track progress toward the goal of ending homelessness. 

 Provide the year (and optionally month, or month and day) for when the data was collected. 

2024 
 Briefly describe the methodology for the data collection. 

The methodology that CoCs select to conduct their sheltered and unsheltered count is influenced 
by the CoCs’ geographic and demographic characteristics, as well as their resources and capacity. 
HUD allows CoCs to use multiple approaches to complete their count, including a census 
approach, sample, or a combination of census and sampling approaches. 

 Describe the total population from which the sample was taken. 

HUD requires CoCs to collect reliable data on the total number and characteristics of all people 
(i.e., sheltered and unsheltered) residing in the CoCs’ geographic area who are homeless on a 
single night and report these data to HUD. CoCs often do not have complete data on everyone 
who is homeless and so must estimate some data. 

 Describe the demographics of the respondents or characteristics of the unit of measure, and the 
number of respondents or units surveyed. 

Please see above. 
8 Homeless Management Information System (HMIS) 

 List the name of the organization or individual who originated the data set. 

Metro Denver Housing Initiative 
 Provide a brief summary of the data set. 

Tracks client and program outcomes as people interact with homeless services. 
 What was the purpose for developing this data set? 

Measuring system performance and providing real-time data that captures people utilizing 
homeless services 

 Provide the year (and optionally month, or month and day) for when the data was collected. 

2024  
 Briefly describe the methodology for the data collection. 

CoC and care provider data entry. 
 Describe the total population from which the sample was taken. 

Residents seeking homelessness services. 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     193 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

 Describe the demographics of the respondents or characteristics of the unit of measure, and the 
number of respondents or units surveyed. 

Residents seeking homelessness services. 

 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     1 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Executive Summary  

ES-05 Executive Summary – 24 CFR 91.200(c), 91.220(b) 
1. Introduction 

The Boulder Broomfield Regional HOME Consortium (Consortium), comprised of the Cities of Boulder 
and Longmont, Boulder County, and the City and County of Broomfield, is excited to present its Five-
Year Consolidated Plan (Plan) covering years 2025-2029. HOME, also known as the HOME Investment 
Partnerships Program, is a federal housing grant administered by the U.S. Department of Housing and 
Urban Development (HUD) used to assist communities in addressing housing needs -through such 
activities as new construction, rehabilitation and rental subsidies- for residents who have low and 
moderate income. 

In addition to satisfying the planning and reporting requirements for the Consortium, components of 
this Plan detail how the City of Boulder, City of Longmont and City and County of Broomfield, as direct 
recipients of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funding from the federal government, will 
use it to address housing and community development needs, as presented in the CDBG supplement to 
this Plan. While Boulder County does not receive a direct allocation of CDBG funding for the balance of 
county jurisdiction, it does utilize this funding through a competitive process administered by the State 
of Colorado Department of Local Affairs (State). 

2. Summary of the objectives and outcomes identified in the Plan Needs Assessment 
Overview 

The primary objective of this Plan is to maintain and work toward increasing housing opportunities and 
addressing community development needs in the Consortium area. The outcomes of each Consortium 
member jurisdiction vary slightly depending on market area needs. Specifically: 

The City of Boulder's outcomes focus mostly on creating affordable housing through Boulder Mod, a 
modular housing factory capable of making around 50 new homes per year, public service for 
educational support serving students at five elementary schools within the Boulder Valley School District 
(BVSD), and housing rehabilitation and assistance for low-income owners. Additionally, the city will 
continue to support families in the Family Resource Schools program at five elementary schools. The city 
expects to use these CDBG allocations to around 200 households in the 2025 Action Plan 
year.  Additionally, 11 affordable homeownership units added or preserved, 5 homes rehabilitated for 
low-income homeowners, 5 rental units rehabilitated, and 15 households receiving Tenant-Based Rental 
Assistance. 

The City of Longmont proposes to allocate CDBG funds to support its Housing Rehabilitation Program 
administered by Brothers Redevelopment, public services, and economic development activities. 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     2 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Through these allocations, the city anticipates serving a total of 25 households through the 
rehabilitation program in the 2025 Action Plan year. 

The City and County of Broomfield proposes to allocate their funds towards housing stabilization 
programs, housing rehabilitation, support for small businesses and other economic development 
initiatives, and community development opportunities. Broomfield anticipates serving 4 owner 
households with rehabilitation needs and supporting one small business through a economic 
development small business loan in the 2025 Action Plan year. 

HOME Allocations 

Broomfield proposes to use its HOME Funds to continue the Tenant Based Rental Assistance Program 
(TBRA) administered through the Health and Human Services Department, serving an estimated 10 
families annually.  

Longmont proposes to continue to use its HOME funds for affordable housing unit generation. This 
includes city acquisition of naturally occurring affordable housing and deed-restrictions and partnerships 
with affordable housing developers.  

The HOME Consortium is currently funding the construction of Longmont’s Inn Between Wesley Homes 
for the creation of rental housing for people existing homelessness. St. Vrain Habitat for Humanity 
Rogers Road, also funded through HOME, will create nine affordable homes. Funding was used in the 
recently completed Grove at Cottonwood in Broomfield. 

3. Evaluation of past performance 

The primary objective of the Consortium is to maintain, and ultimately increase the availability, amount, 
and quality of housing, community development and human services opportunities, to serve a diversity 
of residents’ needs. Although each community may approach this differently depending on needs and 
existing housing and services, the annual evaluation of performance focuses on the Consortium’s and 
each individual member jurisdiction’s ability to invest resources toward these shared goals. Jurisdictions 
receiving a direct allocation of CDBG funding evaluate investments leveraged to achieve local housing 
and community development objectives. 

In the past five years, the City of Boulder’s housing investments have primarily focused on preserving 
and creating affordable rental housing. This has included construction of new rental units; rehabilitation 
of existing rental units; development of supportive, transitional housing units; and preservation of public 
housing units. The city has also funded owner-occupied housing rehabilitation and homeownership 
opportunities, and assisted people experiencing homelessness and other special needs populations with 
supportive services, including the allocation of funds to the Family Resource Schools program. 
Significantly, Boulder Mod, a modular home factory, was completed and opened in 2024 and is 
earmarked to build 61 new homes for residents in Ponderosa Mobile Home Park in Boulder that needed 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     3 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

rehabilitation and energy efficiency upgrades. Boulder utilized a Section 108 loan to complete this 
project. Boulder’s CDBG funds will be used to repay the Section 108 loan over the course of this 5-year 
Consolidated Plan. 

The City of Longmont’s CDBG funds have traditionally been used to make long lasting improvements for 
many low to moderate income individuals and families. Over the past five years, the City of Longmont 
has used CDBG to complete housing rehabilitation, emergency repairs, and mobile home repairs, 
remove impediments for households with a disabled and/or older adult family member, provide housing 
counseling and consumer debt counseling. Longmont has also used funding for the rehabilitation of 
Longmont Housing Authority’s Suites Permanent Supportive Housing.  

In Broomfield, CDBG funded programs included single-family home rehabilitation, mobile home repair, 
urgent home repair, public service support to our local and only food bank, and support for affordable 
housing development. Through both CDBG and CDBG-CV funding, the Housing division provided 
homeowners with bathtub replacement, fixing plumbing issues throughout the home, fireproof garage 
doors, water heaters, furnaces, porch and sidewalk replacement, minor electrical and plumbing repair 
and energy efficiency improvements. The City and County of Broomfield continues to collaborate with 
the independent housing authority, Broomfield Housing Alliance (BHA), to offer various types of housing 
to low-income residents (particularly those under 60% AMI). BHA has made progress on the 
Cottonwood project, which will offer roughly 40 rental units to low- and moderate-income households. 
Broomfield also provides assistance to Broomfield FISH, a family resource center and food bank that 
provides case management and emergency rental assistance to eligible families. 

Boulder County has addressed gaps identified in the Needs Assessment over the past five years through 
housing development, using federal and state Low-Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) dollars and gap 
funding from HOME and CDBG, as awarded by the State, and preservation projects through BCHA 
general funds. BCHA’s newest LIHTC development in Lafayette, Willoughby Corner, opened in 2024 and 
contains 192 apartments for residents with income between 30% and 60% AMI so far. The next phase of 
the project will deliver additional affordable rental and homeownership options. BCHA has also 
completed substantial rehabilitation of properties, including boiler and cooling tower replacements, and 
siding, decking, window, and railing upgrades. 

4. Summary of citizen participation process and consultation process 

Community engagement for this Plan was designed to be inclusive and representative of a diverse set of 
target groups that have disproportionate housing needs. 

Key components of the outreach included: 

1)      A resident survey designed to collect information on residents’ housing, community development 
and human services dispositions and needs, including the experience of discrimination and 
displacement. The survey was marketed through social services agencies and family resource centers, 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     4 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

housing agencies, and Consortium members and community partners email lists and social media. The 
survey garnered 573 responses in both English and Spanish; 

2)      Resident focus groups gathered input from older adults and people within transitional and 
permanent supportive housing; 

3)      Focus groups with stakeholders who work with residents who have low income and those who 
work in the affordable housing development and economic development space to discuss policy and 
program interventions for addressing needs; 

4)      Community meetings in the City of Boulder, City and County of Broomfield, City of Lafayette, and 
City of Longmont in partnership with the Housing and Human Services Advisory Board; and 

5)      *Placeholder* A 30-day comment period during and two public hearings, which were held in 
Longmont and Broomfield. 

Detailed community engagement summaries can be found in the Grantee Unique Appendix. 

5. Summary of public comments 

Update following public comment period. 

6. Summary of comments or views not accepted and the reasons for not accepting 
them 

Update following public comment period. 

7. Summary 

Please see above. 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     5 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

The Process 

PR-05 Lead & Responsible Agencies - 91.200(b) 
1. Describe agency/entity responsible for preparing the Consolidated Plan and those 
responsible for administration of each grant program and funding source 

The following are the agencies/entities responsible for preparing the Consolidated Plan and those 
responsible for administration of each grant program and funding source. 

Agency Role Name Department/Agency 
CDBG Administrator BOULDER Department of Housing & 

Human Services 
HOME Administrator BOULDER Department of Housing & 

Human Services 
Table 1 – Responsible Agencies 

 
Narrative 

The City of Boulder is the lead entity for preparing the Consortium Consolidated Plan in conjunction with 
its members. Each jurisdiction that receives a direct allocation of CDBG funding, as explained in the 
introduction, including the City of Boulder, City of Longmont and City and County Broomfield, 
contributed to this section of this plan. 

For administration of grants, each of the jurisdictions listed above administers its own CDBG allocation 
and many of its related activities. As the lead agency of the Consortium, the City of Boulder assumes the 
responsibility of administering the HOME funds with each jurisdiction overseeing administration and 
monitoring of the specific HOME projects for which it has been awarded funding. 

The City of Boulder’s CDBG program is administered through its Department of Housing & Human 
Services staff who oversee the funding application process as well as the administration and monitoring 
of funds. Staff work with the two volunteer City Manager-appointed committees to review applications. 
The Affordable Housing Technical Review Group (TRG) reviews housing applications, while the 
Community Development Advisory Committee (CDAC) reviews community development proposals and 
makes funding recommendations to the City Manager for approval. 

Local Agencies Involved 

The City of Longmont Housing and Community Investment (HCI) Division has the leadership 
responsibility for its CDBG program. HCI staff coordinate efforts of the entities involved in implementing 
projects and programs funded, as well as provide technical assistance to community organizations, and 
encourage the involvement of the business community. The Technical Review Group and Housing and 
Human Services Advisory Board review all CDBG, HOME and local funding proposals and offer funding 
recommendations to City Council. 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     6 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

The Broomfield CDBG program is administered through its Community Development Department. 
Broomfield’s CDBG programs are managed directly by the city staff who manage bids and oversight for 
the home repair improvements and other program activities which are determined annually as part of 
the Annual Action Plan approved by the Broomfield City Council. 

Consolidated Plan Public Contact Information 

Corina Marin, Grants Administrator 
 City of Boulder, Department of Housing & Human Services  
 P.O. Box 791, Boulder Colorado 80306 
 (303) 441-4134 (direct), MarinC@bouldercolorado.gov 

 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     7 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

PR-10 Consultation - 91.100, 91.110, 91.200(b), 91.300(b), 91.215(l) and 
91.315(I) 

1. Introduction 

For the Consortium Consolidated Plan and jurisdictional CDBG Plans, the team encouraged input from 
the community through a resident survey, four open community meetings, three stakeholder focus 
groups, and two resident focus groups.  

Provide a concise summary of the jurisdiction’s activities to enhance coordination between 
public and assisted housing providers and private and governmental health, mental health 
and service agencies (91.215(I)). 

The Consortium members actively coordinate with the public, area housing providers, and partner 
agencies providing family resources, physical and behavioral health services, and others, in a variety of 
ways, including through: 

1) Annual distribution of funding. Consortium members work closely with housing and service providers 
to prepare applications, develop eligible activities and projects that meet the needs of the community, 
provide technical assistance and project management to ensure successful programming; 

2) Affiliations with local and regional boards, committees and coordination efforts; 

3) Strong working relationships with local housing and service providers, including meeting regularly to 
discuss housing and human service needs and to develop strategies to address these needs; 

4) Continuous coordination among local jurisdictions and housing and service providers. 

Service providers interviewed during stakeholder focus groups emphasized that organizations in 
Consortium area practice a “no wrong door” collaborative approach. If they are unable to serve a client, 
they will refer them to another organization in the area that may have more capacity, resources, or 
expertise.   

Describe coordination with the Continuum of Care and efforts to address the needs of 
homeless persons (particularly chronically homeless individuals and families, families with 
children, veterans, and unaccompanied youth) and persons at risk of homelessness 

The Consortium supports and is affiliated with the Metro Denver Homelessness Initiative (MDHI), the 
Continuum of Care (CoC) for the seven-county Denver metropolitan area, to coordinate the delivery of 
housing and services to homeless families, individuals, youth and people with disabilities. MDHI is the 
lead agency in establishing the Continuum of Care model for the metropolitan Denver community. 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     8 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

In 2017, the Cities of Boulder and Longmont, and Boulder County formed the Homeless Solutions for 
Boulder County (HSBC), which coordinates homelessness response systems and housing interventions 
for individual adults. Since 2020, over 1,660 individuals have exited homelessness (as of February 2025). 

HSBC is aligned with the CoC and has leveraged other housing options, such as local and state funded 
Permanent Supportive Housing vouchers. This coordinated exit program is primarily achieved through a 
case conferencing system that matches the people with the highest prioritization on the CoC’s Boulder 
county specific listing to permanent supportive housing vouchers. These vouchers and program based 
developments provide opportunities of stability for people experiencing chronic homelessness. 

In Boulder County, the needs of families with children are met through a similar fashion under the 
Family Resource Network (FRN). Members of the FRN work with the CoC to tie HUD resources to 
families in need. Additionally, the FRN coordinates a number of local and state funded resources to 
meet the needs of these families, from non-congregate sheltering, to rapid rehousing, short term rental 
assistance, and in some cases, permanent supportive housing. 

The City and County of Broomfield relies primarily on the resources of Boulder County and the City and 
County of Denver, as well as services provided through the local Continuum of Care agencies, to help 
meet needs for their residents who are experiencing homelessness, as there are no shelters or 
transitional housing options in Broomfield. Broomfield also provides federal Community Service Block 
Grant (CSBG) funds, received through the state of Colorado, for emergency assistance and homelessness 
prevention. 

Describe consultation with the Continuum(s) of Care that serves the jurisdiction's area in 
determining how to allocate ESG funds, develop performance standards and evaluate 
outcomes, and develop funding, policies and procedures for the administration of HMIS 

Boulder County Human Services divisions, along with several local human services agencies, along with 
several local human services agencies, receives federal Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) funds to work 
toward the prevention of homelessness and provide rapid rehousing. These funds are provided to local 
shelters to support operations and essential services. MDHI develops standards and policies for ESG 
funding and the county, cities, and nonprofit and agency partners have input into those standards and 
policies. 

Under the direction of MDHI Continuum of Care (CoC), local homelessness service providers, including 
the Boulder County Department of Housing & Human Services, Boulder Shelter for the Homeless (also 
known as All Roads), Clinica Family Health (formerly Mental Health Partners of Boulder and Broomfield 
Counties), and TGTHR (formerly Attention Homes), providing transitional housing and supportive 
services for youth experiencing homelessness, utilize Homeless Management Informational System 
(HMIS), a computerized data collection tool designed to capture client-level information over a period of 
time. The implementation of HMIS at the local level aligns with the policies and procedures set by MDHI 
around client confidentiality, data collection, computer entry, and reporting. Additionally, Boulder 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     9 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

County and its HSBC partners utilize Connect, the County’s client portal which supports data collection 
and reporting, particularly for coordinated entry, shelter attendance, and evaluation of system 
effectiveness. HSBC members participate with MDHI for continuous discussion regarding the use and 
administration of HMIS specifically addressing issues of duplication and ease of use. Additionally, HSBC 
work groups meet regularly to enhance data collection and quality. 

In Broomfield, local funding sources supplement ESG, such as CSBG funds that are used to provide 
emergency one-time rental, utility and/or mortgage assistance to prevent homelessness. 

2. Describe Agencies, groups, organizations and others who participated in the process 
and describe the jurisdictions consultations with housing, social service agencies and other 
entities 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     10 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Agency/Group/Orga
nization 

Agency/Group/Orga
nization Type 

What section of the 
Plan was addressed 
by Consultation? 

How was the 
Agency/Group/Organization 
consulted and what are the 
anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Boulder County 
Housing Authority 
(BCHA) 

PHA; services for 
people with 
disabilities 

Public Housing 
Needs; Housing 
Needs Assessment; 
Non-Homeless 
special needs; Anti-
poverty strategy 

Boulder County Housing Authority 
participated in a focus group with 
other stakeholders to inform 
strategy and gaps within the 
provision of housing and services. 

Homeless Solutions 
for Boulder County 
Systems (HSBC) 

Services – 
homelessness 

Housing needs 
assessment; 
homeless needs – 
chronically 
homeless/ families 
with children 

HSBC participated in a focus group 
with other stakeholders to inform 
strategy and gaps within the 
provision of housing and services. 

Emergency Family 
Assistance 
Association (EFFA) 

Services – homeless / 
housing 

Housing needs 
assessment; 
homeless needs –
families with 
children; Anti-
poverty strategy 

EFFA participated in a focus group 
with other stakeholders to inform 
strategy and gaps within the 
provision of housing and services. 

Safehouse 
Progressive Alliance 
for Nonviolence 
(SPAN) 

Services – victims; 
services -children 

Homeless needs – 
families with 
children 

SPAN participated in a focus group 
with other stakeholders to inform 
strategy and gaps within the 
provision of housing and services. 

Sister Carmen 
Community Center 

Services – housing; 
Services - education 

Housing Needs 
Assessment; 
Homeless needs – 
families with 
children; anti-
poverty strategy 

Sister Carmen Community Center 
participated in a focus group with 
other stakeholders to inform 
strategy and gaps within the 
provision of housing and services. 

Colorado Legal 
Services 

Services – housing; 
services – fair housing 

Housing Needs 
Assessment; anti-
poverty strategy 

Colorado Legal Services participated 
in a focus group with other 
stakeholders to inform strategy and 
gaps within the provision of housing 
and services. 

OUR Center Services – housing; 
services – health 

Housing Needs 
Assessment; anti-
poverty strategy 

OUR Center participated in a focus 
group with other stakeholders to 
inform strategy and gaps within the 
provision of housing and services. 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     11 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

St. Vrain Habitat for 
Humanity 

Housing Housing Needs 
Assessment; Market 
Analysis 

St. Vrain Habitat for Humanity 
participated in a focus group with 
other stakeholders to inform 
strategy and gaps within the 
provision of housing and services. 

Broomfield 
Department of 
Human Services 

Other government - 
county  

Non-homeless 
special needs; 
Homelessness 
strategy 

Broomfield Department of Human 
Services participated in a focus 
group with other stakeholders to 
inform strategy and gaps within the 
provision of housing and services. 

Broomfield 
Department of Public 
Health 

Health agency Non-homeless 
special needs; 
Homelessness 
strategy; Lead-
based paint strategy 

Broomfield Department of Public 
Health participated in a focus group 
with other stakeholders to inform 
strategy and gaps within the 
provision of housing and services. 

Broomfield Housing 
Alliance (BHA) 

Housing 
PHA 

Housing; non-
homeless special 
needs 

BHA participated in a focus group 
with other stakeholders to inform 
strategy and gaps within the 
provision of housing and services. 

Holy Comforter 
Church 

Civic leaders Housing Need 
Assessment; 
homeless needs; 
Anti-poverty 
strategy 

Holy Comforter Church participated 
in a focus group with other 
stakeholders to inform strategy and 
gaps within the provision of housing 
and services. 

FRIENDS of 
Broomfield 

Services – persons 
with disabilities 

Non-homeless 
special needs 

FRIENDS of Broomfield participated 
in a focus group with other 
stakeholders to inform strategy and 
gaps within the provision of housing 
and services. 

Colorado Safe 
Parking 

Services - homeless Homeless needs – 
chronically 
homeless; homeless 
needs – veterans; 
homelessness 
strategy 

Colorado Safe Parking participated 
in a focus group with other 
stakeholders to inform strategy and 
gaps within the provision of housing 
and services. 

Almost Home Services - housing Housing Need 
Assessment; 
homeless needs; 
Anti-poverty 
strategy 

Almost Home participated in a focus 
group with other stakeholders to 
inform strategy and gaps within the 
provision of housing and services. 

United Methodist 
Church 

Civic leaders Housing Need 
Assessment; 
homeless needs; 
Anti-poverty 
strategy 

United Methodist Church 
participated in a focus group with 
other stakeholders to inform 
strategy and gaps within the 
provision of housing and services. 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     12 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Mental Health 
Partners/ Clinica 
Family Health 

Services – health; 
services – persons 
with disabilities 

Non-homeless 
special needs; anti-
poverty strategy 

Mental Health Partners participated 
in a focus group with other 
stakeholders to inform strategy and 
gaps within the provision of housing 
and services. 

Boulder County 
Personal Finance 
Program 

Services – education Anti-poverty 
strategy 

Boulder County Personal Finance 
Program participated in a focus 
group with other stakeholders to 
inform strategy and gaps within the 
provision of housing and services. 

Sunshine Home 
Share 

Services – housing; 
services – elderly 
persons; services – 
persons with 
disabilities 

Housing Need 
Assessment; Non-
homeless special 
needs; anti-poverty 
strategy 

Sunshine Home Share participated 
in a focus group with other 
stakeholders to inform strategy and 
gaps within the provision of housing 
and services. 

Upwards  Services – children; 
Services - education 

Economic 
development; anti-
poverty strategy 

Upwards participated in a focus 
group with other stakeholders to 
inform strategy and gaps within the 
provision of housing and services. 

HOPE Longmont Services – 
homelessness 

Homeless needs; 
homeless strategy; 
anti-poverty 
strategy 

HOPE Longmont participated in a 
focus group with other stakeholders 
to inform strategy and gaps within 
the provision of housing and 
services. 

Longmont Senior 
Services 

Services – elderly  Non-homeless 
special needs 

Longmont Senior Services 
participated in a focus group with 
other stakeholders to inform 
strategy and gaps within the 
provision of housing and services. 

Element Properties Housing Housing Need 
Assessment; Market 
analysis; economic 
development 

Element Properties participated in a 
focus group with other stakeholders 
to inform strategy and gaps within 
the provision of housing and 
services. 

MGL Partners Housing Housing Need 
Assessment; Market 
analysis; economic 
development 

MGL Partners participated in a focus 
group with other stakeholders to 
inform strategy and gaps within the 
provision of housing and services. 

Longmont Economic 
Development 
Partnership 

Business and civic 
leaders  

Market analysis; 
economic 
development 

Longmont Economic Development 
Partnership participated in a focus 
group with other stakeholders to 
inform strategy and gaps within the 
provision of housing and services. 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     13 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Longmont 
Sustainability 
Program 

Other government – 
local 

Economic 
development; 
Market analysis 

Longmont Sustainability Program 
participated in a focus group with 
other stakeholders to inform 
strategy and gaps within the 
provision of housing and services. 

St. Vrain Valley 
School District  

Services – children; 
services – education 

Homeless needs – 
families with 
children 

St. Vrain Valley School District 
participated in a focus group with 
other stakeholders to inform 
strategy and gaps within the 
provision of housing and services. 

Center for People 
with Disabilities 

Services – persons 
with disabilities 

Non-homeless 
special needs 

Center for People with Disabilities 
participated in a focus group with 
other stakeholders to inform 
strategy and gaps within the 
provision of housing and services. 

Pennrose  Housing Housing Needs 
Assessment; Market 
Analysis; Economic 
development 

Pennrose participated in a focus 
group with other stakeholders to 
inform strategy and gaps within the 
provision of housing and services. 

Inn Between Services – homeless Housing Needs 
Assessment; 
Homelessness 
needs 

Inn Between participated in a focus 
group with other stakeholders to 
inform strategy and gaps within the 
provision of housing and services. 

Flatiron Habitat Housing Housing Needs 
Assessment; Market 
Analysis; Economic 
development; Anti-
poverty strategy 

Flatiron Habitat participated in a 
focus group with other stakeholders 
to inform strategy and gaps within 
the provision of housing and 
services. 

The Refuge Services – homeless Housing Needs 
Assessment; 
Homelessness 
needs 

The Refuge participated in a focus 
group with other stakeholders to 
inform strategy and gaps within the 
provision of housing and services. 

Broomfield FISH Services – housing Housing Need 
Assessment; 
Homeless Needs; 
Non-homeless 
special needs; anti-
poverty strategy 

Broomfield FISH participated in a 
focus group with other stakeholders 
to inform strategy and gaps within 
the provision of housing and 
services. 

Immigrant Legal 
Center of Boulder 
County 

Services – fair 
housing; other – 
immigrant services 

Housing Need 
Assessment; 
Homeless Needs; 
Non-homeless 
special needs; anti-
poverty strategy 

Immigrant Legal Center of Boulder 
County participated in a focus group 
with other stakeholders to inform 
strategy and gaps within the 
provision of housing and services. 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     14 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Boulder Emergency 
Management 

Emergency 
management 
organization, 
floodplain 
management 

 Boulder Emergency Management 
participated in a one-on-one 
interview to inform strategy and 
gaps for MA-45 Hazard Mitigation. 

NextLight Internet Broadband Access  NextLight Internet participated in a 
one-on-one interview to inform 
strategy and gaps for MA-60 
Broadband Needs 

All Roads Services - 
Homelessness 

 All Roads participated in a focus 
group with other stakeholders to 
inform strategy and gaps within the 
provision of housing and services, 
particularly for those experiencing 
homelessness 

Table 2 – Agencies, groups, organizations who participated 
 

Identify any Agency Types not consulted and provide rationale for not consulting 

 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     15 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Other local/regional/state/federal planning efforts considered when preparing the Plan 

Name of Plan Lead Organization How do the goals of your 
Strategic Plan overlap with the 

goals of each plan? 
Continuum of Care MDHI Prevent homelessness through 

emergency assistance and other 
homelessness prevention 
activities; create and preserve 
deeply affordable rental 
housing.  Results of Point-in-
Time results from survey 
conducted in the Denver Metro 
area each January. 

Capital Improvement Program 
(CIP) 

City of Longmont Projects from the CIP are 
included in the non-housing 
community development needs 
and goals of this Strategic Plan. 

Capital Improvement Program 
(CIP) 

City of Broomfield Projects from the CIP are 
included in the non-housing 
community development needs 
and goals of this Strategic Plan. 

Capital Improvement Program 
(CIP) 

City of Boulder Projects from the CIP are 
included in the non-housing 
community development needs 
and goals of this Strategic Plan. 

Capital Improvement Program 
(CIP) 

Boulder County Projects from the CIP are 
included in the non-housing 
community development needs 
and goals of this Strategic Plan. 

Aging Well in Boulder 2024 Area Agency on Aging Con Plan considers aging trends 
and needs of the growing 
population of seniors 

2022-2027 Boulder Hazard 
Mitigation Plan 

Boulder Office of Emergency 
Management 

Assists with Hazard Mitigation 
section 

Boulder County Pathways to 
Housing Stability End of Grant 
Report 

Boulder County Community 
Services 

Highlights programs that 
improve outcomes for 
chronically homeless individuals 

2023 City and County of 
Broomfield Housing Needs 
Assessment Update 

Broomfield Housing Alliance 
and City and County of 
Broomfield 

Reviews ongoing efforts to 
achieve housing goals and 
strategic opportunities 

2023 City of Longmont Housing 
Needs Assessment  

City of Longmont Reviews ongoing efforts to 
achieve housing goals and 
strategic opportunities 

Table 3 – Other local / regional / federal planning efforts 
 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     16 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

 

Describe cooperation and coordination with other public entities, including the State and any 
adjacent units of general local government, in the implementation of the Consolidated Plan 
(91.215(l)) 

The Consortium has strengthened its coordination and cooperation throughout Boulder County with the 
creation of a Regional Housing Partnership centered on a Regional Strategic Housing Plan adopted in 
2016. The Regional Plan, adopted by all Boulder County jurisdictions, including Boulder County, City of 
Boulder and City of Longmont, has set forth a goal of increasing the number of affordable homes 
countywide to reach 12% of its housing stock be permanently affordable by 2035. The partnership 
launched a website called “Home Wanted” in 2020 for people to learn more about the region’s 
affordable housing needs. The regional effort has strengthened relationships between participating 
jurisdictions and most jurisdictions have taken active steps consistent with its strategies, including 
Longmont, with its development of the Spoke on Coffman with 73 new affordable units and the town of 
Superior with a new Inclusionary Housing Ordinance that requires all residential developments with 10 
or more units to set aside at least 15% of units for households earning below 80% AMI.  

In March 2020, Broomfield established an ordinance that requires affordable housing in new 
developments of 20 percent of rentals and 10 percent of for sale units and has since updated its housing 
market analysis and strategies, established the Housing Advisory Committee (a group of nonprofits, 
developers, and service providers that operate in Broomfield and the region), and established the 
Broomfield Housing Authority (Broomfield Housing Alliance) in 2022.  

The Consortium member jurisdictions continue to partner with the State in the coordination of funding 
opportunities ensuring the leveraging of state, local and private investment funding to support housing 
and community development efforts. All Consortium members participate in MDHI, which facilitates, 
integrates and tracks cooperative, community-wide and regional systems of care for people who have 
become homeless, to help them become stable, and work toward self-sufficiently, as possible. 

Narrative 

Please see above. 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     17 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

PR-15 Citizen Participation - 91.105, 91.115, 91.200(c) and 91.300(c) 
1. Summary of citizen participation process/Efforts made to broaden citizen participation 
Summarize citizen participation process and how it impacted goal-setting 

Community engagement for this Plan was designed to be inclusive and representative of a diverse set of target groups that have 
disproportionate housing needs. 

Key components of the outreach included: 

1)      A resident survey designed to collect information on residents’ housing, community development and human services dispositions and 
needs, including the experience of discrimination and displacement. The survey was marketed through social services agencies and family 
resource centers, housing agencies, and Consortium members and community partners email lists and social media. The survey garnered 573 
responses in both English and Spanish; 

2)      Resident focus groups gathered input from older adults and people within transitional and permanent supportive housing; 

3)      Focus groups with stakeholders who work with residents who have low income and those who work in the affordable housing 
development and economic development space to discuss policy and program interventions for addressing needs; 

4)      Community meetings in the City of Boulder, City and County of Broomfield, City of Lafayette, and City of Longmont in partnership with the 
Housing and Human Services Advisory Boards; and 

5)      *Placeholder* A 30-day comment period during which the draft Plan was offered for review, and two public hearings, which were held on 
XX in Longmont and Broomfield. 

Detailed community engagement summaries can be found in the Grantee Unique Appendix. 

 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     18 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

 

Citizen Participation Outreach 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     19 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Sort Order Mode of Outreach Target of Outreach Summary of  
response/attendance 

Summary of  
comments received 

Summary of comments 
not accepted 
and reasons 

URL (If 
applicable) 

1 Community 
Meetings 

Non-targeted/ 
broad community 

Four community 
meetings held in 4 
Consortium 
jurisdictions. Meeting 
attendance: City of 
Boulder – 2; City and 
County of Broomfield 
– 4; Boulder County 
(Lafayette) – 0; City 
of Longmont – 8; 
Total of 14 residents 

Wide range of 
comments covering 
housing and 
community 
development needs 

All comments or views 
received were 
accepted 

 

2 Resident Survey Non-
targeted/broad 
community 
  
All residents, 
particularly those 
with housing and 
human services 
needs 

573 survey 
respondents 
representing 
populations with 
special and 
disproportionate 
housing needs 

Feedback related to 
housing and 
community 
development 
needs, and human 
services needs and 
challenges 

All comments or views 
received were 
accepted 

 

3 Resident Focus 
Group 

Older adults 6 older adults 
participated in a 
focus group at the 
Boulder West Age 
Well Center 

Feedback related to 
unique housing 
accessibility and 
affordability 
challenges faced by 
older adults 

All comments or views 
received were 
accepted 

 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     20 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Sort Order Mode of Outreach Target of Outreach Summary of  
response/attendance 

Summary of  
comments received 

Summary of comments 
not accepted 
and reasons 

URL (If 
applicable) 

4 Resident focus 
group 

Persons 
experiencing 
homelessness, 
residents in 
transitional 
housing 

7 residents living in 
transitional or 
permanent 
supportive housing 
participated in a 
focus group at the 
Inn Between in 
Longmont 

Feedback related to 
unique housing 
barriers faced by 
those who have 
previously 
experienced 
homelessness and 
low-income 
families with 
children 

All comments or views 
received were 
accepted 

 

5 Stakeholder Focus 
Group 

Service providers, 
developers, and 
community 
development 
experts 
throughout the 
region 

48 service providers 
and 7 community 
development experts 
participated in focus 
groups to discuss 
barriers to housing 
and gaps in service 
provision in the 
region. 

Feedback regarding 
groups with the 
greatest challenges 
with housing 
stability, gaps in 
housing and service 
provision in the 
region. 

All comments or views 
received were 
accepted 

 

6 Public hearing Non-
targeted/broad 
community 

Public hearings    

Table 4 – Citizen Participation Outreach 
 

 

 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     21 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Needs Assessment 

NA-05 Overview 
Needs Assessment Overview 

The Housing Needs Assessment (NA) section of the eCon Plan describes the primary housing problems in 
the region. Data and information for this section were provided by HUD and culled from existing housing 
needs assessments and market analyses, most recent American Community Survey (ACS) data, as well as 
resident surveys.  

Primary Findings 

Rental housing. All jurisdictions have experienced a significant decline in private market rental units 
affordable to renter households with income less than $50,000. These units are renting at higher rates, 
which has broadened the income brackets in which rental gaps exist and increased the number of 
renters with high incomes. Specifically, 

• In Boulder, the number of affordable units for rental households with income less than $35,000 
decreased from 2,372 in 2018 to 1,316 in 2023. Low-income renter households are making up 
slightly lower proportions of renters overall compared to previous years.  In 2018, renter 
households with income less than $35,000 made up 45% of all renters and in 2023 they made up 
42%. 

• In Broomfield, the number of affordable units for rental households with income less than 
$35,000 decreased from 783 in 2018 to 241 in 2023. Despite the decrease in affordable rental 
units for this group, their proportion and population of renters has remained stable since 2018 
at 15%. This suggests that the affordability gap has deepened for low-income renters as the 
number of affordable options decrease.  

• In Longmont, the number of affordable units for rental households with income less than 
$35,000 decreased from 2,735 units in 2018 to 1,029 in 2023. Low-income renter households 
make up lower proportions of renters overall compared to previous years. In 2018, renter 
households with income less than $35,000 made up 33% of all renters and in 2023 they made up 
24%-- this is the largest percentage point decrease in the Consortium. 

• In Boulder County overall, the number of affordable units for rental households with income less 
than $35,000 decreased from 6,687 units in 2018 to 2,904 in 2023. Low-income renter 
households are making up lower proportions of renters overall compared to previous years.  In 
2018, renter households with income less than $35,000 made up 38% of all renters and in 2023 
they made up 31%. 

By 2023, all Consortium member jurisdictions showed a widened rental mismatch between affordable 
units and renters. These gaps vary by jurisdiction: 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     22 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

• In Boulder, this gap is a shortage of 8,909 units for renters with household incomes less than 
$50,000 as of 2023 (maximum affordable rent $1,250 per month). This gap has expanded from 
7,600 units since the 2018 analysis and to higher income brackets, where the shortage impacted 
renters with household income up to $35,000. 

• In Broomfield, the affordability gap is 1,838 units, up from 1,400 units in the 2018 analysis. 
Broomfield saw the gap widen from renters with income less than $35,000 in 2018 to those with 
income less than $50,000 in 2023.  

• In Longmont, the gap is 3,284 units. In 2018, this gap was 2,200 units, with the decline largely 
due to fewer households who have low income. Longmont also experienced a reduction in 
rental units affordable to households under $50,000, up from $35,000. 

• In Boulder County, the gap for renter households is 14,356, up from 12,000 in 2018. As with 
other areas of the Consortium, the gap expanded from impacting renter households with 
income less than $35,000 in 2018 to renter households with income less than $50,000 in 2023.  

Ownership Housing 

Housing for purchase is very difficult to find for households who have low to moderate incomes. 

In 2023, a household looking to purchase the median-priced home—a measure of the “typical” price for 
a home—would have needed to earn at least: 

• $331,802 in Boulder. In Boulder, 13% of renter households earn over $150,000 and the median 
income for renter households is $47,486. 

• $213,277 in Broomfield. In Broomfield, 22% of renter households earn over $150,000 and the 
median income for renter households is $89,475. 

• $182,818 in Longmont. In Longmont, 10% of renter households earn over $150,000 and the 
median income for renter households is $62,454; and 

• $214,068 in Boulder County overall. In Boulder County, 15% of renter households earn over 
$150,000 and the median income for renter households is $61,453. 

An affordable home for a household earning $100,000 is about $444,208. Analysis conducted on the 
inventory of homes listed or sold in 2024 in Boulder County indicates that 24% of all homes listed or sold 
were priced at less than $500,000. 

Fifty-five percent of renters in the Consortium region pay more than 30% of their monthly gross 
household income toward housing costs, including utilities, and insurance (defined as “cost burdened”), 
with the highest concentration in Boulder at 64% and lowest in Broomfield at 43%. A significant 
proportion of these renters pay more than 50% of their monthly gross income toward rent (defined as 
“severely cost burdened”). The highest share is in Boulder at 43% of renters, followed by Boulder County 
(32%), Longmont (25%), and Broomfield (19%). 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     23 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Data on owner cost burden from the 2023 5-year American Community Survey (ACS) report that 22% of 
owners in the Consortium area are cost burdened (including 10% who are severely cost burdened). 
Longmont has the highest rate of owners who are cost burdened (24%), followed by Boulder County 
(23%), City of Boulder (23%), and Broomfield (18%). Owners have lower rates of cost burden compared 
to renters because of the extremely high barrier to entering ownership in the Consortium: the 
households who have the ability to buy in the Consortium market area are high income and, overall, 
high income households are less likely to be cost burdened. 

 

 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     24 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

NA-10 Housing Needs Assessment - 24 CFR 91.405, 24 CFR 91.205 (a,b,c) 
Summary of Housing Needs 

Please see the prior, Overview section. 

This section also requires a table on the number of households with children living in overcrowded 
conditions, by tenure and AMI level. This table was once pre-populated with data provided by HUD; 
however, this table was blank in IDIS. The resident survey completed for this Con Plan provides some 
indication of overcrowding in the Consortium: 

• 18% of residents who responded to the survey said their home is not big enough for their family; 
• 31% of large families (5 or more members) said their home is not big enough; 
• 22% of Hispanic respondents said their home is not big enough—10 percentage points higher 

than the region; 
• 12% of respondents responded “yes” to the question, “Does anyone who regularly lives with 

you sleep on a couch or on the floor because there is no room in the bedroom?” Respondents 
living in publicly assisted housing had the highest rate in the sample at 43%, followed by 33% of 
domestic violence survivors. Single parents reported doubling up at higher rates than married 
couples with children (20% compared to 12%) 

The Consortium provides the following definitions of “substandard condition” and “substandard 
condition but suitable for rehabilitation," as well as "standard" condition. 

Standard Condition: A “standard condition” dwelling unit is a unit which meets HUD Section 8 Housing 
Quality Standards (HQS) or the City of Boulder’s local code with no major defects in the structure and in 
which only minor maintenance is required. Such a dwelling will generally have the following 
characteristics: a reliable roof; a sound foundation; adequate and stable floors, walls and ceilings; 
surfaces and woodwork that are not seriously damaged nor have paint deterioration; sound windows 
and doors; adequate heating, plumbing, and electrical systems; adequate insulation; and adequate 
water and sewer systems, and not overcrowded as defined in BRC 9-8-5. With the exception of 
emergency rehabilitation, a unit in standard condition is not eligible to receive City of Boulder housing 
rehabilitation funds. 

Substandard Condition: Structure/dwelling unit that does not meet the Uniform Physical Condition 
Standard (UPCS) and/or local or state codes. 

Substandard Condition but Suitable for Rehabilitation: A dwelling unit in the City of Boulder that does 
not meet “standard condition” as defined above and as reflected in the HUD Housing Quality Standards 
(HQS) inspection and the City of Boulder’s Housing Code, but is both structurally feasible (the structure 
is determined sound and suitable for rehabilitation) and financially feasible, meaning the structure does 
not require more than 50% of the structure’s after rehabilitation appraised market value to rehabilitate. 
The unit is likely to have deferred maintenance and may have some structural damage such as a leaking 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     25 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

roof, deteriorated interior surfaces, and inadequate insulation. The unit has other items noted as 
“General Standards of Items that Fail”, as reflected by the HQS/other inspection. However, a dwelling 
unit that is “substandard suitable for rehabilitation” has basic infrastructure (including systems for clean 
water and adequate waste disposal) that allows for economically and physically feasible improvements 
and upon completion of rehabilitation would meet the definition of “standard condition”. (This does not 
include units that require only cosmetic work, correction, minor livability problems or maintenance 
work. 

Substandard Condition Not Suitable for Rehabilitation A dwelling unit in the City of Boulder that is in 
such poor condition that it is neither structurally nor financially feasible to rehabilitate. A poor structural 
system is defined as foundation systems and structural members that are not able to support nominal 
structural loads and financially feasible, meaning the structure requires more than 50% of the 
structure’s after rehabilitation appraised market value to rehabilitate. 

Demographics Base Year:  2010 Most Recent Year:  2023 % Change 
Population 368,679 403,427 9.4% 
Households 153,965 170,988 11.1% 
Median Income $0.00 $0.00   

Table 5 - Housing Needs Assessment Demographics 
 

Data Source: 2000 Census (Base Year), 2018-2023 ACS (Most Recent Year) 

 

Number of Households Table 

 0-30% 
HAMFI 

>30-50% 
HAMFI 

>50-80% 
HAMFI 

>80-100% 
HAMFI 

>100% 
HAMFI 

Total Households 21,982 16,023 21,674 14,733 76,185 
Small Family Households 3,679 4,421 6,527 4,900 38,954 
Large Family Households 324 600 1,415 769 4,978 
Household contains at least one 
person 62-74 years of age 4,046 3,804 5,041 3,312 16,472 
Household contains at least one 
person age 75 or older 3,469 2,438 2,478 1,593 4,518 
Households with one or more 
children 6 years old or younger 1,082 2,032 2,601 1,422 7,806 

Table 6 - Total Households Table 
Data 
Source: 

2016-2020 CHAS 

 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     26 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Housing Needs Summary Tables 

1. Housing Problems (Households with one of the listed needs) 

 Renter Owner 
0-30% 
AMI 

>30-
50% 
AMI 

>50-
80% 
AMI 

>80-
100% 
AMI 

Total 0-30% 
AMI 

>30-
50% 
AMI 

>50-
80% 
AMI 

>80-
100% 
AMI 

Total 

NUMBER OF HOUSEHOLDS 
Substandard 
Housing - 
Lacking 
complete 
plumbing or 
kitchen 
facilities 560 254 80 160 1,054 99 139 4 10 252 
Severely 
Overcrowded - 
With >1.51 
people per 
room (and 
complete 
kitchen and 
plumbing) 119 85 120 45 369 30 4 105 15 154 
Overcrowded - 
With 1.01-1.5 
people per 
room (and 
none of the 
above 
problems) 150 130 126 100 506 12 210 114 59 395 
Housing cost 
burden greater 
than 50% of 
income (and 
none of the 
above 
problems) 

10,35
3 3,148 884 115 

14,50
0 4,313 1,905 1,193 158 7,569 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     27 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

 Renter Owner 
0-30% 
AMI 

>30-
50% 
AMI 

>50-
80% 
AMI 

>80-
100% 
AMI 

Total 0-30% 
AMI 

>30-
50% 
AMI 

>50-
80% 
AMI 

>80-
100% 
AMI 

Total 

Housing cost 
burden greater 
than 30% of 
income (and 
none of the 
above 
problems) 914 3,660 5,329 1,210 

11,11
3 1,258 1,961 3,272 2,028 8,519 

Zero/negative 
Income (and 
none of the 
above 
problems) 1,044 0 0 0 1,044 784 0 0 0 784 

Table 7 – Housing Problems Table 
Data 
Source: 

2016-2020 CHAS 

 

2. Housing Problems 2 (Households with one or more Severe Housing Problems: Lacks kitchen 
or complete plumbing, severe overcrowding, severe cost burden) 

 Renter Owner 
0-30% 
AMI 

>30-
50% 
AMI 

>50-
80% 
AMI 

>80-
100% 
AMI 

Total 0-30% 
AMI 

>30-
50% 
AMI 

>50-
80% 
AMI 

>80-
100% 
AMI 

Total 

NUMBER OF HOUSEHOLDS 
Having 1 or 
more of four 
housing 
problems 11,183 3,608 1,213 425 16,429 4,453 2,249 1,418 243 8,363 
Having none 
of four 
housing 
problems 3,088 4,970 9,021 5,199 22,278 3,265 5,206 10,029 8,863 27,363 
Household 
has negative 
income, but 
none of the 
other housing 
problems 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Table 8 – Housing Problems 2 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     28 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Data 
Source: 

2016-2020 CHAS 

 

3. Cost Burden > 30% 

 Renter Owner 
0-30% 
AMI 

>30-
50% 
AMI 

>50-
80% 
AMI 

Total 0-30% 
AMI 

>30-
50% 
AMI 

>50-
80% 
AMI 

Total 

NUMBER OF HOUSEHOLDS 
Small Related 1,774 2,098 1,574 5,446 1,324 1,075 1,452 3,851 
Large Related 102 105 245 452 123 203 204 530 
Elderly 2,502 1,269 740 4,511 2,770 2,024 1,875 6,669 
Other 7,603 3,688 3,671 14,962 1,433 713 963 3,109 
Total need by 
income 

11,981 7,160 6,230 25,371 5,650 4,015 4,494 14,159 

Table 9 – Cost Burden > 30% 
Data 
Source: 

2016-2020 CHAS 

 

4. Cost Burden > 50% 

 Renter Owner 
0-30% 
AMI 

>30-50% 
AMI 

>50-80% 
AMI 

Total 0-30% 
AMI 

>30-50% 
AMI 

>50-
80% 
AMI 

Total 

NUMBER OF HOUSEHOLDS 
Small Related 0 0 809 809 1,139 625 0 1,764 
Large Related 0 0 35 35 113 113 14 240 
Elderly 2,154 644 280 3,078 1,930 895 618 3,443 
Other 0 7,179 1,813 8,992 1,224 0 0 1,224 
Total need by 
income 

2,154 7,823 2,937 12,914 4,406 1,633 632 6,671 

Table 10 – Cost Burden > 50% 
Data 
Source: 

2016-2020 CHAS 

 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     29 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

5. Crowding (More than one person per room) 

 Renter Owner 
0-

30% 
AMI 

>30-
50% 
AMI 

>50-
80% 
AMI 

>80-
100% 
AMI 

Total 0-
30% 
AMI 

>30-
50% 
AMI 

>50-
80% 
AMI 

>80-
100% 
AMI 

Total 

NUMBER OF HOUSEHOLDS 
Single family 
households 138 190 191 55 574 42 229 194 49 514 
Multiple, 
unrelated family 
households 14 10 30 75 129 0 0 25 10 35 
Other, non-family 
households 119 14 24 15 172 0 0 0 15 15 
Total need by 
income 

271 214 245 145 875 42 229 219 74 564 

Table 11 – Crowding Information - 1/2 
Data 
Source: 

2016-2020 CHAS 

 

 Renter Owner 
0-30% 
AMI 

>30-
50% 
AMI 

>50-
80% 
AMI 

Total 0-30% 
AMI 

>30-
50% 
AMI 

>50-
80% 
AMI 

Total 

Households 
with Children 
Present 

        

Table 12 – Crowding Information – 2/2 
 

Describe the number and type of single person households in need of housing assistance. 

Estimating the needs of single-person households in Boulder is complicated by the large student 
population drawn to the area to attend the University of Colorado-Boulder. Because their income is 
limited, students can make up a significant proportion of households living in poverty with housing 
challenges. This is usually a temporary situation for most students, which changes when they graduate 
and find employment. 

The presence of the large student population can make it challenging for non-student single-person 
households to find rents affordable to them. The rental market caters to the student population, many 
of whom live with roommates, are willing to live in smaller units, and can pay more in rent. 

Apartment vacancy rates in the Consortium are generally lower than the vacancy rate of 6.9% in the 
Denver Metro Area overall. According to the Q4 2024 Denver Metro Apartment Vacancy and Rent 
Report, Boulder North has a vacancy rate of 6.5% and Boulder South has a rate of 4.7%. Longmont has a 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     30 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

slightly higher vacancy rate than the region at 7.1%. The median rent for a studio apartment in Q4 2024 
in Boulder and Broomfield County was $1,545 per month and the median amount for a one-bedroom 
apartment was $1,745, according to the Denver Metro Apartment Vacancy and Rent Report. A single-
person household with income equal to 30% AMI (around $31,650) can only afford an apartment $790 
and below to avoid cost burden-- $755 to $955 below current median rents.  

The survey conducted for the Consolidated Plan collected responses from 66 single-person households. 
These households were mostly older (48% were older than 65), many were retired (26%), most made 
less than $50,000 (52%), many reported disabilities (36%), and more than three-quarters were Non-
Hispanic White (76%). The most common housing challenges reported by these households included: 

• Concern about rent increases (33%); 
• Difficulty keeping up with rent or mortgage payments (26%); and 
• Half (50%) of single person households with a disability need accessibility improvements in 

home/apartment. 

Estimate the number and type of families in need of housing assistance who are disabled or 
victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault and stalking. 

Residents with disabilities. In the Consortium counties, according to 2023 5-year ACS data, 9% of the 
population has some type of disability. Overall, 9% of residents in the City of Boulder have some type of 
disability. In Boulder County, 10% of residents have a disability. People with disabilities represent 11% in 
Broomfield and 14% of the population in Longmont.  

People with disabilities are often overrepresented among people living in poverty. According to 2023 5-
year ACS data, in Boulder County, they make up 18% of people over age 16 who live in poverty, while 
comprising only 9% of the population older than 16 overall.  

According to the resident survey completed for this Plan, 29% of people with disabilities worry about 
their rent increasing beyond what they can afford and 34% struggle to pay their rent or mortgage each 
month. This is compared to 19% of respondents in the survey overall that selected that they worry 
about rent increasing and struggling to pay their rent or mortgage.  

Twenty-three percent of households with a member who has a disability said their home/apartment 
needs some type of modification to meet their household’s accessibility needs. Modifications needed 
included grab bars in bathroom (25%), ramps (19%), stair lifts (16%), wider doorways (16%), and 
accessible parking (16%), and accommodations for an emotional support animal.  

Through the open-ended comments, households with a member with a disability indicated their most 
pressing concerns are access to mental health and addiction counseling, increased Medicare assistance 
and acceptance, help with home maintenance, and more financial assistance. Older adults in a resident 
focus group highlighted need for affordable homes to downsize to for future accessibility needs. In the 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     31 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

City of Boulder, these residents observed that there were no affordable single level homeownership 
options and that newer products were inaccessible townhomes. 

Eighteen percent of people with a disability in the resident survey reported that they need help taking 
care of themselves or their home but cannot afford to hire someone. This is compared to 12% of all 
respondents in the region.  

Residents with disabilities were more likely to take public transit compared to the region overall. 
Twenty-five percent of respondents with a disability reported that they want to use the bus, but the 
stop is too far from their home to use it compared to 16% of all respondents. Additionally, 17% of 
respondents with a disability reported they can’t get to a bus stop easily or safely compared to 9% of 
respondents in the region overall. 

Survivors of domestic violence. Eight percent of survey respondents in the region reported that they 
had experienced domestic violence or harassment. Of these respondents, 26% reported that they worry 
their rent will increase to a level they cannot afford and over half (51%) reported that they struggle to 
pay their rent or mortgage, signifying that this group is especially vulnerable to housing instability and in 
need of housing support. In stakeholder focus groups, service providers for survivors of domestic 
violence pointed out that survivors’ finances and credit scores are often intertwined with their abusive 
partner, leading to additional challenges when securing a safe apartment to move to.   

What are the most common housing problems? 

According to the CHAS (Comprehensive Housing Affordability Strategy) data above, the most common 
housing problems occur for renters with income of less than 30% AMI. The housing problem this 
population faces most frequently is a cost burden. Seventy-three percent experience a severe cost 
burden (spending more than 50% of income on housing costs) and 6% experience a cost burden 
(spending 30% to 49% of income in housing costs). These renters have a very hard time finding 
affordable rentals beyond those provided or subsidized by local housing authorities. Many of these 
renters have special needs and need permanent supportive housing, which is severely lacking in the 
region. 

Owners with income of less than 30% AMI also face this problem most frequently. Sixteen percent 
experience a cost burden, and 56% experience a severe cost burden. For owners, cost burden is the 
most common housing problem, reflective of the region’s very high home prices. 

Are any populations/household types more affected than others by these problems? 

Yes. Seventy-eight percent of renter households with one or more severe housing problems have 
income of less than 30% AMI. Severe housing problems for owner households are also concentrated for 
those with income less than 30% AMI. Fifty-eight percent of owners in this income bracket report one or 
more housing problems. 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     32 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Among residents represented in the resident survey, residents in publicly assisted housing, residents 
with a disability, domestic violence survivors, large households, single parents, and Hispanic residents 
reported struggling with their rent or mortgage at higher rates than all respondents in the region. 
Specifically: 

• Twenty-four percent of Hispanic residents reported that they struggle to pay their rent or 
mortgage; 

• Thirty-four percent of residents with a disability, 51% of domestic violence survivors, 30% of 
large households, and 37% of single parents struggle to pay their rent or mortgage compared to 
19% of respondents in the region overall; and 

• Residents in publicly assisted housing, large households, and single parents reported that their 
home is not big enough for their family at rates more than double that of respondents in the 
region overall (12%).  

Describe the characteristics and needs of Low-income individuals and families with children 
(especially extremely low-income) who are currently housed but are at imminent risk of 
either residing in shelters or becoming unsheltered 91.205(c)/91.305(c)). Also discuss the 
needs of formerly homeless families and individuals who are receiving rapid re-housing 
assistance and are nearing the termination of that assistance 

The resident survey captured 30 residents who are precariously housed. This was defined as people who 
are currently homeless, those staying with friends or family but not on the lease (“couch-surfing”), and 
people living in transitional or temporary housing in the survey. 

These residents have far more acute needs than other types of residents represented by the survey: 

• Barriers to finding a new apartment or home included inability to afford rental application fees 
or security deposits (30%) and a criminal record (30%); 

• Thirty percent felt they were discriminated against when seeking housing; 
• Twenty-nine percent reported that they feel worse off financially compared to the previous 

year. They reduced or went without dental procedures, clothing, car repairs, food, and medical 
procedures due to their financial circumstances. Half (50%) felt they lived paycheck to paycheck 
without a way to get ahead; and 

• Only 40% use a personal vehicle for transportation compared to 67% of respondents in the 
region. They are more likely to walk, bike, and use public transportation. 

Additionally, single parents reported more indicators of imminent housing instability compared to 
couples with children and respondents in the region overall in the resident survey: 

• Seventy-three percent of single parents felt they live paycheck to paycheck without seeing a way 
to get ahead compared to 34% in the region and 36% of couples with children; 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     33 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

• Over half (51%) of single parents worried that they would not be able to pay for an unexpected 
expense; and 

• Thirty-seven percent of single parents struggle to pay their rent or mortgage compared to 19% 
in the region. 

Rapid rehousing (RRH) recipients. As of February 2025, there are 41 households with children enrolled 
in Boulder County’s CoC RRH program, most with an exit date of mid to late 2026. There are 5 
individuals in Boulder County’s ESG RRH program with exit dates in early 2026. The goal of RRH is to 
move the household to self-sufficiency within the 24-month rental assistance window. Access to 
childcare, reliable transportation and living wage employment opportunities are the primary barriers to 
ongoing housing stability. As this population typically remains in the low to very low-income range, they 
require an income based or move up housing opportunity such as PSH to maintain housing at program 
end. Close to 48% of households with children receiving RRH have been impacted by domestic violence 
during the previous 12 months and 90% are single parent headed by a woman. 91% of households with 
children eligible for RRH are experiencing homelessness for the first time compared to 31% for 
individuals. 

If a jurisdiction provides estimates of the at-risk population(s), it should also include a 
description of the operational definition of the at-risk group and the methodology used to 
generate the estimates: 

The Consortium uses the HEARTH Act definition of at-risk of homelessness (categories 2 and 3): anyone 
who is facing eviction or homelessness within 14 days due to economic issues and has no resources 
available. 

At-risk of homelessness can also be defined as an individual or family who reported staying in the 
following locations on the night of the Point-in-Time Count (PIT), a survey which provides a snapshot of 
data regarding people experiencing homelessness on the final Monday night of each January: 

• Temporarily with family or friends 
• In a motel/hotel paid for by self 
• In jail, prison or juvenile detention 
• In a hospital, psychiatric hospital, substance abuse treatment program or halfway house 
• Facing eviction from permanent supportive housing 
• Facing eviction from an apartment or house including Section 8 
• Staying “somewhere else” and said they are experiencing homelessness 
• Staying “somewhere else” and facing eviction 

Specify particular housing characteristics that have been linked with instability and an 
increased risk of homelessness 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     34 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

The primary housing characteristic in the Consortium area affecting instability and increased risk of 
homelessness is the inability to find and remain in an affordable rental unit. The resident survey 
revealed that precariously housed residents were more likely to have experienced housing denial or 
discrimination, have trouble saving money and feel they live paycheck to paycheck, face barriers to 
housing entry due to a criminal record, and cannot afford a rental security deposit. As a result, they live 
in temporary housing conditions “couch surfing”, living in crowded conditions with friends or family, or 
in shelter or street environments. 

Additionally, participants who lived in transitional housing who took part in a resident focus group 
shared their initial housing instability stemmed from foreclosure, relationship breakdowns with partners 
and family members, and their landlord selling the property. Participants wished to see more availability 
of rental and mortgage assistance and valued the intensive case management and stability that 
transitional housing provided. 

In stakeholder focus groups, service providers identified low-income households with children, people 
with eviction and/or criminal records, households with fixed income, document deficient households, 
survivors of domestic violence, individuals with disabilities, and individuals with mental illness as groups 
with the greatest challenges securing stable housing.  

Individuals face the same barriers as families with respect to affordability and availability of rental units. 
However, homelessness tends to present differently with individuals instead of families. As identified in 
Boulder County’s 2024 Point-in-Time (PIT) count conducted by the Metro Denver Homeless Initiative 
(MDHI), 40% of single adults were considered chronically homeless. Of the single-adult chronically 
homeless population, 57% reported substance use as a barrier and 70% reported mental health concern 
as a barrier. As such, the lack of sufficient housing with supportive services impacts the housing stability 
of individuals.  

Discussion 

Please see above. 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     35 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

NA-15 Disproportionately Greater Need: Housing Problems - 91.405, 91.205 
(b)(2) 
Assess the need of any racial or ethnic group that has disproportionately greater need in comparison to 
the needs of that category of need as a whole. 

Introduction 

A disproportionately greater need exists when the members of a racial or ethnic group at an income 
level experience housing problems at a greater rate (defined as 10 percentage points or more) than the 
income level as a whole. For example, assume that 60% of all households with low income within a 
jurisdiction have a housing problem, and 70% of Hispanic households with low income have a housing 
problem. In this case, Hispanic households with low income have a disproportionately greater need. Per 
the regulations at 91.205(b)(2), 91.305(b)(2), and 91.405, a grantee must provide an assessment for 
each disproportionately greater need identified. Although the purpose of these tables is to analyze the 
relative level of need for each race and ethnic category, the data also provide information for the 
jurisdiction as a whole that can be useful in describing overall need. 

Disproportionate housing needs in a population are defined as having one or more of the following four 
housing problems in greater proportion than the jurisdiction as a whole or than the White population: 1) 
Living in housing that lacks complete kitchen facilities, 2) Living in housing that lacks complete plumbing 
facilities, 3) More than one person per room (overcrowded), and 4) Cost burdened greater than 30% 
AMI. 

0%-30% of Area Median Income 

Housing Problems Has one or more 
of four housing 

problems 

Has none of the 
four housing 

problems 

Household has 
no/negative 

income, but none 
of the other 

housing problems 
Jurisdiction as a whole 18,225 2,582 1,638 
White 14,060 1,841 1,038 
Black / African American 232 0 0 
Asian 643 79 144 
American Indian, Alaska Native 4 15 10 
Pacific Islander 8 0 0 
Hispanic 2,924 568 345 

Table 13 - Disproportionally Greater Need 0 - 30% AMI 
Data 
Source: 

2016-2020 CHAS 

 
*The four housing problems are:  
1. Lacks complete kitchen facilities, 2. Lacks complete plumbing facilities, 3. More than one person per 
room, 4.Cost Burden greater than 30%  



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     36 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

 
 
30%-50% of Area Median Income 

Housing Problems Has one or more 
of four housing 

problems 

Has none of the 
four housing 

problems 

Household has 
no/negative 

income, but none 
of the other 

housing problems 
Jurisdiction as a whole 12,561 5,245 0 
White 9,591 4,135 0 
Black / African American 205 0 0 
Asian 454 154 0 
American Indian, Alaska Native 85 20 0 
Pacific Islander 0 0 0 
Hispanic 1,974 790 0 

Table 14 - Disproportionally Greater Need 30 - 50% AMI 
Data 
Source: 

2016-2020 CHAS 

 
*The four housing problems are:  
1. Lacks complete kitchen facilities, 2. Lacks complete plumbing facilities, 3. More than one person per 
room, 4.Cost Burden greater than 30%  
 
 
50%-80% of Area Median Income 

Housing Problems Has one or more 
of four housing 

problems 

Has none of the 
four housing 

problems 

Household has 
no/negative 

income, but none 
of the other 

housing problems 
Jurisdiction as a whole 8,478 7,591 0 
White 6,922 6,101 0 
Black / African American 119 58 0 
Asian 370 204 0 
American Indian, Alaska Native 39 25 0 
Pacific Islander 0 0 0 
Hispanic 870 1,094 0 

Table 15 - Disproportionally Greater Need 50 - 80% AMI 
Data 
Source: 

2016-2020 CHAS 

 
*The four housing problems are:  
1. Lacks complete kitchen facilities, 2. Lacks complete plumbing facilities, 3. More than one person per 
room, 4.Cost Burden greater than 30% 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     37 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

80%-100% of Area Median Income 

Housing Problems Has one or more 
of four housing 

problems 

Has none of the 
four housing 

problems 

Household has 
no/negative 

income, but none 
of the other 

housing problems 
Jurisdiction as a whole 4,865 9,350 0 
White 4,135 7,240 0 
Black / African American 35 108 0 
Asian 104 409 0 
American Indian, Alaska Native 0 20 0 
Pacific Islander 0 0 0 
Hispanic 549 1,355 0 

Table 16 - Disproportionally Greater Need 80 - 100% AMI 
Data 
Source: 

2016-2020 CHAS 

*The four housing problems are:  
1. Lacks complete kitchen facilities, 2. Lacks complete plumbing facilities, 3. More than one person per 
room, 4.Cost Burden greater than 30% 

Discussion 

The above disproportionate needs tables were generated by HUD for the eCon Plan from a proprietary 
data set and the analysis below is based on that data set.  

Disproportionate needs exist for the following groups:  

• Black households with income less than 30% AMI: 100% of Black households in the Boulder 
Consortium in this income bracket have housing problems—12 percentage points higher than 
White households of the same income. 

• Black households with income between 30% and 50% AMI: 100% of Black households in the 
Boulder Consortium in this income bracket have housing problems—30 percentage points 
higher than White households of the same income. 

•  Black households and Asian households with income between 50% and 80% AMI: 67% of Black 
households and 64% of Asian households in this income range report a housing problem 
compared to 53% of White households and the jurisdiction as a whole.  

 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     38 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

NA-20 Disproportionately Greater Need: Severe Housing Problems - 91.405, 
91.205 (b)(2) 
Assess the need of any racial or ethnic group that has disproportionately greater need in comparison to 
the needs of that category of need as a whole. 

Introduction 

This section discusses severe housing needs as defined by HUD, using HUD-prepared housing needs 
data. The tables show the number of Consortium households that have severe housing needs by income 
and race and ethnicity. Needs are defined as one or more of the following housing problems: 1. Housing 
lacks complete kitchen facilities, 2. Housing lacks complete plumbing facilities, 3. Household has more 
than 1.5 people per room, 4. Household cost burden exceeds 50%. 

The resident survey allowed condition issues to be analyzed by tenure and selected household 
characteristics. The analysis found that residents who lived in mobile homes, residents in publicly 
assisted housing, precariously housed respondents, households with income less than $49,999 and 
domestic violence survivors reported that their home with in fair or poor condition at the highest rates: 

• Overall, 17% of respondents in the Consortium rated the condition of their home as fair or poor; 
• 38% of mobile home residents and 24% of renters rated the condition of their home fair or poor 

compared to 11% of homeowners;  
• By race and ethnicity, 20% of respondents who selected other or multiple races reported their 

home was in poor or fair condition compared to 19% of non-Hispanic White respondents and 
18% of Hispanic respondents; and 

• Twenty-nine percent of households with income less than $49,999 reported their home was in 
fair or poor condition compared to only 2% of households with income more than $150,000. 

0%-30% of Area Median Income 

Severe Housing Problems* Has one or more 
of four housing 

problems 

Has none of the 
four housing 

problems 

Household has 
no/negative 

income, but none 
of the other 

housing problems 
Jurisdiction as a whole 15,844 4,957 1,638 
White 12,404 3,496 1,038 
Black / African American 208 19 0 
Asian 568 154 144 
American Indian, Alaska Native 0 19 10 
Pacific Islander 8 0 0 
Hispanic 2,324 1,153 345 

Table 17 – Severe Housing Problems 0 - 30% AMI 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     39 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Data 
Source: 

2016-2020 CHAS 

*The four severe housing problems are:  
1. Lacks complete kitchen facilities, 2. Lacks complete plumbing facilities, 3. More than 1.5 persons per 
room, 4.Cost Burden over 50%  
 
 
30%-50% of Area Median Income 

Severe Housing Problems* Has one or more 
of four housing 

problems 

Has none of the 
four housing 

problems 

Household has 
no/negative 

income, but none 
of the other 

housing problems 
Jurisdiction as a whole 6,283 11,510 0 
White 5,033 8,675 0 
Black / African American 140 59 0 
Asian 224 389 0 
American Indian, Alaska Native 0 105 0 
Pacific Islander 0 0 0 
Hispanic 769 1,990 0 

Table 18 – Severe Housing Problems 30 - 50% AMI 
Data 
Source: 

2016-2020 CHAS 

 
*The four severe housing problems are:  
1. Lacks complete kitchen facilities, 2. Lacks complete plumbing facilities, 3. More than 1.5 persons per 
room, 4.Cost Burden over 50%  
 
 
50%-80% of Area Median Income 

Severe Housing Problems* Has one or more 
of four housing 

problems 

Has none of the 
four housing 

problems 

Household has 
no/negative 

income, but none 
of the other 

housing problems 
Jurisdiction as a whole 2,568 13,514 0 
White 2,024 11,014 0 
Black / African American 65 119 0 
Asian 125 454 0 
American Indian, Alaska Native 4 60 0 
Pacific Islander 0 0 0 
Hispanic 304 1,659 0 

Table 19 – Severe Housing Problems 50 - 80% AMI 
Data 
Source: 

2016-2020 CHAS 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     40 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

 
*The four severe housing problems are:  
1. Lacks complete kitchen facilities, 2. Lacks complete plumbing facilities, 3. More than 1.5 persons per 
room, 4.Cost Burden over 50%  
 
 
80%-100% of Area Median Income 

Severe Housing Problems* Has one or more 
of four housing 

problems 

Has none of the 
four housing 

problems 

Household has 
no/negative 

income, but none 
of the other 

housing problems 
Jurisdiction as a whole 932 13,285 0 
White 617 10,759 0 
Black / African American 0 144 0 
Asian 100 414 0 
American Indian, Alaska Native 0 20 0 
Pacific Islander 0 0 0 
Hispanic 209 1,695 0 

Table 20 – Severe Housing Problems 80 - 100% AMI 
Data 
Source: 

2016-2020 CHAS 

 

*The four severe housing problems are:  
1. Lacks complete kitchen facilities, 2. Lacks complete plumbing facilities, 3. More than 1.5 persons per 
room, 4.Cost Burden over 50%  
 
 
Discussion 

Black households within the Consortium had the highest rates of severe housing problems in all brackets 
under 80% AMI. Ninety-two percent of Black households with income less than 30% AMI report a severe 
housing problem—15 percentage points higher than the jurisdiction as a whole in this AMI bracket.  

Pacific Islander households with income less than 30% AMI also report severe housing problems 
disproportionately higher than the jurisdiction as a whole at 100% compared to 76%, although this 
group has a low population, and results should be interpreted with caution (n = 8). 

The greatest gap is between Black households with income 30% to 50% AMI, where 70% report a severe 
housing problems—35 percentage points higher than the jurisdiction as a whole. For Black households 
with income between 50% and 80% AMI, 35% report a severe housing problem—19 percentage points 
higher than the jurisdiction as a whole. 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     41 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

In the 80% to 100% AMI bracket, Asians have a 13% disproportionate need relative to the jurisdiction as 
a whole.  



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     42 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

NA-25 Disproportionately Greater Need: Housing Cost Burdens - 91.405, 91.205 
(b)(2) 
Assess the need of any racial or ethnic group that has disproportionately greater need in comparison to 
the needs of that category of need as a whole. 

Introduction 

Cost burden is experienced when a household pays more than 30% of their gross household income 
toward housing costs, including utilities, insurance and property taxes (for homeowners). Severe cost 
burden occurs when a household pays 50% or more of gross household income in housing costs. 

Housing Cost Burden 

Housing Cost Burden <=30% 30-50% >50% No / negative 
income (not 
computed) 

Jurisdiction as a whole 104,799 24,309 24,403 1,644 
White 89,073 19,470 19,750 1,048 
Black / African 
American 672 219 418 0 
Asian 4,439 920 782 144 
American Indian, 
Alaska Native 239 125 0 10 
Pacific Islander 14 0 8 0 
Hispanic 8,597 3,065 2,973 345 

Table 21 – Greater Need: Housing Cost Burdens AMI 
Data 
Source: 

2016-2020 CHAS 

 

Discussion 

There are disproportionate housing cost burdens for Black and American Indian households. American 
Indian households experience cost burden 19 percentage points higher than the jurisdiction as a whole. 
Black households experience severe cost burden 16 percentage points higher than the jurisdiction as a 
whole. 

 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     43 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

NA-30 Disproportionately Greater Need: Discussion - 91.205 (b)(2) 
Are there any Income categories in which a racial or ethnic group has disproportionately 
greater need than the needs of that income category as a whole? 

Disproportionate housing needs exist for the following groups:  

• Black households with income less than 30% AMI: 100% of Black households in the Boulder 
Consortium in this income bracket have housing problems—12 percentage points higher than 
White households of the same income. 

• Black households with income between 30% and 50% AMI: 100% of Black households in the 
Boulder Consortium in this income bracket have housing problems—30 percentage points 
higher than White households of the same income. 

•  Black households and Asian households with income between 50% and 80% AMI: 67% of Black 
households and 64% of Asian households in this income range report a housing problem 
compared to 53% of White households and the jurisdiction as a whole.  

Black households also reported disproportionately high rates of cost burden and severe cost burden 
relative to the jurisdiction as a whole. American Indian households experience cost burden 19 
percentage points higher than the jurisdiction as a whole. Black households experience severe cost 
burden 16 percentage points higher than the jurisdiction as a whole. 

For households with income between 50% and 80% AMI, Black and Asian households disproportionately 
report at least one housing problem. Sixty-seven percent of Black households and 64% of Asian 
households in this AMI bracket report a housing problem compared to 53% of White households and 
the jurisdiction as a whole. 

If they have needs not identified above, what are those needs? 

The resident survey conducted to support this Plan allowed identification of housing challenges by 
tenure, household income, selected household characteristics, and race and ethnicity. 

Among residents from protected classes, Hispanic households and households with a member who has a 
disability are the most likely to experience a housing challenge.  

Families with children and large families also experience some housing challenges at higher rates than in 
the region. This includes: 

• Worry about rent increases, desire to live with fewer people but inability to afford it, and 
struggling to pay rent or mortgage were the biggest housing challenges for Hispanic households; 

• Thirty-four percent of households with a member who has a struggle to pay their rent or 
mortgage and 18% need home health care but can’t afford it; and 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     44 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

• Residents in publicly assisted housing, domestic violence survivors, large households, single 
parents, and couples with children reported that their home is not big enough for their family at 
rates higher than residents in the region overall.  

Are any of those racial or ethnic groups located in specific areas or neighborhoods in your 
community? 

Boulder has no areas where racial or ethnic minorities or low-income families are concentrated. 
Racially/ethnically concentrated areas of poverty (R/ECAPs), per HUD’s definition, involve a racial/ethnic 
concentration threshold and a poverty test. R/ECAPs have a non-white population of 50% or more. A 
neighborhood that meets this criterion is a R/ECAP if it has a poverty rate that exceeds 40% or is three 
or more times the average tract poverty rate for the metropolitan/micropolitan area, whichever 
threshold is lower. There are no R/ECAPs in the Consortium. The following figures show clusters using 
HUD’s Socio-Demographic Data Dashboard dot density maps by race/ethnicity and national origin. As 
indicated by the maps, there are no strong clusters of non-White racial groups in Boulder. Hispanic 
residents are mostly spread out throughout the city. See MA-50 for more detailed maps. 

 
Population by Race and Ethnicity, City of Boulder 

 
Source: HUD Socio-Economic Dashboard, 2021 5-year ACS data; 1 race dot = 200 people. 

Alternative description: Dot map of the City of Boulder displaying demographics by race. 

Boulder County has no areas where racial or ethnic minorities or low-income families are concentrated, 
by HUD definition. The following figures show cluster in the HUD Socio-Demographic density maps by 
race/ethnicity. As indicated by the maps, there are no strong clusters of racial minorities in Boulder 
County. Hispanic residents within Boulder County are clustered in the urban areas in Boulder and 
Longmont. 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     45 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Figure ?-?. 
Population by Race and Ethnicity, Boulder County 

 
Source: HUD Socio-Economic Dashboard, 2021 5-year ACS data; 1 race dot = 200 people. 

Alternative text: Dot map of Boulder County displaying demographics by race. 

As shown in the following figures, Longmont has a racially/ethnically diverse population, that is fairly 
well-dispersed across neighborhoods. North-central neighborhoods have Hispanic residents that tend to 
be closer together but no concentrations by HUD definition. 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     46 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Race/ Ethnicity, Longmont 

 

Source: HUD Socio-demographic tables, 2021 5-year ACS. 

Alternative text: Dot map of Longmont displaying demographics by race 
 

 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     47 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Broomfield has no areas where non-White racial groups are concentrated. Hispanic residents are also 
dispersed throughout the populated areas in Broomfield. 

Population by Race and Ethnicity, City and County of Broomfield 

 
Source: HUD Socio-Demographic Maps and 2021 5-year ACS data. 

Alternative text: Dot map of Broomfield displaying demographics by race. 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     48 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

NA-35 Public Housing - 91.405, 91.205 (b) 
Introduction 

This section discusses the type and use of public housing in Boulder and Broomfield counties. The 
Consortium is fortunate to have four public housing entities that own and operate affordable rental and 
deed-restricted for sale housing and administer housing choice voucher programs: Boulder Housing 
Partners (BHP), serving the City of Boulder; Longmont Housing Authority (LHA), serving the City of 
Longmont; Boulder County Housing Authority (BCHA) serving the balance of Boulder County; and 
Broomfield Housing Alliance (BHA), serving the City and County of Broomfield.  None of the 
Consortium’s PHAs have “public housing.” 

 

 
 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     49 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

 

 IDIS Consortium  

Totals in Use 

Program Type 
 Certificate Mod-

Rehab 
Public 

Housing 
Vouchers 

Total Project -
based 

Tenant -
based 

Special Purpose Voucher 
Veterans 

Affairs 
Supportive 

Housing 

Family 
Unification 

Program 

Disabled 
* 

# of units vouchers in use 0 0 0 664 99 562 0 0 0 
Table 22 - Public Housing by Program Type 

*includes Non-Elderly Disabled, Mainstream One-Year, Mainstream Five-year, and Nursing Home Transition 
 

Data Source: PIC (PIH Information Center) 

 

Characteristics of Residents 

Program Type 
 Certificate Mod-

Rehab 
Public 

Housing 
Vouchers 

Total Project -
based 

Tenant -
based 

Special Purpose Voucher 
Veterans 

Affairs 
Supportive 

Housing 

Family 
Unification 

Program 

Average Annual Income 0 0 0 12,984 9,968 13,488 0 0 
Average length of stay 0 0 0 6 2 7 0 0 
Average Household size 0 0 0 2 2 2 0 0 
# Homeless at admission 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     50 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Program Type 
 Certificate Mod-

Rehab 
Public 

Housing 
Vouchers 

Total Project -
based 

Tenant -
based 

Special Purpose Voucher 
Veterans 

Affairs 
Supportive 

Housing 

Family 
Unification 

Program 

# of Elderly Program Participants 
(>62) 0 0 0 177 13 163 0 0 
# of Disabled Families 0 0 0 156 2 152 0 0 
# of Families requesting 
accessibility features 0 0 0 664 99 562 0 0 
# of HIV/AIDS program 
participants 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
# of DV victims 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Table 23 – Characteristics of Public Housing Residents by Program Type  
 

Data Source: PIC (PIH Information Center) 

Race of Residents 

Program Type 
Race Certificate Mod-

Rehab 
Public 

Housing 
Vouchers 

Total Project -
based 

Tenant -
based 

Special Purpose Voucher 
Veterans 

Affairs 
Supportive 

Housing 

Family 
Unification 

Program 

Disabled 
* 

White 0 0 0 609 92 514 0 0 0 
Black/African American 0 0 0 26 5 21 0 0 0 
Asian 0 0 0 11 1 10 0 0 0 
American Indian/Alaska 
Native 0 0 0 16 1 15 0 0 0 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     51 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Program Type 
Race Certificate Mod-

Rehab 
Public 

Housing 
Vouchers 

Total Project -
based 

Tenant -
based 

Special Purpose Voucher 
Veterans 

Affairs 
Supportive 

Housing 

Family 
Unification 

Program 

Disabled 
* 

Pacific Islander 0 0 0 2 0 2 0 0 0 
Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
*includes Non-Elderly Disabled, Mainstream One-Year, Mainstream Five-year, and Nursing Home Transition 

Table 24 – Race of Public Housing Residents by Program Type 
Data Source: PIC (PIH Information Center) 

 

Ethnicity of Residents 

Program Type 
Ethnicity Certificate Mod-

Rehab 
Public 

Housing 
Vouchers 

Total Project -
based 

Tenant -
based 

Special Purpose Voucher 
Veterans 

Affairs 
Supportive 

Housing 

Family 
Unification 

Program 

Disabled 
* 

Hispanic 0 0 0 184 27 155 0 0 0 
Not Hispanic 0 0 0 480 72 407 0 0 0 
*includes Non-Elderly Disabled, Mainstream One-Year, Mainstream Five-year, and Nursing Home Transition 

Table 25 – Ethnicity of Public Housing Residents by Program Type 
Data Source: PIC (PIH Information Center) 

 

 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     52 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Boulder County Housing Authority 

Totals in Use 

Program Type 
 Certificate Mod-

Rehab 
Public 

Housing 
Vouchers 

Total Project -
based 

Tenant -
based 

Special Purpose Voucher 
Veterans 

Affairs 
Supportive 

Housing 

Family 
Unification 

Program 

Disabled 
* 

# of units vouchers in 
use 0 0 0 

969 (this is including 
EHVs) 

75 676 73 80 65 

Table 26 - Public Housing by Program Type 
*includes Non-Elderly Disabled, Mainstream One-Year, Mainstream Five-year, and Nursing Home Transition 

 
Data Source: Boulder County Housing Authority 

 

Characteristics of Residents 

Program Type 
 Certificate Mod-

Rehab 
Public 

Housing 
Vouchers 

Total Project -
based 

Tenant -
based 

Special Purpose Voucher 
Veterans 

Affairs 
Supportive 

Housing 

Family 
Unification 

Program 

Average Annual Income 0 0 0 21,751 22,657 22,468 17,665 22,301 
Average length of stay 

0 0 0 
Data not 

tracked  
Data not 

tracked  
Data not 

tracked  
Data not 

tracked  
Data not 

tracked  
Average Household size 0 0 0 2 3 2 1 4 
# Homeless at admission 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     53 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Program Type 
 Certificate Mod-

Rehab 
Public 

Housing 
Vouchers 

Total Project -
based 

Tenant -
based 

Special Purpose Voucher 
Veterans 

Affairs 
Supportive 

Housing 

Family 
Unification 

Program 

# of Elderly Program 
Participants (>62) 0 0 0 

324 12 250 43 3 

# of Disabled Families 0 0 0 334 10 215 35 11 
# of Families requesting 
accessibility features 0 0 0 

Data not 
tracked  

Data not 
tracked  

Data not 
tracked  

Data not 
tracked  

Data not 
tracked  

# of HIV/AIDS program 
participants 0 0 0 

Data not 
tracked  

Data not 
tracked  

Data not 
tracked  

Data not 
tracked  

Data not 
tracked  

# of DV victims 
0 0 0 

Data not 
tracked  

Data not 
tracked  

Data not 
tracked  

Data not 
tracked  

Data not 
tracked  

Table 27 – Characteristics of Public Housing Residents by Program Type  
Data Source: Boulder County Housing Authority 

Race of Residents 

Program Type 
Race Certificate Mod-

Rehab 
Public 

Housing 
Vouchers 

Total Project -
based 

Tenant -
based 

Special Purpose Voucher 
Veterans 

Affairs 
Supportive 

Housing 

Family 
Unification 

Program 

Disabled 
* 

White 0 0 0 867 68 607 62 72 58 
Black/African American 0 0 0 74 7 47 10 7 3 
Asian 0 0 0 18 1 15 0 1 1 
American Indian/Alaska 
Native 0 0 0 

32 3 19 4 3 3 

Pacific Islander 0 0 0 8 0 8 0 0 0 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     54 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Program Type 
Race Certificate Mod-

Rehab 
Public 

Housing 
Vouchers 

Total Project -
based 

Tenant -
based 

Special Purpose Voucher 
Veterans 

Affairs 
Supportive 

Housing 

Family 
Unification 

Program 

Disabled 
* 

Other 0 0 0 28 5 15 1 6 1 
*includes Non-Elderly Disabled, Mainstream One-Year, Mainstream Five-year, and Nursing Home Transition 

Table 28 – Race of Public Housing Residents by Program Type 
Data Source: Boulder County Housing Authority 

 

Ethnicity of Residents 

Program Type 
Ethnicity Certificate Mod-

Rehab 
Public 

Housing 
Vouchers 

Total Project -
based 

Tenant -
based 

Special Purpose Voucher 
Veterans 

Affairs 
Supportive 

Housing 

Family 
Unification 

Program 

Disabled 
* 

Hispanic 0 0 0 231 25 171 3 23 7 
Not Hispanic 0 0 0 733 50 500 70 56 57 
*includes Non-Elderly Disabled, Mainstream One-Year, Mainstream Five-year, and Nursing Home Transition 

Table 29 – Ethnicity of Public Housing Residents by Program Type 
Data Source: Boulder County Housing Authority 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     55 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Broomfield Housing Alliance 

Totals in Use 

Program Type 
 Certificate Mod-

Rehab 
Public 

Housing 
Vouchers 

Total Project -
based 

Tenant -
based 

Special Purpose Voucher 
Veterans 

Affairs 
Supportive 

Housing 

Family 
Unification 

Program 

Disabled 
* 

# of units vouchers in 
use 

0 0 0 50 0 50 0 0 0 

Table 30 - Public Housing by Program Type 
*includes Non-Elderly Disabled, Mainstream One-Year, Mainstream Five-year, and Nursing Home Transition 

 
Data Source: Broomfield Housing Alliance 

 

Characteristics of Residents 

Program Type 
 Certificate Mod-

Rehab 
Public 

Housing 
Vouchers 

Total Project -
based 

Tenant -
based 

Special Purpose Voucher 
Veterans 

Affairs 
Supportive 

Housing 

Family 
Unification 

Program 

Average Annual Income 0 0 0      
Average length of stay 0 0 0      
Average Household size 0 0 0 2.11  2.11   
# Homeless at admission 0 0 0      
# of Elderly Program Participants 
(>62) 0 0 0 

     



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     56 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Program Type 
 Certificate Mod-

Rehab 
Public 

Housing 
Vouchers 

Total Project -
based 

Tenant -
based 

Special Purpose Voucher 
Veterans 

Affairs 
Supportive 

Housing 

Family 
Unification 

Program 

# of Disabled Families 0 0 0 14  14   
# of Families requesting accessibility 
features 0 0 0 

38  38   

# of HIV/AIDS program participants 0 0 0      
# of DV victims 0 0 0 0  0   

Table 31 – Characteristics of Public Housing Residents by Program Type  
Data Source: Broomfield Housing Alliance 

Race of Residents 

Program Type 
Race Certificate Mod-

Rehab 
Public 

Housing 
Vouchers 

Total Project -
based 

Tenant -
based 

Special Purpose Voucher 
Veterans 

Affairs 
Supportive 

Housing 

Family 
Unification 

Program 

Disabled 
* 

White 0 0 0 42  42    
Black/African American 0 0 0 4  4    
Asian 0 0 0 1  1    
American Indian/Alaska 
Native 0 0 0 

3  3    

Pacific Islander 0 0 0 0  0    
Other 0 0 0       
*includes Non-Elderly Disabled, Mainstream One-Year, Mainstream Five-year, and Nursing Home Transition 

Table 32 – Race of Public Housing Residents by Program Type 
Data Source: Broomfield Housing Alliance 

 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     57 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Ethnicity of Residents 

Program Type 
Ethnicity Certificate Mod-

Rehab 
Public 

Housing 
Vouchers 

Total Project -
based 

Tenant -
based 

Special Purpose Voucher 
Veterans 

Affairs 
Supportive 

Housing 

Family 
Unification 

Program 

Disabled 
* 

Hispanic 0 0 0 15  15    
Not Hispanic 0 0 0 35  35    
*includes Non-Elderly Disabled, Mainstream One-Year, Mainstream Five-year, and Nursing Home Transition 

Table 33 – Ethnicity of Public Housing Residents by Program Type 
Data Source: Broomfield Housing Alliance 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     58 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Longmont Housing Authority 

Totals in Use 

Program Type 
 Certificate Mod-

Rehab 
Public 

Housing 
Vouchers 
Total Project 

-based 
Tenant 
-based 

Special Purpose Voucher 
Veterans 

Affairs 
Supportive 

Housing 

Family 
Unification 

Program 

Disabled 
* 

# of 
units 
vouchers 
in use 

432 8 0 440 117 315 0 0 0 

Table 34 - Public Housing by Program Type 
*includes Non-Elderly Disabled, Mainstream One-Year, Mainstream Five-year, and Nursing Home Transition 

 
Data 
Source: 

Longmont Housing Authority 

 

Characteristics of Residents 

Program Type 
 Certificate Mod-

Rehab 
Public 

Housing 
Vouchers 
Total Project 

-based 
Tenant 
-based 

Special Purpose Voucher 
Veterans 

Affairs 
Supportive 

Housing 

Family 
Unification 

Program 

Average Annual 
Income N/A N/A N/A 

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Average length of 
stay N/A N/A N/A 

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Average 
Household size N/A N/A N/A 

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

# Homeless at 
admission N/A N/A N/A 

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

# of Elderly 
Program 
Participants (>62) 0 0 0 

224     

# of Disabled 
Families 0 0 0 

     



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     59 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Program Type 
 Certificate Mod-

Rehab 
Public 

Housing 
Vouchers 
Total Project 

-based 
Tenant 
-based 

Special Purpose Voucher 
Veterans 

Affairs 
Supportive 

Housing 

Family 
Unification 

Program 

# of Families 
requesting 
accessibility 
features 0 0 0 

     

# of HIV/AIDS 
program 
participants 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 0 

# of DV victims 0 0 0 0  0 0 0 
Table 35 – Characteristics of Public Housing Residents by Program Type  

Data Source: Longmont Housing Authority 

Race of Residents 

Program Type 
Race Certificate Mod-

Rehab 
Public 

Housing 
Vouchers 
Total Project 

-based 
Tenant 
-based 

Special Purpose Voucher 
Veterans 

Affairs 
Supportive 

Housing 

Family 
Unification 

Program 

Disabled 
* 

White 0 0 0 207      
Black/African 
American 0 0 0 

10      

Asian 0 0 0 3      
American 
Indian/Alaska 
Native 0 0 0 

7      

Pacific 
Islander 0 0 0 

20  0    

Other 0 0 0       
*includes Non-Elderly Disabled, Mainstream One-Year, Mainstream Five-year, and Nursing Home Transition 

Table 36 – Race of Public Housing Residents by Program Type 
Data 
Source: 

Broomfield Housing Alliance 

 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     60 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Ethnicity of Residents 

Program Type 
Ethnicity Certificate Mod-

Rehab 
Public 

Housing 
Vouchers 
Total Project 

-based 
Tenant 
-based 

Special Purpose Voucher 
Veterans 

Affairs 
Supportive 

Housing 

Family 
Unification 

Program 

Disabled 
* 

Hispanic    138      
Not 
Hispanic    

302      

*includes Non-Elderly Disabled, Mainstream One-Year, Mainstream Five-year, and Nursing Home Transition 
Table 37 – Ethnicity of Public Housing Residents by Program Type 

Data Source: Broomfield Housing Alliance 

 

Section 504 Needs Assessment: Describe the needs of public housing tenants and applicants 
on the waiting list for accessible units: 

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 prohibits discrimination, based on a disability, in programs 
and activities conducted by HUD, or that receive financial assistance from HUD. Housing Connect 
provides a preference for public housing tenant selection based on “inaccessibility of a unit and/or to 
accommodate a disability under a request for reasonable accommodation.” All PHAs in the Consortium 
accommodate needs as they arise. 

Boulder Housing Partners (BHP). BHP has six communities for older adults (four for those 62 and over 
and two for those 55 and over) and one 20-unit community (30 PRL) for neuro-diverse residents. In 
2024, BHP administered 1,426 Housing Choice Vouchers. 

Boulder County Housing Authority (BCHA). BCHA manages 61 properties currently administers 969 
HCVs as of 2025. There are currently 506 disabled families on the waitlist for Project Based Vouchers, 
HUD Rural Development Housing, HUD Multifamily Housing Assistance, and HCVs, making up 41% of the 
waitlist. Demographics are in the figure titled “Boulder County Housing Authority Voucher 
Demographics.” 

Longmont Housing Authority. Longmont utilizes a lottery system for HCVs. The last opening for 
applications was in September 2022 and applications are not being accepted until more vouchers are 
made available. Because this list is specifically for the voucher program, which is tenant based 
assistance, the application does not ask if there are accessible unit needs. A resource list is provided 
should applicants have difficulties trying to lease units, but the LHA does not have dedicated Housing 
Specialists to help search for a unit. 

Broomfield Housing Alliance. According to data provided by the Broomfield Housing Alliance, there are 
82 vouchers in Broomfield, of which BHA administers 49 Housing Choice Vouchers. Seventy-six percent 
(38 voucher holders) reported that they or a member of their household have a disability.  



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     61 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Needs of public housing tenants. The resident survey provided insight into the needs tenants in publicly 
assisted housing and potential applicants for accessible units, as measured by older adults and 
respondents with a disability. Top housing challenges for respondents living in publicly assisted housing 
included: 

• Worry about rent increasing to unaffordable amount (36%); 
• Struggle to pay rent or mortgage (26%); 
• Home is not large enough for family (24%) 
• Struggle to pay utilities (19%); and 
• Worry that landlord with stop accepting HCV (19%). 

Top housing challenges for older adults included: 

• Struggle to pay property taxes (23%); 
• Worry about rent increasing to unaffordable amount (20%); 
• Struggle to pay rent or mortgage (12%); 
• Need help taking care of self or home but can’t find or afford to hire someone (11%); 
• Have disability and can’t find an accessible place to live (11%); 

Top housing challenges for households with a disability included: 

• Struggle to pay rent or mortgage (34%); 
• Worry about rent increasing to unaffordable amount (29%); 
• Struggle to pay property taxes (24%); 
• Struggle to pay utilities (21%); and 
• Want to live in own place with fewer people but cannot afford it (20%). 

What are the number and type of families on the waiting lists for public housing and section 8 
tenant-based rental assistance? Based on the information above, and any other information 
available to the jurisdiction, what are the most immediate needs of residents of public 
housing and Housing Choice voucher holders? 

Boulder Housing Partners. For the Housing Choice Voucher Program, Boulder Housing Partners uses a 
lottery system to fill vouchers for their federally funded voucher programs. The goal is to process all the 
applications from one lottery round before opening the lottery again. Because this list is specifically for 
the voucher program, which is tenant based assistance, the application does not ask if there are 
accessible unit needs. Once a voucher holder is issued a voucher, they are responsible for finding a unit 
in the private market. BHP has Housing Assistance Coordinators to assist voucher holders in the process 
of finding an apartment. 

Boulder County Housing Authority. As of March 2025, 1,222 households on the waitlist for Project 
Based Vouchers, HUD Rural Development Housing, HUD Multifamily Housing Assistance, and HCVs 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     62 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

administered by BCHA. The average household income of those on the waitlist is $18,394, 224 are 
elderly applicants (18%), and 506 have a disability (41%).  

Longmont Housing Authority. Longmont utilizes a lottery system for HCVs. The last opening for 
applications was in September 2022 and applications are not being accepted until more vouchers are 
made available. According to HUD’s Picture of Subsidized Households, Longmont had 518 HCV users.  

Broomfield Housing Alliance. The waitlist for vouchers is currently closed in Broomfield. There are 
currently 271 people on the waitlist. Thirty percent of those on the waitlist identified as single parents 
and 31% identified as Hispanic. Forty-eight percent have a disability and 48% are currently homeless. 

Immediate needs and challenges. The previous housing challenges faced by residents in publicly 
assisted housing, residents with a disability, and older adults all relate to worry about current and future 
ability to pay for housing and other basic needs. Emergency rental assistance and subsidized housing are 
therefore high needs for families on waiting lists. The most immediate needs of residents in publicly 
assisted housing are deeper affordability to ease worries about rent increases and ability to pay housing 
costs, larger options to accommodate families, utility assistance, and programs that incentivize 
continued landlord participation in the HCV program. 

An older adult who participated in a resident focus group reported that it is difficult to navigate the 
application process with limited computer knowledge. The application was confusing and difficult to 
navigate by herself and utilized senior center resources in Boulder for support. 

How do these needs compare to the housing needs of the population at large 

The resident survey conducted for this Plan provides a unique ability to compare the needs of residents 
living in publicly assisted housing with other households. There were 70 respondents who indicated they 
live in publicly assisted or deed restricted housing. Of those, 38 indicated they live with children under 
age 18. Seventeen survey participants indicated they have a Section 8 housing voucher. 

Among housing voucher holders, 50% indicated it is somewhat (30%) or very difficult (20%) to find a 
landlord that accepts vouchers. 

The majority of respondents indicated that it is difficult to use because there is not enough time to find 
a place before the voucher expires and the voucher is not enough to meet current rents.  

Additional resident feedback in the survey revealed: 

• Thirty-six percent of residents in publicly assisted housing selected they were worried about 
their rent increasing compared to 19% of all residents; 

•  26% of publicly assisted housing residents struggled to pay their rent or mortgage compared to 
19% in the region; 

• 24% selected their home is not large enough for family compared to 12% in the region; and  
• 19% reported they struggle to pay utilities compared to 14% in the region, and 19% worried 

their landlord will stop accepting HCVs compared to 7% in the region.  



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     63 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Discussion 



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     64 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

NA-40 Homeless Needs Assessment - 91.405, 91.205 (c) 
Introduction: 

This section provides an overview of the Consortium’s resources to address the needs of people experiencing homelessness. Data in the table 
below are from the 2024 PIT Count and COHMIS from MDHI and combines data from Broomfield and Boulder Counties. 

Population 

Estimate the # of persons 
experiencing homelessness on 

a given night (PIT) 

Estimate the # 
experiencing 

homelessness 
each year 

Estimate the # 
becoming 

homeless each 
year 

Estimate the # 
exiting 

homelessness 
each year 

Estimate the # 
of days 

persons 
experience 

homelessness 
 Sheltered Unsheltered         

Persons in Households with Adult(s) and 
Child(ren) 236 14 443 74 4 251 
Persons in Households with Only Children 
(Youth) 19 13 111 51 5 75 
Persons in Households with Only Adults 279 252 1848 154 46 258 
Chronically Homeless Individuals 109 165 468  20 710 
Chronically Homeless Families   4  1 401 
Veterans 27 34 103 7 1 95 
Unaccompanied Child       
Persons with HIV 1 3 20  1 125 

If data is not available for the categories "number of persons becoming and exiting homelessness each year," and "number of 
days that persons experience homelessness," describe these categories for each homeless population type (including chronically 
homeless individuals and families, families with children, veterans and their families, and unaccompanied youth): 

Becoming Homeless 

Boulder County’s 2024 PIT counted a total of 534 people experiencing homelessness. Of that number, 289 self-identified as experiencing 
homelessness for the first time and 238 identified as chronically homeless. In Broomfield, there were a total of 86 people experiencing 
homelessness, including 46 who identified as first-time homeless and 36 who identified as chronically homeless. Boulder estimates that the PIT 
count underestimates single adults experiencing homelessness by about 20% and families to a greater extent.  



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     65 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Since the inception of the Homeless Solution for Boulder County (HSBC) collaborative in October of 2017, which serves single adults experiencing 
homelessness, the County has had access to a different methodology of collecting data on individuals experiencing homelessness. Through the 
Coordinated Entry assessment, the County knows that in 2024, of the 1,093 individuals who were assessed for homelessness services, 312 had 
been experiencing homelessness for more than 2 years and 539 had been homeless for a month or less.  

When stratified by community within Boulder County, approximately 70% of people completing entry assessment were shown to have been 
experiencing homelessness elsewhere and had been in the City of Boulder for less than one month at screening. This is also correlated with a 
large percentage of those entering the community with established long-term and chronic homelessness. In Longmont, the pattern differs with 
more people experiencing their first episode of homelessness in Longmont and remaining in the community. This provides certain challenges in 
the way the system responds to housing and support needs.  

Exiting homelessness   

In 2024, 308 people exited homelessness (249 to housing options, 47 reunified with support networks, and 12 to other programs). Specific to 
single adults, the system has been able to manage an inflow/outflow ratio (number of people entering the system divided by the number of 
people exiting the system in a given year) of approximately 30-39%. This has been accomplished through a number of exit strategies and 
supports including but not limited to: 

• Acquiring property (condominiums in scattered sites) that can be used to serve people experiencing chronic homelessness who cannot 
otherwise qualify for leases (i.e. people with criminal histories); 

• Focusing on maintaining a large percentage of total housing development as affordable housing and focusing activity on the creation of 
permanent supportive housing vouchering opportunities– both in vouchers and unit development. For example, the Bluebird 
development opened with 40 program-based PSH units, and the Zinnia development opened in 2024 adding 55 program-based PSH 
units;  

• Developing Building Home, which matches peer services and a housing retention team to PSH clients who have significant challenges in 
maintaining their housing;  

• Establishing local PSH vouchering programs to target housing to key subpopulations; 
• Coordinating outreach and sheltering services toward a housing focus, including opening a Day Services Center (DSC) in 2024 that 

provides co-location of various services (including an addition 30 PSH vouchers tied to DSH case management); 
• Supporting a substance use residential facility and outpatient services; and  



  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     66 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

• Targeting high utilizers of criminal justice and hospital emergency departments for coordinated case conferencing and expedited 
housing options. 

Chronically homeless individuals. The PIT count in the Consortium area identified 109 sheltered and 150 unsheltered chronically homeless 
individuals. This group is made up of primarily single adults. Service providers shared that this group is one of the hardest to house in the county 
and face several barriers to entering housing. One barrier is the lack of supply of affordable and accessible one-bedroom or studio housing for 
single individuals. These individuals often need housing paired with behavioral health or substance abuse recovery services. Participants in a 
community meeting in Longmont shared that even when housing does exist, it is even more difficult to secure long-term services. When looking 
for housing, this group faces significant “lease-up” issues such as poor credit, past evictions, criminal history, or lack identification. Some of the 
interventions mentioned in the section above are designed to counteract some of these challenges. 

Chronically homeless families. The PIT count in the Consortium area identified 40 families experiencing chronic homelessness who are currently 
sheltered and 10 unsheltered families experiencing chronic homelessness. Homelessness for this group often stems from domestic violence, 
according to stakeholders interviewed for this report. Service providers desired housing options that act as a bridge between homelessness and 
a more permanent housing solution, including additional family shelters, and more emergency motel vouchers. Participants in the Broomfield 
Community meeting highlighted the need for a domestic violence shelter in the city, as existing resources were only in Longmont and the City of 
Boulder. Emergency Family Assistance Association provides support for families in crisis in the region. 

Veterans and their families.  The PIT count in the Consortium area identified 27 sheltered homeless veterans and 34 unsheltered homeless 
veterans. Homeless Solutions of Boulder County includes the government entities of Boulder County, City of Boulder, and Longmont.  Homeless 
Solutions has worked to decrease veterans experiencing homelessness through this multi-jurisdictional partnership and partnerships with the 
Veterans Community Project, and VA VASH vouchers.  The Veterans Community Project developed a village of tiny homes and an outreach 
center in Longmont to support veterans experiencing homelessness.  This group typically has higher needs for accessible housing, mental health 
supports, and substance abuse recovery supports. 

Unaccompanied youth.  18 sheltered and 9 unsheltered unaccompanied youth were counted in the Boulder consortium area. The City of 
Boulder offers support to TGTHR, a youth shelter serving individuals ages 12 to 24 that offers food, counseling, employment help, healthcare, 
and transportation services. 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     67 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Nature and Extent of Homelessness: (Optional) 

Race: Sheltered: Unsheltered (optional) 

White 221 188 

Black or African American 119 22 

Asian <5 0 

American Indian or Alaska 
Native 13 5 

Pacific Islander 45 0 

Ethnicity: Sheltered: Unsheltered (optional) 

Hispanic 75 57 

Not Hispanic 459 222 

 

Estimate the number and type of families in need of housing assistance for families with 
children and the families of veterans. 

Families with children. One estimate of this population would be a combination of the numbers of 
children in the public school districts experiencing homelessness and receiving assistance from 
McKinney-Vento-designated school staff. The McKinney-Vento population in the Boulder Valley School 
District (BVSD) for school year 2022-2023 was 411 children, and in the St. Vrain Valley School District 
(SVVSD), 575 children. Broomfield is served by the Adams 12, Boulder Valley, St. Vrain Valley, Jefferson 
County R-1, Weld RE8, and Brighton school districts, making the McKinney-Vento estimates for this 
county difficult.  

The resident survey does offer some insight into the precariously housed population and family type. Of 
the 30 precariously housed respondents, 15 had children: Seven were single parents (23% of all 
precariously housed respondents) and eight had children with a partner (27% of all precariously housed 
respondents).  

Veterans. There were 27 sheltered homeless veterans and 34 unsheltered homeless veterans in the 
Consortium area. No veterans had children in the PIT count. 22 were chronically homeless and 17 were 
homeless for the first time in Boulder County. 

Describe the Nature and Extent of Homelessness by Racial and Ethnic Group. 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     68 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Racial and ethnic minorities are disproportionately impacted by homelessness in Boulder County. Below 
are percentages of people of color in the 2024 PIT, compared to their percentage of the overall county 
population. 

• Latino/Hispanic: 15% of county population, 14% of PIT 

• African American: 1% of county population, 21% of PIT 

• American Indian/Alaska Native: 5% of county population, 3% of PIT 

• Multi-Racial: 3% of county population, 10% of PIT 

According to HMIS intake data provided by MDHI, 72% of HMIS clients in Boulder and Broomfield 
Counties experiencing homelessness are White and 17% are Hispanic. Twelve percent are Black. 

Describe the Nature and Extent of Unsheltered and Sheltered Homelessness. 

In the 2024 PIT, 193 people (34%) of those counted in Boulder Consortium area were unsheltered. 
Service providers interviewed in stakeholder focus groups reiterated that unsheltered individuals 
experiencing chronic homelessness are the hardest people to house. They often have multiple barriers, 
such as significant behavioral health challenges, substance abuse disorders, and disabilities, often 
limiting their ability to obtain a rental unit even if prioritized for a voucher. This group requires single 
bedroom or studio apartments for permanent housing, emergency shelter space, and temporary 
housing solutions that include supportive services—all of which face a severe shortfall in the consortium 
area.  

Traditional PIT counts do not observe unstably housed individuals and families who are couch-surfing or 
staying in hotels or motels. In the resident survey, staying with friends or family was the most common 
version of housing instability. Stakeholders observed a severe need for more emergency shelter space 
and temporary housing solutions for people experiencing homelessness or in crisis. One stakeholder said 
that by the end of the day, there are usually no available beds. For families experiencing homelessness, 
several stakeholders would like to see a family shelter in Boulder County and more emergency motel 
vouchers in the region that act as a bridge between homelessness and a more permanent housing 
solution. 

Discussion: 

Interaction with Coordinated Entry screening (CD) in Boulder County has remained relatively consistent 
since 2022. In 2022, 1,035 people entered CE, in 2023 1,105 entered, and in 2024 1,093 people entered. 
There was a jump between 2021 when there were 871 people who entered CE in the county.  

Spending on homelessness has become a major priority in the past decade by the City of Boulder. 
According to information compiled by the city, the City budget allocated $668,000 toward homelessness 
in 2016 primarily dedicated to winter sheltering, family assistance, and homeless prevention. In 2024, 
the City budgeted nearly $10 million towards homeless services, which also included the Eviction 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     69 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Prevention and Rental Services Program created through the Long-Term Rental Tax that generated over 
a million dollars in 2024. 

Origins of homelessness are rooted in displacement. According to the resident survey, 36% of 
respondents who moved when they did not want to were displaced by a rent increase, followed by 19% 
whose landlord refused to renew the lease, 15% moved due to personal or relationship reasons, and 
15% moved due to poor property conditions (i.e. mold, bugs, or rodents). 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     70 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

NA-45 Non-Homeless Special Needs Assessment - 91.405, 91.205 (b,d) 
Introduction 

This section provides an overview of the housing and supportive service needs of people with special 
needs who are not identified as homeless in the Consortium area. The special needs populations 
considered in this section include: older adult households, persons with disabilities, large households, 
single parent households, survivors of domestic violence, and persons with addictions or a mental 
illness. The estimates of need rely on a wide range of data sources and are supported by stakeholder 
and resident engagement findings.   
 
Describe the characteristics of special needs populations in your community: 

Special populations with the most significant needs in the Consortium area include: 

• Households made up of older adults. There are 76,701 residents 62 years or older in the 
Consortium, accounting for 19% of the Consortium population. Consortium-wide, 7% of older 
adult households have some type of housing need. Older adults who participated in a resident 
focus group were concerned about the limited affordable and accessible options to downsize 
and age into in the region. Some participants said they had to return to work to afford rising 
housing costs and HOA fees but encountered age discrimination when applying.   

• Frail elderly. Frail elderly includes older adults who require assistance with three or more 
activities of daily living, such as bathing, walking, and performing light housework. There are an 
estimated 3,096 individuals who are in this category. An estimated 7%, or 206 people, who have 
housing or service needs.  

• Disability. There are 35,000 residents with a disability living in the Consortium area, making up 
9% of the total population. Applying the poverty rate for people with disabilities in 
Boulder/Broomfield counties estimates that 28% of people with a disability, or 9,920 residents, 
have some type of housing need. The resident survey conducted as part of this Plan found that 
the top housing challenges for people with disabilities include securing a unit that meets their 
accessibility needs and managing the cost of rental units.  

• Large families (with 5 or more people). There are around 6,041 large family households in the 
Consortium. HUD CHAS data indicate that 9% of large households Consortium-wide have some 
type of housing problem. Their most common housing need is related to cost burden, although 
they are also more susceptible to overcrowding. In the resident survey, 31% of large households 
said their home was not big enough for their family.  

• Single parents with children. There are about 10,200 single parent families with children in the 
Consortium area—about 6,800 are female-headed households. The poverty rate for these 
households is 18%—much higher than the area-wide family poverty rate of 6%. The estimated 
1,800 single parent households with children living in poverty are the most likely to struggle 
with rising housing costs and may need unique supports given the challenges they face. In the 
resident survey, 37% of single parents struggled to pay for their rent or mortgage compared to 
19% of couples with children and 19% of respondents overall; 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     71 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

• Survivors of domestic violence. According to national estimates from the National Intimate 
Partner and Sexual Violence Survey (NISVS), 4.5% of women and 2.8% of men experience 
stalking, physical violence, and/or contact sexual violence by an intimate partner each year. 
Applying these national rates to the Consortium area, an estimated 11,970 residents experience 
IPV. Of those, around 10% (1,231 people) have housing or service needs based off national 
survey rates. 

• Limited English proficient households. About 2,725 households in the Consortium area have 
limited English proficiency (LEP), meaning no one over the age of five speaks English “very well.” 
Spanish is the most common language spoken by these households in the Consortium, followed 
by other Indo-European languages. These households may have trouble accessing resources 
and/or housing-related documents in their native language. The 10% of households with limited 
English proficiency living in poverty are the most likely to experience acute housing needs. 
Residents at the City of Boulder community meeting discussed significant barriers in housing 
access for this group, including language barriers and inaccessible federal programs for those 
without a Social Security Number. Participants called for more transparency from nonprofits and 
city programs to clarify what support is available based on eligibility. They recommended this 
guidance be produced in English and Spanish. Additional recommendations from participants in 
Boulder included multigenerational housing options that accept vouchers, culturally appropriate 
outreach, and streamlined services to assist undocumented individuals in navigating programs 
available to them. 

• At risk of homelessness. Households spending 50% or more of their income on housing are 
considered at risk of homelessness. These households have limited capacity to adjust to rising 
home prices and are vulnerable to even minor shifts in rents, property taxes, and/or incomes. 
The Consortium area has 22,069 households with income of less than 100% AMI (30% of all 
households with low and moderate income) that are severely cost burdened and therefore at 
risk of homelessness. 

• Persons with addiction or mental illness. According to the 2023 National Survey on Drug Use 
and Health from the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, 9.9% of those 18 and older 
have a drug use disorder and 10.9% have an alcohol use disorder. The 2021 National Survey on 
Drug Use and Health reports that 7.6% of these individuals need treatment. Applying these 
estimates to the Consortium, an estimated 61,887 residents 18 and over have a substance abuse 
disorder and 26,974 (44%) are in need of treatment. 

What are the housing and supportive service needs of these populations and how are these 
needs determined?    

In addition to the population-specific housing and supportive service needs identified above, service 
providers consulted for this Plan provided the following feedback on general supportive service needs of 
special populations, including: 

• Temporary shelter and transitional housing; 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     72 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

• Permanent supportive housing for chronically homeless individuals, including one bedroom and 
studio apartments with supportive services; 

• Additional family shelters and motel vouchers to help families with children transition from crisis 
to more stable housing options; 

• Resources for families experiencing domestic violence, including more shelter space (especially 
in Broomfield); 

• Housing program navigation for undocumented individuals and families with mixed 
documentation; 

• More childcare options and subsidized slots for low-income families; 
• Public transit closer to the homes of people with disabilities and low-income families with 

regular maintenance on stops to clear snow or other barriers; and 
• Accessible and affordable housing options for people with disabilities and older adults. 

Supportive service needs were also collected through the resident survey to inform this plan: 

• Twenty-five percent of people with disabilities reported that they want to take the bus, but the 
stop is too far away from their home to use it and 17% said they cannot get to the stop safely or 
easily. People with disabilities also identified resources for mental healthcare, less expensive 
housing, programs and activities for positive youth development, help with car repair, resources 
to learn to be more financially stable, and resources to help older family members or people 
with a disability as resources that would be the most helpful in the Boulder area. 

• Twenty percent of older adults in the survey were worried their housing costs would increase to 
a level they could not afford and 23% struggled to pay property taxes. Older adults who 
participated in a focus group were concerned that their fixed incomes and retirement savings 
could not keep up with rising rents and HOA fees. Some have had to go back to work but face 
age-related discrimination in the job market. They value the supportive services and social 
activities provided by senior centers in Boulder that have helped them navigate the financial 
uncertainty they have experienced. 

• Large households face significant housing challenges related to space and budgeting. Thirty 
percent of large households struggled to pay their rent or mortgage compared to 19% of all 
respondents in the region. Additionally, 31% said their home wasn’t big enough for their family 
and 22% said they want to get their own place or live with fewer people but they can’t afford it. 

• Single parent households are the most likely to struggle with rising housing costs and may need 
unique supports given the challenges they face raising children on a single income. Thirty-seven 
percent of single parents struggled to pay their rent or mortgage compared to 19% of couples 
with children and 19% of all respondents in the region. Single parents selected resources for 
healthcare, less expensive housing, programs and activities for positive youth development, help 
with car repair, legal assistance, and food pantries as resources that would be most helpful in 
the Boulder region.  Participants in a resident focus group in Longmont valued their subsidized 
childcare provided by the CCAP program in Boulder County. Applications for this program have 
been frozen since March 2024. 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     73 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

• Precariously housed residents identified healthcare resources, less expensive housing, help to 
pay for childcare, opportunities to learn or improve English, resources to learn to be more 
financially stable, and emergency rental assistance as resources that would be most helpful in 
the Boulder area. 

In a community meeting in Boulder, residents shared that Spanish speaking residents have difficulty 
navigating housing programs and financial assistance due to language barriers and lack of transparency 
regarding income- and residency-related eligibility. Eighteen percent of Hispanic respondents to the 
survey lived in a mobile home—the highest of all racial and ethnic groups. Mobile home residents 
reported the highest rate of poor or fair living conditions and 95% of mobile home residents were 
worried about lot rent increasing to an unaffordable level. 

Discuss the size and characteristics of the population with HIV/AIDS and their families within 
the Eligible Metropolitan Statistical Area:  

According to CDC and the National HIV Surveillance System estimates, there are 171.3 people living with 
HIV/AIDS per 100,000 residents in Boulder County. This equates to about 604 people.  

If the PJ will establish a preference for a HOME TBRA activity for persons with a specific 
category of disabilities (e.g., persons with HIV/AIDS or chronic mental illness), describe their 
unmet need for housing and services needed to narrow the gap in benefits and services 
received by such persons. (See 24 CFR 92.209(c)(2) (ii)) 

The Consortium does not currently have an established preference for HOME TBRA and does not plan to 
create one during the period covered by this Consolidated Plan.  

 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     74 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

NA-50 Non-Housing Community Development Needs - 91.415, 91.215 (f) 
Describe the jurisdiction’s need for Public Facilities: 

City of Boulder. The City of Boulder’s 2024-2029 Capital Improvement Program identifies $903.7 million 
in planned spending for over 200 projects. These include utility projects to improve water treatment 
facilities and the Main Sewer Interceptor Project, the 30th St. Corridor Multimodal Improvements Project 
and Baseline Road Phase 2 Improvements, facilities and fleet maintenance projects, improvements to 
Pleasant View Fields park, Violet Park, and North Boulder Park, improvements to trailheads, and 
network hardware replacement and security administration projects to support existing technology 
systems. In 2021, Boulder voters renewed the Community, Culture, Resilience, and Safety sales and use 
tax to support citywide capital infrastructure investments.  

City and County of Broomfield. According to Broomfield’s Capital Improvements Plan, improvements to 
sewers will receive the most funding, followed by transportation systems, development agreements, 
water facility improvements, and buildings and facilities. Transportation projects include pavement 
management and street lighting upgrades. The completion of the Broomfield Community Center is a 
highlight and cornerstone of the community. In past years, the City has also identified the need for a 
new library branch building, a library expansion, court building expansion, policy building expansion, and 
a new animal shelter. 

Residents who attended the community meeting in Broomfield desired transportation between senior 
communities and other public facilities. 

City of Longmont. According to Longmont’s 2025-2029 Capital Improvements Plan, the city will fund 
$310,065,394 in projects. A quarter of spending will go to water improvements and another quarter will 
go to transportation. Funding will also go towards public buildings and facility improvements, including 
improvements to municipal building roofs, ADA accessibility, and exterior maintenance. Transportation 
funds will go towards pavement management and improvements and system management. Additional 
priorities include broadband fiber construction and installation, electric utility improvements, parks and 
recreation facilities construction and improvements, and other significant transportation improvements 
including better accessibility, more bike paths/lanes, and adding train quiet zones. 

Residents who attended the community meeting in Longmont would like to see more sustainable 
funding for libraries and expanded recreational centers to support its growing population. 

Boulder County. Boulder County’s Capital Improvement Program focuses on transportation facilities and 
services. Funding currently goes toward transit services from Boulder to Lyons, Gold Hill, Fort Collins, 
and other locations in Boulder County, roadway safety and resilience, including road shoulder 
maintenance, regional train maintenance and improvements, community mobility programs for older 
adults and people with disabilities, and road improvements in regional corridors.  

How were these needs determined? 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     75 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

The city-owned capital improvement needs are assessed annually and prioritized for the expenditure of 
city funds and revenues. The capital improvement needs of Boulder service providers, prioritized for 
CDBG investments, are identified through the annual fund round. The availability of funds is announced 
through the Notice of Funding availability that is both published and released to housing and service 
providers. In addition to the City of Boulder Community Development Fund Round, staff coordinates 
closely with the Human Services Fund Round which provides programming funds to local service 
providers. Capital improvement needs identified through the Human Services Fund Round are referred 
to the city’s Community Development Fund Round. 

For Broomfield, priority needs were determined based on an analysis of the current functions the 
facilities serve, the building conditions and age, and the forecasted demand for that service based on 
population growth on other relevant criteria, including affordability and budgeting with conservative 
revenue forecasts. Study sessions are held with City Council and public hearings held prior to approving 
plans and annual budgets. 

The City of Longmont conducts an in depth evaluation of the City’s public facility needs every 5 years 
and has its public utilities on regular replacement or maintenance schedules. The facilities and utilities to 
be updated or newly constructed each year are included and detailed in the City Capital Improvements 
Plan which is updated and adopted annually as part of the City’s budget approval. 

Describe the jurisdiction’s need for Public Improvements: 

City of Boulder. The City of Boulder prioritizes capital improvements to meet capital needs, including 
facility acquisition and rehabilitation, of agencies that serve low-income households in Boulder. See 
above for details. Feedback from a focus group with older adults highlighted need for more sidewalk 
maintenance and enhanced security of public transit, especially for bus lines that run later at night with 
fewer passengers. 

City and County of Broomfield. In addition to the public facility needs discussed above, the 2025 CIP 
identifies other public improvements that are needed and will receive funding, including community 
park improvements, playground maintenance and improvements across the city, pedestrian bridge and 
underpass repairs, erosion control maintenance to trails citywide, and park drainage improvements 
citywide.  

City of Longmont. Public improvements with the most significant capital needs (based on funding 
allocation) in the next five years include: 1) Storm drainage and rehabilitation; 2) Water systems 
rehabilitation; 3) Improvements to public parks and recreation centers; 4) Various transportation 
improvements, ranging from street rehabilitation to transit station improvements and corridor 
enhancements; and 5) Expansion of broadband service. 

How were these needs determined? 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     76 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

In Boulder, the city-owned capital improvement needs are assessed annually and prioritized for the 
expenditure of city funds and revenues.  The capital improvement needs of Boulder service providers, 
prioritized for CDBG investments, are continuously identified through the annual funding round as well 
as ongoing coordination with local service providers serving households who have low income. 

In Broomfield, priority needs were determined based on an analysis of the current functions the 
facilities serve, the building conditions and age, and the forecasted demand for that service based on 
population growth on other relevant criteria, including affordability and budgeting with conservative 
revenue forecasts. Study sessions are held with City Council and public hearings held prior to approving 
plans and annual budgets. 

For Longmont, needs were determined through the 2025-2029 Capital Improvement Program, which 
details the City’s capital infrastructure needs for the five-year period. The city’s departments and 
divisions update the Capital Assets Maintenance Plan (CAMP) and any strategic plans, identify the 
projects to be considered in the CIP, complete the project forms describing the projects and detailing 
the costs, coordinate with each other on projects that involve more than one department or division, 
and coordinate with other agencies, if applicable. The Budget Office coordinates the annual CIP process. 
Duties include assisting City staff in completing CIP forms; preparing the initial rankings for all projects; 
updating fund statements for each funding source; assembling, preparing and distributing all documents 
and materials; monitoring project expenses; and preparing amendments and additional appropriation 
ordinances. The City provides information to agencies and groups to get their input on proposed 
projects and, to the extent possible, coordinate projects with agencies that build or upgrade their own 
capital projects. The City Council reviews, holds public hearings, discusses, makes any changes to and 
adopts the CIP as part of the Operating Budget process every fall. 

Describe the jurisdiction’s need for Public Services: 

The resident survey asked extensive questions about public service needs in the region.  

• In the City of Boulder, respondents rated healthcare resources, downpayment assistance to buy 
a home, help to pay for childcare, help with car repair, help with immigration, and food 
assistance as services that would be most helpful; 

• In the City and County of Broomfield, respondents rated resources for mental healthcare, less 
expensive housing, programs and activities for positive youth development, job training 
opportunities to build skills, resources to learn to be more financially stable, and resources to 
help older family members or persons with a disability as services that would be most helpful; 

• In the City of Longmont, respondents rated resources for mental healthcare, downpayment 
assistance to buy a home, programs and activities for positive youth development, job training 
opportunities to build skills, resources to learn to be more financially stable, and emergency 
rental assistance as services that would be most helpful; and 

• Respondents in other areas of Boulder County rated resources for mental healthcare, 
downpayment assistance to buy a home, help to find quality childcare, job training 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     77 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

opportunities to build skills, resources to learn to be more financially stable, and resources to 
help older family members or persons with a disability as services that would be most helpful. 

At community meetings, Residents in Boulder discussed the need for more services for homeless people 
with mental illness and substance abuse and alcohol risk-prevention education for youth. They also 
highlighted that inflation in housing and groceries disproportionately impacts low-income families. 
Similar concerns were discussed in Broomfield and Longmont. Residents in Broomfield and Longmont 
saw mental healthcare as a large gap, especially for unhoused individuals.  

Broomfield residents reported a gap in resources for survivors of domestic violence. The closest shelters 
and resources for this group were in Boulder and Longmont. These shelters were almost always full. 
Residents in Longmont reported seeing more families experiencing homelessness and hoped that there 
would be more spaces for family shelters that included supportive services. Longmont participants 
observed that housing funding was lined up and developments were ready, but supportive services for 
residents of transitional or supportive housing lacked staff and funding for services to help people stay 
housed. 

Stakeholders interviewed in focus groups highlighted that the provision of human services is constrained 
by chronic underfunding, staff shortages, and administrative burdens. Several noted that staffing 
remains a critical issue, as low wages coupled with demanding caseloads make it difficult to retain 
qualified professionals. They emphasized that services for unhoused individuals in the region are 
insufficient, especially for those requiring street outreach, mental health care, and addiction recovery 
support. Current recovery services, such as sober living, are often cost-prohibitive and lack funding. 
There is also a need for services that extend beyond housing, such as long-term mental health support 
to support individuals in maintaining stability. To make the most efficient use of available funding, the 
region has adopted a strong regional approach. 

How were these needs determined? 

Public service needs were determined through community outreach using a resident survey, feedback 
from community meetings, and stakeholder interviews. 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     78 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Housing Market Analysis 

MA-05 Overview 
Housing Market Analysis Overview: 

This section continues the discussion of housing needs in the above (NA) section with a more specific 
focus on housing costs and condition. 

The primary challenge is in the lack of affordable housing in the region. Affordability challenges have 
increased to impact renters with higher incomes compared to data from the 2020 to 2024 Consolidated 
Plan. In the 2020 to 2024 plan, renters with income between $25,000 to $35,000 saw gaps in 
affordability. 2023 data featured in this plan shows that there is now a gap in affordability for renters 
with income between $35,000 and $50,000, which has increased the range of households with 
affordable rental needs. 

According to Boulder County Assessor data, the median home value in Boulder County increased from 
$520,000 in 2019 to $700,000 in 2024—a 35% increase. Only 24% of homes sold in Boulder County were 
less than $500,000 in 2024.  

 

 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     79 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

MA-10 Housing Market Analysis: Number of Housing Units - 91.410, 
91.210(a)&(b)(2) 
Introduction 

All residential properties by number of units 

Property Type Number % 
1-unit detached structure 101,717 58% 
1-unit, attached structure 15,089 9% 
2-4 units 8,958 5% 
5-19 units 21,267 12% 
20 or more units 23,961 14% 
Mobile Home, boat, RV, van, etc 4,078 2% 
Total 175,070 100% 

Table 38 – Residential Properties by Unit Number 
Data Source: 2023 5-year ACS 

 

Unit Size by Tenure 

 Owners Renters 
Number % Number % 

No bedroom 419 0% 3,243 5% 
1 bedroom 2,008 2% 17,958 29% 
2 bedrooms 16,208 16% 23,254 37% 
3 or more bedrooms 85,179 82% 17,882 29% 
Total 103,814 100% 62,337 100% 

Table 39 – Unit Size by Tenure 
Data Source: 2023 5-year ACS 

 

Describe the number and targeting (income level/type of family served) of units assisted with 
federal, state, and local programs. 

Consortium members individually maintain databases of affordable units assisted with federal, state, 
and local programs. 

Boulder County. Boulder County Housing Authority owns 1,100 housing units and served 1,076 voucher 
holders in 2024. Sixty-two percent of voucher holders have income between $10,000 and $40,000, 34% 
have a disability, 33% are elderly, and 75% are female.  

City of Boulder. Boulder’s Housing and Human Services Department maintains data from the Annual 
Tenant Report and Department of Planning and Development Services to track progress in meeting the 
city’s goal of achieving permanent affordability for 15% of all housing units by 2035. As of December 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     80 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

2024, Boulder has 4,098 affordable housing units (8.7% of all units). 2,650 are multifamily units and 624 
units are within condominiums. 82 rental units are dedicated to extremely low-income households, 263 
rental units are dedicated to very low-income households, 848 rental units are dedicated to low-income 
households, and 25 are dedicated towards moderate and middle-income households. For affordable 
owner-occupied units, 124 are dedicated towards low-income households, 522 are dedicated to 
moderate- and middle-income households, and 92 were dedicated to households with income over 
100% AMI. Of current residents within affordable rentals, 10% identified as having a disability and 17% 
identified as being retired. The city’s dashboard is updated periodically and can be accessed here.  

City of Longmont. According to the 2023 Longmont Housing Needs Assessment, there are 2,696 income-
restricted housing units—2,543 are rental units and 153 are ownership units. Most of these units (1,400) 
were funded through the federal LIHTC program. Others were funded through HUD programs, the City’s 
inclusionary housing program, or part of LHA’s portfolio. Housing built through inclusionary housing 
must be deed-restricted for households at or below 50% AMI for renters and 80% AMI for owners.  

City and County of Broomfield. According to the 2023 Broomfield Housing Needs Assessment Update, 
Broomfield currently has nine multifamily buildings with a total of 455 units available to those 60% AMI 
and below. Of the affordable multifamily buildings, five are dedicated to senior living and account for 
282 units and one development serves older adults with developmental disabilities with a total of eight 
units. In addition, Broomfield has 28 paired homes that are affordable to those 80% AMI and two single 
family homes that are affordable to those 120% AMI. There are two LIHTC developments in the pipeline 
that will add an additional 209 units to Broomfield’s rental stock—100 of these units are for those with 
income 60% AMI and below. An additional 847 units are set to be built in Broomfield. 137 of these will 
be affordable units funded through the Inclusionary Housing Ordinance, development agreements, or 
other non LIHTC sources). In total, 237 affordable units are in the pipeline. 

Provide an assessment of units expected to be lost from the affordable housing inventory for 
any reason, such as expiration of Section 8 contracts. 

According to the National Housing Preservation Database (NHPD), there are 5,144 homes that are 
publicly assisted in Boulder County and 771 in Broomfield County. 261 homes with federally assisted 
rental subsidies are set to expire in Boulder County within the next five years and four will expire in 
Broomfield County. 

The above estimates represent an undercount given that they do not include all properties with 
exclusively local subsidies.  

Does the availability of housing units meet the needs of the population? 

No, there remains a shortage of affordable rentals. The need has expanded to households in the 
$35,000 to $49,999 income range (from households with income between $25,000 to $35,000 income in 
the past Consolidated Plan, covering 2020 to 2024). Ownership units are also very difficult to find for 
moderate income renters seeking to buy. 

https://bouldercolorado.gov/boulder-measures/affordable-housing-boulder


 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     81 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Describe the need for specific types of housing: 

There are two primary needs in the Consortium region: 1) Rental units affordable to households with 
income of less than 50% AMI (with important focus for those with income of less than 30% AMI; and 2) 
Affordable homeownership products. 

A rental gaps analysis was conducted for Boulder County and Broomfield to support this eCon Plan. The 
gaps analysis compares the number of renters by income bracket with the number of affordable rental 
units affordable by income bracket (housing costs make up no more than 30% of income). The model 
indicates that for residents with annual income of less than $50,000 in the Boulder Consortium, an 
overall gap of approximately 16,198 units exists. 

According to Boulder County Assessor data, the median home price in Boulder County was $700,000 in 
2024. In the City of Boulder, the median price was $920,000 and in Longmont $540,000. Fifty-six percent 
of all home sales in Boulder County were above $650,000. According to ZHVI data from Zillow, the 
average sales price in 2024 in Broomfield was $645,985. 

According to the homeownership gaps model using 2023 ACS data, only households with income more 
than $150,000 can afford to purchase homes in the Boulder Consortium area. Affordable homes for sale 
are generally in the form of detached single-family homes in Longmont or attached, deed-restricted 
units in Boulder. 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     82 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Rental and Purchase Gaps, Boulder Consortium Area 

 
Note: Renter purchase gaps assume a 6.87% 30-year mortgage rate, 10% downpayment, and 30% of monthly housing costs going towards HOA fees, 

property taxes, and homeowners’ insurance. Includes renters from Broomfield and Boulder Counties. 

Source: 2023 5-year ACS and Root Policy Research. 

Alternative text: This graphic has two tables stacked. The top table describes the number of renters by income bracket, the maximum affordable rent available 
to them, the number of affordable units in the region, and the gap between the number of renters and affordable units. The table on the bottom also 
shows the number of renters by income bracket and the homes available for purchase that would be affordable to them and gaps between the renters 
(potential buyers) and units affordable in the region. 

 

Discussion 

Please see above. 

Rental Gaps

Income Range

Maximum 
Affordable 
Gross Rent

# of Renter 
Households

# of Rental 
Units Affordable Rental Gap Cumulative Gap

Less than $5,000 $125 3,214 117 -3,097 -3,097
$5,000 to $9,999 $250 2,020 382 -1,638 -4,735
$10,000 to $14,999 $375 2,420 835 -1,585 -6,320
$15,000 to $19,999 $500 2,306 324 -1,982 -8,302
$20,000 to $24,999 $625 2,566 534 -2,032 -10,334
$25,000 to $34,999 $875 4,981 951 -4,030 -14,364
$35,000 to $49,999 $1,250 6,568 4,734 -1,834 -16,198
$50,000 to $74,999 $1,875 9,889 22,274 12,385 -3,813
$75,000 to $99,999 $2,500 8,391 20,043 11,652 7,838
$100,000 or more 9,995 14,492 -5,490 2,348

Renter Purchase Gaps

Income Range

Maximum 
Affordable 

Price
% of Renter 
Households

% of Homes 
Affordable

Renter 
Purchase Gap Cumulative Gap

Less than $5,000 $14,807 5% 1% -4% -4%
$5,000 to $9,999 $29,611 3% 0% -3% -7%
$10,000 to $14,999 $44,418 4% 1% -3% -10%
$15,000 to $19,999 $59,225 4% 1% -3% -13%
$20,000 to $24,999 $74,032 4% 0% -4% -17%
$25,000 to $34,999 $103,646 8% 1% -7% -24%
$35,000 to $49,999 $148,067 11% 0% -10% -34%
$50,000 to $74,999 $222,103 16% 1% -15% -49%
$75,000 to $99,999 $296,138 13% 2% -12% -61%
$100,000 to $149,999 $444,208 16% 11% -5% -65%
$150,000 or more 16% 81% 65%



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     83 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

MA-15 Housing Market Analysis: Cost of Housing - 91.410, 91.210(a) 
Introduction 

This section contains pre-populated HUD tables that support the housing needs and market analysis 
discussions above. Where appropriate, alternative data sources have been referenced and numbers 
updated. 

Cost of Housing – Boulder County 

 Base Year:  2010 Most Recent Year:  2023 % Change 
Median Home Value $353,300 $713,900 102% 
Median Contract Rent $897 $1,788 99% 

Table 40 – Cost of Housing 
 

Data Source: 2010, 2023 5-year ACS: Reflects Boulder County Only (See table “Cost of Housing – Broomfield County” for median 
home and contract rents in Broomfield. 

 
Cost of Housing – Broomfield County 

 Base Year:  2010 Most Recent Year:  2023 % Change 
Median Home Value $270,500 $631,600 133% 
Median Contract Rent $865 $1,920 122% 

Table 41 – Cost of Housing 
 

Data Source: 2010, 2023 5-year ACS: Reflects Broomfield County Only  

 
Rent Paid Number % 

Less than $500 1,812 2.97% 
$500-999 3,099 5.08% 
$1,000-1,499 12,807 21.01% 
$1,500-1,999 20,120 33.01% 
$2,000 or more 23,112 37.92% 
Total 60,950 100% 

Table 42 - Rent Paid 
Data Source: 2023 5-year ACS 

 
Housing Affordability 

Number of Units affordable to 
Households earning  

Renter Owner 

30% HAMFI 2,313 No Data 
50% HAMFI 8,988 2,765 
80% HAMFI 27,931 8,072 
100% HAMFI No Data 16,605 
Total 39,232 27,442 

Table 43 – Housing Affordability 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     84 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Data Source: 2016-2020 CHAS 

 
Monthly Rent  

Monthly Rent ($) Efficiency (no 
bedroom) 

1 Bedroom 2 Bedroom 3 Bedroom 4 Bedroom 

Fair Market Rent 1,397 1,578 1,911 2,541 3,005 
High HOME Rent 1,130 1,242 1,516 1,887 2,085 
Low HOME Rent 995 1,065 1,278 1,476 1,647 

Table 44 – Monthly Rent 
Data Source: HUD FMR and HOME Rents 

 
Is there sufficient housing for households at all income levels? 

No. Please see the discussions on housing needs in NA-05, MA-05 and MA-10. 

How is affordability of housing likely to change considering changes to home values and/or 
rents? 

In the near term, the Consortium is unlikely to see much relief from the gaps in affordable homes 
available for rent or purchase. It is difficult for supply to keep up with continued demand by households 
moving to the region. All jurisdictions have experienced a significant decline in private market rental 
units affordable to renter households with income less than $50,000. These units are renting at higher 
rates, which has broadened the income brackets in which rental gaps exist and increased the number of 
renters with high incomes. 

Developers interviewed pointed to several barriers to the development of affordable housing in the 
region: Regulatory and zoning constraints, administrative delays, and lack of funding and incentives. See 
MA-40 for more detail. 

How do HOME rents / Fair Market Rent compare to Area Median Rent? How might this 
impact your strategy to produce or preserve affordable housing? 

The median rent in Boulder County is $1,893 and $2,074 in Broomfield County. HUD FMRs for 2023 are 
lower than the median rent. When FMRs lag behind market rents, Housing Choice Voucher holders 
typically have difficulty finding rental units that can accommodate the allowable payment standard.  
Consortium members will continue to prioritize the preservation of affordable housing, especially 
considering the loss of naturally occurring affordable rentals in the last 5 years. 

Discussion 

Please see above. 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     85 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

MA-20 Housing Market Analysis: Condition of Housing - 91.410, 91.210(a) 
Introduction 

This section provides an overview of the condition of housing throughout Boulder County and 
Broomfield. 

Describe the jurisdiction's definition of "standard condition" and "substandard condition but 
suitable for rehabilitation": 

The Consortium provides the following definitions of “substandard condition” and “substandard 
condition but suitable for rehabilitation," as well as "standard" condition. 

Standard Condition: Structure/dwelling unit substantially meets the Uniform Physical Condition 
Standard (UPCS) and/or local or state codes. 

Substandard Condition: Structure/dwelling unit that does not meet the Uniform Physical Condition 
Standard (UPCS) and/or local or state codes. 

Substandard Condition but Suitable for Rehabilitation: Structure/dwelling unit that does not meet the 
Uniform Physical Condition Standard (UPCS) and/or local or state codes but is both financially and 
structurally feasible for rehabilitation. 

Condition of Units 

Condition of Units Owner-Occupied Renter-Occupied 
Number % Number % 

With one selected Condition 22,771 22% 32,455 52% 
With two selected Conditions 265 0% 1,457 2% 
With three selected Conditions 91 0% 125 0% 
With four selected Conditions 14 0% 3 0% 
No selected Conditions 80,673 78% 28,297 45% 
Total 103,814 100% 62,337 100% 

Table 45 - Condition of Units 
Data Source: 2023 5-year ACS 

 
 
Year Unit Built 

Year Unit Built Owner-Occupied Renter-Occupied 
Number % Number % 

2000 or later 28,577 28% 21,356 34% 
1980-1999 36,056 35% 18,033 29% 
1950-1979 33,889 33% 18,742 30% 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     86 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Year Unit Built Owner-Occupied Renter-Occupied 
Number % Number % 

Before 1950 5,292 5% 4,206 7% 
Total 103,814 100% 62,337 100% 

Table 46 – Year Unit Built 
Data Source: 2023 5-year ACS 

 
 
Risk of Lead-Based Paint Hazard 

Risk of Lead-Based Paint Hazard Owner-Occupied Renter-Occupied 
Number % Number % 

Total Number of Units Built Before 1980 39,181 38% 22,948 37% 
Housing Units build before 1980 with children present 10,752 11% 7,213 13% 

Table 47 – Risk of Lead-Based Paint 
Data Source: 2023 5-year ACS (Total Units) 2016-2020 CHAS (Units with Children present) 

 
 
Vacant Units 

 Suitable for 
Rehabilitation 

Not Suitable for 
Rehabilitation 

Total 

Vacant Units   8,919 
Abandoned Vacant Units    
REO Properties    
Abandoned REO Properties    

Table 48 - Vacant Units 
Describe the need for owner and rental rehabilitation based on the condition of the 
jurisdiction's housing. 

Based on 2023 5-year estimates, 38% of owner-occupied units and 37% of rental units were built before 
1980. Homes built before this date are more likely to need rehabilitation and lead abatement. The 
resident survey further explored the need for owner and rental rehabilitation: 

• 17% of respondents in the region overall rated the condition of their home as fair or poor. 
Among jurisdictions, residents from the City of Boulder were the most likely to rate the 
condition of their home as fair or poor (23%), followed by Longmont (22%), other areas of 
Boulder County (18%), and Broomfield (12%).  

• By tenure, precariously housed residents were most likely to be unsatisfied with the condition of 
their home (31%).  

• Residents in publicly assisted housing had the second highest rating of fair or poor conditions 
(33%). Renters were more than twice as likely to rate the condition of their home as fair or poor 
compared to homeowners.  

• 29% of respondents with household income less than $49,999 reported fair or poor conditions 
compared to only 2% of respondents with income above $150,000. 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     87 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

• Domestic violence survivors (26%) and single parents (24%) had among the highest rates 
reporting poor or fair conditions. 

Of respondents who said they were unsatisfied with the condition of their home, 39% reported issues 
with interior walls (39%), bathroom plumbing (38%), broken windows (35%), foundation issues (35%), 
weatherization (35%), landscaping (32%), and cooling system issues (32%). 

Estimate the number of housing units within the jurisdiction that are occupied by low or 
moderate income families that contain lead-based paint hazards. 91.205(e), 91.405 

Lead-based paint has been recognized as a major environmental hazard facing children. Elevated blood 
lead levels in young children can lead to a range of problems from relatively subtle developmental 
disabilities to severe impairment or even death. Common health effects of lead-based paint exposure 
include impaired cognition and functioning, slowed learning abilities and behavioral disorders. Often 
these manifestations are subtle during early childhood but become more pronounced as children 
progress through school. 

The HUD table above shows that there are approximately 39,181 owner-occupied units in the region 
built before 1980, when the federal government banned consumer uses. Of owner-occupied units built 
before 1980, 11% have children present. Of the 22,948 rental units built before 1980, 13% have children 
present. These potential hazards are at HUD upper bounds of risk. It is important to note that Boulder’s 
hazards, in particular, may be lower due to remodeled units driven by high demand for housing. 

Discussion 

Please see above. 

 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     88 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

MA-25 Public And Assisted Housing - 91.410, 91.210(b) 
Introduction 

Totals Number of Units – Boulder Consortium IDIS Download 

Program Type 
 Certificate Mod-Rehab Public 

Housing 
Vouchers 

Total Project -based Tenant -based 
 

Special Purpose Voucher 
Veterans 

Affairs 
Supportive 

Housing 

Family 
Unification 

Program 

Disabled 
* 

# of units vouchers 
available     0 736     0 0 0 
# of accessible units                   
*includes Non-Elderly Disabled, Mainstream One-Year, Mainstream Five-year, and Nursing Home Transition 

Table 49 – Total Number of Units by Program Type 
Data Source: PIC (PIH Information Center) 

X 
Totals Number of Units – Boulder County Housing Authority 

Program Type 
 Certificate Mod-

Rehab 
Public 

Housing 
Vouchers 

Total Project -based Tenant -based 
 

Special Purpose Voucher 
Veterans Affairs 

Supportive 
Housing 

Family 
Unification 

Program 

Disabled 
* 

# of units vouchers 
available 0  0  0 991**     

17 29 10 

# of accessible units 0 0 0 Data not 
tracked  

Data not 
tracked  

Data not 
tracked  

Data not 
tracked  

Data not 
tracked  

Data not 
tracked  

*includes Non-Elderly Disabled, Mainstream One-Year, Mainstream Five-year, and Nursing Home Transition 
**Total Annual Contributions Contract with HUD; includes all Special Purpose Vouchers but does not include Emergency Voucher Program 

Table 50 – Total Number of Units by Program Type 
Data Source: 
 

Boulder County Housing Authority 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     89 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Totals Number of Units – Broomfield Housing Alliance 

Program Type 
 Certificate Mod-

Rehab 
Public 

Housing 
Vouchers 

Total Project -based Tenant -based 
 

Special Purpose Voucher 
Veterans Affairs 

Supportive 
Housing 

Family 
Unification 

Program 

Disabled 
* 

# of units vouchers 
available 0  0  0 50   50  

   

# of accessible units 0 0 0       
*includes Non-Elderly Disabled, Mainstream One-Year, Mainstream Five-year, and Nursing Home Transition 

Table 51 – Total Number of Units by Program Type 
Data Source: Broomfield Housing Alliance 

Totals Number of Units – Longmont Housing Authority 

Program Type 
 Certificate Mod-

Rehab 
Public 

Housing 
Vouchers 

Total Project -based Tenant -based 
 

Special Purpose Voucher 
Veterans Affairs 

Supportive 
Housing 

Family 
Unification 

Program 

Disabled 
* 

# of units vouchers 
available 0  0  0     

   

# of accessible units 0 0 0 52      
*includes Non-Elderly Disabled, Mainstream One-Year, Mainstream Five-year, and Nursing Home Transition 

Table 52 – Total Number of Units by Program Type 
Data Source: Longmont Housing Authority 

 

Describe the supply of public housing developments: 

Describe the number and physical condition of public housing units in the jurisdiction, including those that are participating in an 
approved Public Housing Agency Plan: 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     90 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

As Boulder’s largest holder of affordable housing assets, Boulder Housing Partners’ inventory offers 1,442 of units. Of this inventory, BHP has 
two communities with public housing in Boulder which offer one to four-bedroom apartments and townhomes for income-qualified and eligible 
community members. Arapahoe Court offers one-bedroom apartment homes for adults age 62+ and people with disabilities. Madison offers 
one, two and three-bedroom apartments and townhomes for adults 62+, people with disabilities, and families. 

Longmont Housing Authority does not have any Public Housing units in its portfolio. It does have 462 affordable rental homes in 9 different 
communities which includes 38 homes for individuals and families, 82 Permanent Supportive Housing (PSH) homes, and 342 homes for older 
adults. Longmont Housing Authority has 75 additional homes under construction for individuals and families, expected to be completed in 
January 2026.  

Boulder County Housing Authority does not have any Public Housing units in its portfolio. 13-unit Hillside Square in Louisville was converted to a 
project-based subsidy from public housing and now supports households under 50% AMI who are 62 years or older or have minor children in the 
home.  

Broomfield Housing Alliance is a grantee of the Colorado Department of Local Affairs Division of Housing for the Housing Voucher Program and 
receives 50 directly from the state. BHA is currently constructing the Cottonwood project, which will offer roughly 40 rental units to low- and 
moderate-income households. 

All units are tenable and physically in fair condition (there are seven sites, so condition varies depending on age, etc.). Most units are in original 
condition since construction with original fixtures, but appliances, flooring, fixtures & HVAC equipment have been replaced on an as-needed 
basis. In 2024, BCHA completed 1,459 HVAC work orders, 662 emergency work orders, and 9,446 total work orders. 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     91 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Public Housing Condition 

Public Housing Development Average Inspection Score 
  

Table 53 - Public Housing Condition 
 

Describe the restoration and revitalization needs of public housing units in the jurisdiction: 

Boulder County Housing Authority. Boulder County’s Affordable and Attainable Housing Tax fund will 
go towards the rehabilitation, renovation, and continued development of affordable housing.  

Broomfield Housing Alliance. BHA’s housing inventory is new—The Grove at Cottonwood is anticipated 
to be finished in 2025 and ready for leasing in 2026. Vista Pointe Homes is in pre-development stages. 
There are no income-restricted properties in the Broomfield apartment directory built before 1980.  

The resident survey provided additional insight into the rehabilitation needs of residents within publicly 
assisted housing in the Consortium area. A third (33%) of respondents who lived in publicly supported 
housing reported their home was in fair or poor condition. The most needed repair reported by publicly 
assisted housing residents were cooling/ AC system issues, followed by interior wall issues, landscaping, 
and broken windows.  

Describe the public housing agency's strategy for improving the living environment of low- 
and moderate-income families residing in public housing: 

Boulder Housing Partners. BHP offers several services for its current residents, including: 

• Healthcare information and referrals for seniors and people with disabilities; 
• Family site programs, including after-school and summer programs for children and service 

coordinators for families; and 
• Free or reduced membership to Boulder recreation facilities, free rides with Boulder B-Cycle 

Boulder County Housing Authority. BCHA offers several services for its current residents, including: 

• Supportive tenancy counseling and coaching; 
• Referrals for mental health and medical services 
• Unlimited transit passes 
• Community building events 
• Housing Helpline 

Broomfield Housing Alliance. Broomfield strategically chose the location of its next affordable 
development, Vista Pointe Homes. The development will feature 55 to 65 income restricted rental units 
and is located nearby several community resources and transit. 

Discussion: 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     92 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Please see above. 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     93 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

MA-30 Homeless Facilities and Services - 91.410, 91.210(c) 
Introduction 

Facilities Targeted to Homeless Persons 

 Emergency Shelter Beds Transitional 
Housing Beds 

Permanent Supportive Housing 
Beds 

Year Round Beds 
(Current & New) 

Voucher / 
Seasonal / 

Overflow Beds 

Current & New Current & New Under 
Development 

Households with Adult(s) and 
Child(ren) 

48     

Households with Only Adults 324 16 202   
Chronically Homeless Households    369  
Veterans      
Unaccompanied Youth 14   42  

Table 54 - Facilities Targeted to Homeless Persons 
 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     94 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Describe mainstream services, such as health, mental health, and employment services to the 
extent those services are use to complement services targeted to homeless persons 

Boulder County provides rapid rehousing and rental assistance through tenant- and project-based 
vouchers, newly constructed housing developments serving households with income at or below 60% 
AMI, and rental assistance coupons for transitional housing and permanent housing. In May 2024, 
Boulder County launched the WellMind Connection and Crisis Assistance and Treatment team to help 
residents navigate and find the right mental and behavioral health resources. Additionally, Boulder 
Community Health launched the Pillar Program, which offers short-term case management services and 
referrals for those seeking treatment for chronic pain or substance abuse disorders. 

Longmont provides services through its Department of Human Services and funds programs throughout 
the city that increase access to healthcare, legal representation, food pantries, shelter, housing, self-
sufficiency programs, anti-poverty programs, basic needs, childcare, safe exchanges for children, 
transitional housing, veterans services, transportation and early childhood learning programs through 
the Human Services Agency Funding Program. 

The City of Boulder’s Human Services Fund (HSF) provides roughly $2.1 million annually in support for 
services to community members at-risk or experiencing socio-economic disparities, in alignment with 
the city’s Human Services Strategy. Services provided through HSF investments include childcare and 
early education; physical, dental, mental and behavioral health services; financial assistance for rent, 
food and housing; legal services for underrepresented community members; child and family safety; and 
other basic needs services for community members of all ages. 

The city’s Health Equity Fund (HEF) provides roughly $5 million annually for a wide range of programs 
aimed at reducing health disparities. Programs include services for direct physical, dental, mental and 
behavioral health care, health systems access and navigation, food security, nutrition, physical fitness 
and wellness education, and other special projects impacting social determinants of health.   

The City of Boulder Substance Education and Awareness (SEA) Fund invests in programs to prevent 
youth and family substance use and abuse. The Fund supports adult influencer trainings, youth pro-
social events, youth peer education programs, business retail staff training and education, and 
collaborative substance abuse program planning and advocacy. 

Please see information about services below. 

List and describe services and facilities that meet the needs of homeless persons, particularly 
chronically homeless individuals and families, families with children, veterans and their 
families, and unaccompanied youth. If the services and facilities are listed on screen SP-40 
Institutional Delivery Structure or screen MA-35 Special Needs Facilities and Services, 
describe how these facilities and services specifically address the needs of these populations. 

Boulder County, the City of Boulder, the City of Longmont, Boulder Housing Partners, Longmont Housing 
Authority, Boulder County Housing Authority, Boulder Shelter for the Homeless, Clinica Family Health 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     95 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

and Wellness (formerly Mental Health Partners), Metro Denver Homeless Initiative, and other partners 
consistently conduct case conferencing for placement of homeless individuals with housing resources, 
implement new initiatives, and monitor system performance. Persons experiencing homelessness are 
connected with other wrap-around services in the community. Representatives from Boulder 
Community Health and the justice system are also active participants in the coordination of services for 
adult individuals experiencing homelessness. Specific services and facilities include: 

• TGTHR (Formerly Attention Homes) runs a program that includes street outreach, day drop-in 
and overnight emergency shelter bed services to homeless teens and recently opened a PSH 
facility with 40 units in Boulder.  

• All Roads (formerly Boulder Shelter for the Homeless) provides year-round, housing-focused 
sheltering for disabled individual adults experiencing homelessness. All Roads also helps run the 
coordinated entry program, outreach in the county, and the case management of permanent 
supportive housing units in partnership with Boulder Housing Partners. Within the shelter, BSH 
provides meals, on-site access to health and mental health services, case management and 
housing navigation services, laundry facilities, and storage. All Roads also provides 
comprehensive, housing focused day services (including respite services) that are provided to 
approximately 150 people per day. Moreover, All Roads is the lead agency for the Building 
Home program, providing housing retention services. 

• Bridge House provides multiple homeless services including the Ready To Work (RTW) program 
that provides transitional employment, housing, and training to move on to mainstream 
employment.  

• Clinica Family Health, Salud Family Health Center, and Dental Aid provide on-site health and 
dental care to households with low income, including those experiencing homelessness. Clinica 
also provides street medical outreach to the unhoused population. The Sister Carmen 
Community Center partners with St. Benedict Health, Healing Ministry, Good Samaritan 
Hospital, Dental Aid, and Clinica Family Health to refer patients to healthcare. 

• Family resource centers including Emergency Family Assistance Association (EFAA), the OUR 
Center, and Sister Carmen Community Center, provide basic needs and prevention assistance 
through rental and other financial aid, case management and emergency and transitional 
housing units. 

• Clinica Family Health and Wellness provides behavioral health services, including substance 
abuse treatment, life skills and employment. Locations are in Boulder, Broomfield, Lafayette, 
Longmont, and Nederland. Clinica partners with homeless service providers throughout the 
region, including the All Roads Shelter, to provide mental health intervention.  

• The Boulder Police Department has a Homeless Outreach Team that works to build relationships 
with visible and hidden homeless populations and refer them to appropriate services 

• Boulder Housing Partners also administers a Housing Choice Voucher program (not exclusively 
CoC vouchers), and partners with local homeless services providers to develop and manage 
housing, including permanent supportive housing programs, for people experiencing 
homelessness. 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     96 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

• Mother House Haven Ridge in Boulder offers shelter and support for pregnant women 
experiencing homelessness. 

• HOPE for Longmont provides the only year-round overnight service center for Longmont 
community members experiencing homelessness while offering supportive follow-through 
services. 

• Safehouse Progressive Alliance for Nonviolence (SPAN) and Safe Shelter of St. Vrain Valley 
provide support for survivors of domestic violence through a variety of crisis and transition 
support services. SPAN also offers emergency shelter beds and transitional housing. 

• The Refuge in Broomfield is a hub for people experiencing homelessness. It provides free lunch 
and snacks, personal care items and outdoor gear, on-site community partners for housing and 
employment navigation, and operates the Broomfield Cares Mobile Outreach Team made up of 
social workers and community partners that deliver services directly to homeless individuals 

• Tribe Recovery Homes opened in January 2024 to address addiction and behavioral health 
challenges among individuals experiencing homelessness and has serviced 124 individuals with 
counseling and housing. 

 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     97 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

MA-35 Special Needs Facilities and Services - 91.410, 91.210(d) 
Introduction 

This section discusses the needs of people with special needs in the Consortium area. Please see NA-45 
for more demographic details of special populations in the Consortium 

Including the elderly, frail elderly, persons with disabilities (mental, physical, developmental), 
persons with alcohol or other drug addictions, persons with HIV/AIDS and their families, 
public housing residents and any other categories the jurisdiction may specify, and describe 
their supportive housing needs 

The estimated housing and supportive service needs appear in NA-45 and are based on the incidence of 
poverty, incidence of disability, cost burden, and national statistics on the likelihood of special needs 
groups to have both short- and long-term housing and service needs. NA-45 also discusses the 
supportive needs of these populations as identified by findings from the resident survey and stakeholder 
focus groups. 

Describe programs for ensuring that persons returning from mental and physical health 
institutions receive appropriate supportive housing 

Ensuring that individuals transitioning from mental and physical health institutions receive appropriate 
supportive housing in Boulder and Broomfield counties involves accessing various local programs and 
services designed to facilitate stable housing and comprehensive support. Service providers pointed to 
the “no wrong door” collaborative approach to best serve resident needs, including those returning 
from mental and physical health institutions.  

In Boulder County, the Housing Stabilization Program (HSP) works with local partners like Family 
Resource Centers, domestic violence agencies, the St. Vrain and Boulder Valley School Districts, Boulder 
County Family and Children Services, and Colorado Works. In 2024, the program offered 475 households 
case management and distributed $2.8 million in rental assistance through its partners. Additionally, the 
Boulder County Housing Helpline provides housing navigation supports, assistance with landlord/tenant 
issues, eviction prevention, and referrals to rental assistance programs. In 2024, this helpline answered 
over 2,600 questions. All Roads, a shelter and support network for people experiencing homelessness in 
Boulder County also offers respite services and helps individuals with serious medical conditions with 
discharge plans following a stay at mental and physical health institutions with the ultimate goal of 
ensuring long-term supportive housing options for these homeless individuals. 

The City of Boulder, City of Longmont, and Boulder County are part of Homeless Solutions for Boulder 
County—a group that works to implement homeless strategy goals. These goals include pathways to 
permanent housing and expanding access and services to reduce homelessness. Although data is not 
available regarding persons returning from mental and physical health institutions, the priority of 
locating permanent housing fits the needs of this group. Since the inception of the strategy in 2017, over 
1,800 individuals have exited homelessness (as of September 2023). 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     98 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

In Broomfield, Clinica Family Health provides comprehensive outpatient care and support for individuals 
who are exiting institutions. Additionally, the Broomfield Collaborative Care Management Program 
provides support to individuals and families through integrating a service and support team from local 
service providers. Their inter-agency collaboration allows for comprehensive housing and service 
assistance for individuals exiting institutions  

Specify the activities that the jurisdiction plans to undertake during the next year to address 
the housing and supportive services needs identified in accordance with 91.215(e) with 
respect to persons who are not homeless but have other special needs. Link to one-year 
goals. 91.315(e) 

Boulder’s one-year goal goals include assistance for rental housing programs and community vitality 
initiatives, which include the delivery of public services for people at-risk of or experiencing 
homelessness. 

Boulder’s key initiatives to support the needs of people experiencing homelessness and special 
populations with supportive service needs include: 

• Continued implementation of the Homelessness Strategy, including achieving housing goals, 
fully implementing integrated data for improved outcome tracking, and refining a new adult 
homeless service systems; 

• Continued investing city’s housing and human services financial resources, aligning direct 
services with expanding partnerships to achieve outcome driven goals as identified in the 
Human Services Strategy, Health Equity initiative, Housing Strategy, the Economic Sustainability 
Strategy, Resilience Strategy, and the Boulder Valley Comprehensive Plan (BVCP)—A Boulder 
Future, an update to this plan, is underway; 

• Continued support of the Family Service, which includes the Child Care Subsidy Program, 
financial assistance to support low- and lower-middle income families in paying for quality, 
affordable childcare and Family Resource Schools, a partnership with the Boulder Valley School 
District (BVSD) to provide outreach, direct services and referrals for families and children to 
remove academic and non-academic barriers to success in five Boulder elementary schools. 

In 2024, Homeless Solutions for Boulder County (HSBC) and Public Policy Associates conducted a 
homeless programs evaluation. 1 The report is based on data analysis and interviews with 
government officials, service providers, and people experiencing homelessness. The program 
evaluation report recommended the following to enhance existing homelessness services: 

• Optimize data systems; 
• Address equity and disparities; 

 

1 https://www.documentcloud.org/documents/25524624-20250213_homelessness_study_session_memo/ 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     99 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

• Expand housing and support services; 
• Enhance crisis response; 
• Strengthen governance and collaboration; 
• Increase community understanding and support; and 
• Balance funding for short-term interventions with long-term housing solutions. 

The City of Boulder’s Health Equity Fund and Human Services Fund provide upstream investments in 
programs that help prevent homelessness, increase the efficacy, sufficiency and resiliency of 
individuals and families at-risk, and modify support systems to better address root causes of 
inequities and disparities. Food security and health are top priorities of the fund. In 2024, $940,210 
went to healthy food security and clean water related programs and almost $3 million went to 
physical fitness and healthy recreation. The city also allocates Human Services Fund and Health 
Equity Fund dollars for case management and legal services that help people who are experiencing 
economic disparities – including older adults, Latinx community members, disabled individuals, 
people existing the jail system, pregnant women experiencing housing insecurity – access federal 
health, food and emergency financial assistance. The aim is to increase economic mobility through 
employment, post-secondary education and financial literacy while ensuring equitable access to 
health. 

For entitlement/consortia grantees: Specify the activities that the jurisdiction plans to 
undertake during the next year to address the housing and supportive services needs 
identified in accordance with 91.215(e) with respect to persons who are not homeless but 
have other special needs. Link to one-year goals. (91.220(2)) 

Please see above for the City of Boulder’s activities in respect to persons who are not homeless but have 
other special needs. 

The City of Broomfield’s 2024 Department of Human Services provided over $1.5 million in grants for 
local nonprofits. These included Imagine!, an organization that services residents with disabilities and 
Clinica Family Health, who provided underinsured residents with mental healthcare access. Broomfield 
aims to enhance Adult Protective Services as the population continues to age and provide more entry 
points for low income families to access public assistance. This includes the Self-Sufficiency and 
Employment Division that screens families for food stamps, Medicaid, CCCAP, and TANF, tenant-based 
rental assistance, and Broomfield’s Workforce Center. Additionally, Broomfield has implemented the 
EasyRide Transportation program for residents over 60 and adults with disabilities and has since 
expanded to provide rides to Boulder and medical appointments throughout the Denver metro. In terms 
of housing support, Broomfield passed an Inclusionary Housing Ordinance in 2020 and updated it in 
2022 that requires new developments to include affordable units along with incentives for affordable 
housing developers. Broomfield Housing Alliance continues to collaborate with real estate and LIHTC 
developers to create and preserve affordable housing in the city. The Home Rehabilitation and Mobile 
Home Repair programs offer low-income homeowners affordable repair services and accessibility 
modifications in partnership with Brother’s Redevelopment. 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     100 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

In Longmont, the 2025 budget provides $700,000 of ongoing funding and $300,000 in one-time funding 
from the general fund for the city’s Affordable Housing Fund. These funds assist for-profit and nonprofit 
developers in preserving and creating affordable housing options in Longmont. Revenue from the 
marijuana sales tax for affordable housing development is expected to be $275,000 in 2025. Three 
percent of the general fund is allocated to fund services that address critical human service needs in 
Longmont, including housing stabilization and homeless intervention programs. Additionally, $275,000 
from the Special Marijuana Sales Tax has been allocated towards mental health, addiction, outreach, 
and therapeutic services for people with mental health and substance abuse challenges.  

 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     101 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

MA-40 Barriers to Affordable Housing - 91.410, 91.210(e) 
Describe any negative effects of public policies on affordable housing and residential 
investment 

As part of the engagement conducted for the Consolidated Plan, developers provided feedback on 
public policy barriers on affordable housing. The barriers identified below are in addition to market 
barriers, such as price increases, rising construction costs, and low vacancy rates.  

Developers highlighted regulatory and zoning constraints, administrative delays, and lack of funding and 
incentives as key barriers to affordable development.  

• Zoning regulations present challenges for developers, particularly due to time-consuming 
processes and lengthy review periods. Additional zoning constraints, such as complex design 
standards, further slow development (e.g., requirements for private common spaces, historic 
district protections, height  restrictions, etc.).  The public nature of zoning and permitting 
processes introduces additional delays and opposition from neighborhood groups often disrupts 
projects.   

• Administrative inefficiencies are another contributor to project delays, adding time, cost and 
risk to developments. For example, staff turnover within city and county departments disrupts 
continuity in collaboration with developers and slows problem-solving when issues arise. 
Developers also highlighted the need to streamline overlapping planning documents and 
neighborhood boards. Mid-project code changes and administrative barriers to obtaining 
Temporary Certificates of Occupancy (TCOs) were also mentioned.  

• Lack of funding and incentives. Developers often face high financial stakes, as delays increase 
costs and risks associated with borrowing. This is particularly problematic in affordable housing 
projects where profit margins are slimmer. While developers acknowledge that there is a large 
need for the lowest AMI brackets, they say that they need support from local governments to 
help them see a return on their substantial investment.  

Additional details on barriers to development are included in the Engagement Appendix attached to the 
Consolidated Plan. 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     102 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

MA-45 Non-Housing Community Development Assets - 91.410, 91.210(f) 
Introduction 

This section provides an overview of the economic and community development climates in Boulder, Broomfield, and Longmont Consortium.  

Economic Development Market Analysis 

Business Activity 

Business by Sector Number of 
Workers 

Number of Jobs Share of Workers 
% 

Share of Jobs 
% 

Jobs less workers 
% 

Agriculture, Mining, Oil & Gas Extraction 1,361 694 0.8% 0.3% -0.5% 
Arts, Entertainment, Accommodations 16,636 18,875 9.8% 8.7% -1.1% 
Construction 7,476 7,177 4.4% 3.3% -1.1% 
Education and Health Care Services 35,854 44,232 21.1% 20.5% -0.6% 
Finance, Insurance, and Real Estate 9,399 9,026 5.5% 4.2% -1.4% 
Information 8,479 15,522 5.0% 7.2% 2.2% 
Manufacturing 14,345 25,292 8.4% 11.7% 3.3% 
Other Services 5,079 5,845 3.0% 2.7% -0.3% 
Professional, Scientific, Management Services 31,647 48,019 18.6% 22.2% 3.6% 
Public Administration 8,006 7,111 4.7% 3.3% -1.4% 
Retail Trade 5,289 5,162 3.1% 2.4% -0.7% 
Transportation and Warehousing 13,925 17,493 8.2% 8.1% -0.1% 
Wholesale Trade 4,665 2,681 2.7% 1.2% -1.5% 
Total 7,735 9,076 4.6% 4.2% -0.4% 

Table 55 - Business Activity 
Data Source: 2022 Longitudinal Employer-Household Dynamics (Jobs) 

 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     103 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Labor Force 

Total Population in the Civilian Labor Force 229,560 
Civilian Employed Population 16 years and over 219,551 
Unemployment Rate 4.36% 
Unemployment Rate for Ages 16-24 0.09% 
Unemployment Rate for Ages 25-65 0.04% 

Table 56 - Labor Force 
Data Source: 2023 5-year ACS 

 

Occupations by Sector Number of People 
Management, business and financial 47,664 
Farming, fisheries and forestry occupations 569 
Service 29,355 
Sales and office 36,494 
Construction, extraction, maintenance and 
repair 

9,885 

Production, transportation and material 
moving 

15,724 

Table 57 – Occupations by Sector 
Data Source: 2023 5-year ACS 

 

Travel Time 

Travel Time Number Percentage 
< 30 Minutes 105,312 68% 
30-59 Minutes 39,664 26% 
60 or More Minutes 8,947 6% 
Total 153,923 100% 

Table 58 - Travel Time 
Data Source: 2023 5-year ACS 

 

Education: 

Educational Attainment by Employment Status (Population 16 and Older) 

Educational Attainment In Labor Force  
Civilian Employed Unemployed Not in Labor 

Force 
Less than high school graduate 6,511 310 2,801 
High school graduate (includes 
equivalency) 

16,487 680 4,616 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     104 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Educational Attainment In Labor Force  
Civilian Employed Unemployed Not in Labor 

Force 
Some college or Associate's degree 32,720 1,625 7,509 
Bachelor's degree or higher 114,874 3,507 17,194 

Table 59 - Educational Attainment by Employment Status 
Data Source: 2023 5-year ACS 

 

Educational Attainment by Age 

 Age 
18–24 yrs 25–34 yrs 35–44 yrs 45–65 yrs 65+ yrs 

Less than 9th grade 411 738 1,247 2,358 1,205 
9th to 12th grade, no diploma 3,271 955 1,827 2,497 1,068 
High school graduate, GED, or 
alternative 

14,661 6,395 4,987 10,432 9,058 

Some college, no degree 26,954 8,419 5,919 13,909 12,119 
Associate's degree 1,216 3,978 3,206 6,593 4,221 
Bachelor's degree 8,668 24,151 18,925 33,993 17,078 
Graduate or professional degree 837 11,798 16,280 30,601 18,475 

Table 60 - Educational Attainment by Age 
Data Source: 2023 5-year ACS 

 

Educational Attainment – Median Earnings in the Past 12 Months 

Educational Attainment Median Earnings in the Past 12 Months 
Less than high school graduate $39,753 
High school graduate (includes equivalency) $42,367 
Some college or Associate's degree $45,955 
Bachelor's degree $71,451 
Graduate or professional degree $93,116 

Table 61 – Median Earnings in the Past 12 Months 
Data Source: 2023 5-year ACS 

Based on the Business Activity table above, what are the major employment sectors within 
your jurisdiction? 

In the Consortium, the tables above show that the employment industries that provide the greatest 
share of jobs are Professional, Scientific, and Management (22%), Education and Health Care Services 
(21%), and Manufacturing (12%). 

Most workers in the HOME Consortium are employed in Education and Health Care Services (21%), 
Professional, Scientific, Management Services (19%), and Arts, Entertainment, Accommodations (10%). 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     105 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Overall, the industries of workers and jobs are well-aligned in the Consortium. The Jobs less Workers 
column of the Business Activity table suggests that the Consortium has somewhat fewer workers than 
jobs in Information, Manufacturing, and Professional, Scientific, and Management. Conversely, the 
Consortium has somewhat more workers than jobs in Transportation and Warehousing (1.5 percentage 
point difference). 

In Broomfield, the employment industries that provide the greatest share of jobs are Professional, 
Scientific, Management Services (29%), Information (12%), and Education and Health Care Services (9%). 

Most workers in the Broomfield are employed in Education and Health Care Services (19%), 
Professional, Scientific, Management Services (17%), and Arts, Entertainment, Accommodations (9%). 

Overall, the industries of workers and jobs are well-aligned in Broomfield. The Jobs less Workers column 
of the Business Activity table suggests that the Consortium has somewhat fewer workers than jobs in 
Information, Retail Trade, and Professional, Scientific, Management Services. Conversely, Broomfield 
has somewhat more workers in all other industries, with the largest being a 10 percentage point gap 
between the number of workers in the Education and Health Care sector and the number of jobs. 

The employment industries that provide the greatest share of jobs in Longmont are: Education and 
Health Care services (26% all jobs), Professional, Scientific and Management services (17% of all jobs), 
Retail (11% of all jobs), Arts, Entertainment and Accommodations (10% of all jobs), and Manufacturing 
(10% of all jobs). 

Most workers in Longmont are employed in Education and Health care services (20% of workers), 
Professional, Scientific and Management services (16% of all workers), Manufacturing (11% of all 
workers), Arts, Entertainment and Accommodations (9% of all workers), and Retail Trade (9% of all 
workers). 

Overall, the industries of workers and jobs are well-aligned in Longmont. The Jobs less Workers column 
of the Business Activity table suggests that Longmont has somewhat fewer workers than jobs in 
Education and Health Care Services (six percentage point difference). Conversely, the City has somewhat 
more workers than jobs in the Information Business category (three percentage point difference). In all 
other industries the difference in workers and jobs is 2 percentage points or less. 

Describe the workforce and infrastructure needs of the business community: 

Boulder is an important employment center for the region and offers a diverse and healthy economy. 
There is a need to expand housing opportunities for workers to be able to live in the communities they 
work in. According to 2022 data from the Longitudinal Employer-Household Dynamics (LEHD), 59% of 
workers employed in Boulder County live outside the county. This share has gone up from 52% in 2017. 
In the City of Boulder, 82% of workers employed in the city live outside the city, and this share has also 
increased from 77% in 2017. Broomfield County has been able to add more housing stock to reduce the 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     106 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

share of commuters (although the share remains high); in 2010, 99% of workers employed in Broomfield 
County lived outside the county, however this dropped to 88% in 2017 and has slightly increased again 
to 89% in 2022. In Longmont in 2022, 69% of workers employed in the City live outside the city, an 
increase from 66% in 2017. The City of Boulder has the highest share of people who both live and work 
in the city (45%), followed by 26% of workers in Longmont, and 12% in Broomfield. 

The largest constraints for the Boulder and Broomfield business community are housing affordability, an 
increasingly competitive labor market and general labor shortage, and office vacancies. Boulder’s 
Chamber of Commerce highlighted efforts to retain University of Colorado graduates through 
internships and apprenticeships to fill vacant positions in the workforce. Broomfield continues to 
encourage business growth through offering new work spaces for innovative businesses. Other issues 
and challenges include workforce training. Residents at community meetings suggested more 
apprenticeship and workforce training opportunities that aligned with skill and educational levels of 
residents. For example, offering more programs for people with less than a high school degree. 

The key needs of the business community in Longmont include a talent pipeline in strategic industries, 
continued redevelopment of commercial and industrial properties (including the development of a 
“vibrant river corridor”), development and preservation of residential affordability, fostering a 
collaborative business environment, and improvements to Longmont’s multi-modal transit system. In 
2016, Longmont adopted Envision Longmont: Multimodal and Comprehensive Plan that guides the 
development and preservation of housing alongside transportation improvements to strengthen the 
local economy.  

In stakeholder focus groups, community development stakeholders emphasized the need for improved 
transportation between Denver, Boulder, Broomfield, and Longmont to sustain economic vitality and 
opportunities. 

Describe any major changes that may have an economic impact, such as planned local or 
regional public or private sector investments or initiatives that have affected or may affect 
job and business growth opportunities during the planning period. Describe any needs for 
workforce development, business support or infrastructure these changes may create. 

The increasingly high cost of housing, traffic and lack of transportation options in the corridor, skills gap 
between available jobs and workers, and an aging population are ongoing economic changes in the 
region. 

The lack of affordable and accessible housing for households with low, moderate and middle income is 
identified as the most problematic issue among employers in Boulder County, business owners and 
community members. The lack of housing options forces employees to commute long distances and 
some job seekers to reject or ignore employment opportunities in the Boulder region. 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     107 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

To partially address transportation challenges, enhancements are underway that will improve regional 
connectivity. The CO-119 Bus Rapid Transit Project will more efficiently connect residents in Boulder 
County, particularly between Longmont and Boulder. The project includes improvements to transit stops 
and a bypass lane for the bus. This project is a partnership between RTD, CDOT, and Boulder County.  

According to the Boulder Chamber of Commerce, there is a gap between the number of jobs available in 
Boulder and the workforce available to fill those positions across all industries and skill levels. One 
contributing factor to this gap is the aging population—more people are retiring and leaving the 
workforce every year. Another challenge is the lack of training specific to the needs of local businesses. 
Trends indicate this gap will only grow in the next few years, especially as workplace environments 
continue to evolve and more jobs require higher levels of technological literacy and professional 
competencies.  

Workforce training initiatives are delivered through Workforce Boulder County (WfBC), a division within 
the Boulder County Community Services Department. WfBC offers services to residents and businesses 
throughout the county and maintains offices in Boulder and at the St. Vrain Community Hub in 
Longmont. Onsite workshops range from resume and LinkedIn profile builders to career exploration to 
interview techniques and practices. WfBC also offers financial workshops, homebuyer counseling, and 
GED readiness. The classes are only held on weekdays during work hours, however, which could create 
barriers to attendance for families with young children or employed workers looking to change careers. 

Front Range Community College (FRCC) maintains a Longmont campus with five academic departments: 
Arts and Letters; Business, Information, Technologies & Manufacturing; Mathematics; Science & Health 
Professions; and Social Sciences, Education & Public Services. FRCC also offers a range of English as a 
Second Language (ESL) classes on the Longmont campus during the day and in the evening. The FRCC 
Westminster and Larimer County campuses offer vocational and technical education programs including 
automotive technology, machining, and optics technology. 

How do the skills and education of the current workforce correspond to employment 
opportunities in the jurisdiction? 

The region has a highly educated workforce—55% of residents 18 and older in the Consortium have a 
bachelor’s degree or higher. As such, many employment opportunities require higher education levels. 
The moderate and lower wage jobs that are related to these industries and needed to support 
communities in the region are more challenging to fill due to lack of housing affordable for workers. 

The resident survey demonstrated the desire for residents with lower income and people with 
disabilities to receive job training and skill development. Job training opportunities received an average 
rating of 6.09 on a scale from 1 (not helpful at all) to 10 (extremely helpful)—among the highest ratings 
of all services. Single parents, survivors of domestic abuse, residents in mobile homes, and residents in 
Longmont gave job training opportunities the highest average rating. Residents who attended a 
community meeting in Boulder emphasized need for more outreach and education within the Latino 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     108 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

community. They said some recent immigrants come with skills but do not have the necessary 
certifications or formal experience to get jobs or start small businesses. 

City of Boulder staff will continue to coordinate with the City’s Community Vitality Program and other 
community partners to ensure workforce training continues to expand and be made available to 
residents with low and moderate income. This might include participating in collaborations with 
employers, universities, colleges, state and local workforce and economic development partners to 
support ongoing development of the workforce. Workforce Boulder County, which also houses the 
homeownership and financial workshops, continues to offer services and training opportunities to 
prepare individuals to take advantage of existing employment opportunities. The City’s Community 
Vitality Program has several business incentive programs to attract and retain job-generating businesses 
including a flexible rebate program and microloan program for companies looking to grow and expand. 

The sustained rates of very low unemployment in Longmont create a very competitive labor market and 
can make it difficult for local businesses to retain top talent. It is also important to note that recent 
growth and the tight labor market do not benefit all Longmont residents equally. Differences in 
education and income are apparent across various population groups and may create challenges in the 
long-term economic resilience of the community. Engaging Latino leaders in economic development 
through the Latino Chamber of Commerce provides an opportunity to bridge that gap. Residents who 
attended a community meeting in Longmont said they would like to see more workforce development 
and internship opportunities for residents with less than a high school education. 

Describe any current workforce training initiatives, including those supported by Workforce 
Investment Boards, community colleges and other organizations. Describe how these efforts 
will support the jurisdiction's Consolidated Plan. 

Workforce Boulder County (WfBC) supports individuals seeking employment and businesses seeking 
employees by providing a plethora of resources including career development workshops and support, 
workforce training and assistance, and recruitment and placement opportunities. 

Boulder County Community Services provides Consortium area residents with educational opportunities 
through group workshops, building skills and knowledge base in the areas of money management, 
housing and employment. Boulder County Housing Authority, through its Family Self Sufficiency 
Program, offers free individual financial counseling including foreclosure prevention, homeownership 
preparation, and tenant education. BCHA’s Housing Helpline also provides financial coaching.  

The St. Vrain Community Hub is Boulder County’s “one-stop” integrated services delivery for residents 
including Workforce Boulder County. The enterprise will be a café set to open in 2025, allowing 
residents with lower income to learn job skills and increase their income. 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     109 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Boulder is home to the nationally-recognized Ready to Work (RTW) program called Boulder Bridge 
House. Bridge House operates the Community Table Kitchen, a commercial production kitchen that 
provides jobs to RTW trainees.  

Longmont is served by Workforce Boulder County. WfBC has its own working partnership with Front 
Range Community College to provide machinist training and develop a new GIS program, to assist 
current workforce in matching the skills needed for employment. WfBC has dedicated resources to the 
establishment of Sector Partnerships in the Machining, IT, and Healthcare industries, and has been 
engaged with the Metro Manufacturing Partnership, Northern Colorado Manufacturing Partnership, 
Metro Denver Healthcare Sector Partnership and Metro IT Partnership. Additional training avenues have 
been established through multi-region training grants for on-the-job training (a work experience 
program) and the H-1B grant (technical skills training for employers, employees and people who have 
been unemployed for the long-term).  

Continued in the discussion below. 

Does your jurisdiction participate in a Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy 
(CEDS)? 

If so, what economic development initiatives are you undertaking that may be coordinated 
with the Consolidated Plan? If not, describe other local/regional plans or initiatives that 
impact economic growth. 

Discussion 

Front Range Community College (FRCC) maintains a Longmont campus with five academic departments: 
Arts and Letters; Business, Information, Technologies & Manufacturing; Mathematics; Science & Health 
Professions; and Social Sciences, Education & Public Services. FRCC also offers a range of English as a 
Second Language (ESL) classes on the Longmont campus during the day and in the evening. The FRCC 
Westminster and Larimer campuses offer vocational and technical education programs including 
automotive technology, machining, and optics technology. 

The programs offered by WfBC and FRCC support Longmont’s goal of stabilizing households. To the 
extent that participants in workforce training initiatives are able to improve their economic situation 
and move into market rate housing, this frees up subsidized housing to other households with needs. 

In Broomfield, the Broomfield Workforce Center offers services to assist residents in enhancing their job 
search and employment readiness skills. The center aims to match individuals' experiences with suitable 
employers and quality jobs, ensuring that the workforce's skills align with market demands. Additionally, 
the Broomfield Workforce Young Adult Program offers supportive services for young adults 16 to 24 to 
match skills and interests with employment or post-secondary education opportunities. 

 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     110 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     111 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

MA-50 Needs and Market Analysis Discussion  
Are there areas where households with multiple housing problems are concentrated? 
(include a definition of "concentration") 

The HUD Community Planning and Development (CPD) Maps specifically allow for the exploration of the 
following categories of housing needs and problems: substandard housing, overcrowding, cost burden, 
severe cost burden and risk of homelessness (multiple unrelated family renter households with 
overcrowding). Each of these categories of housing need and problems were reviewed for each of the 
Consortium jurisdictions. For this purpose, a concentration that is 20 percentage points higher than the 
rate in the area overall was considered high. 

Substandard housing: According to CHAS, within the Boulder Consortium, only 3% of renters and 1% of 
owners with income less than 100% AMI have substandard housing issues. There is not a concentration 
of substandard housing in any particular census tract in the Consortium. The highest concentration of 
substandard housing in a census tract in Boulder is 7% (Tract 12401). Another tract in Boulder County 
has 7% concentration of substandard housing (Tract 13602). In Broomfield, the census tract with the 
highest concentration is 6% (Tract 30500), and in Longmont the highest concentration is 6% (Tract 
13208). 

Overcrowding: According to CHAS, within the Boulder Consortium, 1% of renters and 1% of owners with 
income less than 100% AMI are living in overcrowded conditions (with 1.01 to 1.5 people per room). 
There is not a concentration of overcrowded housing in any particular census tract in the Consortium. 
The highest concentration of overcrowding in a census tract in Boulder is 7% (Tract 12105). In 
Broomfield, it is 6% (Tract 30000), and in Longmont, it is 10% (Tract 13505).  

Cost burden: According to 2023 5-year ACS data, 55% of renters and 22% of owners are cost burdened 
in the Boulder Consortium. In the City of Boulder, the tracts with the highest concentrations are all 
around 70%). These tracts (12401 and 12605) are adjacent to the University of Colorado-Boulder; these 
tracts have 65% or more of the population between 18 and 24 years of age and thus represent the 
unique student population. In Broomfield County, there is one census tract with a concentration that is 
almost 20 percentage points higher than the rate in the area overall; Tract 61200 has a proportion of 
cost burdened households of 45%; this tract is located on the east side of the county that is adjacent to 
Brighton. In Longmont, the two census tracts with the highest concentrations are 13207 (70%) and 
13306 (68%). These tracts are in the north part of the city, adjacent to Highway 287.  

 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     112 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Cost Burdened Renters, Consortium Area 

 
Source: HUD Sociodemographic Maps and 2021 5-year ACS. 

Alternative text: A map of Boulder County and Broomfield with a scale of colors from yellow (lowest cost burden) to blue (highest cost burden) 

Severe Cost Burden: According to CHAS data, 37% of renters and 21% of owners are severely cost 
burdened, spending more than 50% of their income on housing costs. In Boulder, two tracts report 
severe cost burden at rates greater than 60% (12610 and 12401). These tracts are adjacent to the 
university. In Longmont, two tracts have severe cost burden rates higher than 20% (Tract 13505 at 22% 
and Tract 13305 at 21%). In Broomfield, one tract has a severe cost burden rate above 20% (Tract 31102 
at 33%). 

 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     113 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Severely Cost Burdened Renters, Consortium Area 

 
Source: HUD Sociodemographic Maps and 2021 5-year ACS. 

Alternative text: A map of Boulder County and Broomfield with a scale of colors from yellow (lowest severe cost burden) to blue (highest severe cost burden) 

 

Risk of Homelessness: Risk of homelessness is shown as a count rather than as a percentage in the HUD 
CPD maps. It counts the number of unrelated family renter households with overcrowding. In the 
Consortium, there are 171 households at risk of homelessness: 35 are in Boulder in Tract 12610 and 25 
are in Boulder in Tract 12401. In Longmont, 30 households at risk of homelessness are in Tract 13305, 
adjacent to Highway 287. In Broomfield, there are 28 households estimated to be at risk of 
homelessness. 

Overall, Tracts 12401 and 12610 in Boulder and 13305 and 13505 in Longmont have the highest 
concentrations of households with housing problems. 

Are there any areas in the jurisdiction where racial or ethnic minorities or low-income 
families are concentrated? (include a definition of "concentration") 

In this section, the definition of a concentration is a census tract where the population is more than 50% 
non-White. The City of Boulder has no tracts that meet this definition. 

Boulder has no areas where racial or ethnic minorities or low-income families are concentrated, by HUD 
definition. The following figures show clusters using HUD’s Socio-Demographic Data Dashboard dot 
density maps by race/ethnicity and national origin. As indicated by the maps, there are no strong 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     114 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

clusters of non-White racial groups in Boulder. Hispanic residents are mostly spread out throughout the 
city. 

 
Proportion of Non-White Residents, Census Tract, Boulder 

 
Source: PolicyMap and 2022 5-year ACS. 

Alternative text: Map of the City of Boulder with scale of proportion of non-White residents from lowest percentage (light purple) to highest (dark purple) 

 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     115 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Population by Race and Ethnicity, City of Boulder 

 
Source: HUD Socio-Economic Dashboard, 2021 5-year ACS data; 1 race dot = 200 people. 

Alternative text: Map of City of Boulder with dots representing 200 people each by race. Red represents Black population, green is White, purple is Asian/Pacific 
Islander, teal is Hispanic, green is all other races, and yellow is multiracial. 

Boulder County has one tract that has a concentration of non-White residents: Tract 60602 is 53% non-
White in the southwest corner of the County outside of Superior, Colorado. HUD Socio-Demographic 
density maps by race/ethnicity. As indicated by the map, Hispanic residents within Boulder County are 
clustered in the urban areas in Boulder and Longmont. 

 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     116 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Proportion of Non-White Residents, Census Tract, Boulder County 

 
Source: PolicyMap and 2022 5-year ACS. 

Alternative text: Map of Boulder County with scale of purples showing proportion of non-White residents by census tract from light purple (lowest proportion) 
to dark purple (highest proportion) 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     117 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Population by Race and Ethnicity, Boulder County 

 
Source: HUD Socio-Economic Dashboard, 2021 5-year ACS data. 

Alternative text: Map of Boulder County with dots representing 200 people each by race. Red represents Black population, green is White, purple is Asian/Pacific 
Islander, teal is Hispanic, green is all other races, and yellow is multiracial. 

Tracts 13505, 13503, and 13507 in Longmont’s north central neighborhoods have concentrations of 
non-White residents above 50%. As shown in the dot map, these neighborhoods have more Hispanic 
residents compared to other areas of the city. 

 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     118 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Proportion of Non-White Residents, Census Tract, Longmont 

 
Source: PolicyMap and 2022 5-year ACS. 

Alternative text: Map of Longmont with scale of purples showing proportion of non-White residents by census tract from light purple (lowest proportion) to dark 
purple (highest proportion) 

 

 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     119 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Race/ Ethnicity, Longmont 

 
Alternative text: Map of Longmont with dots representing 200 people each by race. Red represents Black population, green is White, purple is Asian/Pacific 

Islander, teal is Hispanic, green is all other races, and yellow is multiracial. 

 
 

 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     120 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Broomfield has one tract (30600) that has a non-White population above 50% in the southeastern side 
of the city. This area has slightly more Hispanic residents, as shown by the dot map below. 

 
Proportion of Non-White Residents, Census Tract, Broomfield 

 
Source: PolicyMap and 5-year 2022 ACS. 

Alternative text: Map of Broomfield with scale of purples showing proportion of non-White residents by census tract from light purple (lowest proportion) to 
dark purple (highest proportion) 

 

 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     121 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Population by Race and Ethnicity, City and County of Broomfield 

 
Alternative text: Map of Broomfield with dots representing 200 people each by race. Red represents Black population, green is White, purple is Asian/Pacific 

Islander, teal is Hispanic, green is all other races, and yellow is multiracial. 

 

What are the characteristics of the market in these areas/neighborhoods? 

In Longmont, Census Tracts 13305 and 13505 (identified as tracts with the highest concentrations of 
housing problems and 13505 has a concentration of non-White residents) offer more affordable homes 
and rentals compared to the rest of the city. The median home value in these tracts are all in the 
$400,000 range while surrounding tracts are above $500,000. The median rents are also more 
affordable. In Tract 13505 in northcentral Longmont, for instance, has a median rent of $1,305, the least 
expensive in the city. Its neighboring track in northwestern Longmont is $1,843, among the most 
expensive in the city. Northcentral tracts have the lowest ownership rates, mostly due to the high 
number of renters who live in the multi-family developments in this area or single-family/ duplexes that 
have been converted to rental properties. 

In Boulder, tracts with the highest proportion of households experiencing housing problems are near to 
the university, thus reflecting unique student households who tend to have less income and live with 
roommates while studying. 

Are there any community assets in these areas/neighborhoods? 

For Longmont, the Consortium member with the most diversity and slight concentrations: 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     122 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Shopping and Restaurants:  On the north end of the corridor adjacent to these tracts are several 
grocery shopping centers, including a Walmart Supercenter and King Soopers Supermarket.  “Mom and 
Pop” and commercial markets, thrift stores, coffee shops, restaurants and stores are available along 
Main Street. A recognized Latino commercial district is located on the east side of Main Street from 
Ninth Avenue to 15th Avenue with various other primarily Latino food and grocery stores and 
restaurants scattered in other locations on Main Street and one to two blocks off Main on various side 
streets.  

Services:  RTD services the Main Street Corridor and adjacent major thoroughfares of 23rd and 21st 
Avenue. The St. Vrain Community Hub, a Boulder County facility home to services provided by Public 
Health, Health and Human Services, Workforce Boulder County, Veterans Office, Clerk and Recorder, 
and Clinica Family Health, is located on Coffman Street in central Longmont and connected via bus to 
northern tracts. The library, OUR Center, and other city offices are also located adjacent to Main Street 
in southern tracts. 

Parks and Open Space:  Carr Park, City of Longmont Dog Park #1, Garden Acres Park, Sanborn 
Elementary School, Lanyon Park, Rough and Ready skate park, and Clark Centennial Park are located 
within or adjacent to these tracts. 

Business Opportunities:  There are many local businesses located in these areas that offer job 
opportunities for residents.  The City helped to support these by offering a Business Improvement 
Program to neighborhood businesses, and offers a Small Business Lending Program citywide, but has 
conducted significant outreach in this area. Longmont also offers the Sustainable Business Program 
which assists businesses with energy efficiency, sustainability certification, and offers free resources to 
navigate potential rebates and financing incentives available through participation. 

Are there other strategic opportunities in any of these areas? 

Discover Neighbors, Discover Home grant offers small grants for neighborhood associations to fund 
community events such as block parties, picnics, gardens, ice cream socials, and outdoor movie nights. 
Neighborhood Activity Fund offers similar grants for neighborhoods registered with the Neighborhood 
Group Leaders Association (NGLA). Neighborhood Improvement Projects Fund offers grants for NGLAs 
to improve neighborhood infrastructure and safety, add amenities like gardens and trees, and other 
upgrades.  

 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     123 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

MA-60 Broadband Needs of Housing occupied by Low- and Moderate-Income 
Households - 91.210(a)(4), 91.310(a)(2) 
 
Describe the need for broadband wiring and connections for households, including low- and 
moderate-income households and neighborhoods. 

In the Consortium, around 8,000 households do not have an internet subscription. Twenty-five percent 
of those households have income below $20,000. In Boulder, around 2,314 households do not have an 
internet subscription. Twenty-nine percent of those households have income below $20,000. In 
Longmont, around 2,458 households do not have an internet subscription. Thirty percent of these 
households have income below $20,000. In Broomfield, 1,218 households do not have an internet 
subscription. Thirteen percent of these households have income below $20,000.  

In a resident focus group, one older adults said they struggled with using computers and internet and 
prefer to use such services in places where there is staff support, such as senior centers or libraries. 

Residents with school-age children who live in some Boulder County Housing Authority-owned 
properties receive free access to internet services by the Boulder Valley School District. This gives these 
students the same ability to complete homework assignments and projects as their peers when not at 
school.  

Describe the need for increased competition by having more than one broadband Internet 
service provider serve the jurisdiction. 

According to the Federal Communications Commission (FCC) database, Boulder County is served by at 
least 10 broadband providers. Viasat Inc. and Space Exploration Inc. service 100% of the county.  

Broomfield is served by at least 10 broadband providers. Space Exploration Inc., Viasat Inc, and Comcast 
service 100% of Broomfield. 

Longmont is serviced by 10 providers and the City of Longmont provides internet service through 
NextLight that covers the entire city. NextLight offers discounts to income qualified customers, those 
who have been approved for Medicaid and SNAP, families with children on free or reduced lunch, and 
survivors or veterans on pensions. In a stakeholder interview with a broadband provider in Longmont, 
they reported that cost is the largest barrier to accessing internet and would like to see more discounts 
for lower-income families throughout the region, similar to NextLight’s service. There are some barriers 
to obtaining NextLight’s discounted rates. Some rental complexes have exclusive advertisement 
contracts with other market rate providers and, as such, do not actively market NextLight. Also, 
although exclusive contracts with providers are not allowed, rental complexes do need to invest in the 
infrastructure to bring services to low income residents. Often this takes place during development 
construction, limiting access in affordable units within newer apartment complexes. 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     124 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

MA-65 Hazard Mitigation - 91.210(a)(5), 91.310(a)(3) 
 
Describe the jurisdiction’s increased natural hazard risks associated with climate change. 

The 2022-2027 Boulder County Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan contains a science-based natural hazard 
risk analysis, considering a broad range of information and best available data and including a forward-
looking analysis of risks to housing and infrastructure sectors from climate change and other hazards. 
The Plan outlines strategies to reduce or eliminate risks from a range of 17 different hazards our 
communities face, including communicable disease outbreaks.  Boulder County jurisdictions are already 
experiencing the impacts of a warming climate in the form of reduced snowpack, earlier snowmelt, 
increased risk of high intensity wildfires—including the 2021 Marshall Fire in Boulder County that 
burned over 6,000 acres, destroyed 1,084 buildings, and resulted in $513 million in damages in just 12 
hours, and the Boulder County flood in 2013.  

The Flood and Marshall Fire provided a unique opportunity for communities to begin planning for 
climate change. As part of the CDBG-DR (Disaster Recovery) program, the Boulder County Collaborative 
(BCC), made up of Boulder County government and all flood impacted communities in Boulder County, 
adopted the Resilient Design Performance Standard (RDPS) to ensure that communities could better 
withstand climate change. This involved organizing the built environment into clusters to prioritize 
recovery systems and instituting a resilience criteria rating system for projects.  Longmont was the first 
community to adapt the framework for use on non-disaster recovery capital projects.  Projects that 
implement resilience criteria from the RDPS are incrementally helping Boulder County communities 
improve resiliency to perform better in the next hazard event and reduce risk to such events. Following 
the Marshall Fire, community engagement and public awareness of hazard management surged, 
providing Boulder Office of Disaster Management the ability to reach new audiences with disaster 
preparedness workshops.  

Longmont also has an extensive outreach program to educate residents and community groups on how 
to be better prepared for disasters.  At the end of 2016, the City of Longmont received a grant from the 
Division of Local Affairs in the State of Colorado. Resiliencia Para Todos (Resiliency for All or RFA) 
identified barriers and created a bridge between a vulnerable sector of our Latino population, 
community resources and local governments in the City of Longmont and Boulder County. The project 
brought the community together to identify barriers, develop recommendations that would be more 
inclusive of this segment of the community and create space for representation from this underserved 
portion of the community.  An outcome of this effort was “Be Ready Longmont”, an outreach program 
that presents to local community groups about disaster preparedness, offers a variety of classes, and 
provides a platform for residents to sign up for mobile phone reverse 911 notifications. The City also 
provides guidance on making emergency plans, and preparing basic emergency supply kits. 

The City and County of Broomfield Office of Emergency Management has training and preparedness 
exercises for residents and partner agencies in Broomfield. 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     125 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Describe the vulnerability to these risks of housing occupied by low- and moderate-income 
households based on an analysis of data, findings, and methods. 

A staff member of Boulder Disaster Management identified people who lack transportation, such as 
older adults or people with a disability, experience language barriers, and school aged children who may 
be in school at a time of emergency as groups who face barriers when evacuating. They also identified 
mobile home communities are vulnerable to climate risks, as they are not built to withstand damaging 
winds or hail from severe thunderstorms. Boulder Disaster Management has been working with mobile 
home communities and people with disabilities to demystify disaster response and evacuation plans. 
They are also planning to implement Longmont’s bilingual workshop models. 

The staff member also noted that community engagement events are normally attended by people from 
wealthier neighborhoods or are older people. They added that people with lower incomes generally 
have less time and money to prepare for potential disasters.  

 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     126 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Strategic Plan 

SP-05 Overview 
Strategic Plan Overview 

The Goals established for this Plan will create affordable housing, preserve existing affordable housing, 
stabilize low-income households at-risk of homelessness and eviction, and help households experiencing 
homelessness become stable. 

City of Boulder Goals:  

1. Rental Housing Programs. Preserve existing and increase the amount and affordability of rental 
housing for the Consortium’s lowest income renters.  

2. Homeownership Programs. Preserve and create affordable owner-occupied housing stock by 
keeping houses safe and habitable, help older adults age in place through accessibility 
modifications, and develop additional affordable homeownership opportunities for low- to 
moderate-income homebuyers. 

3. Community Vitality Programs. This goal helps the city adapt to changing public service and 
economic development needs. It supports the delivery of public services for people at-risk of or 
experiencing homelessness, invests in economic development initiatives that promote job and 
small business growth that helps to foster stable and resilient opportunities for all residents. 

City and County of Broomfield Goals: 

1. Housing Stabilization Programs. Housing stabilization aims to reduce the number of people  at-
risk of homelessness and experiencing homelessness through supportive services, case 
management, and rental assistance. 

2. Homeownership Programs. The Homeownership Program goal is to preserve and expand 
opportunities for affordable homeownership. This is accomplished through rehabilitation 
assistance to keep existing stock safe and habitable, help owners to age in place, and supporting 
low-to-moderate income home buyers access quality, affordable homeownership opportunities. 

3. Community Development Programs. The Community Development Program goal is to revitalize 
and invest in the community to ensure that all neighborhoods, particularly those with residents 
who have low to moderate income, enjoy a high quality of life. 

4. Economic Development Programs. The Economic Development Program goal is to increase the 
economic empowerment of residents to secure a stable income and build wealth. 

City of Longmont Goals: 

1. Rental Housing Programs. Maintain and produce additional affordable rental housing, 
particularly for households with income below 50% AMI. This priority need is evident in the gaps 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     127 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

analysis conducted for this study which found a shortage of more than 2,657 rentals for 
households with income less than $35,000. Affordable rental housing was a consistent need 
identified but residents at community meetings and those who participated in the resident 
survey. 

2. Existing Homeownership Preservation. Maintain and increase the inventory of affordable 
ownership homes by assisting low income households with rehabilitation and accessibility 
needs to ensure decent, safe and sanitary housing conditions.  

3. New Homebuyer Opportunities.  Increase the inventory through innovative housing 
development models as opportunities arise, and by providing first time homebuyer classes, 
budgeting and financial counseling.  

4. Housing Stabilization and Homeless Support Services. Work with community partners to 
provide housing resources and services to individuals and families at-risk of or experiencing 
homelessness.  

5. Community Investments. Work with regional partners to coordinate investment strategies that 
fund programs and projects designed to impact existing conditions that threaten the health or 
welfare of the community, particularly for residents with low income and/or special needs, 
priority populations identified by social services providers.   

6. Economic Development. Promote job creation or retention through supports for primarily 
micro-enterprises or small businesses.  



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     128 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

SP-10 Geographic Priorities - 91.415, 91.215(a)(1) 
Geographic Area 

Table 62 - Geographic Priority Areas 
 

1 Area Name: Boulder/Broomfield HOME 
Consortium Region 

Area Type: HOME Region 

Other Target Area Description: HOME Region 

HUD Approval Date:   

% of Low/ Mod:   

Revital Type:    

Other Revital Description:   

Identify the neighborhood boundaries for this target area.   

Include specific housing and commercial characteristics of this 
target area. 

  

How did your consultation and citizen participation process 
help you to identify this neighborhood as a target area? 

  

Identify the needs in this target area.   

What are the opportunities for improvement in this target 
area?     

  

Are there barriers to improvement in this target area?   
 

General Allocation Priorities 

HOME funds received by the Consortium have historically been distributed to the Consortium 
jurisdiction members based on a set percentage (City of Boulder – 44%, City of Longmont – 23%, 
Boulder County – 20%, City and County of Broomfield – 13%). Longmont oversees its own distribution of 
HOME funds. Broomfield has used its funds to support a Tenant Based Rental Program. Boulder 
oversees distribution of its HOME funds as well as the funds designated for Boulder County. 

The HOME Consortium members employ a rotational distribution of funding through which HOME 
awards funds are rotated throughout the region with each jurisdiction receiving the majority of the 
funds to pursue a project of magnitude. Each year, the actual awarding of funds will be evaluated by the 
HOME Consortium members to ensure funds ultimately support an eligible project that best meets the 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     129 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

housing needs of the Consortium area. 

The Consortium utilizes a mixed approach which includes a limited application process, solicitation of 
applications from qualified organizations and an open-door unsolicited application process. 
 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     130 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

SP-25 Priority Needs - 91.415, 91.215(a)(2) 
Priority Needs 

Table 63 – Priority Needs Summary 
1 Priority Need 

Name 
Rental Housing Programs 

Priority Level High 

Population Extremely Low 
Low 
Large Families 
Families with Children 
Elderly 

Geographic 
Areas 
Affected 

HOME Region 

Associated 
Goals 

Administration 
Rental Housing Programs 

Description Preserve existing rental housing and increase the amount and affordability of 
rental housing for the Consortium’s lowest income renters. 

Basis for 
Relative 
Priority 

Preserve and create affordable rental housing options for households with 
income below 50% AMI. Affordable rentals were a consistent need identified by 
residents in the community survey, community meetings, and stakeholder 
interviews. Housing market data shows a shortage of 14,364 affordable housing 
units for residents with income less than $35,000 in the Consortium area.  

2 Priority Need 
Name 

Homeownership Programs  

Priority Level High 

Population Low 
Moderate 
Large Families 
Families with Children 
Elderly 

Frail elderly 
Individuals 
Persons with Physical Disabilities 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     131 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Geographic 
Areas 
Affected 

HOME Region 

Associated 
Goals 

Administration 
Homeownership Programs 

Description Preserve and create affordable owner-occupied housing stock by keeping houses 
safe and habitable, help older adults age in place through accessibility 
modifications, and develop additional affordable homeownership opportunities 
for low- to moderate-income homebuyers. 

Basis for 
Relative 
Priority 

Provision of resources and options to low-income homeowners to obtain, 
maintain, and preserve their housing. There are very limited affordable 
ownership opportunities in Boulder and throughout the Consortium overall. 
Keeping low and moderate owners in existing homes ensures they can age in 
place and/or continue to live and work in the city. The ownership gaps analysis 
revealed that 81% of homes are only affordable to households with income 
above $150,000 in the Consortium despite only 16% of renter households (proxy 
for potential buyers) within this income bracket 

3 Priority Need 
Name 

Community Vitality Programs  

Priority Level High 

Population Extremely Low 
Large Families 
Families with Children 
Elderly 
Chronic Homelessness 
Individuals 
Families with Children 
Mentally Ill 
Chronic Substance Abuse 
veterans 
Persons with HIV/AIDS 
Victims of Domestic Violence 
Unaccompanied Youth 

Geographic 
Areas 
Affected 

HOME Region 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     132 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Associated 
Goals 

Administration 
Public Services 

Economic opportunity 

Description This goal helps the city adapt to changing public service and economic 
development needs. It supports the delivery of public services for people at-risk 
of or experiencing homelessness, invests in economic development initiatives 
that promote job and small business growth that helps to foster stable and 
resilient opportunities for all residents. 

Basis for 
Relative 
Priority 

Increases in homelessness Consortium-wide due to rapidly rising housing costs, 
increased need for workforce training and continued need for sustainable 
economic growth.  

 

 

Narrative (Optional) 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     133 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

SP-30 Influence of Market Conditions - 91.415, 91.215(b) 
Influence of Market Conditions 

Affordable Housing Type Market Characteristics that will influence  
the use of funds available for housing type 

Tenant Based Rental Assistance 
(TBRA) 

Continued tight rental market and difficulty accessing privately 
provided rentals without public subsidies; economic uncertainty 

TBRA for Non-Homeless Special 
Needs 

Continued tight rental market and difficultly accessing privately 
provided rentals without public subsidies, particularly for residents 
with special housing needs; economic uncertainty 

New Unit Production Low vacancies in both rental and ownership market; lack of 
accessible units 

Rehabilitation Low- and moderate-income owners without options to move and 
increasingly limited NOAH, economic losses and reduced incomes 
make it harder to afford needed repairs. Limited capital to 
maintain/improve existing affordable rental developments.  

Acquisition, including 
preservation 

Market pressure to convert affordable developments to market 
rate; limited capital to preserve existing affordable developments 

Table 64 – Influence of Market Conditions 
 

 
 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     134 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

SP-35 Anticipated Resources - 91.420(b), 91.215(a)(4), 91.220(c)(1,2) 

Introduction  

This section discusses the resources that will be used to meet the goals of this Plan for the City of Boulder (CDBG) and the HOME Consortium. 
These resources are financial, involve partnership opportunities, and include ability to leverage additional funds. 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     135 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Anticipated Resources 

Program Source 
of 

Funds 

Uses of Funds Expected Amount Available Year 1 Expected 
Amount 

Available 
Remainder 
of ConPlan  

$ 

Narrative Description 
Annual 

Allocation: $ 
Program 

Income: $ 
Prior Year 

Resources: $ 
Total: 

$ 

CDBG public 
- 

federal 

Acquisition 
Admin and 

Planning 
Economic 

Development 
Housing 
Public 

Improvements 
Public Services 824,425 0 89,446 913,871 3,300,000 

Expected amount 
available accounts 

for annual allocation 
at volumes similar to 
year 1 for remaining 

years 

HOME public 
- 

federal 

Acquisition 
Homebuyer 
assistance 

Multifamily rental 
new construction 
Multifamily rental 

rehab 
New construction 

for ownership 
TBRA 1,186,380 0 1,417,796 2,604,176 4,748,000 

Federal funds used 
to create and 

preserve affordable 
housing. The 

expected HOME 
available remaining 
funds are equal to 

$1,187,000 x 4 
years. 

Table 65 - Anticipated Resources 
 

Explain how federal funds will leverage those additional resources (private, state and local funds), including a description of how 
matching requirements will be satisfied 

In addition to the receipt of federal CDBG and HOME funds, each location has significant local resources to use in leveraging HOME and CDBG 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     136 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

funding. 

• The City of Boulder’s Affordable Housing Fund (AHF) generates widely fluctuated revenues of cash-in-lieu and linkage fees (between 
2019 – 2024) for a combined average of $7.5million as a result of the City of Boulder Inclusionary Housing ordinance. 

• Boulder’s Community Housing Assistance Program (CHAP) is funded primarily through property tax and a Housing Excise Tax and 
generates approximately $4.4 million annually. 

• Each jurisdiction assists people with lower AMI with a social service network. For example, the City of Boulder provides assistance 
through the Human Services Fund, the Health Equity fund, and the Substance Education and Awareness (SEA) Fund. 

• Boulder’s General Fund homelessness division funds a multitude of services, including but not limited to the provision of locally funded 
permanent supportive housing (PSH) vouchers and case management services associated with housing development. 

• Each jurisdiction allocates local funds to projects which are an eligible match contribution to satisfy HOME match requirements, and 
members of the consortium prefer to not have local funding be the sole source of funding for a project or program. Eligible match 
sources include, but are not limited to, non-federal funds, tax credit proceeds, Private Activity Bonds, municipal General Fund monies, 
lending institutions, foundations, government entities (county or state), earned revenue, volunteer time, and in-kind donations. Other 
things being equal, applications with greater matching sources will receive favorable consideration. 

• The Consortium works with public housing authorities and HOME subrecipients to ensure the HOME match requirement is satisfied. 
• In Longmont, in addition to receipt of CDBG funds, Longmont has allocated local Housing and Human Services and Affordable Housing 

Funds that help to implement the Action Plan Strategies, Goals and Activities. The local Affordable Housing Fund (AHF) is comprised of 
an annual allocation from the General Fund, a portion of marijuana tax revenue, and fee-in-lieu payments from the City’s Inclusionary 
Housing program. By the end of 2024, we estimate the program will generate approximately $2.7 million as all development underway 
was brought on after the IH program was in effect. Longmont encourages applicants to seek other funding and in-kind contributions 
from private and public sources to match AH funds and CDBG funding.  

• In Broomfield, whenever possible, CDBG funds will be leveraged to support new or preserve attainable housing. CDBG is also used to 
expand program areas that previously didn’t get a lot of support, such as small business assistance and support for community 
organizations 

If appropriate, describe publicly owned land or property located within the jurisdiction that may be used to address the needs 
identified in the plan 

During the five years of the Consolidated Plan, the City of Boulder is working with partners on the following redevelopment opportunities that 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     137 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

will address the needs of the plan including: 

• Ponderosa Mobile Home Park. The City of Boulder purchased this 68-lot community in 2017 with CDBG-DR (Disaster Recovery) funds. 
The park’s nearly 200 residents are primarily families of Latin descent and people with special needs. Section 108 funds are being used 
to develop a modular housing factory, the first project of which will be to provide housing for Ponderosa development. City of Boulder 
entitlement CDBG Funds will be used to repay the Section 108 loan funds. 

• Alpine-Balsam. The Alpine-Balsam property, formerly the Boulder Community Health (BCH) hospital, was purchased by the City of 
Boulder in 2015. The City of Boulder is embarking on the multi-year process to redevelop Alpine-Balsam motivated by the desire to 
shape the redevelopment of an area that has been focused around a major healthcare facility for decades, to address the city’s 
decentralized service challenges by creating a City Service Center, and to address critical affordable housing needs. BHP is developing 
two parcels with senior and family affordable rental housing totaling 144 units. 

• 2961 30th Street. The City of Boulder has land banked 2961 30th Street for future development of affordable housing. The site may have 
capacity for development of 30-40 units. 

In Longmont, the City currently has 15 approximately acres banked. This is a strategy also captured in the Regional Housing Plan, with the 
goal to secure land between now and 2026. The City recently inventoried its properties, and found 6 parcels with homes that were 
purchased for open space or for water retention by the Public Works and Natural Resources (PWNR) Dept. These homes are rented on the 
open market by PWNR. Longmont City Council approved converting these homes to affordable rentals and as the leases expire for each, they 
will become rental homes affordable to households at or below 50% AMI. The homes will be rehabilitated if necessary and re-leased to low-
income or moderate-income households as the opportunity for lease conversion arises over the next two years. The first home has been 
successfully rehabilitated for occupancy and now has a low-income tenant as of Summer 2024. Longmont also supports affordable housing 
through fee waivers, fee offsets, and other housing/building incentives.  

Discussion 

Please see above. 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     138 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

SP-40 Institutional Delivery Structure - 91.415, 91.215(k) 

Explain the institutional structure through which the jurisdiction will carry out its consolidated plan 
including private industry, non-profit organizations, and public institutions. 

The Boulder County Department of Housing and Human Services Supportive Housing division works to 
prevent homelessness by providing financial assistance and homeless prevention programs to residents 
throughout the county. One such program is the Housing Stabilization Program (HSP). HSP works with 
local partners like Family Resource Centers, domestic violence agencies, St. Vrain and Boulder Valley 
School Districts, Boulder County Family and Children Services, and Colorado Works. In 2024, HSP 
provided case management to 475 households and distributed $2.8 million in rental assistance in 2024. 
The Department of Housing and Human Services Family Resource Network (FRN) brings together a 
network of 60 staff from 30 nonprofits, schools, local governments, and county agencies to best serve 
families in the region. 

In Broomfield, the Broomfield Collaborative Management Program aims to provide holistic, wraparound 
services for families through organizational collaboration. The Collaborative Management Program 
connects families in need with an Individualized Service and Support Team made up of representatives 
from community organizations. Organizations provide resources for food and clothing access, mental 
and behavioral health, education, legal assistance, access to childcare, workforce and employment 
assistance, financial assistance, and youth services. 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     139 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Responsible Entity Responsible Entity 
Type 

Role Geographic Area 
Served 

City of Boulder Government Homelessness 
Ownership 

Rental 
public facilities 

Other 

BOULDER HOUSING 
PARTNERS 

PHA Rental Jurisdiction 

BOULDER COUNTY 
HOUSING AUTHORITY 

PHA Ownership 
Rental 

Region 

Longmont Housing 
Authority 

PHA Rental Jurisdiction 

Broomfield Housing 
Alliance 

PHA Rental Jurisdiction 

Boulder County 
Housing and Human 

Services 

Government Ownership 
Public Housing 

Rental 

Other 

ALL ROADS Non-profit 
organizations 

Homelessness Region 

EMERGENCY FAMILY 
ASSISTANCE ASSOC 

Non-profit 
organizations 

Homelessness Region 

FLATIRONS HABITAT 
FOR HUMANITY 

CHDO Ownership Region 

CITY OF LONGMONT Government Ownership Jurisdiction 
CITY OF BROOMFIELD Government Rental Jurisdiction 

Table 66 - Institutional Delivery Structure 
Assess of Strengths and Gaps in the Institutional Delivery System 

Strengths. Stakeholders were asked to identify what is working within the current service provision 
structure in the Boulder region. Service providers maintained that Boulder County excels at maintaining 
a tightly connected network of agencies that coordinate resources and referrals effectively. Their 
approach, built on institutional knowledge and a culture of collaboration, includes regular check-ins 
among partners and the "any door is the right door" philosophy, ensuring individuals are connected to 
the right services regardless of where they enter the system. Collaborative efforts between neighboring 
counties, like those between Broomfield and Almost Home of Adams County and Nearly Home with 
Jefferson County, are enhancing shelter options and creating new opportunities for partnership. This has 
created a cohesive support network that maximizes available resources. 

Beyond successful regional collaboration, Boulder County Housing Authority stakeholders noted that 
security deposit assistance has been a vital resource for voucher holders. Broomfield has made notable 
progress in supporting older adults through programs that help with snow shoveling and yard work, 
enabling residents to age in place. Wraparound services offered by organizations like Sunshine Homes 
also contribute to stability for older adults. Additionally, stakeholders in Broomfield highlighted that 
their jurisdiction’s smaller size and nimble structure allow for quicker adaptation and innovation in 
addressing housing and service needs. Broomfield’s network of mental health, faith-based, and 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     140 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

centralized community resource hubs like Broomfield FISH and the Refuge also drive Broomfield’s 
success in service provision.  

Gaps. Stakeholders highlighted that the provision of human services is constrained by chronic 
underfunding, staff shortages, and administrative burdens. Several noted that staffing remains a critical 
issue, as low wages coupled with demanding caseloads make it difficult to retain qualified professionals. 
Many staff members live outside the communities they serve, sometimes leading to disconnects with 
local clients and available resources. Some leave for less demanding jobs with comparable or higher pay. 
This churn exacerbates the loss of institutional knowledge and undermines collaboration between 
service providers. These challenges are mirrored in the early childhood and behavioral health sectors, 
where staff shortages hinder the ability to meet growing needs effectively. 

Stakeholders observed an "unrelenting" increase in demand across housing, behavioral health, and 
other support services. For example, providing coordinated care for the unhoused is most successful 
through case coordination and targeted grants pairing vouchers with behavioral health services, but the 
scale of need far outweighs the resources available. In Broomfield, for example, demand for housing 
vouchers drastically exceeds supply, with 400 applicants for only 20 available vouchers. To address 
growing issues, stakeholders have turned to more complex grants and Medicaid reimbursement, which 
comes with significant administrative and time-consuming costs to ensure money is used and reported 
correctly. Some said this is taking away effort from the clients in crisis they need to serve quickly and 
effectively.  

Stakeholders emphasized that services for unhoused individuals in the region are insufficient, especially 
for those requiring street outreach, mental health care, and addiction recovery support. Current 
recovery services, such as sober living, are often cost-prohibitive and lack funding. There is also a need 
for services that extend beyond housing, such as long-term mental health support to support individuals 
in maintaining stability.  

Prevention services must also receive greater investment to address issues before they escalate into 
crises. For example, the lack of funding for rental assistance in Boulder County coupled with escalating 
rent prices has forced service providers to choose between providing more families with less financial 
assistance or fewer families with more financial assistance: Neither outcome adequately meets need or 
demand. 

In the resident survey, respondents were asked why some resources were marked difficult or somewhat 
difficult to access. Thirty-two percent selected that they did not qualify for services and 10% lacked 
transportation to access services. 

Availability of services targeted to homeless persons and persons with HIV and mainstream 
services 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     141 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Homelessness Prevention 
Services 

Available in the 
Community 

Targeted to 
Homeless 

Targeted to People 
with HIV 

Homelessness Prevention Services 
Counseling/Advocacy X X  
Legal Assistance X   
Mortgage Assistance X   
Rental Assistance X   
Utilities Assistance X   

Street Outreach Services 
Law Enforcement X X  
Mobile Clinics X X  
Other Street Outreach Services  X  

Supportive Services 
Alcohol & Drug Abuse X   
Child Care X   
Education X X  
Employment and Employment 
Training 

X X  

Healthcare X X  
HIV/AIDS   X 
Life Skills X   
Mental Health Counseling X X  
Transportation X   

Other 
Other    

Table 67 - Homeless Prevention Services Summary 
Describe how the service delivery system including, but not limited to, the services listed 
above meet the needs of homeless persons (particularly chronically homeless individuals and 
families, families with children, veterans and their families, and unaccompanied youth) 

The Coordinated Entry system addresses the needs for chronically homeless individuals. Entry points are 
at All Roads Shelter in Boulder and HOPE Longmont. After individuals are entered into the Coordinated 
Entry system, individuals receive Navigation Services from shelter staff, including housing-focused case 
management, employment assistance, and short-term benefits while staying at the overnight shelter.  

See SP-60 for more information on services available that meet the needs of families, veterans, and 
unaccompanied youth.   

Describe the strengths and gaps of the service delivery system for special needs population 
and persons experiencing homelessness, including, but not limited to, the services listed 
above 

Strengths. Strengths in the region’s service delivery system include a cooperative system of providers 
with few areas of duplication, centralized areas for delivery services (e.g., the St. Vrain Community Hub 
in Longmont where health and human resources are co-located and collaboration between Boulder 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     142 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

County Housing Stabilization Program partners), and a region that has a strong reputation for addressing 
the needs of residents with very low income. For special needs populations, there are innovative 
examples of services, such as Broomfield’s Sunshine Home Sharing program that pairs older adults with 
extra space with residents looking for more affordable rent in exchange for chores and light 
maintenance that help older adults age in place.  

Gaps. Stakeholders and residents who participated in community meetings identified the following gaps 
for special needs populations and persons experiencing homelessness: 

• Inadequate supply of affordable homes, including accessible homes for persons with disabilities, 
studio and one-bedroom apartments for single persons transitioning from homelessness, and 
two or three bedroom units for families; 

• In addition to more affordable and accessible housing, increased funding for accommodations 
requests for renters and homeowners with disabilities; 

• More services for survivors of domestic violence, especially in Broomfield where there is no 
domestic violence shelter, and for survivors who are undocumented and face language barriers 
and fear of deportation; 

• More emergency housing at acts as a bridge between homelessness and a more permanent 
housing solution, such as emergency motel vouchers and transitional housing options; 

• Demand for homeless prevention services such as rental assistance is outpacing availability. 
Providers are struggling to determine how best to allocate money and have had to restrict 
eligibility requirements, give less assistance to more families, or provide fewer families with 
more assistance. 

Provide a summary of the strategy for overcoming gaps in the institutional structure and 
service delivery system for carrying out a strategy to address priority needs 

Stakeholders highlighted the need to preserve affordability of existing units and continue the 
development of affordable housing. The region will continue to reinforce and build from its success in 
regional collaboration and partnerships between organizations. Jurisdictions will continue to allocate 
Block Grant funds to needed services and increase funding for supportive services as local budgets 
allow. 

Additionally, the HOME Consortium partners are also undertaking a Human Services Needs Assessment 
to pinpoint specific gaps in service provision to help prioritize and efficiently allocate resources. 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     143 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

SP-45 Goals - 91.415, 91.215(a)(4) 

Goals Summary Information  

Table 68 – Goals Summary 
Sort 

Order 
Goal Name Start 

Year 
End 
Year 

Category Geographic Area Needs Addressed Funding Goal Outcome Indicator 

1 Rental Housing 
Programs 

2025 2029 Affordable 
Housing 

Boulder/Broomfield 
HOME Consortium 
Region 

Rental Housing 
Programs 

CDBG: 
$824,885 

HOME: 
$TBD 

Rental units 
constructed: 
0 Household Housing 
Unit 
  
Rental units 
rehabilitated: 
250 Household 
Housing Unit 

2 Homeownership 
Programs 

2025 2029 Affordable 
Housing 

Boulder/Broomfield 
HOME Consortium 
Region 

Homeownership 
Programs Existing 
Housing 
Homebuyer 
Programs 

CDBG: 
$2,268,433 

HOME: 
$TBD 

Homeowner Housing 
Added: 
127 Household 
Housing Unit 
  
Homeowner Housing 
Rehabilitated: 
25 Household Housing 
Unit 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     144 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Sort 
Order 

Goal Name Start 
Year 

End 
Year 

Category Geographic Area Needs Addressed Funding Goal Outcome Indicator 

3 Community 
Vitality Programs 

2020 2024 Non-Housing 
Community 
Development 

Homelessness 

 

Boulder/Broomfield 
HOME Consortium 
Region 

Community 
Investment 

CDBG: 
$412,442 

HOME: 
$TBD 

Public service activities 
other than 
Low/Moderate Income 
Housing Benefit: 
45 Persons Assisted 
  
Other: 
420 Other (FRS 
Program) 

4 Administration 2020 2024 Administration Boulder/Broomfield 
HOME Consortium 
Region 

Community 
Investment 
Economic 
Development 
Homeownership 
Programs Existing 
Housing 
Homebuyer 
Programs 
Housing 
Stabilization 
Program 
Rental Housing 
Programs 

CDBG: 
$618,663 

HOME: 
$TBD 

Other: 
0 Other 

 

Goal Descriptions 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     145 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

1 Goal Name Rental Housing Programs 

Goal 
Description 

The goal of Rental Housing Programs is to preserve and increase the amount, quality, affordability and accessibility 
of rental housing for the lowest income renters. 

2 Goal Name Homeownership Programs 

Goal 
Description 

The goal of Homeownership Programs is to preserve and increase the amount, quality, affordability, and accessibility of 
owner-occupied units for existing owners and potential buyers with low- to moderate-income 

3 Goal Name Community Vitality Programs 

Goal 
Description 

The goal of Community Vitality Programs is to revitalize and invest in the community to ensure that all residents enjoy a 
high quality life. This includes the provision of public services and economic development programs. 

4 Goal Name Administration 

Goal 
Description 

Costs incurred to administer the grant funds 

 

Estimate the number of extremely low-income, low-income, and moderate-income families to whom the jurisdiction will provide 
affordable housing as defined by HOME 91.315(b)(2) 

Rental housing programs expected to result in 60 units new of new construction, 15 TBRA households, 11 units new construction 
housing for homeless, 12 rental units rehabbed, 34 rental units rehabbed. Homeownership programs expected to assist five owners 
with rehabilitation. 

 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     146 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

SP-50 Public Housing Accessibility and Involvement - 91.415, 91.215(c) 
Need to Increase the Number of Accessible Units (if Required by a Section 504 Voluntary 
Compliance Agreement)  

N/A 

Activities to Increase Resident Involvements 

Boulder Housing Partners. BHP offers several services for its current residents, including: 

• Healthcare information and referrals for seniors and people with disabilities; 
• Family site programs, including after-school and summer programs for children and service 

coordinators for families; and 
• Free or reduced membership to Boulder recreation facilities, free rides with Boulder B-Cycle 

Boulder County Housing Authority. BCHA offers several services for its current residents, including: 

• Supportive tenancy counseling and coaching; 
• Referrals for mental health and medical services; 
• Unlimited transit passes; 
• Community building events, including gardening and holiday events, and emergency planning 

training; 
• Educational activities such as a robotics program; and 
• Housing Helpline that assists tenants with mediation with landlord and connects tenants to 

additional financial resources.  

Broomfield Housing Alliance. Broomfield strategically chose the location of its next affordable 
development, Vista Pointe Homes. The development will feature 55 to 65 income restricted rental units 
and is located nearby several community resources and transit. 

Is the public housing agency designated as troubled under 24 CFR part 902? 

No 

Plan to remove the ‘troubled’ designation  

N/A 

 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     147 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

SP-55 Strategic Plan Barriers to Affordable Housing - 91.415, 91.215(h) 
Barriers to Affordable Housing 

A strong economy, high quality of life and growth constraints in the Consortium area have created 
significant upward pressure on housing prices and rents. The impact on housing affordability 
disproportionately affects those households who have lower incomes. In an environment where there 
are few affordable options provided by the private market, it is easier for protected classes to 
experience housing discrimination under the guise of acceptable practices such as credit checks and 
practice that income must be three times the rent by private landlords. 

Stakeholders repeatedly emphasized that there is a shortage of affordable housing, both due to loss 
(price increases) and demand. Developers who participated in a focus group identified regulatory and 
zoning constraints, administrative delays, and lack of funding and incentives as key barriers to 
development. Regulatory and zoning constraints, such as excessive permit reviews and public meetings 
that often bring pushback, extend the timeline of development of new affordable homes and increase 
building costs as loans accumulate interest. Administrative delays occur due to staff turnover in city and 
county departments that disrupt collaboration with developers and redundant neighborhood plans that 
require multiple reviews by different organizations. 

The lack of funding and incentives was identified as one of the largest barriers to development in the 
region by stakeholders. Developers often face high financial stakes, as delays increase costs and risks 
associated with borrowing. This is particularly problematic in affordable housing projects where profit 
margins are slimmer. Supply chain issues and shortages of materials have cost developers time and 
money throughout the building phase. Additionally, a shortage of construction workers has delayed 
several projects and driven up the cost of labor.  

While developers acknowledge that there is a large need for the lowest AMI brackets, they say that they 
need support from local governments to help them see a return on their substantial investment. One 
said soft bonds in grant form or soft loans are the most helpful. Developers praised affordable housing 
funds that incentivized development, specifically in Longmont where density bonuses, reduced parking 
requirements, and subsidies for water or sewer system development fees are offered, and would like to 
see more regional alignment that results in broader impact and deconcentrating of low-income housing. 
Addressing administrative inefficiencies and regulatory constraints also fits into this puzzle, as speeding 
up the development process also saves money and maximizes the return on affordable housing 
development. 

Despite these challenges, jurisdictions have local trust funds, regulatory requirements benefiting 
affordable housing efforts (inclusionary housing, commercial linkage fees, annexation requirements, 
etc.), and, more recently, accommodated innovative housing products (e.g., tiny home village for 
veterans in Longmont and the modular home factory in Boulder). Without this level of commitment, 
affordable housing would be much harder to find in the area, given the high demand for living in the 
communities. 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     148 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Strategy to Remove or Ameliorate the Barriers to Affordable Housing 

The Boulder County Regional Housing Partnership established a regional goal of 18,000 homes 
affordable to a diverse mix of households with low and moderate income by 2035. This goal is based on 
the population and land use projections from each community, and acknowledges that more than 6,000 
homes are already affordable for the long term. The need for affordable homes exists for people of all 
ages, life stages, and family sizes across generations. The regional housing plan recommends that 
market affordability be preserved with the following strategies: 

• Acquire and deed restrict existing housing inventory. 
• Adopt One-for-One Replacement ordinances allowing developments currently featuring more 

homes than allowed by current zoning to be rebuilt to include up to the existing unit count with 
a requirement for included or increased permanently affordable housing. 

• Adopt Right of First Refusal ordinances for privately-owned multifamily housing, allowing 
jurisdictions to be first offered the right to acquire the property by matching the market-based 
price negotiated by the owner and a third party. 

• Pay to extend existing periods of affordability that might otherwise convert to market. 
• Recognize mobile home parks as a market affordable asset and seek preservation opportunities. 

Additional barriers to affordable housing 

The impact on housing affordability disproportionately affects those who have lower income and 
protected classes in the region. In an environment where there are few affordable options provided by 
the private market, protected classes are more likely to experience housing discrimination under the 
guise of acceptable practices—e.g., strict background checks and high security deposits. 

Responses from the resident survey show 67% of respondents with household income less than $49,999 
and 90% of precariously housed respondents would change their housing situation if they could. Their 
largest impediments are inability to afford rent in other places and inability to afford application fees 
and security deposits. Thirty percent of precariously housed respondents reported a criminal record was 
an impediment to finding a new place to live. Twenty-nine percent of homeowners reported that they 
want to sell but cannot afford a new home. 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     149 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

SP-60 Homelessness Strategy - 91.415, 91.215(d) 
Describe how the jurisdiction's strategic plan goals contribute to: 

Reaching out to homeless persons (especially unsheltered persons) and assessing their 
individual needs 

In 2017, the Cities of Boulder and Longmont, and Boulder County formed the Homeless Solutions for 
Boulder County (HSBC), which coordinates homelessness response systems and housing interventions 
for individual adults throughout Boulder County, with a prioritization of resources for people who are 
experiencing chronic homelessness. HSBC serves as a localized coordinated entry system that matches 
needs of single adults, age 18 and older, with resources. This is a requirement for all residents to receive 
these specific services from Boulder County, Boulder, and/or Longmont. Entry points are in Boulder and 
Longmont, both of which are accessible to people with disabilities, located close to public 
transportation, and available by phone. Since the inception of the strategy in 2017, over 1,800 
individuals have exited homelessness (as of September 2023). 

The Boulder Police Department’s Homeless Outreach Team works to assess the needs of homeless 
individuals through engaging those in encampments and in more isolated locations. Through these 
interactions, they refer individuals to appropriate services, including HSBC coordinated entry.  

The City and County of Broomfield addresses the needs of homeless individuals through its Tenant-
Based Rental Assistance Program (TBRA), a two-year self-sufficiency program that provides rental 
assistance and supportive case management for low-income Broomfield families. Families must be 
homeless, living with family or friends, or have unsafe/unstable housing; families who need rental 
assistance to sustain a current lease or rental agreement do not qualify. Broomfield also administers 
Housing Choice Vouchers as a subrecipient of the Colorado Division of Housing, the waitlist priority for 
those vouchers are homeless individuals or families. The Refuge offers a safe place for people 
experiencing homelessness to rest, get connected to local services, and obtain essential hygiene 
supplies. 

The City of Longmont focuses on a Housing First strategy, developing deeply subsidized housing for 
persons experiencing and at-risk of homelessness and investing in transitional housing. HOPE Outreach 
Center, Boulder County St. Vrain Community Hub, Journey Church, and Veterans Community Project 
assist individuals experiencing homelessness in Longmont with immediate needs. 

Addressing the emergency and transitional housing needs of homeless persons 

Boulder County provides an array of services targeted to addressing emergency and transitional housing 
needs. Some of these include: 

• Emergency or transitional housing for families with a focus in child and family stability; 
• Tenant-based housing vouchers for homeless veterans and their families in Boulder County; 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     150 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

• Boulder County funds longer-term stability for household transitioning from a Rapid Rehousing 
Program (RRH). As of February 2025, there are 41 households with children enrolled in Boulder 
County’s CoC RRH program, most with an exit date of mid to late 2026. There are 5 individuals in 
Boulder County’s ESG RRH program with exit dates in early 2026. The goal of RRH is to move the 
household to self-sufficiency within the 24-month rental assistance window; 

• Housing Stabilization Program, providing rental and security deposit assistance for residents 
working toward self-sufficiency, and targeted to those facing eviction and/or at risk of 
homelessness. 

Emergency sheltering is coordinated across Boulder County leveraging local coordinated entry (CE) 
which is a standardized assessment that matches sheltering services aligned with the particular needs of 
individuals to expedite housing connection. Goals include: 

• Financial support of consolidated adult homelessness services at All Roads in the City of Boulder 
and for people who are in need of intensive sheltering services in Longmont; 

• Development of respite/recovery services in Boulder; 
• Support of HOPE for Longmont to provide intake, assessment and sheltering along with housing 

focused outreach for individuals experiencing homeless; and 
• Continued Longmont funding of OUR Center to provide basic needs for families and individuals 

experiencing and those at risk of homelessness. 

There are several facilities and programs that address emergency and transitional housing needs for 
individuals experiencing homelessness, including: 

• Coordinated Entry sites in Boulder and Longmont; 
• Homeless Outreach Providing Encouragement (HOPE) Longmont, shelter in Longmont 
• Veterans Community Project Village, transitional housing in Longmont 
• All Roads, shelter in Boulder 
• TGTHR, shelter for 12- to 24-year-olds located in Boulder 
• Atwood Shelter, transitional housing for families in Longmont 
• Mother House, transitional housing for pregnant women and single women with children under 

two years old in Boulder 
• Safe Shelter of St. Vrain Valley, shelter for survivors of domestic violence in Longmont 
• Safe House Progressive Alliance for Non-Violence, shelter for survivors of domestic violence in 

Boulder 
• Inn Between, transitional and permanent supportive housing in Longmont 
• The Refuge in Broomfield 
• Emergency hotel and motel vouchers 

The Consortium, primarily through Boulder County, will continue the following programs to help 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     151 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

formerly homeless individuals and families transition from homelessness into permanent housing: 

• Access to personal finance coaching; 
• Public benefits screening, eligibility and enrollment – Families and individuals are screened for 

eligibility and enrolled in public benefits via PEAK (online benefits enrollment); 
• Follow-up is provided by case worker to ensure families receive benefits (i.e., food assistance, 

Medicaid, Child Health Plus, cash assistance, etc.); 
• Childcare Assistance Program enrollment; 
• Access to domestic violence advocacy, counseling and support; and 
• Access to Family Resource Centers (FRC), substance abuse and mental health services. 

Designated partners address specific needs of people exiting emergency healthcare, the criminal justice 
system, or mental health in-patient care. These include FOCUS Re-Entry, Clinica Family Health, EFAA, 
and All Roads shelter. 

Helping homeless persons (especially chronically homeless individuals and families, families 
with children, veterans and their families, and unaccompanied youth) make the transition to 
permanent housing and independent living, including shortening the period of time that 
individuals and families experience homelessness, facilitating access for homeless individuals 
and families to affordable housing units, and preventing individuals and families who were 
recently homeless from becoming homeless again. 

Chronically homeless. As discussed earlier, HSBC, a collaboration between Boulder County and the 
Cities of Longmont and Boulder, exists to reduce barriers connecting the county’s most vulnerable 
residents with housing more efficiently and quickly. This is carried out by matching services with specific 
resident’s needs to effectively allow them to transition to independent living situations.. Interventions 
such as permanent supportive housing are prioritized for the chronically homeless and coordinated 
through HSBC efforts. 

Families. There are several facilities and programs that address emergency and transitional housing 
needs for families experiencing homelessness, including: 

• Atwood Shelter, transitional housing for families in Longmont 
• Mother House, transitional housing for pregnant women and single women with children under 

two years old in Boulder 
• Safe Shelter of St. Vrain Valley, shelter for survivors of domestic violence in Longmont 
• Safe House Progressive Alliance for Non-Violence, shelter for survivors of domestic violence in 

Boulder 
• Inn Between, transitional and permanent supportive housing in Longmont 
• Emergency hotel and motel vouchers 
• Rapid Rehousing Program by issuing up to 50 Homeless Admission Vouchers for households 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     152 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

meeting the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act definition or a revised definition of 
“homeless” as defined by the HEARTH Act.  

• Family Unification Program (FUP), offers a supportive housing early intervention program 
providing housing and case management services to families with identified child welfare 
concerns and youth transitioning out of the foster care system. 

The Housing Helpline in Boulder County assists residents with housing navigation to help families find 
affordable units and prevent homelessness. The City of Boulder also provides ongoing support for 
families experiencing or at risk of homelessness through the City’s Family Resource Schools program. In 
Longmont, Sister Carmen Community Center and OUR Center provide homeless prevention services. 

Veterans. The Veterans Community Project Village is a tiny home village for veterans transitioning from 
homelessness. The Village provides wrap-around services and case management to help veterans find 
more affordable housing units to remain stably housed.  

Unaccompanied youth. TGTHR in Boulder is a shelter and resource hub for youth ages 12 to 24 years 
old. Offers programs for youth transitioning from foster care and supportive housing options for youth. 

Help low-income individuals and families avoid becoming homeless, especially extremely 
low-income individuals and families who are likely to become homeless after being 
discharged from a publicly funded institution or system of care, or who are receiving 
assistance from public and private agencies that address housing, health, social services, 
employment, education or youth needs 

The City of Boulder, Boulder County and City of Longmont fund the FOCUS Re-entry Program, which 
helps people being discharged from Boulder County jail. FOCUS recruits and trains mentors to support 
offenders by meeting their basic and socio-emotional needs, particularly during the first 72 hours 
following release. This support continues throughout their transition from incarceration to civilian life, 
from reentry to full reintegration and eventually self-sufficiency without recidivism. 

Clinica Family Health, serving Boulder and Broomfield Counties, provides numerous options for 
individuals being discharged from a publicly-funded institution or system of care. Clinica provides 
housing services to assist individuals with not only finding but maintaining housing. 

Boulder County’s Department of Housing and Human Services contracts with seven external 
organizations to provide through its Housing Stabilization Program: EFAA, Sister Carmen, OUR Center, 
Bridge House, SPAN, Safe Shelter of St. Vrain Valley, Boulder Shelter for the Homeless, and Mental 
Health Partner’s Community Infant Program (CIP). In addition, the HSBC provides Diversion Services and 
reunification services for persons who are newly homeless. 

Families make up 12% of all households experiencing homelessness in Boulder County. Emergency 
Family Assistance Association (EFAA) is the primary local provider of family shelter, housing and related 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     153 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

emergency services to Boulder’s homeless and near-homeless families. The agency provides 64 single 
family units across seven sites throughout the County. Family Housing sites provide 12 weeks of housing 
and intensive resource navigation. Transitional Housing units provide up to two years of subsidized rent 
paired with resource navigation support.  

In partnership with EFAA and other community partners such as “I Have a Dream” Foundation, Boulder 
Housing Partners offers Bringing School Home, a program that brings together affordable housing and 
educational opportunities for the whole family. Families who meet eligibility requirements and are 
committed to participating in educational programming to support their children’s long-term success 
may apply to Bringing School Home through EFAA. Supportive services start at the time a family moves 
into a Bringing School Home community and continues as children move along their educational path 
toward high school graduation. 

All Roads, a shelter and support network for people experiencing homelessness in Boulder County also 
offers respite services and helps individuals with serious medical conditions with discharge plans 
following a stay at mental and physical health institutions with the ultimate goal of ensuring long-term 
supportive housing options for these homeless individuals. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     154 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

SP-65 Lead-based Paint Hazards - 91.415, 91.215(i) 
Actions to address LBP hazards and increase access to housing without LBP hazards 

The City of Boulder, City of Longmont, Boulder County, and the City and County of Broomfield have 
complied and continue to comply with lead-based paint regulation since the enactment of Title X of the 
Housing and Community Development Act of 1992. The Act requires all State and local jurisdictions that 
receive funding from the CDBG and HOME programs adhere to all federal lead-based paint regulations. 
Other organizations which receive federal funds are also required to adhere to these regulations. 

How are the actions listed above related to the extent of lead poisoning and hazards? 

As discussed in MA-20, CHAS tables show that there are approximately 39,181 owner-occupied units in 
the region built before 1980, when the federal government banned consumer uses. Of owner-occupied 
units built before 1980, 11% have children present. Of the 22,948 rental units built before 1980, 13% 
have children present. These potential hazards are at HUD upper bounds of risk. It is important to note 
that Boulder’s hazards, in particular, may be lower due to remodeled units driven by high demand for 
housing. The Consortium’s newer housing stock paired with frequent "flipping” of older homes means 
lead-based paint risk is small. Nevertheless, the Consortium is dedicated to preventing lead-based 
hazards. Integrating lead-based paint hazard identification and mitigation into existing programs is the 
most efficient and effective strategy to lessen hazards, given budget constraints and limited HUD Block 
Grant funding. In addition, the participating jurisdictions are committed to distributing educational 
materials whenever possible. 

How are the actions listed above integrated into housing policies and procedures? 

The City of Boulder has worked closely with all owners and managers of affordable housing to reduce 
and/or eliminate exposure to lead-based paint in housing units by providing funding to mitigate it as 
part of the overall rehabilitation of rental properties. The City will continue this effort over the next five 
years. 

The City of Longmont incorporates Lead-Based Paint visual assessments, testing and mitigation for all 
housing built before 1978. Compliance staff are required to attend training and renew certification on a 
regular basis. 

The City and County of Broomfield updated their lead-based paint policies and procedures for the home 
rehabilitation program to ensure compliance with new requirements, as well as requiring repair 
contractors to be re-certified on a regular basis. 

 

 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     155 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

SP-70 Anti-Poverty Strategy - 91.415, 91.215(j) 
Jurisdiction Goals, Programs and Policies for reducing the number of Poverty-Level Families 

The Consortium is committed to reducing the number of households with income below the poverty 
level (roughly $32,000 for a household of four) by providing them with programs to motivate and assist 
them to move toward self-sufficiency. Jurisdictions work with various service providers and other units 
of local government to provide supportive services to residents with low income. As housing is one of 
the most critical issues for these households, the Consortium will continue to provide and seek 
additional resources to preserve and create housing opportunities. 

The City of Boulder will continue to focus its efforts and resources on reducing displacement and the 
number of poverty-level families through the preservation and creation of safe and affordable housing. 
The foundational importance of meeting the housing needs of poverty-level families will support them 
moving toward self-sufficiency. This is done through the city’s Human Service Fund provides funding to 
agencies serving poverty-level families. Expanded coordination with the city’s Economic Vitality Program 
will provide opportunities for poverty-level families to gain the training and skill-building, resources and 
supports that can lead them to achieving self-sufficiency. Boulder Housing Partners has expanded their 
Family Self-Sufficiency Program in partnership with Boulder County. The program assists low-income 
families in educational and career advancement.  

Boulder’s Community Mediation and Resolution Center provides mediation, restorative justice and 
meeting facilitation services for all city residents, including neutral information regarding landlord-
tenant matters. The Mediation Center also provides legal and financial services for individuals facing 
potential eviction through the Eviction Prevention and Rental Assistance Services program. The City of 
Longmont also offers mediation services for landlords and tenants.  

Each year, the City of Boulder also provides rebates to help compensate residents with lower incomes 
for the city sales tax they pay on food. Those seeking a rebate must fill out an application documenting 
their eligibility. In 2025, rebates will be $106 for individuals and $325 for families. To be eligible to 
receive a refund, applicants must meet financial eligibility guidelines, have been a resident of Boulder 
for the entire 2024 calendar year, and be: age 62 or over for the entire 2024 calendar year; a person 
with a disability; or a family with children under 18 years of age in the household for the entire 
2024 calendar year. Individuals experiencing homelessness also qualify by providing documentation of 
receiving services from a city-recognized homelessness services agency. In 2024, 1,091 rebates were 
granted and $167,000 in funds were dispersed. Forty-seven percent of grantees were families, 43% were 
older adults, and 10% were individuals with a disability.  

The Boulder County Department of Housing and Human Services continues to leverage funds from the 
Human Services Safety Net Mill Levy. This fund goes towards housing and homelessness prevention, 
education and skill building, health and well-being (including mental and behavioral health), and 
individuals and family supports (including Family Resource Centers and financial assistance).  



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     156 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

How are the Jurisdiction poverty reducing goals, programs, and policies coordinated with this 
affordable housing plan 

Boulder Countywide Regional Housing Strategy established a goal to secure 12% of the county’s housing 
inventory as permanently affordable, serving a diverse mix of low, moderate- and middle-income 
households by 2035. The goals of this plan align with this vision and community engagement conducted 
for the Consolidated Plan will inform future housing priorities. The resident survey included questions 
about resident access to services that will help inform coordination of housing and access to services. 

City of Longmont  

The City of Longmont's Anti-poverty efforts during the next 5 years will consist of continuing to support 
and fund agencies/programs that address the City’s six human services goals for the 2024 funding 
round: 

• Housing Stability: Supporting a continuum of emergency and transitional housing options; 
helping people find and sustain stable housing. 

• Health & Well-being: Ensuring access to affordable medical, dental and mental health care. 
• Food & Nutrition: Helping households obtain adequate quantity and quality of food. 
• Self-sufficiency & Resilience: Supporting households during tough economic times; helping 

households attain steady employment with livable wages and move toward self-sufficiency; and 
helping households remain as self-reliant as possible. 

• Education & Skill Building: Starting young and continuing throughout all stages of life, offering 
education, and skills training that are the building blocks of self-sufficiency. 

• Safety & Justice: Ensuring safe and supportive environments for vulnerable children and adults. 

The City of Longmont also administers the City Assistance and Rebate System (CAReS). The program 
offers financial assistance and rebates for a number of resident expenses including water, grocery sales 
tax, property tax or rent, park and greenway maintenance fees. Qualifying residents include residents 
who receive LEAP, SNAP, SLMB, 104PTC, USDA’s free lunch, or other income qualified assistance. 

City and County of Broomfield 

The City and County of Broomfield will support anti-poverty efforts by continuing to fund legal services 
that work to avoid evictions of low income households. The Broomfield Health and Human Services 
(HHS) Department follows a Whole Family Success model which utilizes a multi-generational approach, 
creates a thriving community that promotes individual and whole family success, employment and 
economic resiliency, and healthy childhood development. Broomfield HHS also administers multiple self-
sufficiency programs including Colorado Works and TANF, Employment First, LEAP, and emergency 
rental assistance for families who are able to sustain stable housing through their Tenant Based Rental 
Assistance Program. 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     157 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

SP-80 Monitoring - 91.230 
Describe the standards and procedures that the jurisdiction will use to monitor activities 
carried out in furtherance of the plan and will use to ensure long-term compliance with 
requirements of the programs involved, including minority business outreach and the 
comprehensive planning requirements 

Monitoring responsibilities associated with the use of CDBG and HOME funds is carried out by the 
Department of Housing & Human Services compliance staff. All federally funded projects and programs 
are monitored for compliance with regulatory and statutory requirements from award of funds through 
project completion. 

Compliance staff conduct an annual Risk Assessment to determine the level and frequency monitoring. 
The monitoring schedule is developed based on the outcome of the Risk Assessment. Any rental housing 
property determined to be a high risk for non-compliance is placed on the monitoring schedule 
regardless of whether they have recently been monitored. At minimum, all rental housing properties are 
monitored every three years.  

On-site monitoring consists of unit/property inspections as well as a review of the Affirmative Marketing 
Plan, Tenant Selection Plan, Lease Agreement and a sample of tenant files. Additional monitoring is 
conducted if findings in the initial monitoring deem it necessary. Analysis of recipient records and 
activity may indicate a need for special monitoring by compliance staff to resolve or prevent further 
problems.  

Desk monitoring is conducted on a quarterly and annual basis to ensure compliance with regulatory and 
statutory requirements as well as long-term compliance with civil rights and minority business outreach 
requirements.  Desk monitoring consists of a review of Quarterly Progress Reports, Annual Tenant 
Reports, Annual Beneficiary Reports, Affirmative Marketing Compliance Reports, Financial Statements 
and Single Audits.  

 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     158 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Expected Resources 

AP-15 Expected Resources - 91.420(b), 91.220(c)(1,2) 
Introduction 

Anticipated Resources 

Program Source 
of Funds 

Uses of Funds Expected Amount Available Year 1 Expected 
Amount 

Available 
Remainder of 

ConPlan  
$ 

Narrative Description 
Annual 

Allocation: $ 
Program 
Income: 

$ 

Prior Year 
Resources: $ 

Total: 
$ 

CDBG public - 
federal 

Acquisition 
Admin and 
Planning 
Economic 
Development 
Housing 
Public 
Improvements 
Public Services 824,425.00 0.00 89,446.00 913,871.00 3,300,000.00 

Expected amount available 
accounts for annual 
allocation at volumes similar 
to year 1 for remaining years 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     159 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Program Source 
of Funds 

Uses of Funds Expected Amount Available Year 1 Expected 
Amount 

Available 
Remainder of 

ConPlan  
$ 

Narrative Description 
Annual 

Allocation: $ 
Program 
Income: 

$ 

Prior Year 
Resources: $ 

Total: 
$ 

HOME public - 
federal 

Acquisition 
Homebuyer 
assistance 
Homeowner 
rehab 
Multifamily 
rental new 
construction 
Multifamily 
rental rehab 
New 
construction for 
ownership 
TBRA 1,186,380.00 0.00 1,417,796.16 2,604,176.16 4,748,000.00 

Federal funds used to create 
and preserve affordable 
housing. The expected 
HOME available remaining 
funds are equal to 
$1,187,000 x 4 years. 

Table 69 - Expected Resources – Priority Table 
 
Explain how federal funds will leverage those additional resources (private, state and local funds), including a description of how 
matching requirements will be satisfied 

In addition to the receipt of federal CDBG and HOME funds, the City of Boulder has two funding sources generated locally. The Affordable 
Housing Fund has generated an average of approximately $4 million annually between 2019 and 2024 through Inclusionary Housing cash-in-lieu 
contributions and linkage fees. The Community Housing Assistance Program is funded primarily through property tax and a Housing Excise Tax 
and generates approximately $3 million annually. The City will continue to leverage resources available including the state, local and private 
dollars. 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     160 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Through its competitive fund rounds, the City encourages applicants to seek other funding and in-kind contributions from private and public 
sources to match city funding. Each jurisdiction allocates local funds to projects which are an eligible match contribution to satisfy HOME match 
requirements, and members of the consortium prefer to not have local funding be the sole source of funding for a project or program. Eligible 
match sources include, but are not limited to, non-federal funds, tax credit proceeds, Private Activity Bonds, municipal General Fund monies, 
lending institutions, foundations, government entities (county or state), earned revenue, volunteer time, and in-kind donations. Other things 
being equal, applications with greater matching sources will receive favorable consideration. The Consortium works with Public Housing 
Authorities and HOME subrecipients to ensure the HOME match requirement is satisfied. 

In addition to the aforementioned housing sources, the City of Boulder’s Human Services Fund (HSF) provides roughly $2.1 million annually in 
support for services to community members at-risk or experiencing socio-economic disparities, in alignment with the city’s Human Services 
Strategy. Services provided through HSF investments include childcare and early education; physical, dental, mental and behavioral health 
services; financial assistance for rent, food and housing; legal services for underrepresented community members; child and family safety; and 
other basic needs services for community members of all ages. The city’s Health Equity Fund (HEF) provides roughly $5 million annually for a 
wide range of programs aimed at reducing health disparities. Programs include services for direct physical, dental, mental and behavioral health 
care, health systems access and navigation, food security, nutrition, physical fitness and wellness education, and other special projects impacting 
social determinants of health. 

The City of Boulder Substance Education and Awareness (SEA) Fund invests in programs to prevent youth and family substance use and abuse. 
The Fund supports adult influencer trainings, youth pro-social events, youth peer education programs, business retail staff training and 
education, and collaborative substance abuse program planning and advocacy. SEA funding comes from a portion of annual revenue from the 
city’s Recreational Marijuana and Electronic Smoking Device taxes.  

   



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     161 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

If appropriate, describe publicly owned land or property located within the jurisdiction that 
may be used to address the needs identified in the plan 

During the five years of the Consolidated Plan, the City of Boulder is working with partners on the 
following redevelopment opportunities that will address the needs of the plan including: 

• Ponderosa Mobile Home Park. The City of Boulder purchased this 68-lot community in 2017 
with CDBG-DR (Disaster Recovery) funds. The park’s nearly 200 residents are primarily families 
of Latin descent and people with special needs. Section 108 funds are being used to develop a 
modular housing factory, the first project of which will be to provide housing for Ponderosa 
development. City of Boulder entitlement CDBG Funds will be used to repay the Section 108 
loan funds. 

• Alpine-Balsam. The Alpine-Balsam property, formerly the Boulder Community Health (BCH) 
hospital, was purchased by the City of Boulder in 2015. The City of Boulder is embarking on the 
multi-year process to redevelop Alpine-Balsam motivated by the desire to shape the 
redevelopment of an area that has been focused around a major healthcare facility for decades, 
to address the city’s decentralized service challenges by creating a City Service Center, and to 
address critical affordable housing needs. BHP is developing two parcels with senior and family 
affordable rental housing totaling 144 units. 

• 2961 30th Street. The City of Boulder has land banked 2961 30th Street for future development 
of affordable housing. The site may have capacity for development of 30-40 units. 

In Longmont, the City currently has 15 approximately acres banked. This is a strategy also captured in 
the Regional Housing Plan, with the goal to secure land between now and 2026. The City recently 
inventoried its properties, and found 6 parcels with homes that were purchased for open space or for 
water retention by the Public Works and Natural Resources (PWNR) Dept. These homes are rented on 
the open market by PWNR. Longmont City Council approved converting these homes to affordable 
rentals and as the leases expire for each, they will become rental homes affordable to households at or 
below 50% AMI. The homes will be rehabilitated if necessary and re-leased to low-income or moderate-
income households as the opportunity for lease conversion arises over the next two years. The first 
home has been successfully rehabilitated for occupancy and now has a low-income tenant as of Summer 
2024. Longmont also supports affordable housing through fee waivers, fee offsets, and other 
housing/building incentives.  

Discussion 

Please see above. 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     162 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Annual Goals and Objectives 
AP-20 Annual Goals and Objectives - 91.420, 91.220(c)(3)&(e) 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     163 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Goals Summary Information  



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     164 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Sort Order Goal Name Start 
Year 

End 
Year 

Category Geographic Area Needs Addressed Funding Goal Outcome Indicator 

1 Rental Housing 
Programs 

2025 2029 Affordable 
Housing 

Boulder/Broomfield 
HOME Consortium 

Region 

Rental Housing 
Programs 

CDBG: $164,977 
HOME: $TBD 

 

 Household Housing 
Unit 

Rental units 
rehabilitated: 5 

Household Housing Unit 
Tenant-based rental 

assistance : 15 
Rapid Rehousing: 95 
Households Assisted 

Housing for Homeless 
added: 63 Household 

Housing Unit 
Other: 0 Other 

2 Homeownership 
Programs 

2025 2029 Affordable 
Housing 

Boulder/Broomfield 
HOME Consortium 

Region 

Homeownership 
Programs 

Existing Housing 
Homebuyer 

Programs 

CDBG: $453,686 
HOME: $TBD 

Homeowner Housing 
Added: 11 

 Household Housing 
Unit 

Homeowner Housing 
Rehabilitated: 5 

Household Housing 
Units 

3 Community 
Vitality 

Programs 

2025 2029 Non-housing 
community 

development 
Homeless 
Economic 

development 

Boulder/Broomfield 
HOME Consortium 

Region 

Housing 
Stabilization 

Program 
Community 
Investment 
Economic 

Development 

CDBG: $82,000 
HOME: TBD 

Public service activities 
for Low/Moderate 

Income Housing Benefit: 
200 Households 

Assisted 
 
 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     165 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

4 Administration 2025 2029 Administration Boulder/Broomfield 
HOME Consortium 

Region 

Community 
Investment 
Economic 

Development 
Homeownership 

Programs 
Existing Housing 

Homebuyer 
Programs 
Housing 

Stabilization 
Program 

Rental Housing 
Programs 

CDBG: $123,732 
HOME: $TBD 

 

Other: 0 Other 

Table 70 – Goals Summary 
Goal Descriptions 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     166 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

1 Goal Name Rental Housing Programs 

 Goal 
Description 

The goal of Rental Housing Programs is to preserve and increase the amount, quality, affordability and accessibility 
of rental housing for the lowest income renters. 

2 Goal Name Homeownership Programs 

 Goal 
Description 

The goal of Homeownership Programs is to preserve and increase the amount, quality, affordability, and accessibility of 
owner-occupied units for existing owners and potential buyers with low- to moderate-income 

3 Goal Name Community Vitality Programs 

 Goal 
Description 

The goal of Community Vitality Programs is to revitalize and invest in the community to ensure that all residents enjoy a 
high quality life. This includes the provision of public services and economic development programs. 

4 Goal Name Administration 

 Goal 
Description 

Costs incurred to administer the grant funds 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     167 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

AP-35 Projects - 91.420, 91.220(d) 
Introduction  

# Project Name 
1 Rental Housing Programs 
2 Homeownership Programs 
3 Community Vitality Programs 
4 Administration 

Table 71 – Project Information 
 
Describe the reasons for allocation priorities and any obstacles to addressing underserved 
needs 

 

Residents and stakeholders consulted through community engagement efforts consistently highlighted 
need for more affordable housing across the spectrum, from affordable rental units for single older 
adults exiting homelessness to affordable homeownership options for families. The limited supply of 
affordable housing in the Boulder area continues to challenge families, older adults, and people with 
disabilities. In terms of economic activity and community vitality, workers have difficulty securing 
affordable housing, posing a challenge for employers looking to retain and recruit employees in the 
region. Therefore, CDBG and HOME funds will be primarily to increase and maintain affordable housing 
options in the region. Boulder is largely allocating CDBG funds to pay off a Section 108 loan for its 
innovative modular housing factory, Boulder Mod. The factory will produce 12 to 15 permanently 
affordable units for homeownership each year, as well as providing workforce training opportunities for 
Boulder Valley School District Students. 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     168 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

AP-38 Project Summary 
Project Summary Information 

1 Project Name Rental Housing Programs 

Target Area Boulder/Broomfield HOME Consortium Region 

Goals Supported Rental Housing Programs 

Needs Addressed Rental Housing Programs 

Funding CDBG: $164,977.00 
HOME: $TBD.00 

Description Rental Housing Programs 

Target Date 12/31/2028 

Estimate the number and type 
of families that will benefit 
from the proposed activities 

Rental units constructed: 45 household housing units 

Rental units rehabilitated: 5 household housing units 

Location Description Boulder, Longmont, and Broomfield 

Planned Activities The Grove at Cottonwood- new construction of rental units, Broomfield tenant based rental assistance 
(TBRA), Longmont Inn Between Wesley Homes new construction of rental housing for homeless, 
unallocated HOME CHDO, unallocated HOME entitlement for rental, Boulder Shelter for the Homeless 
rehab, Thistle Parkside Village rehab, unallocated CDBG and unallocated HOME. 

2 Project Name Homeownership Programs 

Target Area Boulder/Broomfield HOME Consortium Region 

Goals Supported Homeownership Programs 

Needs Addressed Homeownership Programs Existing Housing 
Homebuyer Programs 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     169 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Funding CDBG: $453,686.00 
HOME: $TBD 

Section 108: $4,000,000 

Description Homeownership Programs 

Target Date 12/31/2028 

Estimate the number and type 
of families that will benefit 
from the proposed activities 

Homeowner housing added: 29 household housing units 

Homeowner housing rehabilitated: 5 household housing units 

Location Description Boulder and Longmont 

Planned Activities St Vrain Habitat Rogers Rd, and St Vrain Habitat Duplexes homeownership new construction, housing 
rehab, unallocated CHDO (set-aside $151,893) homeownership. Section 108 Loan Repayments including 
principal interest and financing fees for Boulder Modular Housing Factory. 

3 Project Name Community Vitality Programs 

Target Area Boulder/Broomfield HOME Consortium Region 

Goals Supported Homeownership Programs 

Needs Addressed Non-Housing Community Development 

Homelessness 

Funding CDBG: $82,000.00 

HOME: TBD 

Description Community Vitality Programs 

Target Date 12/31/2026 

Estimate the number and type 
of families that will benefit 
from the proposed activities 

Public Service activities other than low/ moderate housing benefit: 200 households assisted 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     170 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Location Description Boulder and Longmont 

Planned Activities Public service dollars for the Family Resource Schools (FRS) program, CHDO Operating, unallocated 
Community Vitality Program funds 

4 Project Name Administration 

Target Area Boulder/Broomfield HOME Consortium Region 

Goals Supported Administration 

Needs Addressed Rental Housing Programs 
Homeownership Programs Existing Housing 
Homebuyer Programs 
Housing Stabilization Program 
Community Investment 

Funding CDBG: $123,732.00 
HOME: $TBD 

Description Administration and planning costs for CDBG and HOME 

Target Date 12/31/2026 

Estimate the number and type 
of families that will benefit 
from the proposed activities 

n/a 

Location Description n/a 

Planned Activities Administration and planning 
 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     171 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

AP-50 Geographic Distribution - 91.420, 91.220(f) 
Description of the geographic areas of the entitlement (including areas of low-income and 
minority concentration) where assistance will be directed 

 Boulder Broomfield HOME Consortium Region 

Geographic Distribution 

Target Area Percentage of Funds 
Boulder/ Broomfield HOME 
Consortium Region 

100 

Table 72 - Geographic Distribution  
 
Rationale for the priorities for allocating investments geographically 

Please see the Discussion section below for complete details of geographic areas of entitlement.  

Discussion 

HOME funds received by the Consortium have historically been distributed to the Consortium 
jurisdiction members based on a set percentage (City of Boulder – 44%, City of Longmont – 23%, 
Boulder County – 20%, City and County of Broomfield – 13%). Longmont oversees its own distribution of 
HOME funds. Broomfield has used its funds to support a Tenant Based Rental Program. Boulder 
oversees distribution of its HOME funds as well as the funds designated for Boulder County. 

The HOME Consortium members employ a rotational distribution of funding through which HOME 
awards funds are rotated throughout the region with each jurisdiction receiving the majority of the 
funds to pursue a project of magnitude. Each year, the actual awarding of funds will be evaluated by the 
HOME Consortium members to ensure funds ultimately support an eligible project that best meets the 
housing needs of the Consortium area. 

The Consortium utilizes a mixed approach which includes a limited application process, solicitation of 
applications from qualified organizations and an open-door unsolicited application process.  

 

  



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     172 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Affordable Housing 

AP-55 Affordable Housing - 91.420, 91.220(g) 
Introduction 

One Year Goals for the Number of Households to be Supported 
Homeless 0 
Non-Homeless 200 
Special-Needs 0 
Total 200 

Table 73 - One Year Goals for Affordable Housing by Support Requirement 
 

One Year Goals for the Number of Households Supported Through 
Rental Assistance 15 
The Production of New Units 11 
Rehab of Existing Units 5 
Acquisition of Existing Units 7 
Total 38 

Table 74 - One Year Goals for Affordable Housing by Support Type 
 

Discussion 

The above numbers only reflect HOME defined units and do not include units supported through CDBG 
funding. 

 

 

 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     173 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

AP-60 Public Housing - 91.420, 91.220(h) 
Introduction 

Publicly supported housing plays a critical role in the provision of affordable housing, especially in high-
cost housing markets. This includes provision of rental housing for residents with lower income as well 
as ownership housing for residents with moderate income created through public incentives or 
requirements. The Consortium is fortunate to have three public housing entities that own and operate 
affordable rental and deed-restricted for sale housing and administer housing choice voucher programs. 
Broomfield’s Housing Authority administers a small number of vouchers allocated by the Colorado 
Department of Housing and does not own or manage affordable rentals. 

Actions planned during the next year to address the needs to public housing 

As laid out in AP-38, the Consortium plans to undertake the following to address needs relating to public 
and affordable housing: 

• Rental Housing and Homeownership Programs: Allocation of funds to support construction 
process of affordable renter-occupied and owner-occupied units for homeless and low- to 
moderate-income families/ individuals, assist TBRA households, rehabilitation for renter and 
owner-occupied units. 

• Community Investment Programs: Funds CHDO operating, Section 108 loan repayments, and 
Boulder shelter rehabilitation 

Actions to encourage public housing residents to become more involved in management and 
participate in homeownership 

The Family Self-Sufficiency Program is operated within Boulder Housing Partners and Boulder County 
Housing Authority. This program provides education and employment services with the goal of helping 
public housing residents raise their income. Coordinated services include childcare, transportation, job 
training, employment counseling, financial literacy, and homeownership counseling. Increases in rent as 
a result of earned income during participating family’s time in the program is put into an escrow account 
for the family to access following program participation. This money can be used for any purpose, 
including down payments. There were 129 FSS participants within Boulder County Housing Authority 
and 27 in Boulder Housing Partners in 2023. 

If the PHA is designated as troubled, describe the manner in which financial assistance will be 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     174 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

provided or other assistance  

N/A 

Discussion 

Please see above.  

AP-65 Homeless and Other Special Needs Activities - 91.420, 91.220(i) 
Introduction 

Exiting people from homelessness is a critical activity of Boulder and Broomfield counties. The 
Consortium has developed a wide-ranging response to homelessness, including coordinated outreach, 
case management, sheltering, housing, and retention services. Funding is leveraged by Federal, state, 
and local resources, and the Consortium approaches homelessness response with a housing focus. In 
Boulder County alone, over 2,300 people experiencing homelessness have been exited from 
homelessness since late 2017. Current initiatives are centered on housing retention, peer support, day 
services, focusing on chronically homeless high utilizers of the criminal justice and healthcare systems, 
recovery housing and permanent supportive housing unit development. Over 180 units of permanent 
supportive housing have been developed in the last year or are being developed over the next 18-24 
months. 

Describe the jurisdictions one-year goals and actions for reducing and ending homelessness 
including 

Reaching out to homeless persons (especially unsheltered persons) and assessing their 
individual needs 

Boulder County governmental and nonprofit organizations coordinate single adult homelessness 
through Homeless Solutions for Boulder County (HSBC). All jurisdictions take part in the Point-in-Time 
count, and multiple, coordinated outreach teams connect homeless individuals with resources.    

One-year goals for outreach and assessment include:  

• Coordinated outreach provider meetings, including individual client staffing between outreach 
entities within the City of Boulder and across Boulder County; 

• Increased capacity of the Boulder Targeted Homeless Engagement & Referral Effort (BTHERE), 
Longmont Targeted Homeless Engagement & Referral Effort (LTHERE) and Broomfield Cares 
outreach teams, including the provision of Coordinated Entry, case management and 
reunification services in the field. These are targeted outreach teams which include members 
with lived experience, mental health experience, and homeless service experience; 

• Expansion of the City of Boulder Safe and Managed Spaces program to compassionately address 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     175 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

camping in public spaces; 
• Participation of all entities in the Point in Time Survey, including conducting an additional 

summer Point in Time Survey; and 
• Development of a day services center to centralize resources and provide 

engagement/navigation opportunities for individuals experiencing unsheltered homelessness 
and not already engaged in services. 

Addressing the emergency shelter and transitional housing needs of homeless persons 

Emergency sheltering for single adults is coordinated across Boulder County leveraging local coordinated 
entry (CE) which is a standardized assessment that matches sheltering services aligned with the 
particular needs of individuals to expedite housing connection. Family homelessness is assessed using a 
coordinated entry form. One-year goals in sheltering and transitional housing include: 

• Financial support of consolidated adult homelessness services at All Roads Shelter for persons 
experiencing homelessness in the city of Boulder and for people who are in need of intensive 
sheltering services in Longmont through HOPE; 

• Continued provision of day services in Boulder that includes respite services, behavioral health 
services (including medically assisted treatment), physical health services, housing case 
management, housing retention services, peer support services, basic needs provision, meals, 
storage, programming, and service/housing navigation.  

• Maintaining nighttime sheltering in Boulder including All Roads general, housing-focused 
sheltering, The Source at TGTHR youth sheltering, and Haven’s Ridge The Lodge 
(sheltering/transitional space for women, transgender, and non-binary individuals) 

• Support of local domestic violence shelters and transitional housing programming 
• Support of HOPE for Longmont to provide intake, assessment and sheltering along with housing 

focused outreach for individuals experiencing homeless; and 
• Continued funding of OUR Center in Longmont to provide basic needs for families and 

individuals experiencing and those at risk of homelessness. 

Helping homeless persons (especially chronically homeless individuals and families, families 
with children, veterans and their families, and unaccompanied youth) make the transition to 
permanent housing and independent living, including shortening the period of time that 
individuals and families experience homelessness, facilitating access for homeless individuals 
and families to affordable housing units, and preventing individuals and families who were 
recently homeless from becoming homeless again 

Homeless Action Plan initiatives being explored and implemented include:  

• Strengthening landlord relationships to increase options for individuals/families experiencing 
homelessness to gain housing or access other safe diversionary exits from homelessness, and for 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     176 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

at-risk or formerly homeless people to retain housing; 
• Continue BCHA’s setting aside of up to 50 vouchers to be utilized for households that might at 

initial screening met the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act definition and/or revised 
definition of homeless the Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing Act 
of 2009 (HEARTH Act). This local preference will be limited to applicants referred in through 
Boulder County’s Community Housing Resource Panel and may include families transitioning 
from a Rapid Rehousing Program; 

• Continuation of locally funded housing voucher programs through the cities of Boulder and 
Longmont. Within the City of Boulder, local vouchers are targeted to people who cannot be 
housed through traditional, HUD-funded vouchers; 

• Establishing a residential site for people experiencing homelessness who also are recovering 
from significant substance use disorder; and 

• Continuing Boulder’s Building Home program – peer support, daytime programming, and a 
dedicated housing retention team aimed at building community and supporting housing 
retention for participants in permanent supportive housing. 

• Incorporating 30 Supportive Housing Vouchers and associated tenant supportive services into 
the operation of the Day Service Center. 

• Supporting All Roads unit acquisition program for people who cannot qualify for leases through 
traditional means due to significant criminal records. 

The Consortium, primarily through Boulder County, will continue the following programs to help 
formerly homeless individuals and families transition from homelessness into permanent housing: 

• Access to personal finance coaching; 
• Public benefits screening, eligibility and enrollment – Families and individuals are screened for 

eligibility and enrolled in public benefits via PEAK (online benefits enrollment); 
• Follow-up is provided by case worker to ensure families receive benefits (i.e., food assistance, 

Medicaid, Child Health Plus, cash assistance, etc.); 
• Childcare Assistance Program enrollment; 
• Access to domestic violence advocacy, counseling and support; and 
• Access to Family Resource Centers (FRC), substance abuse and mental health services. 

The community confers regarding individuals experiencing homelessness who are being discharged from 
institutions and is currently working to formalize a system-wide discharge plan. Designated partners 
address specific needs of people exiting emergency healthcare, the criminal justice system, or mental 
health in-patient care. These include Clinica Family Health, Focus Reentry, and All Roads Shelter.  

Helping low-income individuals and families avoid becoming homeless, especially extremely 
low-income individuals and families and those who are: being discharged from publicly 
funded institutions and systems of care (such as health care facilities, mental health facilities, 
foster care and other youth facilities, and corrections programs and institutions); or, receiving 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     177 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

assistance from public or private agencies that address housing, health, social services, 
employment, education, or youth needs. 

Ensuring that individuals transitioning from mental and physical health institutions receive appropriate 
supportive housing in Boulder and Broomfield counties involves accessing various local programs and 
services designed to facilitate stable housing and comprehensive support. Service providers pointed to 
the “no wrong door” collaborative approach to best serve resident needs, including those returning 
from mental and physical health institutions.  

In Boulder County, the Housing Stabilization Program (HSP) works with local partners like Family 
Resource Centers, domestic violence agencies, the St. Vrain and Boulder Valley School Districts, Boulder 
County Family and Children Services, and Colorado Works. In 2024, the program offered 475 households 
case management and distributed $2.8 million in rental assistance through its partners. Additionally, the 
Boulder County Housing Helpline provides housing navigation supports, assistance with landlord/tenant 
issues, eviction prevention, and referrals to rental assistance programs. In 2024, this helpline answered 
over 2,600 questions. All Roads, a shelter and support network for people experiencing homelessness in 
Boulder County also offers respite services and helps individuals with serious medical conditions with 
discharge plans following a stay at mental and physical health institutions with the ultimate goal of 
ensuring long-term supportive housing options for these homeless individuals. 

The City of Boulder, City of Longmont, and Boulder County are part of Homeless Solutions for Boulder 
County—a group that works to implement homeless strategy goals for single adults. These goals include 
pathways to permanent housing and expanding access and services to reduce homelessness. Although 
data is not available regarding persons returning from mental and physical health institutions, the 
priority of locating permanent housing fits the needs of this group.  

There are several organizations and systems that aim to prevent homelessness for people receiving 
public or private services. These include: 

• Childcare subsidies for families who have low-income families 
• School-based wrap-around support for families 
• Community resource referrals and case management for older adults 
• Resources, including mediation, for landlords, tenants, and roommates 
• Enforcement of “Failure to Pay Wages” ordinance 
• Eviction prevention services including legal resources, rental assistance and mediation 
• Building Home program in Boulder to ensure stability once recently homeless individuals are 

admitted to PSH programs  
• TGTHR in Boulder is a shelter and resource hub for youth ages 12 to 24 years old. Offers 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     178 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

programs for youth transitioning from foster care and supportive housing options for youth. 
• Focus Reentry assists people coming out of criminal institutions reintegrate into the community. 

Discussion 

Please see above. 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     179 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

AP-75 Barriers to affordable housing - 91.420, 91.220(j) 
Introduction 

As part of the engagement conducted for the Consolidated Plan, developers provided feedback on 
public policy barriers on affordable housing. The barriers identified below are in addition to market 
barriers, such as price increases, rising construction costs, and low vacancy rates. Developers highlighted 
regulatory and zoning constraints, administrative delays, and lack of funding and incentives as key 
barriers to affordable development. See MA-40 and Engagement Appendix for additional details. 

Actions it planned to remove or ameliorate the negative effects of public policies that serve 
as barriers to affordable housing such as land use controls, tax policies affecting land, zoning 
ordinances, building codes, fees and charges, growth limitations, and policies affecting the 
return on residential investment 

Jurisdictions have local trust funds, regulatory requirements benefiting affordable housing efforts 
(inclusionary housing, commercial linkage fees, annexation requirements, etc.), and, more recently, 
accommodated innovative housing products (e.g., tiny home village for veterans in Longmont and the 
modular home factory in Boulder) to facilitate the construction of more affordable housing. To 
overcome impediments identified by developers, cities across the jurisdiction have incentivized 
affordable development as part of inclusionary zoning policies. Longmont has included density bonuses, 
reduced parking requirements, and subsidies for water or sewer system development fees. Broomfield’s 
incentives for affordable development include a reduction of permit fees, use taxes, and service 
expansion fees. In the City of Boulder in 2024, the City Council adopted an ordinance that changes the 
Land Use Code to allow more housing units in some areas, enable smaller homes, and allowing more 
housing units in growth areas like Boulder Valley Regional Housing. Zoning changes now allow low 
density residential zones to have duplexes and triplexes to encourage a more diverse housing stock. 
Additionally, as part of Boulder’s Inclusionary Zoning ordinance, cash-in-lieu contributions are based on 
residential square footage to incentivize smaller and more affordable market-rate housing. 

Without this level of commitment, affordable housing would be much harder to find in the area, given 
the high demand for living in the communities. 

Developers praised affordable housing funds that incentivized development, specifically in Longmont, 
and would like to see more regional alignment that results in broader impact and deconcentrating of 
low-income housing. 

In addition, each member of the consortium has a Comprehensive Plan that contains a wide range of 
housing policies, including guidance on its underlying values, priorities, and collaborative efforts: 

• Boulder County - https://www.bouldercounty.org/property-and-land/land-
use/planning/boulder-county-comprehensive-plan/ 

• City of Boulder - https://bouldercolorado.gov/projects/boulder-valley-comprehensive-plan 
• City of Longmont - https://www.longmontcolorado.gov/departments/departments-n-



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     180 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

z/planning-and-development-services/plans-and-reports/comprehensive-plan 
• City/County of Broomfield - https://broomfield.org/2273/Comprehensive-Plan 

Discussion 

Please see above. 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     181 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

AP-85 Other Actions - 91.420, 91.220(k) 
Introduction 

Other actions that the Consortium will undertake to address housing and community development 
needs are summarized in this section.  

Actions planned to address obstacles to meeting underserved needs 

Despite the Consortium’s targeted use of federal and local resources to meet the underserved needs of 
the community, obstacles to meeting these needs will continue and require focus. The goals set forth in 
this plan position the Consortium to continue its focus on meeting needs in the areas of rental housing, 
owner-occupied housing, homeownership opportunities, homelessness assistance, and investing in 
target communities. The Consortium will continue to focus federal and local resources to meet these 
needs and work with partners to devise and support creative solutions—and additional federal 
resources associated with the Section 108 Loan will be instrumental in meeting new and increasing 
needs. 

Since the last Consolidated Plan, covering years 2020 to 2024, Boulder County has begun 
implementation of the Regional Fair Housing Plan. Partner jurisdictions have already seen progress. 
Longmont developed 73 new permanently affordable units, and the town of Superior in Boulder County 
passed a new Inclusionary Housing Ordinance. Additionally, Boulder Mod, a modular factory producing 
permanently affordable homeownership opportunities in a 31,375 square foot metal building opened in 
2024 in partnership with the City of Boulder, Flatirons Habitat for Humanity, and Boulder Valley School 
District. It is expected to produce 12 to 15 homes per year. The factory also provides workforce training 
for BVSD students. The City and County of Broomfield updated their Housing Needs Assessment and 
continues to provide TBRA, home rehab, and home maintenance for older adults in the community. 
These projects contain several elements intended to address underserved needs by removing obstacles 
and leveraging opportunities in the built environment. 

Actions planned to foster and maintain affordable housing 

The Consortium will continue to leverage federal resources with local funds by enforcing local affordable 
housing ordinances. In addition, it will explore other tools and opportunities to preserve and create 
affordable housing options as discussed in the above section. Consortium members will continue to 
nurture relationships with for-profit developers able to help meet the affordable housing needs of low- 
and moderate-income households.  

Actions planned to reduce lead-based paint hazards 

The Consortium will continue to support efforts that reduce the hazards of lead-based paint utilizing 
HUD funds in conjunction with other available resources. Activities will include testing and evaluation, 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     182 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

community education, and abatement of hazards.  

Actions planned to reduce the number of poverty-level families 

The Consortium members will continue to focus their efforts and resources to reduce the number of 
families with income at or below the poverty-level through the preservation and creation of safe and 
affordable housing. The foundational importance of meeting the housing needs of these families will 
support their moves toward self-sufficiency. Coordination with available local funding and organizations 
has been successful in the region and will be continued and expanded. Boulder County’s Housing 
Stabilization Program, Longmont’s Health and Human Services Review Board, and Broomfield’s Housing 
Solutions Forum are all current examples of inter-organizational and inter-jurisdictional collaboration 
between funding sources and agencies. Expanded coordination with the economic vitality programs will 
provide opportunities for these families to gain training and skill-building, resources and supports that 
can lead them to achieving self-sufficiency. 

Actions planned to develop institutional structure  

The City of Boulder Department of Housing & Human Services, Longmont Community Services 
Department, and Broomfield Economic Vitality and Development Department will continue to 
administer their respective CDBG programs. Activity selection and funding decisions will continue to be 
made in close coordination with local funding programs. These decisions will continue to be influenced 
by the expertise of advisory boards and committees, appointed by city and county management. The 
Consortium will also continue its regular coordination meetings with housing and service providers.  

Actions planned to enhance coordination between public and private housing and social 
service agencies 

Already working closely and effectively with the local housing authorities and nonprofit housing 
providers, the Consortium will continue its close coordination while nurturing relationships with for-
profit developers able to help meet the affordable housing needs of residents. The Consortium will 
continue to focus HUD Block Grant dollars on affordable housing opportunities and capital improvement 
needs of service providers, as well as continue to partner with community-based agencies to devise and 
support creative solutions to meet their capital improvements needs. 

Discussion 

Please see above. 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     183 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Program Specific Requirements 
AP-90 Program Specific Requirements - 91.420, 91.220(l)(1,2,4) 

Introduction 

Community Development Block Grant Program (CDBG)  
Reference 24 CFR 91.220(l)(1)  

Projects planned with all CDBG funds expected to be available during the year are identified in the 
Projects Table. The following identifies program income that is available for use that is included in 
projects to be carried out.  
 

 
1. The total amount of program income that will have been received before  
the start of the next program year and that has not yet been reprogrammed 

 

2. The amount of proceeds from section 108 loan guarantees that will be  
used during the year to address the priority needs and specific objectives  
identified in the grantee's strategic plan 

 

3. The amount of surplus funds from urban renewal settlements  
4. The amount of any grant funds returned to the line of credit for which the  
planned use has not been included in a prior statement or plan. 

 

5. The amount of income from float-funded activities  
Total Program Income  

 
Other CDBG Requirements  

 
1. The amount of urgent need activities  

 
 
 
 

HOME Investment Partnership Program (HOME)  
Reference 24 CFR 91.220(l)(2)  

1. A description of other forms of investment being used beyond those identified in Section 92.205 is 
as follows:  
 

The Consortium leverages its HOME funds with other forms of investment including Low Income 
Housing Tax Credits, private interest-bearing debt for rental housing development, grants of State of 
Colorado HOME funds, Federal Home Loan Bank Board grant funds, other private grant funds, and 
fundraising proceeds. Homeowners assisted by the HOME program use private interest-bearing debt to 
purchase homes. 
 
2. A description of the guidelines that will be used for resale or recapture of HOME funds when used 

for homebuyer activities as required in 92.254, is as follows: 

The Consortium members who fund homeownership programs through HOME or CDBG use the resale 
provision when HOME funds are used for homebuyer activities as required in 92.254. When the first 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     184 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

owner sells the home, it will be sold following the guidelines of the PJs Permanently Affordable 
Homeownership program. The new owner will be vetted by the PJ to confirm they meet the income and 
other requirements to qualify for the home. This process will be followed in perpetuity for each sale. 

The City applies resale provisions in all homeownership programs where HOME funds are used. Resale 
of a property is required if the property is in the HOME period of affordability only to a buyer whose 
household qualifies as a low-income household and will use the home as the family's principal 
residence. Home buyers receiving HOME funds for down payment assistance will be subject to the 
requirements at 24 C.F.R. Part 92.254(a)(4) which include resale provisions for a period of years 
consistent with the program regulations. The resale provisions will provide owners with fair returns on 
their investments, including any improvements. Loans will be secured by a signed mortgage, promissory 
note, and lien filed against the property. The City of Boulder will place an index-based resale restriction 
on each unit assisted. In addition to the HOME affordability requirements, in accordance with the City of 
Boulder’s funding policies, a covenant will be placed on the unit that will maintain its affordability in 
perpetuity. 

The resale calculation formula is noted in each covenant. It starts with the original purchase price, 
reduced by excessive damage, increased by appreciation and increased by approved capital 
improvement credits, to arrive at the Maximum Sales Price. 

The appreciation for most cases ranges from 1 to 3.5% per year. It is based on two indices: the change in 
the Consumer Price Index-Urban (CPI-U) or the change in the Area Median Income (AMI) whichever is 
less, with a guaranteed 1% increase and a max of 3.5% increase per year. Some older covenants had a 
negative appreciation or could go up to 4.5%. 

Our resale formula is in place in order to keep the homes permanently affordable. Each household 
agrees to these price restrictions upon purchase of their home. 

The original purchase prices of each home are targeted at specific AMI levels. Fair Return on Investment 
is calculated annually and can be between 1 and 3.5 percent. 

The City of Boulder reserves the right to allow lease-purchase options in conjunction with our 
homebuyer program on an as-needed basis for Habitat for Humanity clients. In such cases, ownership 
will be conveyed to an eligible homebuyer within 36 months of signing the lease-purchase agreement, 
or within 42 months of project completion. The affordability period of the unit will commence when the 
ownership of the unit is conveyed to the homebuyer. 

At the end of the 36-month period, if the household occupying the lease-purchase unit is not eligible or 
able to purchase the unit, the PJ has an additional six months to identify a different eligible homebuyer 
to purchase the unit. In all cases, if a homebuyer does not purchase the unit by the end of the 42-month 
period, it must be converted to a HOME rental unit. In all cases, lease-purchase participants will receive 
housing counseling, in accordance with the HOME requirement that homebuyers receiving HOME 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     185 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

assistance or living in HOME-assisted units must receive housing counseling. 
 
3. A description of the guidelines for resale or recapture that ensures the affordability of units acquired 

with HOME funds? See 24 CFR 92.254(a)(4) are as follows: 

Although no 2025 HOME funds will be used to acquire owner-occupied units, it is the Consortium’s 
policy to use the resale provision that ensures the affordability of units acquired with HOME funds as 
required in 24 CFR 92.254(a)(4). 

As stated above, the City of Boulder applies resale provisions when HOME funds are used including 
application of the prescribed affordability period and requirements stating that the buyer must qualify 
as a low-income household and will use the home as the family's principal residence. HOME funds are 
secured by an executed and recorded promissory note and lien filed against the property. In addition to 
the HOME affordability requirements, in accordance with the City of Boulder’s funding policies, a 
covenant will be placed on the unit that will maintain its affordability in perpetuity. The amount subject 
to recapture is the direct subsidy received by the homebuyer. 

4. Plans for using HOME funds to refinance existing debt secured by multifamily housing that is 
rehabilitated with HOME funds along with a description of the refinancing guidelines required that 
will be used under 24 CFR 92.206(b), are as follows: 

No 2025 HOME funds will be used to refinance existing debt secured by multifamily housing. 

Per the HOME rules, existing debt on a multifamily property may be refinanced when HOME funds will 
be used for rehabilitation to permit or continue affordability. To be considered for HOME funds, the 
application for rehabilitation and refinance must, at a minimum: Demonstrate that rehabilitation is the 
primary eligible activity and ensure that this requirement is met by establishing a minimum level of 
rehabilitation per unit or a required ratio between rehabilitation and refinancing; require a review of 
management practices to demonstrate that disinvestment in the property has not occurred, that the 
long term needs of the project can be met and that the feasibility of serving the targeted population 
over an extended affordability period can be demonstrated; state whether the new investment is being 
made to maintain current affordable units, create additional affordable units, or both; specify the 
required period of affordability, whether it is the minimum 15 years or longer; specify whether the 
investment of HOME funds may be jurisdiction-wide or limited to a specific geographic area, such as a 
neighborhood identified in a neighborhood revitalization strategy under 24 CFR 91.215(e)(2) or a 
federally designated Empowerment Zone or Enterprise Community; and state that HOME funds cannot 
be used to refinance multifamily loans made or insured by any federal program, including CDBG. 

The PJ does not intend to use HOME funds at this time to provide homebuyer assistance or for 
rehabilitation of owner-occupied housing. 

 
5. If applicable to a planned HOME TBRA activity, a description of the preference for persons with 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     186 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

special needs or disabilities. (See 24 CFR 92.209(c)(2)(i) and CFR 91.220(l)(2)(vii)). 
 
The Consortium does not currently have an established preference for HOME TBRA and does not plan to 
create one during the period covered by this Consolidated Plan 

 
6. If applicable to a planned HOME TBRA activity, a description of how the preference for a specific 

category of individuals with disabilities (e.g. persons with HIV/AIDS or chronic mental illness) will 
narrow the gap in benefits and the preference is needed to narrow the gap in benefits and services 
received by such persons. (See 24 CFR 92.209(c)(2)(ii) and 91.220(l)(2)(vii)). 

 
N/A 

 
7. If applicable, a description of any preference or limitation for rental housing projects. (See 24 CFR 

92.253(d)(3) and CFR 91.220(l)(2)(vii)). Note: Preferences cannot be administered in a manner that 
limits the opportunities of persons on any basis prohibited by the laws listed under 24 CFR 5.105(a). 

 
N/A 
 
Eligible applicants for HOME Investment Partnership Program funding include those certified as 
Community Housing Development Organizations (CHDOs), Housing Authorities, non-profit affordable 
housing developers, for-profit affordable housing developers. Generally funding applications are 
reviewed by the Consortium members on an ad-hoc basis and are evaluated against funding policies and 
procedures. Additionally, competitive fund rounds may be conducted to address specific goals. Detailed 
application package information can be found on the jurisdiction’s website during an open funding 
process. 

 
 

 

 

  



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     187 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Appendix - Alternate/Local Data Sources  

 

1 Data Source Name 

FMR and HOME Rents 

List the name of the organization or individual who originated the data set. 

Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) 

Provide a brief summary of the data set. 

2025 FMR and HOME rents for Boulder County 

What was the purpose for developing this data set? 

To provide the government and the public information on housing affordability. 

Provide the year (and optionally month, or month and day) for when the data was collected. 

2025 

Briefly describe the methodology for the data collection. 

U.S. Census survey 

Describe the total population from which the sample was taken. 

U.S. Census Bureau defined areas. 

Describe the demographics of the respondents or characteristics of the unit of measure, and the 
number of respondents or units surveyed. 

All U.S. Census Bureau survey respondents. 
2 Data Source Name 

PHA Data 

List the name of the organization or individual who originated the data set. 

Boulder County Housing Authority, Longmont Housing Authority, Boulder Housing Partners, and 
Broomfield Housing Alliance. 

Provide a brief summary of the data set. 

 Describes demographics of voucher users and those on the waitlist 

What was the purpose for developing this data set? 

 To inform NA-35, MA-25 and to better understand affordable inventory 

How comprehensive is the coverage of this administrative data? Is data collection concentrated 
in one geographic area or among a certain population? 

 Comprehensive of Consortium Area 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     188 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

What time period (provide the year, and optionally month, or month and day) is covered by this 
data set? 

 2025 

What is the status of the data set (complete, in progress, or planned)? 

 Complete 
3 Data Source Name 

2010 Census 

List the name of the organization or individual who originated the data set. 

U.S. Census Bureau 

Provide a brief summary of the data set. 

Federal funds, grants and support to states, counties and communities are based on population 
totals and breakdowns by sex, age, race and other factors.  

What was the purpose for developing this data set? 

Businesses use census data to decide where to build factories, offices and stores, and this creates 
jobs. Developers use the census to build new homes and revitalize old neighborhoods. Local 
governments use the census for public safety and emergency preparedness. Residents use the 
census to support community initiatives involving legislation, quality-of-life and consumer 
advocacy. 

Provide the year (and optionally month, or month and day) for when the data was collected. 

2010 

Briefly describe the methodology for the data collection. 

Paper census form, online form, telephone interview, administrative records, and in-person 
interviews. 

Describe the total population from which the sample was taken. 

United States population. 

Describe the demographics of the respondents or characteristics of the unit of measure, and the 
number of respondents or units surveyed. 

Data is presented at household and individual levels. 
4 Data Source Name 

PIC (PIH Information Center) 

List the name of the organization or individual who originated the data set. 

Office of Public and Indian Housing (PIH)  



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     189 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

Provide a brief summary of the data set. 

Why do we have IMS/PIC? 

The Office of Public and Indian Housing (PIH) developed a state of the art system to improve the 
submission of information to the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). The 
IMS/PIC facilitates more timely and accurate exchanges of data between Housing Authorities 
(HAs) and Local HUD Offices. 

What is IMS/PIC? 

Due to the success of this application, the IMS/PIC technical architecture will continue to be used 
as the foundation for future PIH systems. 

What was the purpose for developing this data set? 

Please see above. 

Provide the year (and optionally month, or month and day) for when the data was collected. 

2018 

Briefly describe the methodology for the data collection. 

Please see above. 

Describe the total population from which the sample was taken. 

Please see above. 

Describe the demographics of the respondents or characteristics of the unit of measure, and the 
number of respondents or units surveyed. 

Please see above. 
5 Data Source Name 

2023 American Community Survey 
 List the name of the organization or individual who originated the data set. 

U.S. Census Bureau 
 Provide a brief summary of the data set. 

The United States Census Bureau facilitates an annual survey, the American Community Survey 
(ACS), that collects detailed demographic information pertaining to social, economic, and housing 
characteristics of the U.S. population. 

 What was the purpose for developing this data set? 

The ACS is an ongoing survey that provides vital information on a yearly basis about the nation 
and its people. Information from the survey generates data that help inform how trillions of 
dollars in federal funds are distributed each year. 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     190 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

 Provide the year (and optionally month, or month and day) for when the data was collected. 

2023 
 Briefly describe the methodology for the data collection. 

The Census Bureau mails letters to inform people living at an address that they have been 
selected to participate in the ACS and to provide instructions for completing the survey online. 
Households are asked to complete the survey online or to mail the completed paper 
questionnaire back to the Census Bureau’s National Processing Center. If the Census Bureau does 
not receive a completed survey within a few weeks, it will mail an additional paper survey 
questionnaire. Following all mail contacts, a sample is taken from the addresses that have not 
responded online, by mail, or for those addresses with post office box mail delivery. These 
addresses are visited by Census Bureau field representatives, who will conduct the interview in 
person. A sample of people living in group quarters facilities, such as college dormitories, nursing 
homes, and prisons, are also interviewed in person to ensure coverage of everyone in the country. 

 Describe the total population from which the sample was taken. 

The Census Bureau selects a random sample of addresses to be included in the ACS. Each address 
has about a 1-in-480 chance of being selected in a month, and no address should be selected 
more than once every 5 years. The Census Bureau mails questionnaires to approximately 295,000 
addresses a month across the United States. 

 Describe the demographics of the respondents or characteristics of the unit of measure, and the 
number of respondents or units surveyed. 

The sample is designed to ensure good geographic coverage and does not target individuals. By 
focusing on quality geographic coverage, the ACS can produce a good picture of the community’s 
people and housing by surveying a representative sample of the population. 

6 Data Source Name 

Longitudinal Employer-Household Dynamics 2022 
 List the name of the organization or individual who originated the data set. 

U.S. Census Bureau 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     191 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

 Provide a brief summary of the data set. 

LEHD makes available several data products that may be used to research and characterize 
workforce dynamics for specific groups. These data products include online applications, public-
use data, and restricted-use microdata. The Quarterly Workforce Indicators (QWI), LEHD Origin-
Destination Employment Statistics (LODES), Job-to-Job Flows (J2J), and Post-Secondary 
Employment Outcomes (PSEO) are available online for public use. Confidential microdata are 
available to qualified researchers with approved projects through restricted access use in Federal 
Statistical Research Data Centers (FSRDCs). 
 
Note: The data released by LEHD are based on tabulated and modeled administrative data, which 
are subject to error. Because the estimates are not derived from a probability-based sample, no 
sampling error measures are applicable. However, the data are subject to nonsampling errors, 
which can be attributed to many sources: misreported data, late reporters whose records are 
missing and imputed, and geographic/industry edits and imputations. The accuracy of the data is 
impacted by the joint effects of these nonsampling errors. While no direct measurement of these 
joint effects has been obtained, precautionary steps are taken in all phases of collection and 
processing to minimize the impact of nonsampling errors. 

 What was the purpose for developing this data set? 

Please see above. 
 Provide the year (and optionally month, or month and day) for when the data was collected. 

2022 
 Briefly describe the methodology for the data collection. 

Please see above. 
 Describe the total population from which the sample was taken. 

Please see above. 
 Describe the demographics of the respondents or characteristics of the unit of measure, and the 

number of respondents or units surveyed. 

Please see above. 
7 Point in Time (PIT) Count 

 List the name of the organization or individual who originated the data set. 

Metro Denver Housing Initiative 
 Provide a brief summary of the data set. 

The Point-in-Time (PIT) Count is an annual count of sheltered and unsheltered people 
experiencing homelessness on a single night in January. 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     192 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

 What was the purpose for developing this data set? 

The Point-in-Time (PIT) Count is meant to serve as a snapshot of homelessness in a community. 
These data help to establish the dimensions of the problem of homelessness and help 
policymakers and program administrators track progress toward the goal of ending homelessness. 

 Provide the year (and optionally month, or month and day) for when the data was collected. 

2024 
 Briefly describe the methodology for the data collection. 

The methodology that CoCs select to conduct their sheltered and unsheltered count is influenced 
by the CoCs’ geographic and demographic characteristics, as well as their resources and capacity. 
HUD allows CoCs to use multiple approaches to complete their count, including a census 
approach, sample, or a combination of census and sampling approaches. 

 Describe the total population from which the sample was taken. 

HUD requires CoCs to collect reliable data on the total number and characteristics of all people 
(i.e., sheltered and unsheltered) residing in the CoCs’ geographic area who are homeless on a 
single night and report these data to HUD. CoCs often do not have complete data on everyone 
who is homeless and so must estimate some data. 

 Describe the demographics of the respondents or characteristics of the unit of measure, and the 
number of respondents or units surveyed. 

Please see above. 
8 Homeless Management Information System (HMIS) 

 List the name of the organization or individual who originated the data set. 

Metro Denver Housing Initiative 
 Provide a brief summary of the data set. 

Tracks client and program outcomes as people interact with homeless services. 
 What was the purpose for developing this data set? 

Measuring system performance and providing real-time data that captures people utilizing 
homeless services 

 Provide the year (and optionally month, or month and day) for when the data was collected. 

2024  
 Briefly describe the methodology for the data collection. 

CoC and care provider data entry. 
 Describe the total population from which the sample was taken. 

Residents seeking homelessness services. 



 

  Consolidated Plan BOULDER     193 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 09/30/2021) 

 Describe the demographics of the respondents or characteristics of the unit of measure, and the 
number of respondents or units surveyed. 

Residents seeking homelessness services. 

 


	CityCouncilRegularMeeting-2025-05-28
	Item 6A. 
	Minutes of May 13, 2025
	Item 6B. 
	Memo for 2025 Playground Replacement Program
	Resolution 2025-89 (Star)
	Resolution 2025-90 (Play Well) (1)
	Item 6C. 
	Memo- FID Board Appointments 2025
	Resolution 2025-84  Approving the Appointment of Board Members to the FID Board of Directors 
	Item 6D. 
	Agreement for Jefferson Academy Regarding SEF - Track Expansion (1)
	Resolution 2025-97 Approving Agreements with Jefferson Academy for the use of SEF Funds for Track Improvements 5-27-2025 (1)
	Jefferson Academy - First Amendment to 2022 Joint Use Agreement 5-27-2025
	Agreement w Jefferson Academy SEF Funding for Track 5-27-2025
	Item 6E. 
	Memo for CO 7 Widening Construction Conditional Approval
	Resolution 2025-94
	Item 7A. 
	Proposed Ordinance 2252 Amending the Code Regarding Land Use Approvals by Resolution - Second Reading
	Ordinance No. 2252
	Item 7B. 
	Council Memo_ for_Resolution 2025-87_ CCOB_IGA with BHA_5.27.25
	Resolution 2025-87 A Resolution Approving an Amended and Restated IGA between the Broomfield Housing Alliance and the City and County of Broomfield
	Amended_and_Restated_IGA signed by BHA
	Item 7C. 
	Grant request from Flatirons HFH
	Resolution No. 2025-81
	Partially Signed Grant Agreement for Property Taxes at Groove at Cottonwood for Flatirons Habitat for Humanity 2025
	Item 7D. 
	HOME Consortium_CDBG and HOME Funds_Broomfield Consolidated Plan and 2025 Action plan 
	Resolution 2025-67
	2025 Annual Action Plan - Draft
	2025-2029 Consolidated Plan for Housing and Community Development - Draft

		2025-05-07T09:57:23-0700
	Digitally verifiable PDF exported from www.docusign.com




